
REGIONAL DISTRICT OF OKANAGAN-SIMILKAMEEN 
Thursday, December 15, 2016 

RDOS Boardroom – 101 Martin Street, Penticton 

SCHEDULE OF MEETINGS

9:00 am - 10:00 am

10:00 am - 10:30 am

10:30 am - 12:30 pm

12:30 pm - 1:00 pm

1:00 pm - 1:30 pm

1:30 pm - 3:30 pm

Budget Meeting 

Environment and Infrastructure Committee [Page 2] 

Corporate Services Committee [Page 8]

Lunch 

Community Services Committee [Page 12]

RDOS Board [Page 32]

"Karla Kozakevich” 
____________________ 
Karla Kozakevich 
RDOS Board Chair 

Advance Notice of Meetings: 

January 05, 2017 RDOS Board/Committee Meetings 

January 19, 2017  RDOS Board/OSRHD Board/Committee Meetings 

February 02, 2017 RDOS Board/Committee Meetings 

February 16, 2017 RDOS Board/OSRHD Board/Committee Meetings 

March 02, 2017  RDOS Board/Committee Meetings 

March 16, 2017 RDOS Board/OSRHD Board/Committee Meetings 



REGIONAL DISTRICT OF OKANAGAN-SIMILKAMEEN 

Environment and Infrastructure Committee 
Thursday, December 15, 2016 

10:00 a.m. 

REGULAR AGENDA 

A. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
RECOMMENDATION 1
THAT the Agenda for the Environment and Infrastructure Committee Meeting of
December 15, 2016 be adopted.

B. WEST BENCH WATER METER RATES [Page 3]
To set a water rate for the West Bench Water System based on consumption based 
billing.

1. West Bench Water Rates Public Meeting – Record of Meeting dated November 24, 
2016 [Page 6] 

RECOMMENDATION 2 
THAT the Board of Directors adopt Rate Option 4 contained within the December 15, 
2016 report from the Chief Administrative Officer, that being a formula of 70% of 
revenue from fixed charges ($63.47/month); 30% from variable charges ($0.309/cm3). 
50% discount on variable charge for farm customers ($0.154/cm3); and further,  

THAT the rate structure be reflected in the 2017 RDOS Fees & Charges bylaw, which 
comes into effect on April 15, 2017. 

C. ADJOURNMENT



Https://Portal.Rdos.Bc.Ca/Departments/Officeofthecao/Boardreports/2016/20161215 Board Report/Environment/B. West Bench 
Water Rates.Docx File No: Click here to enter 
text. 
Page 1 of 3 

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 

TO: Environment and Infrastructure Committee 

FROM: B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer

DATE: December 15, 2016 

RE: West Bench Water Meter Rates 

Administrative Recommendation: 

THAT the Board of Directors adopt Rate Option 4 contained within the December 15, 2016 report 
from the Chief Administrative Officer, that being a formula of 70% of revenue from fixed charges 
($63.47/month); 30% from variable charges ($0.309/cm3). 50% discount on variable charge for 
farm customers ($0.154/cm3); and further,  

THAT the rate structure be reflected in the 2017 RDOS Fees & Charges bylaw, which comes into 
effect on April 15, 2017. 

Purpose: 

To set a water rate for the West Bench Water System based on consumption based billing. 

Reference: 

Power Point – November Open House 
G:\Eng Services\E-Filing\5200-5799 Engin&PW\5330.20 Projects\Area F\West Bench Water 
System\2016\West Bench Water Rates\RDOS water rates November Open House - Power point.ppt 
West Bench Water Rates Public Meeting – Record of Meeting 

Business Plan Objective: 

2016 Public Works Business Plan 
Key Success Driver #3 – Sustainable Community 
Implement water meter program in 2017 

Background: 

The Regional District Okanagan-Similkameen (RDOS) has entered into a bulk water purchasing 
agreement with the City of Penticton for the West Bench Water System. Part of this agreement was 



Https://Portal.Rdos.Bc.Ca/Departments/Officeofthecao/Boardreports/2016/20161215 Board Report/Environment/B. West Bench 
Water Rates.Docx File No: Click here to enter 
text. 
Page 2 of 3 

to implement a robust water conservation program that included the installation of water meters. 
The goal for 2017 was to initiate water rates for the West Bench area based on consumption. 

During 2015 and 2016, RDOS began reading the water meters on a monthly basis. With data 
collected, an enormous amount of “continuous leaks’ were detected on private property. A leak 
detection program was initiated in 2016 by RDOS that comprised of staff informing and educating 
the home owner of the property of their leak, working cooperatively with the homeowner in 
identifying the leak and following up with a successful “no leak” status. 

With a reliable data base now obtained from the 2 years of water meter readings, Andrew McLaren 
of InterGroup Consultants was utilized to review the existing West Bench Water System budget and 
cost compare a new budget based on a variable water rate reflected by volume consumption from 
the residents of West Bench. 

In November 2016, the Electoral Area F Director Brydon, Andrew McLaren and RDOS staff hosted 
an Open House for the residents of the West Bench Water System to discuss the background and 
options available for consumption based billing. The Open House was well attended and lively and 
thoughtful questions and comments were received during the meeting. It is the intent to 
implement the new water rates into the RDOS Fees and Charges Bylaw for 2017. 

Analysis: 

Several rate options were evaluated to recover the full revenue requirement with a different 
proportion of rates recovered from a fixed monthly charge and a variable charge based on water 
consumption: 

• Rate Option 1: 60% of revenue from fixed charges ($54.40/month); 40% from variable
charges ($0.391/cm3). All customers pay the same variable rate.

• Rate Option 2: 60% of revenue from fixed charges ($54.50/month); 40% from variable
charges ($0.412/cm3). 50% discount on variable charge for farm customers ($0.206/cm3)

• Rate Option 3: 70% of revenue from fixed charges ($63.47/month); 30% from variable
charges ($0.293/cm3). All customers pay the same variable rate.

• Rate Option 4: 70% of revenue from fixed charges ($63.47/month); 30% from variable
charges ($0.309/cm3). 50% discount on variable charge for farm customers ($0.154/cm3)

Key findings from the study showed: 

• School and parks customers are expected to pay lower bills due to their relatively low
volume of consumption.

• Rate Options 3 and 4 (70% recovery from fixed charges, 30% from variable charges) produce
the narrowest range of bill impacts for single family dwelling customers.

• Reducing the variable rate for farm customers by 50% would largely eliminate the impact of
the variable rate charge on farm customers but would result in somewhat higher bills for
other customers.



Https://Portal.Rdos.Bc.Ca/Departments/Officeofthecao/Boardreports/2016/20161215 Board Report/Environment/B. West Bench 
Water Rates.Docx File No: Click here to enter 
text. 
Page 3 of 3 

· Approximately 30% of forecasted 2017 costs relate to water purchases from the City of
Penticton.

The general consensus from the majority of residents at the Open House favored the 50% discount 
on the variable charge for the farm customers. With the notion that 30% of the variable rate is 
covering the bulk water purchase, the incentive is that if all the property owners conserve their 
water consumption, this will directly lower the costs of purchasing the bulk water resulting in the 
variable rate decreasing. With this direction, instituting a new water rate based on Option 4 – 70% 
fixed, 30% variable with a 50% discount on variable rate for farms is recommended. 

It is important to note that an action item that came out of the Open House was the commitment 
to educate the property owners in the West Bench Water System by sending out “mock bills” based 
on the proposed new rate. With the 2017 Fees and Charges Bylaw to be implemented in April, this 
timing will allow the RDOS to send out these mock bills based on the new rates for the months of 
January, February and March, for information. 

Alternative: 

The Board could choose not to support Rate Option 4 and recommend a different option. 

Communication Strategy: 

Public Open House 
RDOS website link – updating information 
Monthly water consumption data mailed to all property owners 
Mock billing for first quarter of 2017 

Respectfully submitted: 

Roger Huston 
___________________________________________ 
R. Huston, Public Works Manager



1 

West Bench Water Rates Public 
Meeting – Record of Meeting 

Date: November 24, 2016 
Time: 6:30 to 8:30 pm 
Location: West Bench 

Elementary School 
Gymnasium 

Attendees: Michael Brydon; Roger Huston, Judy Burton, Zoe Kirk, Andrew McLaren (InterGroup 
Consultants) 
Approximately 60 West Bench residents attended the meeting. 

Agenda item: Presentation on West Bench Water System and Rate 
Options 

Presenters Michael Brydon; Andrew 
McLaren 

Discussion: 
A brief presentation was made by Michael Brydon and Andrew McLaren that reviewed the characteristics of the 
West Bench water system and 4 water rate options. Questions from residents were answered during and after the 
presentation. Key perspectives and issues raised during the meeting included: 

· Residents wanted to understand how the different rate options would affect their individual bills. It was
noted that metering data had been distributed to all residents so they could understand their individual
consumption patterns. RDOS staff agreed to circulate mock bills to customers indicating the effect of the
different options on each customer.

· Residents wanted to understand if each of the rate options collected the same total revenue. It was
confirmed that each rate option was designed to collect the same total amount of revenue.

· There was discussion on whether water rates should provide a discount to farm customers. It was noted by
a resident who operates a farm that paying the full variable water rate would be a significant burden on his
farm operation. The presentation noted that the two scenarios that included a 50% discount for farm
customers on the variable portion of the water rate resulted in approximately a 2 cent increase the variable
water rate for other customers.

· Some residents questioned why a larger portion of the rate structure wasn’t proposed to be recovered
through a variable charge. It was noted that approximately 30% of the costs of operating the water system
are purely variable costs of bulk water purchases from the City of Penticton. Increasing the proportion of
the revenues recovered from the variable charge could mean that if residents conserve water, the lost
revenue would not be fully offset by cost savings on bulk water purchases. Further, it was noted that the
change from the existing purely fixed charge rate structure to a variable rate structure would result in a
significant increase for some customers. Gradualism in rate structure changes can help mitigate the rate
impact on customers. In the future, the district could consider increasing the proportion of costs that are
recovered through a variable consumption charge.

· Some residents asked if an increasing tiered rate structure was considered to promote water conservation.
It was noted that introducing the variable charge was expected to provide a price signal to customers to
conserve water. In the future a tiered rate structure where rates increase with increasing consumption
could be considered.

· Residents inquired about what the next steps were following this meeting. It was noted that the purpose of
the meeting was to provide customers with information about the rate options and to hear questions and
concern. The RDOS Board would still need to approve changes to the water rates.

· Some residents noted concerns with low water pressure at their properties. Residents were invited to follow
up on a case by case basis with RDOS staff to investigate these issues.



2 

Action items 

ü RDOS staff to distribute mock bills to residents showing the impact of the proposed rates
on customer bills.

Attachments: 
Powerpoint presentation from November24, 2016 meeting. 



REGIONAL DISTRICT OF OKANAGAN-SIMILKAMEEN 

Corporate Services Committee 
Thursday, December 15, 2016 

10:30 a.m. 

REGULAR AGENDA 

A. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
RECOMMENDATION 1
THAT the Agenda for the Corporate Services Committee Meeting of December 15,
2016 be adopted.

B. CLOSED SESSION

RECOMMENDATION 2
THAT in accordance with Section 90(1)(c) of the Community Charter, the Board close
the meeting to the public on the basis of labour relations or other employee relations.

C. BENCHMARK LOCAL GOVERNMENTS FOR BEST PRACTICES IN TECHNOLOGY – For
Information Only [Page 9]
Survey local governments to identify efficiencies and possible increases in productivity 
with regards to Information Technology at the RDOS.

D. ORGANIZATIONAL STRENGTH PERCEPTION SURVEY – For Information Only
The Board completed the 2016 Organizational Strength Perception Survey at their
November 3rd Legislative Workshop and results have been tabulated for discussion.

E. ADJOURNMENT



Https://Portal.Rdos.Bc.Ca/Departments/Officeofthecao/Boardreports/2016/20161215 Board Report/Corporateservices/B. 
Itefficienciesboardreport.Docx File No: Click here to enter 
text. 
Page 1 of 3 

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 

TO: Corporate Services Committee 

FROM: B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer

DATE: December 15, 2016 

RE: Benchmarking local governments for best practices in 
technology 

Administrative Recommendation: 
Information report. 

Purpose: 
Survey local governments to identify efficiencies and possible increases in productivity with regards 
to Information Technology at the RDOS. 

Business Plan Objective: 
Corporate Objective 1.1.2: 
Indicator 1.1.2.3: “Leverage technology for effectiveness and efficiencies by benchmarking local 
governments to determine best practice in the use of technology” 

Background: 
Information Technology, including Geographic Information Systems or GIS is one of the most 
dynamic and efficiency generating industries in existence. IT has advanced at an exponential rate 
with new opportunities continually appearing. Within the RDOS, IT and GIS have greatly increased 
the efficiency of staff and access for the public to RDOS services. 

Periodically however, it is good practice to step back, take an inventory and survey other local 
governments and determine if there is something they are doing that we could benefit from in our 
organization. 

Analysis: 
IT and GIS colleagues were contacted through the Okanagan valley, Municipal Information Systems 
Association and the Interior GIS User Group. In general, they were asked for ways IT and GIS made 
their organizations work more efficiently and more specifically if they had any IT related “gems” 
that created a big impact with low cost. 



Https://Portal.Rdos.Bc.Ca/Departments/Officeofthecao/Boardreports/2016/20161215 Board Report/Corporateservices/B. 
Itefficienciesboardreport.Docx File No: Click here to enter 
text. 
Page 2 of 3 

The results were varied and included the following: 

Response: RDOS Status: 
Work with City of Penticton and SD 67 to build 
redundancy with internet and shared 
infrastructure. 

Currently work with the City and SD67 on a 
number of shared IT initiatives. Will continually 
look at new options which is a focus of the 
shared services review. 

Storybook maps (a web based, GIS app that 
allows the public an easy and informative way 
to access GIS information). 

Currently have a trails Storybook application 
for the public that is popular. Looking at adding 
new storybook applications for heritage and 
regional parks in 2017. 

Leverage data from ICIS (partnership between 
local government, Province and utility 
companies) to access infrastructure mapping 
(utility companies know where our water and 
sewer lines are and we know where their 
infrastructure is located). 

Currently a partner with ICIS and will continue 
to share data with them into the future. 

ParcelMapBC – working closer with LTO (Land 
Titles Office) to improve our parcel datasets. 

Currently working with LTO and will continue 
to use new tools as they become available. 

Surveyors are supplying legal plans with GPS 
and filing electronically which also improves 
our parcel base. 

Currently using any GPS information provided 
on survey plans. It does improve our GIS parcel 
base. 

Aerial/orthophoto technology is changing 
quickly. Photographic film is no longer used, 
costs are coming down, file sizes are smaller, 
data storage is cheaper.  

We are planning on updating our ortho photos 
in 2017. We have notified partner 
municipalities if they would like to partner. 

GIS is going mobile (record utility maintenance 
information, illegal dumpsites, water quality 
information). 

The RDOS has mobile GIS applications for 
recording water system maintenance 
information, illegal dumpsites and trail 
features. Continue to incorporate new mobile 
opportunities as they come up. 

Access to the internet is getting easier and less 
expensive. 

True and it makes it much easier to create 
mobile applications but it can still be a 
challenge is some rural areas. 

Mapping is being recorded and maintained as 
SQL spatial data so that mapping and attribute 
data reside in the same database system which 
in-turn is easily linked to our SQL Server 
databases (i.e. financial), hence greatly easing 
the task of asset management. 

RDOS mapping is also built on SQL Server and 
we continue to integrate with business 
applications where possible and practical. 

Server and/or desktop virtualization. RDOS has embraced server virtualization. 
Approximately 3 years ago investigated the 
option of desktop virtualization. Did not make 



Https://Portal.Rdos.Bc.Ca/Departments/Officeofthecao/Boardreports/2016/20161215 Board Report/Corporateservices/B. 
Itefficienciesboardreport.Docx File No: Click here to enter 
text. 
Page 3 of 3 

business sense at the time. May look at it again 
in 2017. 

Open Data site which is easier to share, allows 
for consultants to self-serve so staff do not 
having to respond to requests. 

RDOS has an Open Data site. 

Improve new staff training (e.g. Offer Captivate 
or other online training) so they use systems 
effectively right off the bat.  

RDOS has online training for staff on the 
intranet. Will look at other options in 2017. 

Integration of systems which saves duplication 
of data, not having system spatially enabled, 
better decision-making, etc. 

RDOS has created many of our business 
applications which makes it much easier to 
integrate. 

Conversion of hardcopy and spreadsheet-based 
data sets (and related processes) to databases 
(where the data gets formalized and linkable to 
GIS). 

With Kaizen process, continually looking at 
business processes, making them more 
efficient which includes processes such as this. 

Conversion of map-based data to GIS and 
resulting improvement of the data and wider 
sharing of the results, data analysis, reduce 
field trips, etc. 

RDOS is continually moving map-based data to 
GIS and making it available to all staff through 
internet mapping apps where it is practical. 

A number of organizations who participated expressed this was a good exercise to go through. 
Several of these items we are currently doing, some we have been considered in the past but at the 
time were not implemented because it did not make business sense for our organization. Moving 
forward we will look at these initiatives to see if they now work for the RDOS. 

In the short-term however we are currently going through a shared services review with the City of 
Penticton, District Municipality of Summerland and SD 67. The intent of this exercise is to 
determine where these four organizations can share services and create efficiencies. Technology 
will certainly be a key role in whatever services are decided to move ahead on. 

Respectfully submitted: 

Tim Bouwmeester 
___________________________________________ 
T. Bouwmeester, Manager of Information Services



REGIONAL DISTRICT OF OKANAGAN-SIMILKAMEEN 

Community Services Committee 
Thursday, December 15, 2016 

1:00 p.m. 

REGULAR AGENDA 

A. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
RECOMMENDATION 1
THAT the Agenda for the Community Services Committee Meeting of December 15,
2016 be adopted.

B. DELEGATION

Steve Esau, Director of Addictions Services, Pacific Community Resources Society
Val Clement, Operations Manager, Keremeos Treatment Centre

Mr. Esau and Ms. Clement will address the Board to discuss Keremeos Programming for 
BC Mental Health & Substance Use Services.

1. Presentation – Keremeos Programming [Page 13] 

C. ADJOURNMENT



Welcome



• Previous program operated in Keremeos 
• PHSA/BCMHSUS assumed contract 

management in 2014
oWorked with service provider to enhance 

the model of care, transition to a provincial 
access model, meeting licensing 
requirements, etc.

oMarch 2015, service provider ended 
contract

History



• PHSA/BCMHSUS worked with RHAs to select
Service provider

• Pacific Community Resources Society (PCRS)
selected

• PHSA/BCMHSUS & PCRS working
collaboratively to open January 2017

• Continuous collaborative
planning/engagement across RHAs,
Indigenous groups, youth, family, other
stakeholders

History (Cont’d)



Pacific Community Resources Society is not-for-
profit society serving Lower Mainland 

communities since 1984.

Our Vision
Everyone thriving in 

strong, healthy 
communities

Our Mission
Inspiring healthy and 

inclusive communities 
through leadership and 

collaboration

www.pcrs.ca

Who is PCRS?



PSCR Staff



PCRS Services



• Youth and Young Adults aged 17-24
• All genders
• Substance use concerns
• Tier 4 
• Support concurrent disorders
• Have exhausted or unable to access SU support 

resources in home community

Population



• One-on-one clinical counselling
• Group Counselling
o Identity, Healthy Relationships, Relapse

Prevention, Self-esteem, Mindfulness, etc. 
• Nurse Practitioner & Physician Services
• Family Therapy

Clinical Programming



Programming



Continuity of Care
• Care plan starts at admission
• Communication between community care

team, family and onsite team
• While onsite collaborative goal-setting, which

will be continually reviewed with the client
and their community care team

• Transition planning (home plan, client follow-
up)

Programming



Interests
Hobbies

Skills

Educational 
Goals

Individualized Growth Plans



Spiritual & CulturalRecreation

Connection to 
Community

Continuity of Care

KeremeosHome Supports Home Supports

Additional Programming



What will programming look like?

Values & Interests

HEALTHY RELATIONSHIPS!
Supports
Nature
Spirituality & Culture

Programming



As with all PCRS programs, we aim to foster and 
support any potential relational connections with 
participants families as well as support network. This 
includes teaching healthy relationships on site, but also 
finding ways to involve the family in our programming. 
This can include:
• Parent educational series / Family Counselling
• Opportunities for family involvement in rec/ leisure.
• Arranging for families to stay on-site for visits

Family



Access



22 beds
o4 beds allocated per Health Authority
o2 prioritization beds:

• Indigenous clients
• Pregnant
• At risk (unsafe home environment)
• Limited or no resources in home

community

Access



Health Authority Liaisons
FHA 
Lianne Radmore 
lianne.radmore@fraserhealth.ca/604-613-1811 

IHA
Jana Abetkoff
Jana.Abetkoff@interiorhealth.ca/250-314-2171

Island Health
Dana Leik
dana.leik@viha.ca /250 755 7691 Ext. 5477

NHA
Sandra Galetti
Sandra.Galletti@northernhealth.ca/250 649 7065

VCHA
Mary Dowdall
Mary.Dowdall@vch.ca

Access



Referral Package

Available online on December 5, 2016 here:

http://www.bcmhsus.ca/programs-
at-a-glance

Referrals can be submitted on December 5, 2016!

Access





REGIONAL DISTRICT OF OKANAGAN-SIMILKAMEEN 
BOARD of DIRECTORS MEETING 

Thursday, December 15, 2016 
1:30 p.m. 

REGULAR AGENDA 

A. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
RECOMMENDATION 1 (Unweighted Corporate Vote – Simple Majority)
THAT the Agenda for the RDOS Board Meeting of December 15, 2016 be adopted.

1. Consent Agenda – Corporate Issues
a. Corporate Services Committee – December 1, 2016 [Page 44]

THAT the Minutes of the December 1, 2016 Corporate Services Committee be 
received.

b. Environment and Infrastructure Committee – December 1, 2016 [Page 46]
THAT the Minutes of the December 1, 2016 Environment and Infrastructure 
Committee be received.

c. Protective Services Committee – December 1, 2016 [Page 48]
THAT the Minutes of the December 1, 2016 Protective Services Committee be 
received.

d. RDOS Regular Board Meeting – December 1, 2016 [Page 50]
THAT the minutes of the December 1, 2016 RDOS Regular Board meeting be 
adopted. 

RECOMMENDATION 2 (Unweighted Corporate Vote – Simple Majority) 
THAT the Consent Agenda – Corporate Issues be adopted. 

2. Consent Agenda – Development Services
a. Development Variance Permit Application – J. Jung & S. Marino, 255 Creekview 

Road, Apex, Electoral Area “D” [Page 55]
i. Permit No. D2016.092-DVP [Page 59]
ii. Responses Received [Page 64]

To allow for the construction of a duplex

THAT the Board of Directors approve Development Variance Permit No. 
D2016.092-DVP. 



Board of Directors Agenda – Regular - 2 - December 15, 2016 

b. Temporary Use Permit Renewal Application – D. & S. Chipchura, 166 Sundial 
Road, Electoral Area “C” [Page 65]
i. Permit No. C2016.103-TUP [Page 69]
ii. Responses Received [Page 74]
To allow for the renewal of an existing Temporary Use Permit authorizing a 
short-term vacation rental use. 

THAT the Board of Directors approve Temporary Use Permit No. C2016.103-TUP. 

c. Temporary Use Permit Renewal Application – A. & H. Konanz, 110 Ponderosa 
Avenue, Kaleden, Electoral Area “D” [Page 77]
i. Permit No. D2016.105-TUP [Page 81]
ii. Responses Received [Page 86]
To allow for the renewal of an existing Temporary Use Permit authorizing a 
short-term vacation rental use. 

THAT the Board of Directors approve Temporary Use Permit No. D2016.105-TUP. 

d. Temporary Use Permit Renewal Application – L. Partone, 3985 1st Street, 
Naramata, Electoral Area “E” [Page 93]
i. Permit No. E2016.102-TUP [Page 97]
ii. Responses Received [Page 102]
To allow for the renewal of an existing Temporary Use Permit authorizing a 
short-term vacation rental use. 

THAT the Board of Directors approve Temporary Use Permit No. E2016.102-TUP. 

e. Temporary Use Permit Renewal Application – L. & P. Riccio, 3055 Hayman 
Road, Naramata, Electoral Area “E” [Page 107]
i. Permit No. E2016.104-TUP [Page 111]
ii. Responses Received [Page 116]
To allow for the renewal of an existing Temporary Use Permit authorizing a 
short-term vacation rental use. 

THAT the Board of Directors approve Temporary Use Permit No. E2016.104-TUP. 

f. Temporary Use Permit Renewal Application – D. Minchau, 780 Languedoc 
Road, Naramata, Electoral Area “E” [Page 120]
i. Permit No. E2016.108-TUP [Page 124]
ii. Responses Received [Page 129]
To allow for the renewal of an existing Temporary Use Permit authorizing a 
short-term vacation rental use. 

THAT the Board of Directors approve Temporary Use Permit No. E2016.108-TUP. 



Board of Directors Agenda – Regular - 3 - December 15, 2016 

g. Temporary Use Permit Renewal Application – A. & B. Richards, 4383 Mill Road, 
Naramata, Electoral Area “E” [Page 136]
i. Permit No. E2016.114-TUP [Page 140]
ii. Responses Received [Page 145]
To allow for the renewal of an existing Temporary Use Permit authorizing a 
short-term vacation rental use. 

THAT the Board of Directors approve Temporary Use Permit No. E2016.114-TUP. 

h. Temporary Use Permit Renewal Application – Hollyhock Trust, 4245 Mill Road, 
Naramata, Electoral Area “E” [Page 153]
i. Permit No. E2016.119-TUP [Page 157]
ii. Responses Received [Page 162]
To allow for the renewal of an existing Temporary Use Permit authorizing a 
short-term vacation rental use. 

THAT the Board of Directors approve Temporary Use Permit No. E2016.119-TUP. 

i. Temporary Use Permit Renewal Application – L. Ashbrook & B. Cresswell, 
3189 3rd Street, Naramata, Electoral Area “E” [Page 170]
i. Permit No. E2016.120-TUP [Page 174]
ii. Responses Received [Page 179]
To allow for the renewal of an existing Temporary Use Permit authorizing a 
short-term vacation rental use. 

THAT the Board of Directors approve Temporary Use Permit No. E2016.120-TUP. 

RECOMMENDATION 3 (Unweighted Rural Vote – Simple Majority) 
THAT the Consent Agenda – Development Services be adopted. 

B. DELEGATIONS

1. Jack Bennetto, District Manager Transportation - Okanagan Shuswap District,
British Columbia Ministry of Transportation and Infrastructure

Mr. Bennetto will address the Board to discuss initiatives for 2017

2. Linda Larson, Member of Legislative Assembly for Boundary-Similkameen

MLA Larson will address the Board to present a wrap-up of 2016 and look forward
into 2017



Board of Directors Agenda – Regular - 4 - December 15, 2016 

C. DEVELOPMENT SERVICES – Rural Land Use Matters

1. Temporary Use Permit Application – P. & M. Kappes, 1146 Highway 3A, Kaleden,
Electoral Area “D” [Page 186]
a. Permit No. D2016.094-TUP [Page 190]
b. Responses Received [Page 194]

To allow for a sales display area for agricultural trailers and equipment. 

This item was removed from the November 17, 2016 Consent Agenda and deferred 
to December 15, 2016. 

RECOMMENDATION 4 (Unweighted Rural Vote – Simple Majority) 
THAT the Board of Directors approve Temporary Use Permit No. D2016.094-TUP 

2. Zoning Bylaw Amendment – South Okanagan Ventures Ltd., 8472 Gallagher
Lake Frontage Road, Electoral Area “C” [Page 204]
a. Bylaw No. 2453.29, 2016 [Page 206]
b. Public Hearing Report on Amendment Bylaw No. 2453.29 – November 14, 2016
[Page 209]
c. Responses Received [Page 211]
To facilitate the development of 27 new modular home sites.

RECOMMENDATION 5 (Unweighted Corporate Vote – Simple Majority) 
THAT the public hearing report on Amendment Bylaw No. 2453.29 be received. 

RECOMMENDATION 6 (Unweighted Rural Vote – Simple Majority) 
THAT Bylaw No. 2453.29, 2016, Electoral Area “C” Zoning Amendment Bylaw be 
read a third time. 



Board of Directors Agenda – Regular - 5 - December 15, 2016 

3. Official Community Plan (OCP) & Zoning Bylaw Amendment – Gallagher Lake Area
Plan, Electoral Area “C” [Page 225]
a. Bylaw No. 2452.16, 2016 [Page 228]
b. Appendix 1 to the Electoral Area “C” Zoning Bylaw No. 2452, 2008 [Page 231]
c. Schedule 2 to Amendment Bylaw 2452.16 [Page 266]
d. Public Hearing Report on Amendment Bylaw No. 2452.16 – November 14, 2016

[Page 267]
e. Responses Received [Page 270]
f. Bylaw No. 2453.30, 2016 [Page 285]
g. Public Hearing Report on Amendment Bylaw No. 2453.30 – November 14, 2016

[Page 289]
h. Responses Received [Page 292]

To adopt the Gallagher Lake Area Plan as a component of the Electoral Area “C” 
Official Community Plan No. 2452, 2008, and to amend the zoning of 8307 Highway 
97 — which is within the Plan Area — to address an inadvertent zoning change that 
occurred in 2002. 

RECOMMENDATION 7 (Unweighted Corporate Vote – Simple Majority) 
THAT the public hearing report on Amendment Bylaw No. 2452.16 and the public 
hearing report on Amendment Bylaw No. 2453.30 be received.  

RECOMMENDATION 8 (Unweighted Rural Vote – 2/3 Majority) 
THAT Bylaw No. 2452.16, 2016, Electoral Area “C” Official Community Plan be read 
a third time as amended and adopted; and  

THAT Bylaw No. 2453.30, 2016, Electoral Area “C” Zoning Amendment Bylaw be 
read a third time, as amended. 



Board of Directors Agenda – Regular - 6 - December 15, 2016 

4. Official Community Plan – Electoral Area “D-1” [Page 299]
a. Electoral Area “D-1” Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 2683, 2016 [Page 303]
b. Electoral Area “D-1” Official Community Plan Map [Page 421]
c. Electoral Area “D-1” Official Community Plan Update – Community Survey and

Project Webpage Survey [Page 435]
d. Public Hearing Report – Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 2683, 2016, Electoral

Area “D-1” [Page 505]
e. Responses Received [Page 507]

To update and replace the Electoral Area “D-1” Kaleden Apex Official Community 
Plan Bylaw. 

RECOMMENDATION 9 (Unweighted Corporate Vote – Simple Majority) 
THAT the public hearing report on Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 2683, 2016, 
Electoral Area “D-1”, be received. 

RECOMMENDATION 10 (Unweighted Rural Vote – 2/3 Majority) 
THAT Bylaw No. 2683, 2016, Electoral Area “D-1” Official Community Plan, as 
amended, be read a third time and adopted. 

5. Zoning Bylaw Amendment – Large Holdings Two (LH2) – Electoral Area “D-1”
[Page 548]
a. Bylaw No. 2457.15, 2016 [Page 550]
b. Public Hearing Report on Amendment Bylaw No. 2457.15, 2016 – November 16,

2016 [Page 557]
c. Responses Received [Page 559]

That the Regional District Board initiate an amendment to the Electoral Area “D-1” 
Zoning Bylaw No. 2457, 2008, in order to include a new Large Holdings Two (LH2) 
Zone into the zoning bylaw with an 8 ha minimum parcel size requirement and; 
secondly, to rezone three specific properties to LH2.    

The new LH2 zone is being introduced in conjunction with the Draft Electoral Area 
“D-1” Official Community Plan Bylaw.  

RECOMMENDATION 11 (Unweighted Corporate Vote – Simple Majority) 
THAT the public hearing report on Amendment Bylaw No. 2457.15, 2016 be 
received. 

RECOMMENDATION 12 (Unweighted Rural Vote – 2/3 Majority) 
THAT Bylaw No. 2457.15, 2016, Electoral Area “D” Zoning Amendment Bylaw be 
read a third time and be adopted. 



Board of Directors Agenda – Regular - 7 - December 15, 2016 

D. COMMUNITY SERVICES – Protective Services [Page 565]

1. Fire Master Plan Award of Contract

RECOMMENDATION 13 (Weighted Corporate Vote – Majority)
THAT the Board of Directors authorize the Chair and Chief Administrative Officer
to execute a contract with Dave Mitchell & Associates Ltd. for $ 50,000.00 (plus
applicable taxes) for the purpose of providing a Fire Master Plan to include the
seven Regional District Fire Departments

E. COMMUNITY SERVICES – Rural Projects

1. Naramata Creek Park Land Acquisitions [Page 567]
a. Creek Park to KVR Map [Page 569]

To acquire portions of the two parcels east of Creek Park to maintain and enhance 
an existing trail from the town site of Naramata to the KVR. 

RECOMMENDATION 14 (Weighted Corporate Vote – Majority) 
THAT the Board of Directors approve the purchase of 0.6 Acres of Lot A, DL 2711, 
SDYD Plan 42415 for $30,300. Contingent on the successful subdivision rezoning 
and consolidation with the existing Creek Park Parcel AND, 

THAT the Board of Directors approve the purchase of 4.6 Acre of Lot A, DL 2711, 
SDYD, Plan 29843 Except Plans 37741 & 42415 for $50,000. Contingent on the 
successful subdivision rezoning and consolidation with the existing Creek Park 
Parcel.  

F. FINANCE

1. Electoral Area “G” Community Works Gas Tax Expenditure – Keremeos Irrigation
District Water Meter Installation [Page 570]
a. Bylaw No. 2766, 2016 [Page 572]
b. Letters of Support [Page 573]

RECOMMENDATION 15 (Weighted Corporate Vote – 2/3 Majority) 
THAT Bylaw 2766, 2016 Electoral Area ‘G’ Community Works Gas Tax Reserve Fund 
Expenditure Bylaw be read a first, second and third time, and be adopted. 



Board of Directors Agenda – Regular - 8 - December 15, 2016 

G. OFFICE OF THE CAO

1. Municipal and Regional District Tax Program [Page 575]
a. Letter of Support [Page 576] 

To support Travel Penticton in their application to the Province of British Columbia 
for collection of a 2% tax on hotel rooms. 

RECOMMENDATION 16 (Unweighted Corporate Vote – Simple Majority) 
THAT the Regional District provide a letter of support to Travel Penticton to renew 
the 2% Municipal and Regional District Tax (MRDT). 

2. Lower Similkameen Community Forest Corporation [Page 577]

This item was tabled at the November 17, 2016 RDOS Board Agenda and deferred to
January 5, 2017.

RECOMMENDATION 17 (Weighted Corporate Vote – Majority)
THAT the Board transfer the Regional District (Electoral Areas “B” and “G”) interest
in the LSCF LLP and LSCF LTD to the Similkameen Valley Planning Society in
consultation with the Village of Keremeos and the LSIB, subject to the society
submitting a formal request to acquire the interest of the Regional District in LTD
and LLP on or before December 20, 2016.

New motion for Board consideration.

RECOMMENDATION 18 (Weighted Corporate Vote – Majority)
THAT the Board of Directors withdraw the Regional District participation in the
Lower Similkameen Community Forests Ltd (“Ltd”) and the Lower Similkameen
Community Forest Limited Partnership (“LLP”) and transfer its interest to the
Lower Similkameen Indian Band Business Trust.

THAT, in accordance with the Declaration of Trust signed by the Electoral Area “G”
Director on December 11, 2014, the Electoral Area “G” Director be instructed to
execute all documents requiring his signature to transfer the Regional District of
Okanagan-Similkameen’s interest in the Lower Similkameen Community Forest
Ltd; and further,

THAT should the Electoral Area “G” Director not execute the required documents,
the Board of Directors authorize the transfer of legal interest in the shares
registered in the name of Elef Christensen to the Chair of the Board of Directors.



Board of Directors Agenda – Regular - 9 - December 15, 2016 

3. Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen Environmental Conservation Service 
Establishment Bylaw No. 2690, 2016 [Page 
a. Bylaw No. 2690, 2016 [Page 580] 

RECOMMENDATION 19 (Unweighted Corporate Vote – Simple Majority) 
THAT Bylaw No. 2690, 2016 Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
Environmental Conservation Service Establishment Bylaw be adopted. 

4. Petition to Enter Naramata Water Service Area [Page 582]
a. Bylaw No. 2747, 2016 [Page 585]
b. Bylaw No. 1804.07, 2016 [Page 588]
c. Bylaw No. 2431, 2008 [Page 591]
d. Bylaw No. 1804.03, 2008 [Page 594] 

RECOMMENDATION 20 (Unweighted Corporate Vote – Simple Majority)  
THAT the first three readings of Bylaw No. 2431, 2008, "Naramata Water Service 
Extension Bylaw be rescinded and the bylaw be abandoned; and, 

THAT the first three readings of Bylaw No. 1804.03, 2008, " Naramata Water 
System Development Cost Charge Amendment Bylaw be rescinded and the bylaw 
be abandoned; and, 

THAT Bylaw No. 2747, 2016, "Naramata Water Service Extension Bylaw” be read a 
first second and third time; and,  

THAT Bylaw No. 1804.07, 2016, "Naramata Water System Development Cost 
Charge Amendment Bylaw” be read a first, second and third time. 

5. Select Committees and External Agencies Appointments [Page 597]

RECOMMENDATION 21 (Unweighted Corporate Vote – Simple Majority)
THAT appointments to the Municipal Finance Authority, Municipal Insurance
Association and Intergovernmental First Nations Joint Council reflect the change in
Chair and Vice Chair; and,

THAT Mark Pendergraft be appointed as the third representative on the
Intergovernmental First Nations Joint Council; and,

THAT all other external agency representation for 2017 remain unchanged from
2016.



Board of Directors Agenda – Regular - 10 - December 15, 2016 

6. Parks and Recreation Commission Appointments [Page 599]

As outlined in RDOS Parks and Recreation Commission Bylaw No. 2732, 2016,
advertisements were placed in local news publications seeking new membership for
all Commissions. The Electoral Area Directors have reviewed all new applications
and expiring members wishing to let their name stand, and are recommending the
following members for Board appointment to the various commissions.

RECOMMENDATION 22 (Unweighted Corporate Vote – Simple Majority)
THAT the Board of Directors appoint the following members to the subsequent
Commissions AND,

Area “B” - 
Kobau Park 

Area “E” - 
Naramata 

Area “F” - 
West Bench 

Area “D” - 
Okanagan 

Falls 
Area “D” - 
Kaleden 

Similkameen 
Recreation 

Marie Marven Jeff Gagnon Heather Allan Ron Obriek Doug King Charlene 
Cowling 

Deanna Gibbs Dennis Smith Warren 
Everton 

Brian Jackson Neal 
Dockendorf 

Marie Marven 

Bob 
McAtamney 

Richard 
Roskell 

Gail Jeffery Marnie Todd 

Jacqueline 
Duncan 

Jennifer 
Charlish 

Jennifer Roe 

AND THAT the Board of Directors rescind the appointment of the following 
commission members as follows AND, 

Area “B” - 
Kobau Park 

Area “E” - 
Naramata 

Area “F” - 
West Bench 

Area “D” - 
Okanagan 

Falls 
Area “D” - 
Kaleden 

Similkameen 
Recreation 

Deborah 
Linton 

Lynn 
Tsumuraya 

Mike Pearce 
Tim Devlin 

THAT a letter be forwarded to these commission members thanking them for their 
contribution to their recreation commission. 



Board of Directors Agenda – Regular - 11 - December 15, 2016 

7. OBWB Milfoil Equipment [Page 601]
a. Trust and Agency Agreement [Page 602]
b. OBWB Memo [Page 609] 

For several years, the OBWB has been corresponding with Transport Canada 
regarding the registration of our milfoil vessels. The OBWB, legislated as a 
partnership between the three Okanagan regional districts, does not fit into their 
categories of entities that can hold registration.  OBWB will make some large 
equipment purchases over the next several years and needs to resolve the issue in a 
timely way. The preferred solution is to transfer the equipment title to one of the 
regional district partners, to hold in trust for the OBWB and the other two 
Okanagan regional districts.  

RECOMMENDATION 31 (Unweighted Corporate Vote – Simple Majority)  
THAT the Regional District enter into agreement with the Okanagan Basin Water 
Board to take possession of their milfoil equipment; and, to hold that title in trust 
for OBWB and their Members. 

8. 2017 Business Plan [Page 610]
a. 2017 Corporate Business Plan [Page 611] 

Local governments are facing significant challenges that impact their ability to 
satisfactorily fulfill their purpose and serve those citizens within their geographic 
boundaries, as stipulated in the enabling legislation under which they were created. 

These challenges occur as a result of several factors resulting from both internal and 
external conditions.  The Board of Directors for the Regional District of Okanagan 
Similkameen meets each autumn to set out a Business Plan for the next calendar 
year, and then holds their administration responsible for achieving those goals and 
objectives identified. 

RECOMMENDATION 32 (Unweighted Corporate Vote – Simple Majority) 
THAT the Regional District adopt the 2017 Business Plan. 

H. CAO REPORTS

1. Verbal Update



Board of Directors Agenda – Regular - 12 - December 15, 2016 

I. OTHER BUSINESS

1. Chair’s Report

2. Board Representation
a. Municipal Finance Authority (MFA) - Pendergraft

b. Okanagan Basin Water Board (OBWB) – Hovanes, McKortoff, Waterman

c. Okanagan-Kootenay Sterile Insect Release Board (SIR) - Bush

d. Okanagan Regional Library (ORL) - Kozakevich

e. Okanagan Film Commission (OFC) – Jakubeit

f. Rural Practices - McKortoff

g. Southern Interior Beetle Action Coalition (SIBAC) - Armitage

h. Southern Interior Municipal Employers Association (SIMEA) - Kozakevich

i. Southern Interior Local Government Association (SILGA) – Kozakevich

j. Starling Control - Bush

k. UBC Water Chair Advisory Committee – Bauer

3. Directors Motions

4. Board Members Verbal Update

J. ADJOURNMENT



  REGIONAL DISTRICT OF OKANAGAN-SIMILKAMEEN 

Corporate Services Committee 
Thursday, December 1, 2016 

2:02 p.m. 
 

Minutes 
 

MEMBERS PRESENT:  
Chair K. Kozakevich, Electoral Area “E” 
Vice Chair M. Bauer, Village of Keremeos 

Director F. Armitage, Town of Princeton 
Director T. Boot, District of Summerland 
Director M. Brydon, Electoral Area “F” 
Director G. Bush, Electoral Area “B” 
Director E. Christensen, Electoral Area “G” 
Director B. Coyne, Electoral Area “H” 
Director R. Hovanes, Town of Oliver 

 
Director A. Jakubeit, City of Penticton 
Director H. Konanz, City of Penticton 
Director A. Martin, City of Penticton 
Director S. McKortoff, Town of Osoyoos 
Director M. Pendergraft, Electoral Area “A” 
Director J. Sentes, City of Penticton 
Director T. Schafer, Electoral Area “C” 
Director T. Siddon, Electoral Area “D” 
Director P. Waterman, District of Summerland 

MEMBERS ABSENT: 
 

 
 

STAFF PRESENT:  
B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 
C. Malden, Manager of Legislative Services 

  
 

 
A. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

RECOMMENDATION 1  
It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT the Agenda for the Corporate Services Committee Meeting of December 1, 2016 be 
adopted. - CARRIED 

 
 

B. BOARD EVALUATION SURVEY RESULTS – For Information Only 
The Board completed the 2016 Board Evaluation Survey at their November 3rd Legislative 
Workshop and results have been tabulated for discussion. 

 
 
C. ORGANIZATIONAL STRENGTH PERCEPTION SURVEY – For Information Only 

This item was deferred to the next Corporate Services Committee meeting. 
 

 
D. ADJOURNMENT 

By consensus, the meeting adjourned at 2:59 p.m. 
 
 



Corporate Services Committee - 2 - December 1, 2016 
 
 
APPROVED: 
 
 
 
________________________ 
K. Kozakevich 
RDOS Board Chair  

CERTIFIED CORRECT:  
 
 
 
_________________________ 
B. Newell 
Corporate Officer 

 



 

  REGIONAL DISTRICT OF OKANAGAN-SIMILKAMEEN 

Environment and Infrastructure Committee 
Thursday, December 1, 2016 

3:00 p.m. 
 

Minutes 
 

MEMBERS PRESENT:  
Chair T. Siddon, Electoral Area “D” 
Vice Chair M. Pendergraft, Electoral Area “A” 
Director F. Armitage, Town of Princeton  
Director M. Bauer, Village of Keremeos 
Director T. Boot, District of Summerland 
Director M. Brydon, Electoral Area “F” 
Director G. Bush, Electoral Area “B” 
Director E. Christensen, Electoral Area “G” 
Director B. Coyne, Electoral Area “H” 

 
Director R. Hovanes, Town of Oliver 
Director A. Jakubeit, City of Penticton 
Director H. Konanz, City of Penticton 
Director K. Kozakevich, Electoral Area “E”  
Director A. Martin, City of Penticton 
Director S. McKortoff, Town of Osoyoos  
Director J. Sentes, City of Penticton 
Director T. Schafer, Electoral Area “C” 
Director P. Waterman, District of Summerland 

MEMBERS ABSENT: 
 

 
 

STAFF PRESENT: 
B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 
C. Malden, Manager of Legislative Services 

 
R. Huston, Manager of Public Works 

 
A. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

RECOMMENDATION 1  
It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT the Agenda for the Environment and Infrastructure Committee Meeting of 
December 1, 2016 be adopted. - CARRIED 

 
 

B. MOSQUITO CONTROL PROGRAM YEAR END UPDATE – For Information Only 
1. Presentation 
 
To update the Board of Directors with respect to the program operations, challenges, 
modifications, and application totals for 2016. 

 
 

C. ADJOURNMENT 
By consensus, the Environment and Infrastructure Committee meeting of December 1, 
2016 adjourned at 3:29 p.m. 
 

 
 



Environment and Infrastructure Committee - 2 - December 1, 2016 
 
 
APPROVED: 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
T. Siddon 
Environment and Infrastructure Committee Chair 

CERTIFIED CORRECT: 
 
 
 
_______________________________ 
B. Newell 
Chief Administrative Officer 

 



  REGIONAL DISTRICT OF OKANAGAN-SIMILKAMEEN 

Protective Services Committee 
Thursday, December 1, 2016 

1:30 p.m. 
 

Minutes 
 
 

MEMBERS PRESENT:  
Chair A. Jakubeit, City of Penticton 
Vice Chair T. Schafer, Electoral Area “C” 
Director F. Armitage, Town of Princeton  
Director M. Bauer, Village of Keremeos 
Director T. Boot, District of Summerland 
Director M. Brydon, Electoral Area “F” 
Director G. Bush, Electoral Area “B” 
Director E. Christensen, Electoral Area “G” 
Director B. Coyne, Electoral Area “H” 

 
Director R. Hovanes, Town of Oliver 
Director H. Konanz, City of Penticton 
Director K. Kozakevich, Electoral Area “E” 
Director A. Martin, City of Penticton 
Director S. McKortoff, Town of Osoyoos 
Director M. Pendergraft, Electoral Area “A” 
Director J. Sentes, City of Penticton 
Director T. Siddon, Electoral Area “D” 
Director P. Waterman, District of Summerland 

MEMBERS ABSENT: 
 

 
 

STAFF PRESENT:  
B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 
C. Malden, Manager of Legislative Services 

  
 

 
 
A. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

RECOMMENDATION 1  
By consensus the Agenda for the Protective Services Committee Meeting of December 1, 
2016 was adopted. 

 
 
B. DELEGATION 

 
1. Staff Sergeant Kirsten Marshall, A/OIC, South Okanagan Similkameen Regional 

Detachment 
 
S/Sgt. Marshall will present the third quarter reports on policing issues within the 
Regional District. 
 
a. Q3 2016 Report 
b. Q3 2016 Keremeos Statistics 
c. Q3 2016 Oliver Statistics 
d. Q3 2016 Osoyoos Statistics 



Protective Services Committee - 2 - December 1, 2016 
 

e. Q3 2016 Penticton Area Rural Communities Statistics 
f. Q3 2016 Princeton Statistics 
g. Q3 2016 Summerland Statistics 

 
 

 
C. ADJOURNMENT 

By consensus, the Protective Services Committee meeting of December 1, 2016 
adjourned at 2:00 p.m. 

 
 
 
 
APPROVED:   
 
 
 
______________________________ 
A. Jakubeit 
Protective Services Committee Chair  

CERTIFIED CORRECT: 
 
 
 
_________________________________ 
B. Newell 
Chief Administrative Officer 

 



 

REGIONAL DISTRICT OF OKANAGAN-SIMILKAMEEN 
BOARD of DIRECTORS MEETING 

 
Minutes of the Board Meeting of the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen (RDOS) Board 
of Directors held at 3:30 p.m. Thursday, December 1, 2016 in the Boardroom, 101 Martin Street, 
Penticton, British Columbia. 

MEMBERS PRESENT:  
Chair K. Kozakevich, Electoral Area “E” 
Vice Chair M. Bauer, Village of Keremeos 

Director M. Pendergraft, Electoral Area “A” 
Director A. Jakubeit, City of Penticton 
Director F. Armitage, Town of Princeton 
Director T. Boot, District of Summerland 
Director M. Brydon, Electoral Area “F” 
Director G. Bush, Electoral Area “B” 
Director E. Christensen, Electoral Area “G” 

 
Director B. Coyne, Electoral Area “H” 
Director R. Hovanes, Town of Oliver 
Director H. Konanz, City of Penticton 
Director A. Martin, City of Penticton 
Director S. McKortoff, Town of Osoyoos 
Director J. Sentes, City of Penticton 
Director T. Schafer, Electoral Area “C” 
Director T. Siddon, Electoral Area “D” 
Director P. Waterman, District of Summerland 

MEMBERS ABSENT: 
 

 
 

STAFF PRESENT:  
B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer  
C. Malden, Manager of Legislative Services 

 
 

 
A. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

RECOMMENDATION 1 (Unweighted Corporate Vote – Simple Majority) 
IT WAS MOVED AND SECONDED 
THAT the Agenda for the RDOS Board Meeting of December 1, 2016 be adopted. 
CARRIED 
 

 
1. Consent Agenda – Corporate Issues 

a. Environment and Infrastructure Committee – November 17, 2016 
THAT the Minutes of the November 17, 2016 Environment and Infrastructure 
Committee be received. 
 
THAT the Board of Directors endorse the Crown Land Tenure Application for 
access over Crown land described as “That part of District Lot 2476s, Similkameen 
Division Yale District, containing 0.90 hectares, more less”. 
 

b. RDOS Regular Board Meeting – November 17, 2016 
THAT the minutes of the November 17, 2016 RDOS Regular Board meeting be 
adopted. 

 

RECOMMENDATION 2 (Unweighted Corporate Vote – Simple Majority) 
IT WAS MOVED AND SECONDED 
THAT the Consent Agenda – Corporate Issues be adopted. - CARRIED 
 



Board of Directors Meeting – Regular - 2 - December 1, 2016 
 

 
2. Consent Agenda – Development Services  

a. Development Variance Permit Application – A. Souto, 259 Road 18, Oliver, 
Electoral Area “C” 
i. Permit No. C2016.118-DVP 
 
THAT the Board of Directors approve Development Variance Permit No. 
C2016.118-DVP. 

 
RECOMMENDATION 3 (Unweighted Rural Vote – Simple Majority) 
IT was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT the Consent Agenda – Development Services be adopted. - CARRIED 

 
 

B. DEVELOPMENT SERVICES – Rural Land Use Matters 
 
1. Zoning Bylaw Amendment – L. DeMelo, Electoral Area “A” 

a. Bylaw No. 2451.21, 2016 
 
RECOMMENDATION 4 (Unweighted Rural Vote – Simple Majority)   
It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT Bylaw No. 2451.21, 2016, Electoral Area “A” Zoning Amendment Bylaw be 
adopted. - CARRIED 
 

 
2. Zoning Bylaw Amendment – N. South & I. Mant, 2255 Naramata Road, Naramata, Area 

“E” 
a. Bylaw No. 2459.21, 2016 
b. Responses Received  
 
RECOMMENDATION 5 (Unweighted Rural Vote – Simple Majority)   
It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT Bylaw No. 2459.21, 2016, Electoral Area “E” Zoning Amendment Bylaw be read 
a first and second time and proceed to a public hearing; 
 
AND THAT the holding of a public hearing be delegated to Director Kozakevich; 
 
AND THAT staff schedule the date, time, and place of the public hearing in 
consultation with Director Kozakevich; 
 
AND THAT staff give notice of the public hearing in accordance with the 
requirements of the Local Government Act. 
CARRIED 
 
 

  



Board of Directors Meeting – Regular - 3 - December 1, 2016 
 

3. Temporary Use Permit Renewal Application – A. Taylor, 380 Gwendoline Avenue, 
Naramata, Electoral Area “E” 
a. Permit No. E2016.111-TUP 
b. Responses Received  
 
RECOMMENDATION 6 (Unweighted Rural Vote – Simple Majority)   
It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT the Board of Directors approve Temporary Use Permit No. E2016.111-TUP. 
CARRIED 

 
 

C. PUBLIC WORKS  
 
1. Contract Award – Transportation and Processing of Recyclable Asphalt Shingles 

 
This item was recommended at the November 17, 2016 Environment and 
Infrastructure Committee meeting and brought forward to the Board for 
endorsement. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 7 (Weighted Corporate Vote – Majority)   
It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT the Board of Directors award a five-year Contract for the Transportation and 
Processing of Recyclable Asphalt Shingles to Intercity Recycle Ltd. - CARRIED 

 
 

D. FINANCE  
 
1. Bylaw No. 2765, 2016 Revenue Anticipation Borrowing Bylaw 

a. Bylaw No. 2765, 2016 
 
RECOMMENDATION 8 (Weighted Corporate Vote – 2/3 Majority) 
It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT Bylaw No. 2765, 2016 Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen Revenue 
Anticipation Borrowing Bylaw be read a first, second and third time and be adopted. 
CARRIED 

 
 
  



Board of Directors Meeting – Regular - 4 - December 1, 2016 
 
E. OFFICE OF THE CAO 

 
1. Alternative Approval Process for Okanagan Regional Library Contribution Service 

Bylaw No. 2756, 2016 
a. Bylaw No. 2756, 2016 
b. Notice of Alternative Approval Process 
c. Elector Response Form 
 
RECOMMENDATION 9 (Unweighted Corporate Vote – Simple Majority)  
It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT the deadline for submitting elector response forms in relation to Bylaw No. 
2756, 2016 to the Manager of Legislative Services is no later than 4:30 pm on Friday 
January 20, 2017; and, 

THAT the elector response form attached to the report dated December 1, 2016 be 
the approved form for Bylaw No. 2756, 2016 alternative approval process; and, 

THAT the total number of eligible electors to which the alternative approval process 
applies is 4210; and, 

THAT the number of elector responses required to prevent the bylaw from proceeding 
without a referendum is 421. 
CARRIED 
Opposed: Director Christensen 
 
 

2. Lower Similkameen Community Forest Partnership Contribution Service 
Establishment Bylaws 
 
RECOMMENDATION 10 (Unweighted Corporate Vote – Simple Majority)   
It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT first, second and third readings of Bylaw No. 2739, 2016 Regional District of 
Okanagan-Similkameen Electoral Area “B” Lower Similkameen Community Forest 
Partnership Contribution Service Establishment Bylaw, and Bylaw No. 2740, 2016 
Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen Electoral Area “G” Lower Similkameen 
Community Forest Partnership Contribution Service Establishment Bylaw be 
rescinded and the bylaws abandoned. - CARRIED 

 
 

F. CAO REPORTS  
 
1. Verbal Update 
 
 

  



Board of Directors Meeting – Regular - 5 - December 1, 2016 
 
G. OTHER BUSINESS 

 
1. Chair’s Report 
 

 
2. Directors Motions 
 

 
3. Board Members Verbal Update 

 
 

H. ADJOURNMENT 
By consensus, the meeting adjourned at 4:12 p.m. 

 
 
 
 
APPROVED: 
 
 
 
________________________ 
K. Kozakevich 
RDOS Board Chair  

CERTIFIED CORRECT:  
 
 
 
_________________________ 
B. Newell 
Corporate Officer 

 



ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 

                                                         File No: D2016.092-DVP 
Page 1 of 4 

TO: Board of Directors 
 
FROM: B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 
 
DATE: December 15, 2016  
 
RE: Development Variance Permit Application — Electoral Area “D” 
 

Administrative Recommendation: 
THAT the Board of Directors approve Development Variance Permit No. D2016.092–DVP. 
 

Purpose:  To allow for the construction of a duplex. 

Owners:   J. Jung & S. Marino Agent:  Landform Architecture Folio: D-02807.932  

Civic: 255 Creekview Rd., Apex  Legal: Lot 17, District Lot 395S, SDYD, Plan KAP83847  

OCP:  Medium Density Residential (MR) Zone: Residential Multiple Unit Three (RM3) 

Requested Variances:  to vary the minimum exterior side parcel line setback for a principal building from 5.0 
metres to 3.0 metres; to vary the minimum rear parcel line setback for a principal 
building from 3.0 metres to 1.2 metres; and to vary the maximum height for a duplex 
building from 10.0 metres to 12.0 metres.  

 

Proposed Development: 

This application proposes variances to the Electoral Area “D-1” Zoning Bylaw No. 2457, 2008, in order 
to allow for the construction of a duplex on the property. 

Specifically, it is being proposed to vary the minimum exterior side parcel line setback for a principal 
building from 5.0 metres to 3.0 metres; to vary the minimum rear parcel line setback for a principal 
building from 3.0 metres to 1.2 metres; and to vary the maximum height for a duplex building from 
10.0 metres to 12.0 metres, all as measured to the outermost projection. 

In support of the application the agent has stated the following regarding the proposed placement of 
the duplex: 

· Two statutory right of ways and the zoning setbacks reduce the buildable area of the parcel down 
to 20%, or only 1277m2 (1375sq ft). This is too small to accommodate a duplex, or even a single 
detached dwelling, particularly given the triangular shape. The zoning bylaw anticipated a parcel 
coverage of 50%, the requested variance allows for 30%.  

· The zoning permits multi-unit residential with a maximum height of 12.0 m; thus a variance to 
that height is not out of character with the surrounding area. Neighbouring lots across the street 
are elevated and the impact to their view as a result of a height increase is negligible.  

· The reduction to the building setbacks will maintain a large buffer around the building, due to the 
SRW’s on the perimeter of the lot.  

· The cantilevering of upper levels minimizes the excavated footprint. The bulk of the site remains 
unbuildable, and will be left in its natural state. 



  

       File No: D2016.092-DVP 
Page 2 of 4 

Site Context: 
The subject property is approximately 628 m2 in size and is situated on the north side of Creekview 
Road at Apex. The property is currently vacant. 

Surrounding properties comprise similar medium density residential uses to the west, south, and east, 
and residential mixed-use to the north.  
 
Background: 
The subject property was created by a subdivision deposited in the Land Title Office on May 17, 2007. 

Under the Electoral Area “D-1” Zoning Bylaw No. 2457, 2008, the subject property is zoned 
Residential Multiple Unit Three (RM3), which lists “duplex dwellings” as a permitted use. 

As the proposed addition is to be situated within 4.5 metres of Ponderosa Avenue, Ministry of 
Transportation and Infrastructure approval is required prior to Board consideration (as per the 
requirements of the Regional District’s Development Procedures Bylaw). The Ministry approved the 
proposed variance on November 10, 2016. 
 
Public Process: 
Adjacent property owners will have received notification of this application with written comments 
regarding the proposal being accepted until the commencement of the regular Board meeting. 
 
Analysis: 
When assessing variance requests a number of factors are generally taken into account. These include 
the intent of the zoning; the presence of any potential limiting physical features on the subject 
property; established streetscape characteristics; and whether the proposed development will have a 
detrimental impact upon the amenity of the area and/or adjoining uses.  

In considering this proposal, Administration recognizes that there are several constraints on the 
property, including the Statutory Right of Ways (ROWs), the shape of the parcel, and the slope. The 
ROWs combined with the zoning setbacks leave much of the site unbuildable, with a limited 
triangular-sized area for potential development. Allowing for a reduction in the exterior side and rear 
setbacks would allow for the construction of a duplex on the property, which is a permitted use in the 
zone.  

While many of the neighbouring lots are undeveloped, they are also zoned RM3, which allows for a 
maximum height of 12 metres for multi-unit residential development. As such, the request to vary the 
maximum height for a duplex building from 10 metres to 12 metres is not anticipated to impact the 
established streetscape characteristics. 

The neighbouring lots on the south side of Creekview Road are located up hill from the subject 
property and thus the requested height variance is not anticipated to affect the amenity of the area 
or adjoining uses. 

For these reasons, Administration supports approval of the requested variances.  
 
Alternatives:  

.1 THAT the Board of Directors deny Development Variance Permit No. D2016.092–DVP; or 



  

       File No: D2016.092-DVP 
Page 3 of 4 

.2 THAT the Board of Directors defers making a decision and directs that the proposal be considered 
by the Electoral Area “D” Advisory Planning Commission (APC). 

 
Respectfully submitted:  
 
__________________________   
S. Lightfoot, Planning Technician  

 

Endorsed by:       Endorsed by: 
 
____________________________    _Donna Butler_____________ 
C. Garrish, Planning Supervisor     D. Butler, Development Services Manager 

 

Attachments:   No. 1 – Photos – Site Visit October 27, 2016  
  



  

       File No: D2016.092-DVP 
Page 1 of 4 

Attachment No. 1 – Photos – Site Visit October 27, 2016 
   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Looking northwest on Creekview Rd. 

Propane tanks 
 (located in road reserve) 

 to be removed 

Looking southeast on Creekview Rd. 



 

File No. D2016.092-DVP 
Page 1 of 5 

 
 

Development Variance Permit 
 

 
FILE NO.: D2016.092-DVP 

Owner: James Jung &  
Sylvain Marino 
 

   

 

 

GENERAL CONDITIONS  

1. This Development Variance Permit is issued subject to compliance with all of the bylaws 
of the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen applicable thereto, except as 
specifically varied or supplemented by this Permit. 

2. The land described shall be developed strictly in accordance with the terms and 
conditions and provisions of this Permit, and any plans and specifications attached to 
this Permit that shall form a part thereof. 

3. Where there is a conflict between the text of the permit and permit drawings or figures, 
the drawings or figures shall govern the matter. 

4. This Development Variance Permit is not a Building Permit. 
 

APPLICABILITY 

5. This Development Variance Permit is substantially in accordance with Schedules ‘A’, ‘B’, 
and ‘C’, and applies to and only to those lands within the Regional District described 
below, and any and all buildings, structures and other development thereon: 

Legal Description: Lot 17, District Lot 395S, SDYD, Plan KAP83847  

Civic Address: 255 Creekview Road, Apex 

Parcel Identifier (PID): 027-088-120                           Folio: D-02807.932 
 

CONDITIONS OF DEVELOPMENT 

6. The land specified in Section 5 may be developed in accordance with the following 
variances to the Electoral Area “D” Zoning Bylaw No. 2457, 2008, in the Regional District 
of Okanagan-Similkameen: 

a) The minimum exterior side parcel line setback for a building or structure, as 
prescribed at Section 12.3.6(a)(iii), is varied:  

i) from:  5.0 metres  

 to:  3.0 metres, as measured to the outermost projection and as shown on 
Schedule ‘B’. 



 

File No. D2016.092-DVP 
Page 2 of 5 

b) The minimum rear parcel line setback for a building or structure, as prescribed at 
Section 12.3.6(a)(ii), is varied: 

i) from:  3.0 metres  

to:  1.2 metres, as measured to the outermost projection and as shown on 
Schedule ‘B’. 

c) The maximum height for a duplex building, as prescribed at Section 12.3.7(b) and is 
varied: 

i) from:  10.0 metres  

to:  12.0 metres, as measured to the outermost projection and as shown on 
Schedule ‘C’. 

 
7. COVENANT REQUIREMENTS  

a) Not Applicable 

 
8. SECURITY REQUIREMENTS  

a) Not applicable 

 
9. EXPIRY OF PERMIT 

The development shall be carried out according to the following schedule:  

a) In accordance with Section 504 of the Local Government Act and subject to the 
terms of the permit, if the holder of this permit does not substantially start any 
construction with respect to which the permit was issued within two (2) years after 
the date it was issued, the permit lapses.   

b) Lapsed permits cannot be renewed; however, an application for a new 
development permit can be submitted. 

 
 
 
Authorising resolution passed by the Regional Board on ________________, 2016. 
 
 
 

___________________________________ 
B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer  



 

File No. D2016.092-DVP 
Page 3 of 5 

Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
101 Martin St, Penticton, BC    V2A 5J9 
Tel:  (250) 492-0237    Fax (250) 492-0063 
 
Development Variance Permit                 File No.  D2016.092-DVP 

Schedule ‘A’ 
   
 

 
 
 
       NN

Subject 
Parcel 

APEX 

KALEDEN 



 

File No. D2016.092-DVP 
Page 4 of 5 

Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
101 Martin St, Penticton, BC    V2A 5J9 
Tel:  (250) 492-0237    Fax (250) 492-0063 
 
Development Variance Permit                 File No.  D2016.092-DVP 

Schedule ‘B’ 

 
 
 
 
  

1.2 metres 

 

 

3.0  
metres 



 

File No. D2016.092-DVP 
Page 5 of 5 

Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
101 Martin St, Penticton, BC    V2A 5J9 
Tel:  (250) 492-0237    Fax (250) 492-0063 
 
Development Variance Permit                 File No.  D2016.092-DVP 

Schedule ‘C’ 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 





ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 
 

  File No. C2016.103 - TUP 
Page 1 of 4 

TO: Board of Directors 
 
FROM: B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 

 
DATE: December 15, 2016 
 
RE: Temporary Use Permit Renewal Application — Electoral Area “C” 
 

Administrative Recommendation: 

THAT the Board of Directors approve Temporary Use Permit No. C2016.103-TUP. 
 

Purpose:  To allow for the renewal of an existing TUP authorising a short-term vacation rental use. 

Owner:  Daryl and Sandra Chipchura Applicant: Daryl Chipchura   Folio: C-01963.005   

Civic:  166 Sundial Road Legal: Lot 8, Plan KAP7333, District Lot 158, SDYD 

OCP: Low Density Residential (LR) Zoning: Residential Single Family Two (RS2) 
 
 

Proposal: 
This application seeks approval for the renewal of Temporary Use Permit (TUP) No. C2015.014-TUP, 
which authorises the operation of a short-term vacation rental use at the subject property, for a 
three-year term from January 1, 2017 to December 31, 2019. 
 
Site Context: 
The subject parcel is approximately 1,700 m2 in area, is situated at the north-east intersection of 
Sundial Road and Kinnikinnick Lane, and is bounded by Vaseux Lake to the north.  The property is 
seen to be comprised of a single detached dwelling. 

The surrounding pattern of development is characterised by low density residential parcels on the 
north side of Sundial Road fronting onto Vaseux Lake, with four tourist commercial zoned properties 
to the east on Sundial Road (i.e. “Vaseux Lake Rentals” & “Vaseux Lakefront Resort”)  with an 
agricultural operation (in the Agricultural Land Reserve) to the south. 
 
Background: 

At its meeting of August 20, 2015, the Regional District Board resolved to approve TUP application No. 
C2015.014-TUP, which authorised the operation of vacation rental use to a maximum of 16 persons 
with no more than eight (8) bedrooms and eight (8) on-site vehicle parking spaces between April 1st 
and October 31st. 
 
Public Process: 
At its meeting of November 15, 2016, the Electoral Area “C” Advisory Planning Commission (APC) 
resolved to recommend to the Regional District Board that the proposed temporary use be approved. 



  
  

  File No: C2016.103 - TUP 
Page 2 of 4 

A Public Information Meeting was held prior to the APC meeting on November 15, 2016, and no 
members of the public attended. 

Adjacent property owners will have received notification of this application with written comments 
regarding the proposal being accepted until the commencement of the regular Board meeting.   

Agency referral comments have been received from the Interior Health Authority (IHA) and are 
included as a separate item on the Agenda. 
 
Analysis: 
In assessing this proposal, Administration notes that there have been no recorded complaints 
received in relation to the operation of this vacation rental use and that the applicant has indicated 
that there have been no changes to the use since the permit was issued in 2015 (i.e. the use remains 
limited to eight bedrooms and 16 paying guests between April 1st and October 31st).  

While it is recognised that the Electoral Area “C” OCP Bylaw No. 2452, 2008, contains a number of 
specific criteria against which vacation rental TUPs are to be assessed (i.e. septic capacity, screening, 
health & safety assessment and on-site vehicle parking provisions), this criteria was previously 
considered by the Board when it approved TUP No. C2015.014-TUP in 2015. 

Accordingly, and in light of the absence of any change to the use or received complaints regarding its 
operation, Administration supports the renewal of this permit for a further three years (to December 
31, 2019). 
 
Alternative: 
THAT the Board of Directors deny Temporary Use Permit No. C2016.103-TUP. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted: Endorsed by: 
 
_________________________________  __Donna Butler____________ 
C. Garrish, Planning Supervisor D. Butler, Development Services Manager 

 

Attachments: No. 1 – Agency Referral List 

 No. 2 – Site Photo (Google Streetview) 
 
  



  
  

  File No: C2016.103 - TUP 
Page 3 of 4 

Attachment No. 1 – Agency Referral List 

Referrals have been sent to the following agencies as highlighted with a þ, prior to Board 
consideration of TUP No. C2016.103-TUP: 
 

þ Agricultural Land Commission (ALC) o City of Penticton 

þ Interior Health Authority (IHA) o District of Summerland 

þ Ministry of Agriculture o Town of Oliver 

o Ministry of Community, Sport and 
Cultural Development 

o Town of Osoyoos 

o Ministry of Energy & Mines o Town of Princeton 

þ Ministry of Environment  o Village of Keremeos 

o Ministry of Forests, Lands & Natural 
Resource Operations 

þ Okanagan Nation Alliance (ONA) 

þ Archaeology Branch o Penticton Indian Band (PIB) 

o Ministry of Transportation and 
Infrastructure 

þ Osoyoos Indian Band (OIB) 

o Integrated Land Management Bureau o Upper Similkameen Indian Bands (USIB) 

o BC Parks o Lower Similkameen Indian Bands (LSIB) 

o School District  #53 (Okanagan 
Similkameen) 

o Environment Canada 

o School District  #58 (Nicola Similkameen) o Fisheries and Oceans Canada 

o School District  #67 (Okanagan Skaha) þ Fortis 

o Canadian Wildlife Service   

  
 
 
 
 
 
  
 



  
  

  File No: C2016.103 - TUP 
Page 4 of 4 

Attachment No. 2 – Site Photo (Google Streetview) 
  



 

Temporary Use Permit No. C2016.103-TUP 
Page 1 of 5 

  

TEMPORARY USE PERMIT 

FILE NO.: C2016.103-TUP 

TO:    Sandy & Daryl Chipchura  
 406-130 Skaha Place 
 Penticton, BC,  V2A-7J6 
 

  

GENERAL CONDITIONS 

1. This Temporary Use Permit is issued subject to compliance with all of the bylaws of the 
Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen applicable thereto, except as specifically 
varied or supplemented by this Permit. 

2. The land described shall be developed strictly in accordance with the terms and 
conditions of this Permit, and any plans and specifications attached to this Permit which 
shall form a part thereof. 

3. Where there is a conflict between the text of the permit and permit drawings or figures, 
the drawings or figures shall govern the matter. 

4. This Temporary Use Permit is not a Building Permit. 

 

APPLICABILITY 

5. This Temporary Use Permit applies to, and only to, those lands, including any and all 
buildings, structures and other development thereon, within the Regional District as 
shown on Schedules ‘A’ and ‘B’, and described below: 

Legal Description: Lot 8, Plan KAP7333, District Lot 158, SDYD 

Civic Address/location: 166 Sundial Road, Electoral Area “C” 

Parcel Identifier (PID): 010-001-514  Folio: C-01963.005 

 

TEMPORARY USE 

6. In accordance with Section 16.0 of the Electoral Area “C” Official Community Plan Bylaw 
No. 2452, 2008, the land specified in Section 5 may be used for a vacation rental use as 
defined in the Electoral Area “C” Zoning Bylaw, being the use of a residential dwelling unit 
for the accommodation of paying guests occupying the dwelling unit for a period of less 
than 30 days. 



 

Temporary Use Permit No. C2016.103-TUP 
Page 2 of 5 

 

CONDITIONS OF TEMPORARY USE 

7. The vacation rental use of the land is subject to the following conditions: 

(a) the vacation rental use shall occur only between April 1st and October 31st; 

(b) the following information must be posted within the dwelling unit while the vacation 
rental use is occurring: 

i) the location of property lines by way of a map;  

ii) a copy of the Regional District’s Electoral Area “C” Noise Regulation and  
Prohibition Bylaw; 

iii) measures to address water conservation;  

iv) instructions on the use of appliances that could cause fires, and for evacuation of 
the building in the event of fire;  

v) instructions on the storage and management of garbage;  

vi) instructions on septic system care; and  

vii) instructions on the control of pets (if pets are permitted by the operator) in 
accordance with the Regional District’s Animal Control Bylaw.  

(c) the maximum number of bedrooms that may be occupied by paying guests shall be eight 
(8); 

(d) the number of paying guests that may be accommodated at any time shall not exceed 
sixteen (16); 

(e) a minimum of eight (8) vehicle parking spaces shall be provided for paying guests, in 
accordance with Schedule ‘B’; 

(f) camping and the use of recreational vehicles, accessory buildings and accessory 
structures on the property for vacation rental occupancy are not permitted; and 

(g) current telephone contact information for a site manager or the property owner, 
updated from time to time as necessary, shall be provided to the owner  of each 
property situated within 100 metres of the land and to each occupant of such property 
if the occupier is not the owner. 

 

COVENANT REQUIREMENTS 

8. Not applicable. 

 

SECURITY REQUIREMENTS 

9. Not applicable. 



 

Temporary Use Permit No. C2016.103-TUP 
Page 3 of 5 

 

EXPIRY OF PERMIT 

10. This Permit is a renewal of Permit No. C2015.014-TUP and shall expire on the 31st day of 
December, 2019. 

 

 
Authorising resolution passed by the Regional Board on ____ day of _________, 2016. 
 
 
 
___________________________________ 
B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 
 
 



 

Temporary Use Permit No. C2016.103-TUP 
Page 4 of 5 

Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
101 Martin St, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9 
Tel: 250-492-0237    Email: info@rdos.bc.ca 
 
Temporary Use Permit File No.  C2016.103-TUP 

Schedule ‘A’ 
 
 

  
 

 

  NN

Subject 
Property 

OLIVER 



 

Temporary Use Permit No. C2016.103-TUP 
Page 5 of 5 

Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
101 Martin St, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9 
Tel: 250-492-0237    Email: info@rdos.bc.ca  
 
Temporary Use Permit File No.  C2016.103-TUP 

Schedule ‘B’ 
 
 

  
 

 









ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 
 

  File No. D2016.105-TUP 
Page 1 of 4 

 TO: Board of Directors 
 
FROM: B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 

 
DATE: December 15, 2016 
 
RE: Temporary Use Permit Application — Electoral Area “D” 
 

Administrative Recommendation: 

THAT the Board of Directors approve Temporary Use Permit No. D2016.105-TUP. 
 

Purpose: To allow for the renewal of an existing TUP authorising a short-term vacation rental use. 

Owner:  Adam and Helena Konanz Applicants: Adam and Helena Konanz Folio: D-01419.101 

Civic:  110 Ponderosa Avenue, Kaleden Legal: Lot A, Plan KAP51112, District Lot 105s, SDYD 

OCP: Low Density Residential (LR) Zoning: Residential Single Family One (RS1) 
 
 

Proposal: 
This application seeks approval for the renewal of Temporary Use Permit (TUP) No. D2015.115-TUP, 
which authorises the operation of a short-term vacation rental use at the subject property, for a 
three-year term from January 1, 2017 to December 31, 2019. 
 
Site Context: 
The subject parcel is approximately 1,636 m2 in area, is situated at the southwest corner of Ponderosa 
Avenue in Kaleden, approximately 80 metres from Skaha Lake. The property is seen to be comprised 
of a single detached dwelling. The surrounding pattern of development is characterised by low 
density residential parcels. 
 
Background: 

At its meeting of January 7, 2016, the Regional District Board resolved to approve TUP application No. 
D2015.115-TUP, subject to the applicant providing an assessment from a Registered Onsite 
Wastewater Practitioner (ROWP) that confirming the ability of the septic system to accommodate five 
(5) bedrooms. 

The applicant subsequently provided an assessment from a ROWP associated with ABC Septic Services 
Limited confirming the ability of the septic system to accommodate three (3) bedrooms. TUP No. 
D2015.115-TUP was accordingly issued for a maximum of three (3) bedrooms and is set to expire on 
December 31, 2016. 
 
Public Process: 
At its meeting of November 15, 2016, the Electoral Area “D” Advisory Planning Commission (APC) 
resolved to recommend to the Regional District Board that the proposed temporary use be approved. 



  
  

  File No: D2016.105-TUP 
Page 2 of 4 

A Public Information Meeting was held prior to the APC meeting on November 15, 2016, and one (1) 
member of the public attended. 

Adjacent property owners will have received notification of this application with written comments 
regarding the proposal being accepted until the commencement of the regular Board meeting.   

Agency referral comments have been received from Interior Health Authority (IHA) and BC Ministry of 
Forests, Lands and Natural Resource Operations (Archaeology Branch) and are included as a separate 
item on the Agenda. 
 
Analysis:  
In assessing this proposal, Administration assumes that the single detached dwelling was and is 
principally used as a residence during the year, i.e. someone resides in the dwelling more days than 
the dwelling is rented out. Administration also notes that there have been no recorded complaints 
received in relation to the operation of this vacation rental use and that the applicant has indicated 
that there have been no changes to the use since the permit was issued in 2015 (i.e. the use remains 
limited to three bedrooms and six paying guests between May 1st and October 31st).  

While it is recognised that the Electoral Area “D” OCP Bylaw No. 2603, 2013, contains a number of 
specific criteria against which vacation rental TUPs are to be assessed (i.e. septic capacity, screening, 
health & safety assessment, and on-site vehicle parking provisions), this criteria was previously 
considered by the Board when it approved TUP No. D2015.115-TUP in 2015. 

Accordingly, and in light of the absence of any change to the use or received complaints regarding its 
operation, Administration supports the renewal of this permit for a further three years (to December 
31, 2019). 
 
Alternative: 
THAT the Board of Directors deny Temporary Use Permit No. D2016.105-TUP. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted: Endorsed by: Endorsed by:  
 
__________________________ _______________________ _Donna Butler____  
T. Donegan, Planning Technician  C. Garrish, Planning Supervisor D. Butler, Dev. Services Manager 

 

 

Attachments: No. 1 – Agency Referral List 

 No. 2 – Site Photo (Google Streetview) 
  

 

  

 
  



  
  

  File No: D2016.105-TUP 
Page 3 of 4 

Attachment No. 1 – Agency Referral List 

Referrals have been sent to the following agencies as highlighted with a þ, prior to Board 
consideration of TUP No. D2016.105-TUP: 
 

o Agricultural Land Commission (ALC) o City of Penticton 

þ Interior Health Authority (IHA) o District of Summerland 

o Ministry of Agriculture o Town of Oliver 

o Ministry of Community, Sport and 
Cultural Development 

o Town of Osoyoos 

o Ministry of Energy & Mines o Town of Princeton 

þ Ministry of Environment  o Village of Keremeos 

o Ministry of Forests, Lands & Natural 
Resource Operations 

þ Okanagan Nation Alliance (ONA) 

þ Archaeology Branch þ Penticton Indian Band (PIB) 

o Ministry of Transportation and 
Infrastructure 

o Osoyoos Indian Band (OIB) 

o Integrated Land Management Bureau o Upper Similkameen Indian Bands (USIB) 

o BC Parks o Lower Similkameen Indian Bands (LSIB) 

o School District  #53 (Okanagan 
Similkameen) 

o Environment Canada 

o School District  #58 (Nicola Similkameen) o Fisheries and Oceans Canada 

o School District  #67 (Okanagan Skaha) þ Fortis 

o Canadian Wildlife Service   

 
  



  
  

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                  Project No: D2016.105-
TUP   
Page 4 of 4 

Attachment No. 2 – Site Photo (Google Streetview) 
 



 
 

Temporary Use Permit No. D2016.105-TUP 
Page 1 of 5 

  

TEMPORARY USE PERMIT 

FILE NO.: D2016.105-TUP 

TO:    Adam and Helena Konanz 
  
 
 

  

GENERAL CONDITIONS 

1. This Temporary Use Permit is issued subject to compliance with all of the bylaws of the 
Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen applicable thereto, except as specifically 
varied or supplemented by this Permit. 

2. The land described shall be developed strictly in accordance with the terms and 
conditions of this Permit, and any plans and specifications attached to this Permit which 
shall form a part thereof. 

3. Where there is a conflict between the text of the permit and permit drawings or figures, 
the drawings or figures shall govern the matter. 

4. This Temporary Use Permit is not a Building Permit. 

 

APPLICABILITY 

5. This Temporary Use Permit applies to, and only to, those lands, including any and all 
buildings, structures and other development thereon, within the Regional District as 
shown on Schedules ‘A’ and ‘B’, and described below: 

Legal Description: Lot A, Plan KAP51112, DL 105s, SDYD 

Civic Address/location: 110 Ponderosa Avenue, Kaleden 

Parcel Identifier (PID): 018-527-515  Folio: D-01419.101 

 

TEMPORARY USE 

6. In accordance with Section 18.0 of the Electoral Area “D” Official Community Plan Bylaw 
No. 2456, 2008, the land specified in Section 5 may be used for a vacation rental use as 
defined in the Electoral Area “D” Zoning Bylaw, being the use of a residential dwelling unit 
for the accommodation of paying guests occupying the dwelling unit for a period of less 
than 30 days. 

 
 



Temporary Use Permit No. D2016.105-TUP 
Page 2 of 5 

CONDITIONS OF TEMPORARY USE 

7. The vacation rental use of the land is subject to the following conditions: 

(a) the vacation rental use shall occur only between May 1st and October 30th; 

(b) the following information must be posted within the dwelling unit while the vacation 
rental use is occurring: 

i) the location of property lines by way of a map;  

ii) a copy of the Regional District’s Electoral Area “D” Noise Regulation and  
Prohibition Bylaw; 

iii) measures to address water conservation;  

iv) instructions on the use of appliances that could cause fires, and for evacuation of 
the building in the event of fire;  

v) instructions on the storage and management of garbage;  

vi) instructions on septic system care; and  

vii) instructions on the control of pets (if pets are permitted by the operator) in 
accordance with the Regional District’s Animal Control Bylaw.  

(c) the maximum number of bedrooms that may be occupied by paying guests shall be three 
(3); 

(d) the number of paying guests that may be accommodated at any time shall not exceed 
six (6); 

(e) a minimum of three (3) on-site vehicle parking spaces shall be provided for paying 
guests, in accordance with Schedule ‘B’; 

(f) camping and the use of recreational vehicles, accessory buildings and accessory 
structures on the property for vacation rental occupancy are not permitted; and 

(g) current telephone contact information for a site manager or the property owner, 
updated from time to time as necessary, shall be provided to the owner  of each 
property situated within 100 metres of the land and to each occupant of such property 
if the occupier is not the owner. 

 

COVENANT REQUIREMENTS 

8. Not applicable. 

 

SECURITY REQUIREMENTS 

9. Not applicable. 

 



Temporary Use Permit No. D2016.105-TUP 
Page 3 of 5 

EXPIRY OF PERMIT 

10. This Permit is a renewal of Permit No. D2015.115-TUP and shall expire on the 31st day of 
December, 2019. 

 

 
Authorising resolution passed by Regional Board on   _____ day of ___________, 2016. 
 
 
 
___________________________________ 
B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 
 
 



 
 

Temporary Use Permit No. D2016.105-TUP 
Page 4 of 5 

Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
101 Martin St, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9 
Tel: 250-492-0237    Email: info@rdos.bc.ca 
 
Temporary Use Permit File No.  D2016.105-TUP 

Schedule ‘A’ 
 
 

  
 

 

    NN

Subject 
Property 

KALEDEN 

OK FALLS 



Temporary Use Permit No. D2016.105-TUP 
Page 5 of 5 

Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
101 Martin St, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9 
Tel: 250-492-0237    Email: info@rdos.bc.ca 
 
Temporary Use Permit File No.  D2016.105-TUP 

Schedule ‘B’ 
 
 

  
 

 

















ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 
 

  File No. E2016.102-TUP 
Page 1 of 4 

TO: Board of Directors 
 
FROM: B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 

 
DATE: December 15, 2016 
 
RE: Temporary Use Permit Renewal Application — Electoral Area “E” 
 

Administrative Recommendation: 

THAT the Board of Directors approve Temporary Use Permit No. E2016.102-TUP. 
 

Purpose:  To allow for the renewal of an existing TUP authorising a short-term vacation rental use. 

Owner:  Lynda Partone Applicant: Lynda Partone Folio: E-00642.000 

Civic:  3985 1st Street, Naramata Legal: Lot 25, Plan KAP3352, District Lot 210, SDYD 

OCP: Low Density Residential (LR) Zoning: Residential Single Family One (RS1) 
 

Proposal: 
This application seeks approval for the renewal of Temporary Use Permit (TUP) No. E2016.031-TUP, 
which authorises the operation of a short-term vacation rental use at the subject property, for a 
three-year term from January 1, 2017 to December 31, 2019. 
 
Site Context: 
The subject parcel is approximately 307 m2 in area, is situated on the north side of 1st Street and is 
fronted by Okanagan Lake along its rear boundary, a public water access along its eastern boundary 
and the former BC Tree Fruits packing shed along its western boundary.  The property is seen to be 
comprised of a single detached dwelling and an accessory structure (i.e. dock).   

The surrounding pattern of development is characterised by low density residential parcels along the 
lake foreshore, and Naramata Wharf Park and a now vacant parcel owned by BC Tree Fruits. 
 
Background: 

At its meeting of July 16, 2015, the Regional District Board resolved to approve TUP application No. 
E2015.031-TUP, subject to the property owner submitting an assessment from a registered onsite 
wastewater practitioner (ROWP) confirming the ability of the septic system to function as designed if 
covered in paving stones and used as a second vehicle parking space. 

The applicant subsequently provided such an assessment from a ROWP associated with ABC Septic 
Services Limited.  TUP No. E2015.030-TUP is set to expire on December 31, 2016. 
 
Public Process: 
At its meeting of November 14, 2016, the Electoral Area “E” Advisory Planning Commission (APC) 
resolved to recommend to the Regional District Board that the proposed temporary use be approved. 



  
  

  File No: E2016.102-TUP 
Page 2 of 4 

A Public Information Meeting was held prior to the APC meeting on November 14, 2016, and no 
members of the public attended. 

Adjacent property owners will have received notification of this application with written comments 
regarding the proposal being accepted until the commencement of the regular Board meeting.   

Agency referral comments have been received from Interior Health Authority (IHA), Ministry of 
Forests, Lands and Natural Resource Operations (Archaeology Branch & Ecosystem Branch) and 
Penticton Indian Band (PIB) and are included as a separate item on the Agenda. 
 
Analysis: 
In assessing this proposal, Administration notes that there have been no recorded complaints 
received in relation to the operation of this vacation rental use and that the applicant has indicated 
that there have been no changes to the use since the permit was issued in 2015 (i.e. the use remains 
limited to two bedrooms and four paying guests between May 1st and October 31st).  

While it is recognised that the Electoral Area “E” OCP Bylaw No. 2458, 2008, contains a number of 
specific criteria against which vacation rental TUPs are to be assessed (i.e. septic capacity, screening, 
health & safety assessment and on-site vehicle parking provisions), this criteria was previously 
considered by the Board when it approved TUP No. E2015.031-TUP in 2015. 

Accordingly, and in light of the absence of any change to the use or received complaints regarding its 
operation, Administration supports the renewal of this permit for a further three years (to December 
31, 2019). 
 
Alternative: 
THAT the Board of Directors deny Temporary Use Permit No. E2016.102-TUP. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted: Endorsed by: 

_________________________________ _Donna Butler_____________ 
C. Garrish, Planning Supervisor D. Butler, Development Services Manager 
 
 

Attachments: No. 1 – Agency Referral List 

 No. 2 – Site Photo (Google Streetview) 
 
  



  
  

  File No: E2016.102-TUP 
Page 3 of 4 

Attachment No. 1 – Agency Referral List 

Referrals have been sent to the following agencies as highlighted with a þ, prior to Board 
consideration of TUP No. E2016.102-TUP: 
 

o Agricultural Land Commission (ALC) o City of Penticton 

þ Interior Health Authority (IHA) o District of Summerland 

o Ministry of Agriculture o Town of Oliver 

o Ministry of Community, Sport and 
Cultural Development 

o Town of Osoyoos 

o Ministry of Energy & Mines o Town of Princeton 

þ Ministry of Environment  o Village of Keremeos 

o Ministry of Forests, Lands & Natural 
Resource Operations 

þ Okanagan Nation Alliance (ONA) 

þ Archaeology Branch þ Penticton Indian Band (PIB) 

o Ministry of Transportation and 
Infrastructure 

o Osoyoos Indian Band (OIB) 

o Integrated Land Management Bureau o Upper Similkameen Indian Bands (USIB) 

o BC Parks o Lower Similkameen Indian Bands (LSIB) 

o School District  #53 (Okanagan 
Similkameen) 

o Environment Canada 

o School District  #58 (Nicola Similkameen) o Fisheries and Oceans Canada 

o School District  #67 (Okanagan Skaha) þ Fortis 

o Canadian Wildlife Service   

 



  
  

  File No: E2016.102-TUP 
Page 4 of 4 

Attachment No. 2 – Site Photo (Google Streetview) 

 



Temporary Use Permit No. E2016.102-TUP 
Page 1 of 5 

  

TEMPORARY USE PERMIT 

FILE NO.: E2016.102-TUP 

TO:    Lynda Partone  
  
 

  

GENERAL CONDITIONS 

1. This Temporary Use Permit is issued subject to compliance with all of the bylaws of the 
Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen applicable thereto, except as specifically 
varied or supplemented by this Permit. 

2. The land described shall be developed strictly in accordance with the terms and 
conditions of this Permit, and any plans and specifications attached to this Permit which 
shall form a part thereof. 

3. Where there is a conflict between the text of the permit and permit drawings or figures, 
the drawings or figures shall govern the matter. 

4. This Temporary Use Permit is not a Building Permit. 

 

APPLICABILITY 

5. This Temporary Use Permit applies to, and only to, those lands, including any and all 
buildings, structures and other development thereon, within the Regional District as 
shown on Schedules ‘A’ and ‘B’, and described below: 

Legal Description: Lot 25, Plan KAP3352, District Lot 210, SDYD 

Civic Address/location: 3985 1st Street, Naramata 

Parcel Identifier (PID): 007-327-641  Folio: E-00642.000 

 

TEMPORARY USE 

6. In accordance with Section 19.0 of the Electoral Area “E” Official Community Plan Bylaw 
No. 2458, 2008, the land specified in Section 5 may be used for a vacation rental use as 
defined in the Electoral Area “E” Zoning Bylaw, being the use of a residential dwelling unit 
for the accommodation of paying guests occupying the dwelling unit for a period of less 
than 30 days. 



Temporary Use Permit No. E2016.102-TUP 
Page 2 of 5 

 

CONDITIONS OF TEMPORARY USE 

7. The vacation rental use of the land is subject to the following conditions: 

(a) the vacation rental use shall occur only between May 1st and October 31st; 

(b) the following information must be posted within the dwelling unit while the vacation 
rental use is occurring: 

i) the location of property lines by way of a map;  

ii) a copy of the Regional District’s Electoral Area “E” Noise Regulation and  
Prohibition Bylaw; 

iii) measures to address water conservation;  

iv) instructions on the use of appliances that could cause fires, and for evacuation of 
the building in the event of fire;  

v) instructions on the storage and management of garbage;  

vi) instructions on septic system care; and  

vii) instructions on the control of pets (if pets are permitted by the operator) in 
accordance with the Regional District’s Animal Control Bylaw.  

(c) the maximum number of bedrooms that may be occupied by paying guests shall be two 
(2); 

(d) the number of paying guests that may be accommodated at any time shall not exceed 
four (4); 

(e) a minimum of two (2) on-site vehicle parking spaces shall be provided for paying guests, 
in accordance with Schedule ‘B’; 

(f) camping and the use of recreational vehicles, accessory buildings and accessory 
structures on the property for vacation rental occupancy are not permitted; and 

(g) current telephone contact information for a site manager or the property owner, 
updated from time to time as necessary, as well as a copy of this Temporary Use Permit 
shall be provided to the owner  of each property situated within 100 metres of the land 
and to each occupant of such property if the occupier is not the owner. 

 

COVENANT REQUIREMENTS 

8. Not applicable. 

 

SECURITY REQUIREMENTS 

9. Not applicable. 



Temporary Use Permit No. E2016.102-TUP 
Page 3 of 5 

 

EXPIRY OF PERMIT 

10. This Permit is a renewal of Permit No. D2015.115-TUP and shall expire on the 31st day of 
December, 2019. 

  

 
Authorising resolution passed by Regional Board on   _____ day of ___________, 2016. 
 
 
 
___________________________________ 
B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 
 
 



Temporary Use Permit No. E2016.102-TUP 
Page 4 of 5 

Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
101 Martin St, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9 
Tel: 250-492-0237    Email: info@rdos.bc.ca 
 
Temporary Use Permit File No.  E2016.102-TUP 

Schedule ‘A’ 
 
 

  
 

 

  
NN

Subject 
Property 

NARAMATA 



Temporary Use Permit No. E2016.102-TUP 
Page 5 of 5 

Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
101 Martin St, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9 
Tel: 250-492-0237    Email: info@rdos.bc.ca 
 
Temporary Use Permit File No.  E2016.102-TUP 

Schedule ‘B’ 
 
 

  
 

 













ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 
 

  File No. E2016.104-TUP 
Page 1 of 4 

TO: Board of Directors 
 
FROM: B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 

 
DATE: December 15, 2016 
 
RE: Temporary Use Permit Renewal Application — Electoral Area “E” 
 

Administrative Recommendation: 

THAT the Board of Directors approve Temporary Use Permit No. E2016.104-TUP. 
 

Purpose:  To allow for the renewal of an existing TUP authorising a short-term vacation rental use. 

Owner:  Lucio & Patricia Riccio Applicant: Patricia Riccio Folio: E-02120.001 

Civic:  3055 Hayman Road, Naramata Legal: Lot 1, Block 1, District Lot 209, SDYD, Plan 576 

OCP: Low Density Residential (LR) Zoning: Small Holdings Four (SH4) 
 

Proposal: 
This application seeks approval for the renewal of Temporary Use Permit (TUP) No. E2016.006-TUP, 
which authorises the operation of a short-term vacation rental use at the subject property, for a 
three-year term from January 1, 2017 to December 31, 2019. 
 
Site Context: 
The subject parcel is approximately 4,761m2 in area, is situated on the west side of Hayman Road and 
is bounded by Old Main Road along its rear boundary. Development on the property is seen to be 
comprised of a single detached dwelling and vineyard.  

The surrounding pattern of development is characterised by similar low density residential parcels 
with vineyards. 
 
Background: 

At its meeting of April 7, 2016, the Regional District Board of Directors resolved to approve TUP No. 
E2016.006-TUP. 
 
Public Process: 
At its meeting of November 14, 2016, the Electoral Area “E” Advisory Planning Commission (APC) 
resolved to recommend to the Regional District Board that the proposed temporary use be approved. 

A Public Information Meeting was held prior to the APC meeting on November 14, 2016, and no 
members of the public attended. 

Adjacent property owners will have received notification of this application with written comments 
regarding the proposal being accepted until the commencement of the regular Board meeting.   



  
  

  File No: E2016.104-TUP 
Page 2 of 4 

Agency referral comments have been received from the Ministry of Environment/Ministry of Forests, 
Lands and Natural Resource Operations (Ecosystems Section), the Archaeology Branch, Interior Health 
Authority (IHA), and the Penticton Indian Band (PIB) and are included as a separate item on the 
Agenda. 
 
Analysis: 
In assessing this proposal, Administration notes that there have been no recorded complaints 
received in relation to the operation of this vacation rental use and that the applicant has indicated 
that there have been no changes to the use since the permit was issued earlier in 2016 (i.e. the use 
remains limited to three bedrooms and six paying guests between May 1st and October 31st).  

While it is recognised that the Electoral Area “E” OCP Bylaw No. 2458, 2008, contains a number of 
specific criteria against which vacation rental TUPs are to be assessed (i.e. septic capacity, screening, 
health & safety assessment and on-site vehicle parking provisions), this criteria was previously 
considered by the Board when it approved TUP No. E2016.006-TUP earlier in 2016. 

Accordingly, and in light of the absence of any change to the use or received complaints regarding its 
operation, Administration supports the renewal of this permit for a further three years (to December 
31, 2019). 

 
Alternative: 
THAT the Board of Directors deny Temporary Use Permit No. E2016.104-TUP. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted: Endorsed by: Endorsed by: 
 
__________________________ ______________________ __Donna Butler_______ 
S. Lightfoot, Planning Technician C. Garrish, Planning Supervisor D. Butler, Development Services Manager 
 
 

Attachments: No. 1 – Agency Referral List 

 No. 2 – Site Photo (Google Streetview) 
  



  
  

  File No: E2016.104-TUP 
Page 3 of 4 

Attachment No. 1 – Agency Referral List 

Referrals have been sent to the following agencies as highlighted with a þ, prior to Board 
consideration of TUP No. E2016.104-TUP: 
 

o Agricultural Land Commission (ALC) o City of Penticton 

þ Interior Health Authority (IHA) o District of Summerland 

o Ministry of Agriculture o Town of Oliver 

o Ministry of Community, Sport and 
Cultural Development 

o Town of Osoyoos 

o Ministry of Energy & Mines o Town of Princeton 

þ Ministry of Environment  o Village of Keremeos 

o Ministry of Forests, Lands & Natural 
Resource Operations 

þ Okanagan Nation Alliance (ONA) 

þ Archaeology Branch þ Penticton Indian Band (PIB) 

o Ministry of Transportation and 
Infrastructure 

o Osoyoos Indian Band (OIB) 

o Integrated Land Management Bureau o Upper Similkameen Indian Bands (USIB) 

o BC Parks o Lower Similkameen Indian Bands (LSIB) 

o School District  #53 (Okanagan 
Similkameen) 

o Environment Canada 

o School District  #58 (Nicola Similkameen) o Fisheries and Oceans Canada 

o School District  #67 (Okanagan Skaha) þ Fortis 

o Canadian Wildlife Service   

 

 
 



  
  

  File No: E2016.104-TUP 
Page 4 of 4 

Attachment No. 2 – Site Photo (Google Streetview) 

 



 

Temporary Use Permit No. E2016.104-TUP 
Page 1 of 5 

  

TEMPORARY USE PERMIT 

FILE NO.: E2016.104-TUP 

TO:    Lucio & Patricia Riccio 
               
 
  
 

  

GENERAL CONDITIONS  

1. This Temporary Use Permit is issued subject to compliance with all of the bylaws of the 
Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen applicable thereto, except as specifically 
varied or supplemented by this Permit. 

2. The land described shall be developed strictly in accordance with the terms and 
conditions of this Permit, and any plans and specifications attached to this Permit which 
shall form a part thereof. 

3. Where there is a conflict between the text of the permit and permit drawings or figures, 
the drawings or figures shall govern the matter. 

4. This Temporary Use Permit is not a Building Permit. 

 

APPLICABILITY  

5. This Temporary Use Permit applies to, and only to, those lands, including any and all 
buildings, structures and other development thereon, within the Regional District as 
shown on Schedules ‘A’ and ‘B’, and described below: 

Legal Description: Lot 1, Block 1, District Lot 209, SDYD, Plan 576 

Civic Address/location: 3055 Hayman Road, Naramata 

Parcel Identifier (PID): 012-217-018  Folio: E-02120.001 

 

TEMPORARY USE 

6. In accordance with Section 19.0 of the Electoral Area “E” Official Community Plan Bylaw 
No. 2458, 2008, the land specified in Section 5 may be used for a vacation rental use as 
defined in the Electoral Area “E” Zoning Bylaw, being the use of a residential dwelling 
unit for the accommodation of paying guests occupying the dwelling unit for a period of 
less than 30 days. 



 

Temporary Use Permit No. E2016.104-TUP 
Page 2 of 5 

 

CONDITIONS OF TEMPORARY USE 

7. The vacation rental use of the land is subject to the following conditions: 

(a) the vacation rental use shall occur only between May 1st and October 31st; 

(b) the following information must be posted within the dwelling unit while the vacation 
rental use is occurring: 

i) the location of property lines by way of a map;  

ii) a copy of the Regional District’s Electoral Area “E” Noise Regulation and  
Prohibition Bylaw; 

iii) measures to address water conservation;  

iv) instructions on the use of appliances that could cause fires, and for evacuation of 
the building in the event of fire;  

v) instructions on the storage and management of garbage;  

vi) instructions on septic system care; and  

vii) instructions on the control of pets (if pets are permitted by the operator) in 
accordance with the Regional District’s Animal Control Bylaw.  

(c) the maximum number of bedrooms that may be occupied by paying guests shall be 
three (3); 

(d) the number of paying guests that may be accommodated at any time shall not exceed 
six (6); 

(e) a minimum of three (3) on-site vehicle parking spaces shall be provided for paying 
guests, in accordance with Schedule ‘B’; 

(f) camping and the use of recreational vehicles, accessory buildings and accessory 
structures on the property for vacation rental occupancy are not permitted; and 

(g) current telephone contact information for a site manager or the property owner, 
updated from time to time as necessary, as well as a copy of this Temporary Use 
Permit shall be provided to the owner of each property situated within 100 metres of 
the land and to each occupant of such property if the occupier is not the owner. 

 

COVENANT REQUIREMENTS 

8. Not applicable. 

 

SECURITY REQUIREMENTS 

9. Not applicable. 



 

Temporary Use Permit No. E2016.104-TUP 
Page 3 of 5 

 

EXPIRY OF PERMIT 

10. This Permit is a renewal of Permit No. E2016.006-TUP and shall expire on the 31st day of 
December, 2019. 

 

 
Authorising resolution passed by the Regional Board on _________, 2016. 
 
 
 
___________________________________ 
B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 
 
 
 



 

Temporary Use Permit No. E2016.104-TUP 
Page 4 of 5 

Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
101 Martin St, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9 
Tel: 250-492-0237    Email: info@rdos.bc.ca 
 
Temporary Use Permit File No.  E2016.104-TUP 

Schedule ‘A’ 
   
 

  
 

 

  
NN

Subject 
Property 

NARAMATA 



 

Temporary Use Permit No. E2016.104-TUP 
Page 5 of 5 

Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
101 Martin St, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9  
Tel: 250-492-0237    Email: info@rdos.bc.ca 
 
Temporary Use Permit File No.  E2016.104-TUP 

Schedule ‘B’ 
 
 

  
 

 











ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 
 

  File No. E2016.108-TUP 
Page 1 of 4 

TO: Board of Directors 
 
FROM: B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 

 
DATE: December 15, 2016 
 
RE: Temporary Use Permit Renewal Application — Electoral Area “E” 
 

Administrative Recommendation: 

THAT the Board of Directors approve Temporary Use Permit No. E2016.108-TUP. 
 

Purpose:  To allow for the renewal of an existing TUP authorising a short-term vacation rental use. 

Owner:  David Minchau Applicant: David Minchau & Ambyr Parker-Minchau Folio: E-02286.020 

Civic:  780 Languedoc Road, Naramata Legal: Lot B, Plan KAP90206, District Lot 211, SDYD 

OCP: Agriculture (AG) Zoning: Agriculture One (AG1) 
 

Proposal: 
This application seeks approval for the renewal of Temporary Use Permit (TUP) No. E2016.028-TUP, 
which authorises the operation of a short-term vacation rental use at the subject property, for a 
three-year term from January 1, 2017 to December 31, 2019. 
 
Site Context: 
The subject parcel is approximately 1.0 ha in area and is situated on the south of Languedoc Road 
near its western terminus (above Mill Road).  The property is seen to be comprised of a single 
detached dwelling and garage.  The surrounding pattern of development is characterised by rural-
residential parcels and agricultural operations. 
 
Background: 
At its meeting of July 16, 2015, the Regional District Board resolved to approve TUP application No. 
E2015.028-TUP, subject to the following works be undertaken to the existing single detached 
dwelling: 

· all window egresses from a bedroom shall be a minimum opening of 380 millimetres and a 
minimum size of 0.35 m2; 

· a carbon monoxide detector shall be installed in all bedrooms where there is a wood burning 
fireplace; 

· all smoke alarms shall be in good operating order and properly powered; and 

· that all exterior decks and stairs are properly guarded (i.e. required posts and/or rail guards are 
installed and/or replaced). 



  
  

  File No: E2016.108-TUP 
Page 2 of 4 

The applicant subsequently completed the necessary works to the dwelling unit and the Permit No. 
E2015.028-TUP was issued on November 20, 2015, and is set to expire on December 31, 2016. 
 
Public Process: 
At its meeting of November 14, 2016, the Electoral Area “E” Advisory Planning Commission (APC) 
resolved to recommend to the Regional District Board that the proposed temporary use be approved. 

A Public Information Meeting was held prior to the APC meeting on November 14, 2016, and no 
members of the public attended. 

Adjacent property owners will have received notification of this application with written comments 
regarding the proposal being accepted until the commencement of the regular Board meeting.   

Agency referral comments have been received from Ministry of Environment (Archaeology Branch 
and Ecosystems Section), Fortis, Interior Health Authority (IHA) and Penticton Indian Band (PIB) and 
are included as a separate item on the Agenda. 
 
Analysis: 
In assessing this proposal, Administration notes that there have been no recorded complaints 
received in relation to the operation of this vacation rental use and that the applicant has indicated 
that there have been no changes to the use since the permit was issued in 2015 (i.e. the use remains 
limited to five bedrooms and ten paying guests between April 1st and October 31st).  

While it is recognised that the Electoral Area “E” OCP Bylaw No. 2458, 2008, contains a number of 
specific criteria against which vacation rental TUPs are to be assessed (i.e. septic capacity, screening, 
health & safety assessment and on-site vehicle parking provisions), this criteria was previously 
considered by the Board when it approved TUP No. E2015.028-TUP in 2015. 

Accordingly, and in light of the absence of any change to the use or received complaints regarding its 
operation, Administration supports the renewal of this permit for a further three years (to December 
31, 2019). 
 
Alternative: 
THAT the Board of Directors deny Temporary Use Permit No. E2016.108-TUP. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted: Endorsed by: 

_________________________________ __Donna Butler ____________ 
C. Garrish, Planning Supervisor D. Butler, Development Services Manager 
 
 

Attachments: No. 1 – Agency Referral List 

 No. 2 – Site Photos (2015) 
 
  



  
  

  File No: E2016.108-TUP 
Page 3 of 4 

Attachment No. 1 – Agency Referral List 

Referrals have been sent to the following agencies as highlighted with a þ, prior to Board 
consideration of TUP No. E2016.108-TUP: 
 

þ Agricultural Land Commission (ALC) o City of Penticton 

þ Interior Health Authority (IHA) o District of Summerland 

þ Ministry of Agriculture o Town of Oliver 

o Ministry of Community, Sport and 
Cultural Development 

o Town of Osoyoos 

o Ministry of Energy & Mines o Town of Princeton 

þ Ministry of Environment  o Village of Keremeos 

o Ministry of Forests, Lands & Natural 
Resource Operations 

o Okanagan Nation Alliance (ONA) 

þ Archaeology Branch þ Penticton Indian Band (PIB) 

o Ministry of Transportation and 
Infrastructure 

o Osoyoos Indian Band (OIB) 

o Integrated Land Management Bureau o Upper Similkameen Indian Bands (USIB) 

o BC Parks o Lower Similkameen Indian Bands (LSIB) 

o School District  #53 (Okanagan 
Similkameen) 

o Environment Canada 

o School District  #58 (Nicola Similkameen) o Fisheries and Oceans Canada 

o School District  #67 (Okanagan Skaha) þ Fortis 

o Canadian Wildlife Service   

 
 



  
  

  File No: E2016.108-TUP 
Page 4 of 4 

Attachment No. 2 – Site Photo (2015)  
 
 

 



 
 

Temporary Use Permit No. E2016.108-TUP 
Page 1 of 5 

  

TEMPORARY USE PERMIT 

FILE NO.: E2016.108-TUP 

TO:    David Minchau and Ambyr Parker-Minchau 
  
 
 

  

GENERAL CONDITIONS 

1. This Temporary Use Permit is issued subject to compliance with all of the bylaws of the 
Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen applicable thereto, except as specifically 
varied or supplemented by this Permit. 

2. The land described shall be developed strictly in accordance with the terms and 
conditions of this Permit, and any plans and specifications attached to this Permit which 
shall form a part thereof. 

3. Where there is a conflict between the text of the permit and permit drawings or figures, 
the drawings or figures shall govern the matter. 

4. This Temporary Use Permit is not a Building Permit. 

 

APPLICABILITY 

5. This Temporary Use Permit applies to, and only to, those lands, including any and all 
buildings, structures and other development thereon, within the Regional District as 
shown on Schedules ‘A’ and ‘B’, and described below: 

Legal Description: Lot B, Plan KAP90206, District Lot 211, SDYD 

Civic Address/location: 780 Languedoc Road, Naramata 

Parcel Identifier (PID): 028-118-987  Folio: E-02286.020 

 

TEMPORARY USE 

6. In accordance with Section 19.0 of the Electoral Area “E” Official Community Plan Bylaw 
No. 2458, 2008, the land specified in Section 5 may be used for a vacation rental use as 
defined in the Electoral Area “E” Zoning Bylaw, being the use of a residential dwelling unit 
for the accommodation of paying guests occupying the dwelling unit for a period of less 
than 30 days. 



Temporary Use Permit No. E2016.108-TUP 
Page 2 of 5 

 

CONDITIONS OF TEMPORARY USE 

7. The vacation rental use of the land is subject to the following conditions: 

(a) the vacation rental use shall occur only between April 1st and October 31st; 

(b) the following information must be posted within the dwelling unit while the vacation 
rental use is occurring: 

i) the location of property lines by way of a map;  

ii) a copy of the Regional District’s Electoral Area “E” Noise Regulation and  
Prohibition Bylaw; 

iii) measures to address water conservation;  

iv) instructions on the use of appliances that could cause fires, and for evacuation of 
the building in the event of fire;  

v) instructions on the storage and management of garbage;  

vi) instructions on septic system care; and  

vii) instructions on the control of pets (if pets are permitted by the operator) in 
accordance with the Regional District’s Animal Control Bylaw.  

(c) the maximum number of bedrooms that may be occupied by paying guests shall be five 
(5); 

(d) the number of paying guests that may be accommodated at any time shall not exceed 
ten (10); 

(e) a minimum of five (5) on-site vehicle parking spaces shall be provided for paying guests; 

(f) camping and the use of recreational vehicles, accessory buildings and accessory 
structures on the property for vacation rental occupancy are not permitted; and 

(g) current telephone contact information for a site manager or the property owner, 
updated from time to time as necessary, as well as a copy of this Temporary Use Permit 
shall be provided to the owner  of each property situated within 100 metres of the land 
and to each occupant of such property if the occupier is not the owner. 

 

COVENANT REQUIREMENTS 

8. Not applicable. 

 

SECURITY REQUIREMENTS 

9. Not applicable. 

 



Temporary Use Permit No. E2016.108-TUP 
Page 3 of 5 

EXPIRY OF PERMIT 

10. This Permit is a renewal of Permit No. E2015.028-TUP and shall expire on the 31st day of 
December, 2019. 

 

 
 
Authorising resolution passed by Regional Board on   _____ day of ___________, 2016. 
 
 
 
___________________________________ 
B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 
 
 



 
 

Temporary Use Permit No. E2016.108-TUP 
Page 4 of 5 

Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
101 Martin St, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9 
Tel: 250-492-0237    Email: info@rdos.bc.ca 
 
Temporary Use Permit File No.  E2016.108-TUP 

Schedule ‘A’ 
 
 

  
 

  

  
NN

Subject 
Property 

NARAMATA 



Temporary Use Permit No. E2016.108-TUP 
Page 5 of 5 

Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
101 Martin St, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9 
Tel: 250-492-0237    Email: info@rdos.bc.ca 
 
Temporary Use Permit File No.  E2016.108-TUP 

Schedule ‘B’ 
 
 

  
 

 

















ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 
 

  File No: E2016.114-TUP 
Page 1 of 4 

TO: Board of Directors 
 
FROM: B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 

 
DATE: December 15, 2016 
 
RE: Temporary Use Permit Renewal Application — Electoral Area “E” 
 

Administrative Recommendation: 

THAT the Board of Directors approve Temporary Use Permit No. E2016.114-TUP. 
 

Purpose  To allow for the renewal of an existing TUP authorizing a short-term vacation rental use. 

Owners:  Allan Richards, Betty Richards, Kenneth McLaren, Deborah Richards-Perakis, Edwin Richards,  
and Allana Monteleone 

Applicants:  Allan & Betty Richards Folio: E-02277.000 

Civic:  4383 Mill Rd., Naramata Legal: Lot 2, Plan KAP3889, District Lot 211, SDYD 

OCP: Low Density Residential (LR) Zoning: Residential Single Family One (RS1) 
 

Proposal: 
This application seeks approval for the renewal of Temporary Use Permit (TUP) No. E2015.125-TUP, 
which authorises the operation of a short-term vacation rental use at the subject property, for a 
three-year term from January 1, 2017 to December 31, 2019. 
 
Site Context: 
The subject parcel is approximately 531 m2 in area, is situated on the west side of Mill Road and is 
bounded by Okanagan Lake along its rear boundary. Development on the property is seen to be 
comprised of a single detached dwelling. 

The surrounding pattern of development is characterised by low density residential parcels along the 
lake foreshore, and agriculture to the east. 
 
Background: 

At its meeting of February 25, 2016, the Regional District Board of Directors resolved to approve TUP 
No. E2015.125-TUP. 
 
Public Process: 
At its meeting of November 14, 2016, the Electoral Area “E” Advisory Planning Commission (APC) 
resolved to recommend to the Regional District Board that the proposed temporary use be approved. 

A Public Information Meeting was held prior to the APC meeting on November 14, 2016, and no 
members of the public attended. 



  
  

  File No: E2016.114-TUP 
Page 2 of 4 

Adjacent property owners will have received notification of this application with written comments 
regarding the proposal being accepted until the commencement of the regular Board meeting.   

Agency referral comments have been received from the Ministry of Environment/Ministry of Forests, 
Lands and Natural Resource Operations (Ecosystems Section), the Archaeology Branch, Interior Health 
Authority (IHA), and the Penticton Indian Band (PIB) and are included as a separate item on the 
Agenda. 
 
Analysis: 
In assessing this proposal, Administration notes that there have been no recorded complaints 
received in relation to the operation of this vacation rental use and that the applicant has indicated 
that there have been no changes to the use since the permit was issued earlier in 2016 (i.e. the use 
remains limited to three bedrooms and six paying guests between May 1st and October 31st).  

While it is recognised that the Electoral Area “E” OCP Bylaw No. 2458, 2008, contains a number of 
specific criteria against which vacation rental TUPs are to be assessed (i.e. septic capacity, screening, 
health & safety assessment and on-site vehicle parking provisions), this criteria was previously 
considered by the Board when it approved TUP No. E2015.125-TUP earlier in 2016. 

Accordingly, and in light of the absence of any change to the use or received complaints regarding its 
operation, Administration supports the renewal of this permit for a further three years (to December 
31, 2019). 
 
Alternative: 
THAT the Board of Directors deny Temporary Use Permit No. E2016.114-TUP. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted: Endorsed by: Endorsed by: 
 
__________________________ ______________________ _Donna Butler___________ 
S. Lightfoot, Planning Technician C. Garrish, Planning Supervisor D. Butler, Development Services Manager 
 
 

Attachments: No. 1 – Agency Referral List 

 No. 2 – Site Photo (Google Streetview) 

  
  



  
  

  File No: E2016.114-TUP 
Page 3 of 4 

Attachment No. 1 – Agency Referral List 

Referrals have been sent to the following agencies as highlighted with a þ, prior to Board 
consideration of TUP No. E2016.114-TUP: 
 

o Agricultural Land Commission (ALC) o City of Penticton 

þ Interior Health Authority (IHA) o District of Summerland 

o Ministry of Agriculture o Town of Oliver 

o Ministry of Community, Sport and 
Cultural Development 

o Town of Osoyoos 

o Ministry of Energy & Mines o Town of Princeton 

þ Ministry of Environment  o Village of Keremeos 

o Ministry of Forests, Lands & Natural 
Resource Operations 

þ Okanagan Nation Alliance (ONA) 

þ Archaeology Branch þ Penticton Indian Band (PIB) 

o Ministry of Transportation and 
Infrastructure 

o Osoyoos Indian Band (OIB) 

o Integrated Land Management Bureau o Upper Similkameen Indian Bands (USIB) 

o BC Parks o Lower Similkameen Indian Bands (LSIB) 

o School District  #53 (Okanagan 
Similkameen) 

o Environment Canada 

o School District  #58 (Nicola Similkameen) o Fisheries and Oceans Canada 

o School District  #67 (Okanagan Skaha) þ Fortis 

o Canadian Wildlife Service   

 

 



  
  

  File No: E2016.114-TUP 
Page 4 of 4 

Attachment No. 2 – Site Photos (Google Streetview) 
 



 

Temporary Use Permit No. E2016.114-TUP 
Page 1 of 5 

  

TEMPORARY USE PERMIT 

FILE NO.: E2016.114-TUP 

TO:    Allan & Betty Richards  
  
 

  

GENERAL CONDITIONS  

1. This Temporary Use Permit is issued subject to compliance with all of the bylaws of the 
Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen applicable thereto, except as specifically 
varied or supplemented by this Permit. 

2. The land described shall be developed strictly in accordance with the terms and 
conditions of this Permit, and any plans and specifications attached to this Permit which 
shall form a part thereof. 

3. Where there is a conflict between the text of the permit and permit drawings or figures, 
the drawings or figures shall govern the matter. 

4. This Temporary Use Permit is not a Building Permit. 

 

APPLICABILITY 

5. This Temporary Use Permit applies to, and only to, those lands, including any and all 
buildings, structures and other development thereon, within the Regional District as 
shown on Schedules ‘A’ and ‘B’, and described below: 

Legal Description: Lot 2, Plan KAP3889, District Lot 211, SDYD 

Civic Address/location: 4383 Mill Road, Naramata 

Parcel Identifier (PID): 002-469-022  Folio: E-02277.000 

 

TEMPORARY USE 

6. In accordance with Section 19.0 of the Electoral Area “E” Official Community Plan Bylaw 
No. 2458, 2008, the land specified in Section 5 may be used for a vacation rental use as 
defined in the Electoral Area “E” Zoning Bylaw, being the use of a residential dwelling 
unit for the accommodation of paying guests occupying the dwelling unit for a period of 
less than 30 days. 



 

Temporary Use Permit No. E2016.114-TUP 
Page 2 of 5 

 

CONDITIONS OF TEMPORARY USE 

7. The vacation rental use of the land is subject to the following conditions: 

(a) the vacation rental use shall occur only between May 1st and October 31st; 

(b) the following information must be posted within the dwelling unit while the vacation 
rental use is occurring: 

i) the location of property lines by way of a map;  

ii) a copy of the Regional District’s Electoral Area “E” Noise Regulation and  
Prohibition Bylaw; 

iii) measures to address water conservation;  

iv) instructions on the use of appliances that could cause fires, and for evacuation of 
the building in the event of fire;  

v) instructions on the storage and management of garbage;  

vi) instructions on septic system care; and  

vii) instructions on the control of pets (if pets are permitted by the operator) in 
accordance with the Regional District’s Animal Control Bylaw.  

(c) the maximum number of bedrooms that may be occupied by paying guests shall be 
three (3); 

(d) the number of paying guests that may be accommodated at any time shall not exceed 
six (6); 

(e) a minimum of three (3) on-site vehicle parking spaces shall be provided for paying 
guests, in accordance with Schedule ‘B’; 

(f) camping and the use of recreational vehicles, accessory buildings and accessory 
structures on the property for vacation rental occupancy are not permitted; and 

(g) current telephone contact information for a site manager or the property owner, 
updated from time to time as necessary, as well as a copy of this Temporary Use 
Permit shall be provided to the owner of each property situated within 100 metres of 
the land and to each occupant of such property if the occupier is not the owner. 

 

COVENANT REQUIREMENTS 

8. Not applicable. 

 

SECURITY REQUIREMENTS 

9. Not applicable. 



 

Temporary Use Permit No. E2016.114-TUP 
Page 3 of 5 

 

EXPIRY OF PERMIT 

10. This Permit is a renewal of Permit No. E2015.125-TUP and shall expire on the 31st day of 
December, 2019. 

 

 
Authorising resolution passed by Regional Board on ___ day of ______, 2016. 
 
 
 
___________________________________ 
B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 
 
 
 



 

Temporary Use Permit No. E2016.114-TUP 
Page 4 of 5 

Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
101 Martin St, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9 
Tel: 250-492-0237    Email: info@rdos.bc.ca 
 
Temporary Use Permit File No.  E2016.114-TUP 

Schedule ‘A’ 
  
 

  
 

 

  
NN

Subject 
Property 

NARAMATA 



 

Temporary Use Permit No. E2016.114-TUP 
Page 5 of 5 

Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
101 Martin St, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9  
Tel: 250-492-0237    Email: info@rdos.bc.ca 
 
Temporary Use Permit File No.  E2016.114-TUP 

Schedule ‘B’ 
 
 

  
 

 



















ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 
 

  File No. E2016.119-TUP 
Page 1 of 4 

TO: Board of Directors 
 
FROM: B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 

 
DATE: December 15, 2016 
 
RE: Temporary Use Permit Renewal Application — Electoral Area “E” 
 

Administrative Recommendation: 

THAT the Board of Directors approve Temporary Use Permit No. E2016.119-TUP. 
 

Purpose:  To allow for the renewal of an existing TUP authorising a short-term vacation rental use. 

Owner:  Hollyhock Trust Applicant: Kathy Robbins Folio: E-00754.010 

Civic:  4245 Mill Road, Naramata Legal: Lot A, Plan KAP48883, District Lot 210, SDYD 

OCP: Low Density Residential (LR) Zoning: Residential Single Family One (RS1) 
 

Proposal: 
This application seeks approval for the renewal of Temporary Use Permit (TUP) No. E2016.030-TUP, 
which authorises the operation of a short-term vacation rental use at the subject property, for a 
three-year term from January 1, 2017 to December 31, 2019. 
 
Site Context: 
The subject parcel is approximately 3,018 m2 in area, is situated on the west corner of Mill Road and is 
fronted by Okanagan Lake along its rear boundary approximately 200 metres north of Naramata 
Wharf Park.  The property is seen to be comprised of a single detached dwelling and related accessory 
structures.   

The surrounding pattern of development is characterised by low density residential parcels along the 
lake foreshore as well as the Sandy Beach Lodge and Resort 50 metres to the north. 
 
Background: 
At its meeting of July 16, 2015, the Regional District Board resolved to approve TUP application No. 
E2015.030-TUP subject to the property owner(s) remove the kitchen unit, in accordance with the 
requirements of the Regional District’s “Requirements for Decommissioning a Dwelling” Policy, from 
the accessory structure located on the subject property. 

Removal of the kitchen from the accessory structure was confirmed on July 16, 2015, and the TUP 
issued that same day, with an expiry date of December 31, 2016. 
 
Public Process: 
At its meeting of November 14, 2016, the Electoral Area “E” Advisory Planning Commission (APC) 
resolved to recommend to the Regional District Board that the proposed temporary use be approved. 



  
  

  File No: E2016.119-TUP 
Page 2 of 4 

A Public Information Meeting was held prior to the APC meeting on November 14, 2016, and no 
members of the public attended. 

Adjacent property owners will have received notification of this application with written comments 
regarding the proposal being accepted until the commencement of the regular Board meeting.   

Agency referral comments have been received from Ministry of Forests, Lands and Natural Resource 
Operations (Archaeology Branch & Ecosystem Section), Penticton Indian Band (PIB) and Interior 
Health Authority (IHA) and are included as a separate item on the Agenda. 
 
Analysis: 
In assessing this proposal, Administration notes that there have been no recorded complaints 
received in relation to the operation of this vacation rental use and that the applicant has indicated 
that there have been no changes to the use since the permit was issued in 2015 (i.e. the use remains 
limited to seven bedrooms and 14 paying guests between April 1st and October 31st).  

While it is recognised that the Electoral Area “E” OCP Bylaw No. 2458, 2008, contains a number of 
specific criteria against which vacation rental TUPs are to be assessed (i.e. septic capacity, screening, 
health & safety assessment and on-site vehicle parking provisions), this criteria was previously 
considered by the Board when it approved TUP No. E2015.030-TUP in 2015. 

Accordingly, and in light of the absence of any change to the use or received complaints regarding its 
operation, Administration supports the renewal of this permit for a further three years (to December 
31, 2019). 
 
Alternative: 
THAT the Board of Directors deny Temporary Use Permit No. E2016.119-TUP. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted: Endorsed by: 

_________________________________ _Donna Butler_____________ 
C. Garrish, Planning Supervisor D. Butler, Development Services Manager 
 
 

Attachments: No. 1 – Agency Referral List 

 No. 2 – Site Photos 
  



  
  

  File No: E2016.119-TUP 
Page 3 of 4 

Attachment No. 1 – Agency Referral List 

Referrals have been sent to the following agencies as highlighted with a þ, prior to Board 
consideration of TUP No. E2016.119-TUP: 
 

þ Agricultural Land Commission (ALC) o City of Penticton 

þ Interior Health Authority (IHA) o District of Summerland 

þ Ministry of Agriculture o Town of Oliver 

o Ministry of Community, Sport and 
Cultural Development 

o Town of Osoyoos 

o Ministry of Energy & Mines o Town of Princeton 

þ Ministry of Environment  o Village of Keremeos 

o Ministry of Forests, Lands & Natural 
Resource Operations 

þ Okanagan Nation Alliance (ONA) 

þ Archaeology Branch þ Penticton Indian Band (PIB) 

o Ministry of Transportation and 
Infrastructure 

o Osoyoos Indian Band (OIB) 

o Integrated Land Management Bureau o Upper Similkameen Indian Bands (USIB) 

o BC Parks o Lower Similkameen Indian Bands (LSIB) 

o School District  #53 (Okanagan 
Similkameen) 

o Environment Canada 

o School District  #58 (Nicola Similkameen) o Fisheries and Oceans Canada 

o School District  #67 (Okanagan Skaha) þ Fortis 

o Canadian Wildlife Service   

 

 
 



  
  

  File No: E2016.119-TUP 
Page 4 of 4 

Attachment No. 2 – Site Photo (Google Streetview) 

 
 



 
 

Temporary Use Permit No. E2016.119-TUP 
Page 1 of 5 

  

TEMPORARY USE PERMIT 

FILE NO.: E2016.119-TUP 

AGENT: Katheryne Robbins  
 28494 Maclure Road 
 Abbotsford, BC,  V4X-1L4 
 

 Owner: Hollyhock Trust  
 4245 Mill Road 
 Naramata, BC,  V0H-1N0 
 

GENERAL CONDITIONS 

1. This Temporary Use Permit is issued subject to compliance with all of the bylaws of the 
Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen applicable thereto, except as specifically 
varied or supplemented by this Permit. 

2. The land described shall be developed strictly in accordance with the terms and 
conditions of this Permit, and any plans and specifications attached to this Permit which 
shall form a part thereof. 

3. Where there is a conflict between the text of the permit and permit drawings or figures, 
the drawings or figures shall govern the matter. 

4. This Temporary Use Permit is not a Building Permit. 

 

APPLICABILITY 

5. This Temporary Use Permit applies to, and only to, those lands, including any and all 
buildings, structures and other development thereon, within the Regional District as 
shown on Schedules ‘A’ and ‘B’, and described below: 

Legal Description: Lot A, Plan KAP48883, District Lot 210, SDYD 

Civic Address/location: 4245 Mill Road, Naramata 

Parcel Identifier (PID): 018-064-299  Folio: E-00754.010 

 

TEMPORARY USE 

6. In accordance with Section 19.0 of the Electoral Area “E” Official Community Plan Bylaw 
No. 2458, 2008, the land specified in Section 5 may be used for a vacation rental use as 
defined in the Electoral Area “E” Zoning Bylaw, being the use of a residential dwelling unit 
for the accommodation of paying guests occupying the dwelling unit for a period of less 
than 30 days. 



Temporary Use Permit No. E2016.119-TUP 
Page 2 of 5 

 

CONDITIONS OF TEMPORARY USE 

7. The tourist accommodation guest house use of the land is subject to the following 
conditions: 

(a) the tourist accommodation guest house use shall occur only between April 1st  and 
October 31st; 

(b) the following information must be posted within the dwelling unit while the tourist 
accommodation guest house use is occurring: 

i) the location of property lines by way of a map;  

ii) a copy of the Regional District’s Electoral Area “E” Noise Regulation and  
Prohibition Bylaw; 

iii) measures to address water conservation;  

iv) instructions on the use of appliances that could cause fires, and for evacuation of 
the building in the event of fire;  

v) instructions on the storage and management of garbage;  

vi) instructions on septic system care; and  

vii) instructions on the control of pets (if pets are permitted by the operator) in 
accordance with the Regional District’s Animal Control Bylaw.  

(c) the maximum number of bedrooms that may be occupied by paying guests shall be 
seven (7); 

(d) the number of paying guests that may be accommodated at any time shall not exceed 
fourteen (14); 

(e) a minimum of seven (7) on-site vehicle parking spaces shall be provided for paying 
guests; 

(f) camping and the use of recreational vehicles on the property for tourist accommodation 
guest house occupancy are not permitted; and 

(g) current telephone contact information for a site manager or the property owner, 
updated from time to time as necessary, as well as a copy of this Temporary Use Permit 
shall be provided to the owner  of each property situated within 100 metres of the land 
and to each occupant of such property if the occupier is not the owner. 

 

COVENANT REQUIREMENTS 

8. Not applicable. 

 

SECURITY REQUIREMENTS 



Temporary Use Permit No. E2016.119-TUP 
Page 3 of 5 

9. Not applicable. 

 

EXPIRY OF PERMIT 

10. This Permit is a renewal of Permit No. D2015.030-TUP and shall expire on the 31st day of 
December, 2019. 

 

 
Authorising resolution passed by the Regional Board on _________, 2016. 
 
 
 
___________________________________ 
B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 
 
 



 
 

Temporary Use Permit No. E2016.119-TUP 
Page 4 of 5 

Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
101 Martin St, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9 
Tel: 250-492-0237    Email: info@rdos.bc.ca 
 
Temporary Use Permit File No.  E2016.119-TUP 

Schedule ‘A’ 
 
 

  
 

 

 
NN

Subject 
Parcel 

NARAMATA 



 
 

Temporary Use Permit No. E2016.119-TUP 
Page 5 of 5 

Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
101 Martin St, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9 
Tel: 250-492-0237    Email: info@rdos.bc.ca 
 
Temporary Use Permit File No.  E2016.119-TUP 

Schedule ‘B’ 
 
 

  
 

 



















ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 
 

  File No. E2016.120-TUP 
Page 1 of 4 

TO: Board of Directors 
 
FROM: B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 

 
DATE: December 15, 2016 
 
RE: Temporary Use Permit Renewal Application — Electoral Area “E” 
 

Administrative Recommendation: 

THAT the Board of Directors approve Temporary Use Permit No. E2016.120-TUP. 
 

Purpose:  To allow for the renewal of an existing TUP authorising a short-term vacation rental use. 

Owner:  Lia Ashbrook & Blair Cresswell Applicant: Blair Cresswell Folio: E-00747.005 

Civic:  3189 3rd Street, Naramata Legal: Lot 1, Plan KAP67634, District Lot 210, SDYD 

OCP: Low Density Residential (LR) Zoning: Residential Single Family One (RS1) 
 

Proposal: 
This application seeks approval for the renewal of Temporary Use Permit (TUP) No. E2016.056-TUP, 
which authorises the operation of a short-term vacation rental use at the subject property, for a 
three-year term from January 1, 2017 to December 31, 2019. 
 
Site Context: 
The subject parcel is approximately 767 m2 in area, is situated on the west side of 3rd Street at its 
southern terminus.  The property is seen to be comprised of a single detached dwelling.  The 
surrounding pattern of development is characterised by low density residential parcels. 
 
Background: 

At its meeting of August 20, 2015, the Regional District Board resolved to approve TUP application No. 
E2015.056-TUP subject to the property owner constructing four (4) off-street vehicle parking spaces. 

Creation of the required parking spaces was confirmed on September 15, 2015, and the TUP issued on 
November 16, 2015, with an expiry date of December 31, 2016. 
 
Public Process: 
At its meeting of November 14, 2016, the Electoral Area “E” Advisory Planning Commission (APC) 
resolved to recommend to the Regional District Board that the proposed temporary use be approved. 

A Public Information Meeting was held prior to the APC meeting on November 14, 2016, and no 
members of the public attended. 

Adjacent property owners will have received notification of this application with written comments 
regarding the proposal being accepted until the commencement of the regular Board meeting.   



  
  

  File No: E2016.120-TUP 
Page 2 of 4 

Agency referral comments have been received from Ministry of Forests, Lands and Natural Resource 
Operations (Archaeology Branch), Penticton Indian Band (PIB) and Interior Health Authority (IHA) and 
are included as a separate item on the Agenda. 
 
Analysis: 
In assessing this proposal, Administration notes that there have been no recorded complaints 
received in relation to the operation of this vacation rental use and that the applicant has indicated 
that there have been no changes to the use since the permit was issued in 2015 (i.e. the use remains 
limited to four bedrooms and eight paying guests between May 1st and October 30th).  

While it is recognised that the Electoral Area “E” OCP Bylaw No. 2458, 2008, contains a number of 
specific criteria against which vacation rental TUPs are to be assessed (i.e. septic capacity, screening, 
health & safety assessment and on-site vehicle parking provisions), this criteria was previously 
considered by the Board when it approved TUP No. E2015.058-TUP in 2015. 

Accordingly, and in light of the absence of any change to the use or received complaints regarding its 
operation, Administration supports the renewal of this permit for a further three years (to December 
31, 2019). 
 
Alternative: 
THAT the Board of Directors deny Temporary Use Permit No. E2016.120-TUP. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted: Endorsed by: 

_________________________________ _Donna Butler_______ 
C. Garrish, Planning Supervisor D. Butler, Development Services Manager 
 
 

Attachments: No. 1 – Agency Referral List 

 No. 2 – Site Photos 

 

 

 

 

 
  



  
  

  File No: E2016.120-TUP 
Page 3 of 4 

Attachment No. 1 – Agency Referral List 

Referrals have been sent to the following agencies as highlighted with a þ, prior to Board 
consideration of TUP No. E2016.120-TUP: 
 

o Agricultural Land Commission (ALC) o City of Penticton 

þ Interior Health Authority (IHA) o District of Summerland 

o Ministry of Agriculture o Town of Oliver 

o Ministry of Community, Sport and 
Cultural Development 

o Town of Osoyoos 

o Ministry of Energy & Mines o Town of Princeton 

þ Ministry of Environment  o Village of Keremeos 

o Ministry of Forests, Lands & Natural 
Resource Operations 

o Okanagan Nation Alliance (ONA) 

þ Archaeology Branch þ Penticton Indian Band (PIB) 

o Ministry of Transportation and 
Infrastructure 

o Osoyoos Indian Band (OIB) 

o Integrated Land Management Bureau o Upper Similkameen Indian Bands (USIB) 

o BC Parks o Lower Similkameen Indian Bands (LSIB) 

o School District  #53 (Okanagan 
Similkameen) 

o Environment Canada 

o School District  #58 (Nicola Similkameen) o Fisheries and Oceans Canada 

o School District  #67 (Okanagan Skaha) þ Fortis 

o Canadian Wildlife Service   

 

 
 



  
  

  File No: E2016.120-TUP 
Page 4 of 4 

Attachment No. 2 – Site Photo (2015) 



 
 

Temporary Use Permit No. E2016.120-TUP 
Page 1 of 5 

  

TEMPORARY USE PERMIT 

FILE NO.: E2016.120-TUP 

TO:    Lia Ashbrook & Blair Cresswell 
 5659 9th Avenue 
 Delta, BC,  V4L-1B6 
 

  

GENERAL CONDITIONS 

1. This Temporary Use Permit is issued subject to compliance with all of the bylaws of the 
Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen applicable thereto, except as specifically 
varied or supplemented by this Permit. 

2. The land described shall be developed strictly in accordance with the terms and 
conditions of this Permit, and any plans and specifications attached to this Permit which 
shall form a part thereof. 

3. Where there is a conflict between the text of the permit and permit drawings or figures, 
the drawings or figures shall govern the matter. 

4. This Temporary Use Permit is not a Building Permit. 

 

APPLICABILITY 

5. This Temporary Use Permit applies to, and only to, those lands, including any and all 
buildings, structures and other development thereon, within the Regional District as 
shown on Schedules ‘A’ and ‘B’, and described below: 

Legal Description: Lot 1, Plan KAP67634, District Lot 210, SDYD 

Civic Address/location: 3189 3rd Street, Naramata 

Parcel Identifier (PID): 024-993-701  Folio: E-00747.005 

 

TEMPORARY USE 

6. In accordance with Section 19.0 of the Electoral Area “E” Official Community Plan Bylaw 
No. 2458, 2008, the land specified in Section 5 may be used for a vacation rental use as 
defined in the Electoral Area “E” Zoning Bylaw, being the use of a residential dwelling unit 
for the accommodation of paying guests occupying the dwelling unit for a period of less 
than 30 days. 



Temporary Use Permit No. E2016.120-TUP 
Page 2 of 5 

 

CONDITIONS OF TEMPORARY USE 

7. The vacation rental use of the land is subject to the following conditions: 

(a) the vacation rental use shall occur only between May 1st and October 30th; 

(b) the following information must be posted within the dwelling unit while the vacation 
rental use is occurring: 

i) the location of property lines by way of a map;  

ii) a copy of the Regional District’s Electoral Area “E” Noise Regulation and  
Prohibition Bylaw; 

iii) measures to address water conservation;  

iv) instructions on the use of appliances that could cause fires, and for evacuation of 
the building in the event of fire;  

v) instructions on the storage and management of garbage;  

vi) instructions on septic system care; and  

vii) instructions on the control of pets (if pets are permitted by the operator) in 
accordance with the Regional District’s Animal Control Bylaw.  

(c) the maximum number of bedrooms that may be occupied by paying guests shall be four 
(4); 

(d) the number of paying guests that may be accommodated at any time shall not exceed 
eight (8); 

(e) a minimum of four (4) on-site vehicle parking spaces shall be provided for paying guests, 
in accordance with Schedule ‘B’; 

(f) camping and the use of recreational vehicles, accessory buildings and accessory 
structures on the property for vacation rental occupancy are not permitted; and 

(g) current telephone contact information for a site manager or the property owner, 
updated from time to time as necessary, shall be provided to the owner  of each 
property situated within 100 metres of the land and to each occupant of such property 
if the occupier is not the owner. 

 

COVENANT REQUIREMENTS 

8. Not applicable. 

 

SECURITY REQUIREMENTS 

9. Not applicable. 



Temporary Use Permit No. E2016.120-TUP 
Page 3 of 5 

 

EXPIRY OF PERMIT 

10. This Permit is a renewal of Permit No. D2015.056-TUP and shall expire on the 31st day of 
December, 2019. 

 

 
Authorising resolution passed by the Regional Board on _________, 2016. 
 
 
 
___________________________________ 
B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 
 
 



 
 

Temporary Use Permit No. E2016.120-TUP 
Page 4 of 5 

Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
101 Martin St, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9 
Tel: 250-492-0237    Email: info@rdos.bc.ca 
 
Temporary Use Permit File No.  E2016.120-TUP 

Schedule ‘A’ 
 
 

  
 

 

  
NN

Subject 
Property 

NARAMATA 



Temporary Use Permit No. E2016.120-TUP 
Page 5 of 5 

Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
101 Martin St, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9 
Tel: 250-492-0237    Email: info@rdos.bc.ca 
 
Temporary Use Permit File No.  E2016.120-TUP 

Schedule ‘B’ 
 
 

  
 

 

















ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 

 File No: D2016.094-TUP 
Page 1 of 4 

TO: Board of Directors 
 
FROM: B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 

 
DATE: December 15, 2016 
 
RE: Temporary Use Permit Application — Electoral Area “D” 
 

Administrative Recommendation: 

THAT the Board of Directors approve Temporary Use Permit No. D2016.094-TUP. 
 

Purpose:   To allow for a sales display area for agricultural trailers and equipment. 

Owners:  Peter & Merle Kappes 

Applicant:  Bar T5 Trailers North Inc  Folio: D-02341.000 

Civic:   1146 Highway 3A, Kaleden Legal: Lot 1, DL 228s, SDYD, Plan KAP11044 

OCP: Commercial (C) Zoning: General Commercial (C1) 
 

Proposal: 
This application proposes to use a portion of the subject property as a display and sales area for 
agricultural trailers and equipment.  The applicant is leasing an area of the subject property for this 
proposed sales area. The applicant states that no repair, manufacturing or mechanical work will be 
done on site.  The display site will be fenced and the hours of operation are proposed to be 9 AM to 5 
PM Monday to Saturday.  

In support of this proposal the applicant states that “it is a perfect rural location for our farm and 
ranch trailers and financial viable location”. 
 
Site Context: 
The subject property is 5.54 ha in size and is located on the north side of Highway 3A near the 
junction of Twin Lakes Road.  The leased sales area is approximately 6,070 m2 in area and located 
along Highway 3A.  The subject property contains the Twin Lakes service station and store that is 
located to the north of the proposed leased area.  

The surrounding pattern of development is characterised by rural properties, with Twin Lakes Golf 
Course to the south of the highway.  There is a rural residential subdivision to the north around Trout 
Lake and a large Resource Area parcel to the west.  
 
Background: 
The property was created by subdivision in 1960 and records indicate that a building permit was 
issued in 2006 for an addition to the convenience store.  

Under the Electoral Area “D” Zoning Bylaw No. 2457, 2008, the property is currently zoned General 
Commercial (C1) and under the Official Community Plan (OCP) Bylaw No. 2456, 2008, the property is 



  
  

 File No: D2016.094-TUP 
Page 2 of 4 

designated as Commercial (C).  A Watercourse Development Permit (WDP) area is identified within 
the subject property.  

The “D-1” Zoning Bylaw lists “agricultural implement and trailer sales” in the definition of ‘service 
industry’ which a permitted use only in the Industrial (Light) One zone (I1).   
 
Public Process: 
At its meeting of October 11, 2016, the Electoral Area “D” Advisory Planning Commission (APC) 
resolved to recommend to the RDOS Board that the proposed temporary use be approved.   

Under Section 5.1.1 of the Regional District’s Development Procedures Bylaw No. 2500, 2011, the 
Board may require that a Public Information Meeting be held prior to the consideration of a TUP, “if it 
considers the proposal to be of a significant scale or nature warranting an additional opportunity for 
the public to access information and inquire about the proposal beyond that available through the 
regular application referral and public hearing process.” 

In this instance, Administration notes that this proposed use is generally commercial in nature with no 
significant impacts and that an open house is not warranted.  

In accordance with Section 2.5 of Schedule ‘5’ of the Development Procedures Bylaw, this proposal 
has been referred to the external agencies listed at Attachment No. 2.  To date, comments have been 
received from the Ministry of Forests, Lands and Natural Resource Operations, Fortis, the Archeology 
Branch, and Interior Health Authority (IHA) and are included as a separate item on the Agenda. 

All comments received including the APC minutes have been included as a separate item on the Board 
agenda.  

On November 17, 2016, the Board of Directors made a motion to defer the subject application in 
order to redo the notification process for adjacent residents.  

On November 28, 2016, the applicant held an informal open house at the Twin Lakes store to meet 
with residents an explain the proposed TUP.  Approximately 10 people were in attendance with no 
concerns being expressed.  
 
Analysis: 
In assessing this proposal, Administration notes that the OCP Bylaw contains a number of criteria 
against which the Board will consider an application for a TUP.  These include: 

a) The use must be clearly temporary or seasonal in nature; 

b) Compatibility with adjacent uses; 

c) Impact on the natural environment, including groundwater, wildlife, and all environmentally 
sensitive areas; 

d) Intensity of use; 

e) Opportunity to conduct the proposed use on land elsewhere in the community; 

f) Remedial measures to mitigate any damage as a result of the temporary use.  

In this case, the proposed use is being considered as a trial period and if viable a rezoning application 
will be applied for in order to change the zoning on the property to allow for the sales display use.  
Once the temporary use permit expires and zoning is not in place, the use will be discontinued.  



  
  

 File No: D2016.094-TUP 
Page 3 of 4 

The proposed use would be seen a fairly compatible to adjacent uses as the convenience store and 
service station are commercial in nature.  The display area would not generate any extra noise or 
other negative impacts.  

There is a WDP Area identified as being partially within or adjacent to the proposed least site area.  
The applicant hired a professional biologist to assess the proposed use with the environmental 
impacts on the subject property.  The report noted that the area of the proposed development is 
characterised by disturbed area including graded and compacted gravel road surface, non-native and 
invasive species and generally low ecological value.  It is recommended that any use or fencing remain 
outside of a 30 metre buffer from the pond and Trout Lake.  

The proposed use is generally static with display models to be located on site, therefore, the intensity 
of the use is minimal in terms of equipment use, noise or other typical negative industrial impacts. 
There are no buildings proposed at this time. There may be some extra traffic generated on Highway 
3A. An access permit from MOTI was received on November 2, 2016.  

Finally, the applicant will be required to remove display items and restore the area as found 
previously. 

For the above reasons Administration supports the proposed Temporary Use permit application.  
 
Alternatives: 
1. THAT the Board of Directors deny Temporary Use Permit No. D2016.094-TUP; OR 

2. THAT the Board of Directors defer consideration of Temporary Use Permit No. D2016.094-TUP 
subject to the completion of a Public Information Meeting to be organised by the applicant. 

 
 
Respectfully submitted: Endorsed by: Endorsed by: 
  

ERiechert__________ ______________________ Donna Butler_________ 
E. Riechert, Planner C. Garrish, Planning Supervisor D. Butler, Dev. Services Manager 
 
 

Attachments: No. 1 – Agency Referral List 

  
  



  
  

 File No: D2016.094-TUP 
Page 4 of 4 

Attachment No. 1 – Agency Referral List  
 

 Referrals have been sent to the following agencies as highlighted with a þ, prior to Board consideration 
of TUP No. D2016.094-TUP: 
 

o Agricultural Land Commission (ALC) o City of Penticton 

þ Interior Health Authority (IHA) o District of Summerland 

o Ministry of Agriculture o Town of Oliver 

o Ministry of Community, Sport and 
Cultural Development 

o Town of Osoyoos 

o Ministry of Energy & Mines o Town of Princeton 

þ Ministry of Environment  o Village of Keremeos 

o Ministry of Forests, Lands & Natural 
Resource Operations 

o Okanagan Nation Alliance (ONA) 

þ Archaeology Branch þ Penticton Indian Band (PIB) 

þ Ministry of Transportation and 
Infrastructure 

o Osoyoos Indian Band (OIB) 

o Integrated Land Management Bureau o Upper Similkameen Indian Bands (USIB) 

o BC Parks o Lower Similkameen Indian Bands (LSIB) 

o School District  #53 (Okanagan 
Similkameen) 

o Environment Canada 

o School District  #58 (Nicola Similkameen) o Naramata Water Utility 

o School District  #67 (Okanagan Skaha) þ Fortis 

 



 

Temporary Use Permit No. D2016.094-TUP 
Page 1 of 4 

  

TEMPORARY USE PERMIT 

FILE NO.: D2016.096-TUP 

TO: Peter and Merle Kappes 
Site 20B, Comp 6, RR1 
Kaleden, BC  
V0H 1K0 

Applicant: Bar T5 Trailers North Inc 
698 Eckhardt Ave W 
Penticton, BC  
BV2A 2B5 

 

GENERAL CONDITIONS  

1. This Temporary Use Permit is issued subject to compliance with all of the bylaws of the 
Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen applicable thereto, except as specifically 
varied or supplemented by this Permit. 

2. The land described shall be developed strictly in accordance with the terms and 
conditions of this Permit, and any plans and specifications attached to this Permit which 
shall form a part thereof. 

3. Where there is a conflict between the text of the permit and permit drawings or figures, 
the drawings or figures shall govern the matter. 

4. This Temporary Use Permit is not a Building Permit. 

 

APPLICABILITY 

5. This Temporary Use Permit applies to, and only to, those lands, including any and all 
buildings, structures and other development thereon, within the Regional District as 
shown on Schedules ‘A’ and ‘B’, and described below: 

Legal Description: Lot 1, District Lot 228s, SDYD, Plan KAP11044 

Civic Address/location: 1146 & 1066 Highway 3A 

Parcel Identifier (PID): 009-530-304  Folio: D-02341.000 

 

TEMPORARY USE 

6. In accordance with Section 15.0 of the Electoral Area “D” Official Community Plan Bylaw 
No. 2457, 2008, on the land specified in Section 5, the following temporary use is 
permitted:  

a) “agricultural implement and trailer sales”, which is defined as the display and sales 
of agricultural trailers and equipment.  



Temporary Use Permit No. D2016.094-TUP 
Page 2 of 4 

 

CONDITIONS OF TEMPORARY USE 

7. The sales and display use of the land is subject to the following conditions: 

i) The location and operation of the sales and display area is approximately 6,070 m2 
in area and shall not occur beyond the area shown outlined in a red dashed line on 
Schedule ‘B’; 

ii) The hours of operation shall be 9:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. Monday to Saturday; 

iii) Parking will provided on the site area. 

iv) Despite the map shown on Schedule ‘B’ no proposed use or fencing will encroach 
within 30 metres of the constructed pond or Trout Lake.   

 

COVENANT REQUIREMENTS 

8. Not applicable. 

 

SECURITY REQUIREMENTS 

9. Not applicable. 

 

EXPIRY OF PERMIT 

10. This Permit shall commence on November 18, 2016 and shall expire on November 17, 
2019. 

 

 
Authorising resolution passed by Regional Board on ___ day of ______, 2016. 
 
 
 
___________________________________ 
B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 
 
 
 



 

Temporary Use Permit No. D2016.094-TUP 
Page 3 of 4 

Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
101 Martin St, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9 
Tel: 250-492-0237    Email: info@rdos.bc.ca 
 
Temporary Use Permit File No.  D2016.094-TUP 

Schedule ‘A’ 
     
 

  
 

 

 NN

Subject 
Property 

KALEDEN 



 

Temporary Use Permit No. D2016.094-TUP 
Page 4 of 4 

Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
101 Martin St, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9 
Tel: 250-492-0237    Email: info@rdos.bc.ca 
 
Temporary Use Permit  Schedule ‘B’ File No.  D2016.094-TUP 
  

NN























 Project  No. C2016.066-ZONE  
Page 1 of 2 
 

TO:  Board of Directors 
 
FROM:  B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 

 
DATE:  December 15, 2016 
 
TYPE:  Zoning Bylaw Amendment - Electoral Area “C” 
 

THAT Bylaw No. 2453.29, 2016, Electoral Area “C” Zoning Amendment Bylaw be read a third time. 
 
 

Purpose:  To facilitate the development of 27 new modular home sites 
 
Owner:  South Okanagan Ventures Ltd Agent: TRUE Consulting (Glen McCrae) Folio: C-01140.000 
 
Legal:  Lot 4, DL 28s, SDYD, Plan 11959 Civic: 8472 Gallagher Lake Frontage Road 
 
OCP: Low Density Residential (LR) (draft Gallagher Lake Area Plan)  
  
Zoning: Tourist Commercial One (CT1) Proposed Zoning: Residential Manufactured Home (RSM1) 
 

Proposal: 
This application is seeking to amend a tourist commercial zoned property to one that permits 
residential modular homes.  Specifically, it is being proposed to construct Phase 3 of the Gallagher 
Lake Village Park that would include 27 new sites for modular homes.    
 
Site Context: 
The subject property is currently going through a legal transition as two properties have been 
consolidated into what will become the area of the Phase 3 development site.  The property is 
approximately 3.0 ha in area and is located on the west side of the Gallagher Lake Frontage Rd, 
accessed through a panhandle driveway between 8486 and 8464 Gallagher Lake Frontage Road.   

The parcel is bound by the Okanagan River channel to the west and Vaseux Creek to the north.  To the 
south there are the earlier phases of the Gallagher Lake Village Park that includes approximately 100 
modular home sites.   
 
Background: 
At the meeting July 19, 2016, the Electoral Area “C” Advisory Planning Commission (APC) resolved to 
recommend to the RDOS Board that the proposed rezoning be approved. 

At its meeting of June 19, 2016, the Regional District Board resolved to approve first and second 
reading of the amendment bylaws and directed that a public hearing be scheduled. 

Notice of an agreement, signed April 21, 2016, between the applicant and the Osoyoos Indian Band 
and Senkulmen Utilites for water and sewer services for the new 27 modular homes has been 
received.  



 Project  No. C2016.066-ZONE  
Page 2 of 2 
 

A Public Hearing was held on November 21, 2016, where approximately 13 members of the public 
attended. 

All comments received through the public process, including APC minutes are compiled and included 
as a separate item on the Board Agenda. 
 
Referrals: 

Approval from the Ministry of Transportation and Infrastructure (MoTI) will be required prior to 
adoption as the proposal is situated within 800 metres of a controlled area. 
 
Analysis:  
In considering this proposal, Administration notes that the proposed Electoral Area “C” Gallagher Lake 
Area Plan recognizes that the subject property is to be designated as Low Density Residential thereby 
setting the strategic direction to permit the proposed manufacture home park expansion.   

Future growth in the Gallagher Lake area is constrained by the Osoyoos Indian Band land, the location 
of Highway 97, the Okanagan River channel, and outlying large tracts of land being identified as very 
environmentally sensitive.  
The applicant will be required to apply for a Manufactured Home Park Permit, an Environmentally 
Sensitive Development Permit and a Watercourse Development Permit in order to facilitate the 
construction and development of the proposed 27 new home sites.  
In summary, Administration feels that the proposed use is suitably located and would not be out of 
character with the surrounding area uses.  Moreover, the proposal is seen to fulfill the policy direction 
provided by the OCP. 

Alternative: 

THAT first and second readings be rescinded and Bylaw No. 2453.29, 2016, Electoral Area “C” Zoning 
Amendment Bylaw be denied. 
 
Respectfully submitted  Endorsed by:      Endorsed by:   
 
ERiechert________ _________________________ Donna Butler__________ 
E.Riechert, Planner   C. Garrish, Planning Supervisor D. Butler, Dev. Services Manager 
 
 
 



 

Amendment Bylaw No. 2453.29, 2016 
(C2016.066 -ZONE) 

Page 1 of 3 

 _________________ 
 
 BYLAW NO. 2453.29 
  _________________ 
 
 
 REGIONAL DISTRICT OF OKANAGAN-SIMILKAMEEN 
 
 BYLAW NO. 2453.29, 2016 
 
 

A Bylaw to amend the Electoral Area “C” Zoning Bylaw No. 2453, 2008 
         
 

The REGIONAL BOARD of the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen in open 
meeting assembled, ENACTS as follows: 

1. This Bylaw may be cited for all purposes as the “Electoral Area “C” Zoning 
Amendment Bylaw No. 2453.29, 2016.” 

2. The Official Zoning Map, being Schedule ‘2’ of the Electoral Area “C” Zoning Bylaw 
No. 2453, 2008, is amended by changing the land use designation on the land 
described as Lot 1, DL 285, SDYD, Plan KAP11388, except Plan KAP68598; and 
approximately 0.9 ha of Lot A, DL 28s, SDYD, Plan KAP68598, except Plan 
EPP56154, and shown shaded yellow on Schedule ‘Y’, which forms part of this 
Bylaw, from Tourist Commercial (CT1) to Residential Manufactured Home (RSM1). 

 
  



 

Amendment Bylaw No. 2453.29, 2016 
(C2016.066 -ZONE) 

Page 2 of 3 

READ A FIRST AND SECOND TIME this 20 day of October, 2016.  

PUBLIC HEARING held on this 14th day of November, 2016. 

READ A THIRD TIME this ___ day of _________, 2016. 

I hereby certify the foregoing to be a true and correct copy of the "Electoral Area ‘C’ 
Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2453.29, 2016” as read a Third time by the Regional 
Board on this ___day of ___, 2016. 

Dated at Penticton, BC this __ day of ___, 2016. 
 
 
____________________________ 
Chief Administrative Officer 

Approved pursuant to Section 52(3) of the Transportation Act this ___ day of ______, 
2016. 
 
ADOPTED this _________day of ____________ 2016. 
 
 
_______________________       ______________________  
Board Chair      Corporate Officer 



 

Amendment Bylaw No. 2453.29, 2016 
(C2015.066-ZONE) 

Page 3 of 3 

Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
101 Martin St, Penticton, BC    V2A 5J9 
Tel:  (250) 492-0237    Fax (250) 492-0063 
 
Amendment Bylaw No. 2453.29, 2016 Project No: C2016.066-ZONE 

Schedule ‘Y’ 
 

 
 
 

Subject 
Property 

NN

GALLAGHER LAKE 

Amend Zoning Bylaw No. 2453, 2008: 
from:  Tourist Commercial (CT1)) 
to:  Residential Manufactured Home (RSM1) 

(YELLOW SHADED AREA) 



PUBLIC HEARING REPORT 
 

 
Public Hearing Report – Amendment Bylaw No.2453.29 

Page 1 

9TO:  Board of Directors 
 
FROM:  Chair, Director Terry Schafer, Electoral Area “C” 

 
DATE:  November 14, 2016 
 
RE:  Public Hearing Report on Amendment Bylaw Nos. 2453.29 
 
 
Purpose of Amendment Bylaw: 
The purpose of the amendment bylaw is to amend the Electoral Area “C” Zoning Bylaw No. 2453, 
2008, in order to complete the third and final phase of the Gallagher Lake Village Park that consists of 
27 new modular home sites. 
Specifically amending from Tourist Commercial (CT4) to Residential Manufactured Home Park Zone 
(RSM1).  
 
Public Hearing Overview: 
The Public Hearing for Amendment Bylaw No 2453.29 was convened on Monday, November 14, 
2016, at 7:54 p.m., at the Oliver Alliance Church, 6835 Leighton Crescent, Oliver. 

There were thirteen (13) members of the public present. 

Members of the Regional District Board present were: 

· Chair, Director Terry Schafer 

Members of the Regional District staff present were: 

· Donna Butler, Planner 

· Nona Lynn, Recording Secretary 

Chair Schaffer called the Public Hearing to order at the Oliver Alliance Church, 6835 Leighton 
Crescent, Oliver. 

Pursuant to Section 464, 465 and 468 of the Local Government Act in order to consider Amendment 
Bylaw Nos 2453.29, 2016. 

In accordance with Section 466, the time and place of the public hearing was advertised in the 
November 2 and 9 editions of the Oliver Chronicle and the November 7 edition of the Penticton 
Herald. 

Copies of reports and correspondence received related to Amendment Bylaw No 2453.29, 2016 were 
available for viewing at the Regional District office during the required posting period. 
 
Summary of Representations: 

There were no written briefs submitted at the public hearing. 



  
 

 
Public Hearing Report – Amendment Bylaw No. 2453.29, 2015 

Page 2 

Chair Schafer called a first time for briefs and comments from the floor and noted that a binder is 
available which includes all written comments received to date and anyone wishing to review the 
comments could do so. 
 
Chair Schafer asked if anyone wished to speak to the proposed bylaws. 
 
Dan Atkinson, Gallagher Lake – Questioned the access and additional road ways to the subject 
property.   
 
Chair Schafer – Explained that Ministry of Transportation would have to revisit this issue.   
 
Thor Manson, 91 Country Pines – Questioned the difference between manufactured homes, and 
modular homes.  
 
Planner – Clarified that the development would have modular homes on the subject property. 
 
Laurence Green, Gallagher Lake – Questioned clarity on the second access to the highway.  
 
Planner – Clarified that there would be a second access road, to and from the subject property.   
 
Chair Schafer asked a second time if there was anyone who wished to speak further to the proposed 
bylaws. 

Chair Schafer asked a third time if there was anyone who wished to speak further to the proposed 
bylaws and hearing none, declared the public hearing closed at 8:00 p.m. 
 
 

Recorded by: 
Nona Lynn 
Nona Lynn 
Recording Secretary 

Recorded by: 
_____________________ 
Donna Butler 
Development Services 
Manager 

Confirmed:  

Terry Schaffer 
Terry Schaffer 
Chair 

 































ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 
 

Project No.: C2016.082-ZONE 
Page 1 of 3 

TO:  Board of Directors 
 
FROM:  B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 

 
DATE:  December 15, 2016 
 
RE: OCP & Zoning Bylaw Amendment – Electoral Area “C” 
 Gallagher Lake Area Plan  
 

Administrative Recommendation: 

THAT Bylaw No. 2452.16, 2016, Electoral Area “C” Official Community Plan be read a third time as 
amended and adopted; and  

AND THAT Bylaw No. 2453.30, 2016, Electoral Area “C” Zoning Amendment Bylaw be read a third 
time, as amended. 
 
 

Proposal: 
To adopt the Gallagher Lake Area Plan as a component of the Electoral Area “C” Official Community 
Plan No. 2452, 2008, and to amend the zoning of 8307 Highway 97 — which is within the Plan Area — 
to address an inadvertent zoning change that occurred in 2002. 
 
Background: 

At its meeting of October 6, 2016, the Regional District Board resolved to approve first and second 
reading of the amendment bylaws and directed that a public hearing. 
A Public Hearing was held on November 14, 2016, where approximately 13 members of the public 
attended. 
Approval from the Ministry of Transportation and Infrastructure (MoTI) will be required for 
Amendment Bylaw No. 2453.30 is required prior to adoption as the proposed amendments affect 
land within 800 metres of a controlled area (i.e. Highway 97). 

All comments received through the public process, including APC minutes are compiled and included 
as a separate item on the Board Agenda. 
 
Analysis:  
The preparation of the Gallagher Lake Area Plan has been initiated by the Regional District to 
address policy, growth and development trends that are influencing the Gallagher Lake Area. 
Gallagher Lake is identified in the Regional Growth Strategy as a “Rural Growth Area”.  The Area Plan 
will provide policies on a broad range of topics including land-use, transportation, housing, parks and 
infrastructure specific to the Gallagher Lake community and will form a part of the Electoral Area “C” 
Official Community Plan Bylaw.   Many of the policies of the Area “C” Community Plan remain in 
effect in Gallagher Lake. 

This Area Plan was developed by CTQ Consultants Ltd. over a period of 24 months, commencing in 
late 2014.  Development of the plan included establishment of a Citizens Committee, mail out 



   
 

Project No.: C2016.082-ZONE 
Page 2 of 3 

newsletters, website information, public information meetings and consultation with stakeholders 
and agencies.  Public meetings were well attended with active citizen engagement. 

Gallagher Lake is affected by changes in the surrounding region, including industrial and institutional 
developments in the adjacent Osoyoos Indian Reserve including the Senkulmen Business Park and 
new Provincial Correctional Facility anticipated to be open in 2017 and new residential development 
within the community. Although it is a community that will be restricted in the overall spatial area, 
Gallagher Lake is now subject to transitioning from a rural to a more urban community, with the 
introduction of sanitary sewer and water systems. 

Limits to growth are imposed by area geography, land ownership, the Osoyoos Indian Reserve No. 1, 
and environmentally sensitive land. Nevertheless, Gallagher Lake benefits from being located along 
Highway 97, an important international transportation corridor with significant traffic volume. 
Unfortunately, the highway also physically divides the community creating challenges for 
community cohesion. In recent years, there has been an evolving pattern of ownership and 
tenure in housing stock, population demographics and dynamics of uses including a new distillery, 
manufactured homes, recreational camping and strata residential projects. 

A plan that articulates a vision for the next 25 to 30 years and that is supported by community 
planning policy will assist the Regional District in managing growth and land use changes at 
Gallagher Lake. The intent is to implement a plan that will continue to create a livable and 
sustainable community for today’s and tomorrow’s residents. 

During plan preparation process, the owners of 8307 Highway 97 identified to the RDOS that zoning 
changes introduced in 2002 undid a previous rezoning application approved by the Board in 1997.  In 
order to address this, it is proposed that a site new specific regulation to allow “retail stores, general, 
not to exceed 200 m2 in gross floor area.”  Accordingly, it is recommended that the CT4 Zone be 
removed and a SH4s Zone be introduced to the whole of the property. 

Proposed Amendments to the Bylaws:  

In order to address concerns raised at the public hearing, Administration is recommending that the 
Board read Amendment Bylaw No. 2452.16 a third time as amended so that two proposed changes to 
the bylaw may be made, specifically: 

· adding a new sentence to the fifth paragraph under Section 2.1 acknowledging that the location 
of the Town of Oliver’s irrigation canal is currently under review; and 

· amend Section 15.2.3 in order to replace the current reference to the Liquid Waste Management 
Plan with a future Review of community water and sewer services in cooperation with the 
Osoyoos Indian Band and with awareness of cost concerns of the Country Pines development. 

Similarly, Administration is also recommending that the Board read Amendment Bylaw No. 2453.30 a 
third time as amended so that a changes to the bylaw may be made, specifically: 

· the location of the retail outlet (i.e. “gift shop”) be restricted to that part of the subject property 
located north of Vaseux Creek. 

 
Alternatives: 

.1 THAT first and second reading of Amendment Bylaw Nos. 2452.16 & 2453.30, 2016, be rescinded 
and the bylaws abandon;  



   
 

Project No.: C2016.082-ZONE 
Page 3 of 3 

OR 

.2 THAT third reading of Amendment Bylaw Nos. 2452.16 & 2453.30, 2016, be deferred until the 
following conditions are met:  

i) (TBD). 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted:    

Donna Butler________________  
D. Butler, Development Services Manager 
 



Amendment Bylaw No. 2452.16, 2016 
(C2016.082-ZONE) 

Page 1 of 3 

 _________________ 
 
 BYLAW NO. 2452.16   
 _________________ 
 
 
 REGIONAL DISTRICT OF OKANAGAN-SIMILKAMEEN 
 
 BYLAW NO. 2452.16, 2016 
 

A Bylaw to amend the Electoral Area “C”  
Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 2452, 2008 

         

The REGIONAL BOARD of the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen in open 
meeting assembled, ENACTS as follows: 

1. This Bylaw may be cited for all purposes as the “Gallagher Lake Area Plan Official 
Community Plan Amendment Bylaw No. 2452.16, 2016.” 

2. The “Electoral Area “C” Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 2452, 2008” is amended 
by: 

(i) adding a new Appendix ‘1’ (Gallagher Lake Area Plan) as shown on the 
attached Schedule ‘X-1’ (which forms part of this bylaw). 

(ii) replacing Schedule ‘B’ (Official Community Plan Map) with a new Schedule ‘B’ 
(Official Community Plan Map), as shown on the attached Schedule ‘X-2’ 
(which forms part of this bylaw). 

 

READ A FIRST AND SECOND TIME this 6th day of October, 2016. 

PUBLIC HEARING held on this 14th day of November, 2016. 

READ A THIRD TIME this ____ day of __________, 2016. 

ADOPTED this ____ day of __________, 2016. 
 
_______________________       ______________________  
Board Chair      Corporate Officer 



 

Amendment Bylaw No. 2452.16, 2016 
(C2016.082-ZONE) 

Page 2 of 3 

Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
101 Martin St, Penticton, BC    V2A 5J9 
Tel:  (250) 492-0237    Fax (250) 492-0063 
 
Amendment Bylaw No. 2452.16, 2016 Project No: C2016.082-ZONE 

Schedule ‘X-1’ 
 

 
 
 

  
[Gallagher Lake Area Plan] 

 
 



 

Amendment Bylaw No. 2452.16, 2016 
(C2016.082-ZONE) 

Page 3 of 3 

Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
101 Martin St, Penticton, BC    V2A 5J9 
Tel:  (250) 492-0237    Fax (250) 492-0063 
 
Amendment Bylaw No. 2452.16, 2016 Project No: C2016.082-ZONE 

Schedule ‘X-2’ 
 

 
 
 

  
[Official Community Plan Map] 

 
 

 
 



GALLAGHER LAKE AREA PLAN  

Appendix 1 to the Electoral Area “C” Zoning Bylaw No. 2452, 2008 

 

 

 

 



 



Gallagher Lake Area Plan — Appendix 1 
Oliver Rural Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 2452, 2008 Page 1  

GALLAGHER LAKE AREA PLAN 

REGIONAL DISTRICT OF OKANAGAN SIMILKAMEEN 
 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
1.0 INTRODUCTION ........................................................................................................... 3 

1.1  BACKGROUND TO THE PLAN..................................................................................................... 3 
1.2  ELECTORAL AREA “C” OFFICIAL COMMUNITY PLAN ..................................................................... 3 

2.0 COMMUNITY PROFILE ................................................................................................. 5 

2.1  THE COMMUNITY SETTING ...................................................................................................... 5 
2.2  HOUSING AND DEMOGRAPHICS ................................................................................................ 5 
2.3  GROWTH MANAGEMENT ........................................................................................................ 6 
2.4  COMMUNITY CONSULTATION .................................................................................................. 7 

3.0 VISION AND BROAD GOALS ......................................................................................... 9 

3.1  VISION ................................................................................................................................ 9 
3.2   BROAD GOALS ...................................................................................................................... 9 

4.0 LAND USE DESIGNATIONS ......................................................................................... 12 

5.0 RESOURCE AREA ....................................................................................................... 13 

5.1  BACKGROUND ..................................................................................................................... 13 
5.2 POLICIES ............................................................................................................................ 13 

6.0 SMALL HOLDINGS ...................................................................................................... 14 

6.1  BACKGROUND ..................................................................................................................... 14 
6.2 POLICIES ............................................................................................................................ 14 

7.0 RESIDENTIAL ............................................................................................................. 15 

7.1  BACKGROUND ..................................................................................................................... 15 
7.2 POLICIES ............................................................................................................................ 15 

8.0 COMMERCIAL............................................................................................................ 16 

8.1  BACKGROUND ..................................................................................................................... 16 
8.2   POLICIES ............................................................................................................................ 16 
9.1  BACKGROUND ..................................................................................................................... 17 
9.2   POLICIES ............................................................................................................................ 17 



Gallagher Lake Area Plan — Appendix 1 
Oliver Rural Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 2452, 2008 Page 2  

10.0 CONSERVATION AREA, LAKES AND STREAMS ............................................................. 18 

10.1  BACKGROUND ..................................................................................................................... 18 
10.2  POLICIES ............................................................................................................................ 18 

11.0 PARKS, TRAILS AND OPEN SPACE ............................................................................... 19 

11.1 BACKGROUND ..................................................................................................................... 19 
11.2 POLICIES ............................................................................................................................ 19 

12.0 TRANSPORTATION, ROADS & PEDESTRIAN MOBILITY ................................................ 21 

12.1 BACKGROUND ..................................................................................................................... 21 
12.2 POLICIES ............................................................................................................................ 22 

13.0 SERVICING & UTILITIES .............................................................................................. 23 

13.1 BACKGROUND ..................................................................................................................... 23 
13.2 POLICIES ............................................................................................................................ 23 

14.0 DEVELOPMENT PERMIT AREAS .................................................................................. 25 

14.1 GALLAGHER LAKE COMMERCIAL DEVELOPMENT PERMIT AREA ..................................................... 25 
.1   Category ................................................................................................................ 25 
.2   Area ....................................................................................................................... 25 
.3   Justification............................................................................................................ 25 
.4   Guidelines .............................................................................................................. 25 
.5   Bonding and Security ............................................................................................. 27 
.6   Exemptions ............................................................................................................ 28 

15.0 IMPLEMENTATION .................................................................................................... 29 

15.1 GOVERNMENT AGENCY COORDINATION................................................................................... 29 
15.2 FUTURE INITIATIVES ............................................................................................................. 29 

 

 

LIST OF MAP SCHEDULES 
 

Schedule ‘A’ Future Land Use Map 

Schedule ‘B’ Roads and Trails Map 

Schedule ‘C’ Commercial Development Permit Area Map 

 

  



Gallagher Lake Area Plan — Appendix 1 
Oliver Rural Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 2452, 2008 Page 3  

1.0 INTRODUCTION 
              
1.1  Background to the Plan 

Preparation of the Gallagher Lake Area Plan has been initiated by the Regional District 
of Okanagan-Similkameen to address policy, growth and development trends that are 
influencing the Gallagher Lake Area of the South Okanagan-Similkameen.  Gallagher Lake 
is identified in the Regional Growth Strategy as a “Rural Growth Area”.  The Area Plan will 
form a part of the Electoral Area “C” Official Community Plan Bylaw.   The Area Plan will 
provide policies on a broad range of topics including land-use, transportation, housing, 
parks and infrastructure specific to the Gallagher Lake community. 

This Area Plan was developed over a period of 24 months, commencing in late 2014.  
Development of the plan included establishment of a Citizens Committee, mail out 
newsletters, website information, public information meetings and consultation with 
stakeholders and agencies.  Public meetings were well attended with active citizen 
engagement. 

Gallagher Lake is affected by changes in the surrounding region, including industrial and 
institutional developments in the adjacent Osoyoos Indian Reserve including the 
Senkulmen Business Park and new Provincial Correctional Facility anticipated to be open 
in 2017 and new residential development within the community. Although it is a 
community that will be restricted in the overall spatial area, Gallagher Lake is now subject 
to transitioning from a rural to a more urban community, with the introduction of 
sanitary sewer and water systems. 

Limits to growth are imposed by area geography, land ownership, the Osoyoos Indian 
Reserve No. 1, and environmentally sensitive land. Nevertheless, Gallagher Lake benefits 
from being located along Highway 97, an important international transportation corridor 
with significant traffic volume. Unfortunately, the highway also physically divides the 
community creating challenges for community cohesion. In recent years, there has 
been an evolving pattern of ownership and tenure in housing stock, population 
demographics and dynamics of uses including a new distillery, manufactured homes, 
recreational camping and strata residential projects. 

A plan that articulates a vision for the next 25 to 30 years and that is supported by 
community planning policy will assist the Regional District in managing growth and 
land use changes at Gallagher Lake. The intent is to implement a plan that will 
continue to create a livable and sustainable community for today’s and tomorrow’s 
residents. 
 

1.2  Electoral Area “C” Official Community Plan 

The Electoral Area ‘C’ Community Plan (Oliver –Rural) was initially adopted in 2002 and 
re-enacted in 2008.   In this Plan, the community of Gallagher Lake is identified as one of 
a number of low density residential areas within the Electoral Area and also a location for 
manufactured home parks.   The Community Plan reflects the land uses in Gallagher Lake, 



Gallagher Lake Area Plan — Appendix 1 
Oliver Rural Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 2452, 2008 Page 4  

with Low Density Residential (LR) being the predominant designation.  The Commercial 
(C) designation applies to the west side of the Frontage Road, the campground and motel 
on the east side of Highway 97, an undeveloped area south of Vaseux Creek and a small 
area across from the Fortis Gas facility.  There is one parcel designated Industrial (I) along 
the Frontage Road as is the Fortis Gas facility at the northern edge.   On the eastern side, 
there is a Small Holdings (SH) designation along Vaseux Creek and the gravel quarry lands 
are designated as Resource Area (RA). 

The Gallagher Lake Area Plan will form part of  the Electoral Area “C” Community Plan 
attached as  Appendix 1.  The overall goals, objectives and policies of the Electoral Area 
“C” Plan apply to Gallagher Lake.  This Area Plan provides more specific direction for the 
future development of the Gallagher Lake community. 

GALLAGHER LAKE AREA PLAN 
 

 

 

 

 

  



Gallagher Lake Area Plan — Appendix 1 
Oliver Rural Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 2452, 2008 Page 5  

2.0 COMMUNITY PROFILE 
              
2.1  The Community Setting 

The community takes its name from Gallagher Lake, a small fresh water lake 
approximately 3.8 miles north of Oliver and 40 kilometers south of Penticton. The 
community is located on both sides of Highway 97 in the south Okanagan valley and 
adjacent to, Nʕaylintn, (formerly McIntyre Bluff), an area landmark.  Over the years, the 
lake, area camping, seasonal accommodation and roadside service helped create a small 
tourist destination. 

The Gallagher Lake campground was complemented by seasonal accommodation which 
ultimately became permanent residential units in the form of trailers and modular 
homes. Although the lake does not have public access, visitors to the campground and 
motels can enjoy the beaches, swimming and fishing. Today, Gallagher Lake includes 
motels, camping, a restaurant/pub, a distillery and other services, mainly located along 
the Gallagher Lake Frontage Road parallel to the Highway. 

It is recognized that Highway 97 divides the community in half. The west side contains the 
most recent development with new homes, utilities and commercial uses. The east side 
is largely made up of l o n g - s t a n d i n g  manufactured homes/trailers, camp ground 
facilities and motel.  

There is a Fortis Gas facility located to the north of Deer Park, a gravel quarry in the north 
east area and a larger Fortis power substation just north east and outside of the 
community.   A Fortis natural gas and electric power right-of-way passes through the west 
side of the community.  The quarry operation has several years of gravel resources but is 
deemed to have future redevelopment opportunities for other urban uses. 

The community benefits from Okanagan River and Vaseux Creek flowing through and 
along the edge of the residential areas. Such features enhance the open space, parks and 
trail system and provide drainage corridors through the community. The Town of Oliver 
retains ownership and management responsibility for the irrigation canal that is passes 
through the eastern portion of the Gallagher Lake.  Due to slide damage in the summer of 
2016, relocation of the irrigation canal is under consideration. 

The lands north of the community contain very environmentally sensitive Antelope-brush 
on the McIntryre Ranch property.  These lands are in the process of being acquired by the 
Nature Trust and will complement other Nature Trust lands, the Vaseux Bighorn National 
Wildlife Area and Provincial Protected Areas.  The McIntyre Bluff Natural Park, owned by 
the RDOS, is located at the northern edge of Gallagher Lake.   

 
2.2  Housing and Demographics 

Gallagher Lake is primarily comprised of manufactured home developments as follows: 

· Cottonwood Mobile Home Park on east side of Highway 97 with 23 units, developed 
in the 1970’s. 



Gallagher Lake Area Plan — Appendix 1 
Oliver Rural Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 2452, 2008 Page 6  

· Country Pines Mobile Home Park also located on the east side, with about 125 units, 
developed in the 1970’s. 

· Deer Park, an 80 unit strata development originally built in the 1990’s located on the 
west side of Gallagher Lake on the north side of Vaseux Creek.  A new Developer 
acquired the final phase of Deer Park and created an additional 30 lots in 2015.  At 
the subdivision approval stage in 1994, a walkway was dedicated along Vaseux Creek 
and the Okanagan River up to the KVR. 

· Gallagher Lake Village modular home development located in the south west is 
supplied with water and sanitary sewer services through agreement with the 
Osoyoos Indian Band.  As of 2016 the Village is currently approximately three-
quarters developed, with a total of 100 units at full build out.  The Developer has also 
proposed to expand development on lands to the north up to Vaseux Creek. 

· There are also 12 single family dwellings located on Iceton Crescent, at the north of the 
Lake and on larger lots in the north east sector.   

The population of the community is approximately 550 based on dwelling unit count of 
314 and an average household size of 1.8.  There are Census statistics available for 
Electoral Area “C”, but not for Gallagher Lake – which is largely a retirement area, with 
some working residents and few children.  Many residents spend part of their winters in 
southern locations, while others use the properties during the summer months, returning 
annually from their northern homes.   

 

2.3  Growth Management 

On April 1, 2010, the Regional District adopted a Regional Growth Strategy (RGS) for the 
South Okanagan. Under the Local Government Act, once an RGS has been adopted, 
Official Community Plans (OCPs) must be consistent. The goal of the RGS is to direct the 
substantial majority of future growth in the south Okanagan Valley area to designated 
Primary Growth Areas -- Penticton, Summerland, Oliver, Osoyoos, and Okanagan Falls.  
The RGS envisions maintaining the rural character of the Plan Area, and anticipates 
directing growth to designated Rural Growth Areas, which the RGS specifically identifies 
as areas with the following:  

· established rural settlement areas with a minimum of 200 lots and/or dwelling units;  

· community water or community sewer services in place; 

· existing commercial or industrial; or 

· where development has been pre-determined through zoning, but not yet developed 
(e.g., Twin Lakes).  

Within Electoral Area “C”, the South Okanagan RGS designates Gallagher Lake as a “Rural 
Growth Area”.  Due to identified constraints, the growth management boundaries of 
Gallagher Lake remains unchanged from the area zoned for development on the Plan Map 
Schedules in this Plan. 



Gallagher Lake Area Plan — Appendix 1 
Oliver Rural Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 2452, 2008 Page 7  

As of 2016, future development opportunities have been identified in the Area Plan 
process and include: 

· 30 units (approx.) remaining in the Gallagher Village Modular Home Development; 

· 25 units (approx.) remaining in the Deer Park development; 

· 35 units (approx.) on a 3.0 ha area of land south of Vaseux Creek / west of Hwy 97 
that is proposed to be re-designated from Tourist Commercial to Low Density 
Residential; 

· 65 units (approx.) on a 4.5 ha area of land north of the Gallagher Village development 
that is proposed to be re-designated from Small Holdings to Low Density Residential; 

· 200 units (approx.) on a 14.5 ha part of an existing gravel quarry (i.e. 10 ha 
developable, potential mixed residential); 

· 30 units (approx.) on a 2.0 ha area of land between campground on Gallagher Lake 
Road; and 

· 40 units (approx.) of infill housing on lands north of the Lake and adjacent to the 
Frontage Road commercial (i.e. 4 units per lot). 

Note: Based on 15 single family units per ha, and 20 mixed single & multiple units per 
ha  

The future capacity to accommodate growth at Gallagher Lake is for an additional 
population of approximately 765 persons, based on full build out potential of 
approximately 425 new units and an average household size of 1.8.  This would more than 
double the current population of Gallagher Lake.   

Over the past 40 years, the population has grown sporadically with the addition of  new 
manufacture home developments.  Assuming a 1980 population of 300, the average 
growth of Gallagher Lake has been about 2% per year.   At the same rate of growth there 
is over 30 years of development capacity in Gallagher Lake.  Nevertheless, a more rapid 
rate of growth is anticipated in coming years with the introduction of urban services and 
new employment opportunities in the area. 

 
2.4  Community Consultation 

The Regional District provided opportunities to engage the residents of Gallagher Lake in 
discussions about the future planning and development of the community. The initial 
step involved the creation of a Citizens Committee made up of representatives of the 
three main neighborhoods, development community, small business and industrial 
enterprises in Gallagher Lake. This afforded the consultant and Regional District staff the 
means to discuss the issues that arose in a comprehensive manner. The Committee, 
along with the (RDOS) Electoral Area Representative provided on-going input to policy 
response or options that could address the many planning, development and servicing 
issues. Since March, 2015, the Committee has been actively involved through meetings 
with the Consultant and RDOS staff, attendance at public open houses and review of 



Gallagher Lake Area Plan — Appendix 1 
Oliver Rural Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 2452, 2008 Page 8  

various draft documents. 

Open Houses were held in April and June 2015 and in June 2016, to engage the residents 
and stakeholders of Gallagher Lake. Input was also obtained from surveys and comment 
sheets distributed at the Open Houses. Over 100 surveys were completed, providing 
the consultant and the RDOS a comprehensive understanding of concerns and areas of 
interest amongst the community members. 

Public comments through the Meetings and Survey are highlighted below: 

· Support for similar types of new residential development currently existing in 
Gallagher Lake.  Limited support for some multiple family uses; 

· General support for additional commercial uses limited to tourist commercial, retail, 
restaurant, arts and crafts and similar scale development; 

· Concerns about the impact and costs of expanding sewer services to the Country 
Pines development; 

· Community enhancement by landscaping the frontage road, and improved 
pedestrian safety and mobility; 

· Lack of support for institutional or community facilities due to proximity to Oliver; 
· Desire for a lower speed limit and safer pedestrian crossing on Highway 97; 
· Mixed support for trail development to enhance walking opportunities; 
· Protection of creek and river fronts and natural areas; 
· No support for new industrial development; and 
· Mixed views regarding public access to Gallagher Lake. 

 

  



Gallagher Lake Area Plan — Appendix 1 
Oliver Rural Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 2452, 2008 Page 9  

3.0 VISION AND BROAD GOALS 
              
3.1  Vision  

During the public consultation, the residents of Gallagher Lake expressed their 
sentiments regarding a vision for the future of the community. This vision has set the 
backdrop for the policy direction of the Plan. The following statement outlines the vision 
for the community: 

Gallagher Lake will continue to evolve as a small and quaint community made up of 
predominantly low density residential homes, surrounded by the natural beauty of 
the South Okanagan landscape and streams. Managed growth will be accommodated 
in an environmentally sustainable manner, allowing for infill and redevelopment 
opportunities of older properties and underutilized land. The appeal and charm of the 
community is experienced by both its residents and visitors travelling along 
Highway 97. Local retail and tourism-oriented services will complement the 
aesthetically pleasing character of Gallagher Lake. The community will continue to 
work towards its goal of community cohesion amongst its neighborhoods, achieving a 
safe and pedestrian friendly community in the South Okanagan. Safe crossing of the 
highway will continue as a predominant quest by the residents of Gallagher Lake. 

 
3.2   Broad Goals 

Gallagher Lake will grow and evolve based on its current and limited land base, municipal 
services/utilities and allocation of land uses. The policies will reflect existing uses but 
also promote sustainability, protect environmental features and foster a livable 
community. New development will receive urban services, and as such compatibility 
between older/rural areas and new development should be managed and phased in a 
sensitive manner. Population growth in Electoral Area “C” has shown slow growth in the 
past, but recent developments including the new Correctional Centre just south of 
Gallagher Lake will spark new investment and development interest in the immediate 
area.  The following are the key goals to help manage growth and achieve the ultimate 
community character: 

.1 Residential development areas on the west side of the highway will continue to be 
built out in comprehensive single family unit neighborhoods. 

.2 The frontage properties on the west side of the highway between Vaseux Creek 
and the south border of the Area Plan will continue to provide commercial space for 
tourist and retail and other services for locals and the travelling public. This use 
should not preclude some addition of mixed use with residential units above the 
commercial, but ensuring that the primacy of local and tourist services is maintained 
in that area. 

.3 The east side of the highway contains residential uses in the form of both 
manufactured homes and trailers, along with camping and fixed roof tourist 
accommodation, in the form of small motels. Changes to this precinct should only 



Gallagher Lake Area Plan — Appendix 1 
Oliver Rural Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 2452, 2008 Page 10  

occur in a comprehensively planned manner, ensuring owners of homes and 
property are engaged and consulted. 

.4 An important element in achieving the vision stated in sub-section 3 is the design 
character along the Gallagher Lake Frontage Road. Streetscape improvements will be 
encouraged in the form of landscaping, pedestrian facilities, lighting and upgrades to 
buildings and properties. Design Guidelines will respect some of the basic 
architectural design and materials already included in the Ye Old Welcome Inn Pub 
and the Dubh Glas Distillery. 

.5 As the gravel quarry is exhausted in the future, the vision is to consider uses that 
will be compatible with residential uses to the south. A comprehensive plan would 
be required to address access, phasing, servicing, as well as the proposed land use.  
Potential future uses include business park, tourist commercial and mixed use 
residential.   At the time of adoption, the Area Plan will retain an Industrial 
designation at the quarry site. 

.6 The most northerly lands on the east side of and adjacent to Highway 97 have 
potential for residential or tourist commercial uses. Any proposed development will 
require a comprehensive plan to address access management, floodplain, riparian 
objectives, highway widening and compatibility with adjacent existing development. 
At the time of adoption, the Area Plan is proposing an Low Density Residential 
designation. 

.7 The most northerly foreshore of Gallagher Lake is a critical interface between aquatic 
environment and human habitation. Collaboration between all property owners, 
Provincial government and Osoyoos First Nation will be required to ensure the future 
health and protection of Gallagher Lake. The feasibility of public access deserves 
further study, but in the meantime, preserving the integrity of this natural asset is 
paramount in the quest to maintain the character of the community. 

.8 Parks and trails will form an important part of the amenity base at Gallagher Lake. 
The interrelationship with streams and connections to natural areas beyond the 
community, along with the protection of the KVR right of way for public use, will allow 
for an interconnected community and promote pedestrian friendly neighborhoods. 
Pedestrian facilities for safe crossing of Highway 97 will also be critical to the 
character envisioned for this community. 

.9 Extension of community water and sanitary services will occur over time in 
conjunction with new development or to serve existing uses as required. 

  



Gallagher Lake Area Plan — Appendix 1 
Oliver Rural Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 2452, 2008 Page 11  

 

.10 Access points will be managed and road connectivity will be established for 
residential areas on both sides of Highway 97 to serve new growth and to provide 
secondary access to existing development in consultation with the Ministry of 
Transportation and Infrastructure.  Enhancing pedestrian safety in crossing Highway 
97 is very important to the community. 

.11 RDOS will continue to collaborate with the Osoyoos Indian Band to maintain and 
enhance provision of water and sanitary services to the community. 

 

 

  



Gallagher Lake Area Plan — Appendix 1 
Oliver Rural Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 2452, 2008 Page 12  

4.0 LAND USE DESIGNATIONS 
              

The future use and development of land within the Gallagher Lake Community of Electoral 
Area “C” must be consistent with overall pattern of land use depicted on Schedule ‘A’ 
(Future Land Use Map)  of this Plan and based on the following land use designations: 

Rural Designations: 
Resource Area RA 
Small Holdings SH 
 
Residential Designations: 
Low Density Residential  LR 
 
Commercial Designations: 
Commercial Use  C 
 
Industrial Designations: 
Industrial Use  I 
 
Community Services and Administrative Designations: 
Parks  P 
 
The general types of uses encouraged in each land use designation are explained in 
following sections of this Plan.    

The Regional District recognizes that some existing land uses do not conform to the 
designations shown on the Future Land Use Map.  The intent is not to change the uses of 
this land in the immediate future but to illustrate the preferred pattern of land use as 
redevelopment occurs while this Plan is in force. 

 

 

 

  



Gallagher Lake Area Plan — Appendix 1 
Oliver Rural Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 2452, 2008 Page 13  

5.0 RESOURCE AREA 
              
5.1  Background  

The Resource Area designation applies to the gravel quarry lands at the eastern edge of 
Gallagher Lake, including the steep cliff adjacent to the lake. Understanding that the 
gravel quarry will be redeveloped in the future once the pit is exhausted, the 
residents requested that a master plan be prepared for the lands to revert to a more 
compatible use. The preference was for a clean business park or a mixture of uses 
such as residential, mixed-use village, tourist commercial or destination attraction such 
as a winery.   

The Regional Growth Strategy recognizes Gallagher Lake as a growth area, therefore 
more efficient and better use of the quarry land could provide future development 
opportunities to enhance the community. 

 
5.2 Policies 

The Regional Board: 

.1 Encourages the existing quarry to carry out its operations in a manner sensitive to 
adjacent residential areas. 

.2 Supports the re-designation of the lands at 8583 & 8713 Highway 97 (Lots A & B, Plan 
KAP87618, District Lots 28S & 4108S, SDYD) to a non-heavy industrial use when the 
existing gravel pit is exhausted. 

.3 Considers that appropriate non-heavy industrial uses for the lands noted in policy .2 
above to include: light industrial/business park; mixed use residential; and/or tourist 
commercial. 

.4 Requires that any proposal to re-designate or subdivide the above lands be supported 
by a Comprehensive Development Plan.   

 
Existing Quarry 



Gallagher Lake Area Plan — Appendix 1 
Oliver Rural Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 2452, 2008 Page 14  

6.0 SMALL HOLDINGS 

              
6.1  Background  

The Small Holdings designation applies to one parcel in the eastern area of Gallagher Lake, 
adjacent to the gravel quarry that has significant constraints to further subdivision.    

 
6.2 Policies 

The Regional Board: 

1. Considers the existing Rural Holdings policies found in the Electoral Area “C” Official 
Community Plan Bylaw to be applicable to the Plan Area. 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Gallagher Lake – Aerial View 
 

  



Gallagher Lake Area Plan — Appendix 1 
Oliver Rural Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 2452, 2008 Page 15  

7.0 RESIDENTIAL 
              
7.1  Background  

The majority of residents surveyed in Gallagher Lake support the types of housing 
currently available in the community. The survey also suggested support for some low 
density multi-family housing in the form of low profile town houses. The Regional Growth 
Strategy for the Regional District supports attainable housing within mixed use 
neighborhoods. The strategy is therefore to continue with the single family forms of 
housing including modular and manufactured forms, but incorporate some mixed use and 
town house forms to permit a cross-section of family demographics in future 
development areas. 

 
7.2 Policies 

The Regional Board: 

.1 Directs that residential uses will be predominately in the form of single detached 
dwellings with limited townhouse or mixed use residential /commercial. 

.2 Encourages a mix of housing forms to permit a cross-section of family demographics. 

.3 Recognizes (older) mobile homes as a form of affordable housing. 

.4 Supports the re-development of lands adjacent to existing commercial areas along 
the Gallagher Lake Frontage Road to multiple family uses in the form of 2 storey town 
house units. 

.5 Requires that a Form and Character Multiple Family Development Permit Area be 
established at such time that the Plan is amended to allow for multi-family housing. 

.6 Requires that new residential development involving more than 20 hectares of land 
or the creation of 20 or more housing units prepare a Comprehensive Development 
Plan to ensure land use is compatible with the vision of the community and adjacent 
development and addresses access, servicing and environmental aspects. 

 

 

  



Gallagher Lake Area Plan — Appendix 1 
Oliver Rural Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 2452, 2008 Page 16  

8.0 COMMERCIAL 
              
8.1  Background  

Existing commercial uses along the Gallagher Frontage Road are a mix of tourist (pub, 
motel, RV park and distillery) and service (roofing contractor, body shop, motorcycle sales 
and service), as well as several residential uses. 

The community offered significant support for limited commercial expansion but largely 
related to convenience retail and services, tourism destination and highway commercial 
uses, including a general store. The residents expressed a strong sentiment against large 
format stores, indicating that such development would ruin the character of the 
community. Furthermore, most survey respondents noted that retail, services and many 
amenities are close by in centers such as Oliver and Penticton and therefore not 
warranted for Gallagher Lake. 

 
8.2   Policies 

The Regional Board: 

.1 Supports the main commercial area on the west side of Highway 97 (along Gallagher 
Lake Frontage Road) remaining the focus for future commercial development serving 
the community, and to reduce pedestrian highway crossing.      

.2 Supports new commercial uses that address local consumer needs and/or enhance 
tourism and directs larger retail stores and similar uses to the Town of Oliver and 
other larger urban centres. 

.3 Supports convenience retail and services, tourist destination and highway 
commercial uses including a general store. Automotive and other service uses that 
are compatible with the existing uses and scale of commercial development will be 
supported. 

.4 Supports residential uses being incorporated into commercial developments in order 
to broaden the range of housing options and add to the pedestrian character of the 
community. 

.5 Will consider new small-scale local commercial or tourist commercial development 
on the east side of the community in new development areas.  

.6 Supports the evolution of the commercial development character along the Frontage 
Road over time with urban design elements, improved pedestrian access and 
streetscape beautification, such as landscaping. 

.7  Designates the area on Map Schedule C as a Commercial Development Permit Area 
to address the Form and Character of development. 
 

 



Gallagher Lake Area Plan — Appendix 1 
Oliver Rural Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 2452, 2008 Page 17  

9.0    INDUSTRIAL 
              
9.1  Background  

The community voiced opposition to any further heavy industrial uses in Gallagher Lake.  
The Fortis Gas facility is currently the only designated Industrial Use in the community.  
There is an existing supply of industrial land available in the nearby Senkulmen Business 
Park on OIB lands. 

 
9.2   Policies 

The Regional Board: 

.1 Supports existing industrial use and employment opportunities at their current scale 
of intensity. 

.2 Does not support future heavy industrial development occurring at Gallagher Lake. 
 

 

New tourist commercial Distillery development – on Gallagher Lake Frontage Road.  



Gallagher Lake Area Plan — Appendix 1 
Oliver Rural Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 2452, 2008 Page 18  

10.0 CONSERVATION AREA, LAKES AND STREAMS 
              
10.1  Background  

Conservation lands surround much of the community.   Gallagher Lake contains several 
natural areas worthy of protection and enhancement. Besides Gallagher Lake itself, the 
steep cliff above the lake, the Okanagan River and Vaseux Creek (also called McIntyre 
Creek) are prominent features of the community.  The residents support protection of 
these conservation areas as well as supporting access to low impact trails in certain areas.  
Some lands within the community designated as Environmentally Sensitive on the eastern 
side of the community as identified in the Electoral Area “C” Official Community Plan and 
are subject to the Development Permit Guidelines in that Plan.  Comprehensive policies 
for Riparian areas area also established in the Electoral Area “C” Official Community Plan. 

 
10.2  Policies 

The Regional Board: 

.1 Will apply the Watercourse and Environmentally Sensitive Development Permit Areas 
from the Electoral Area “C” Official Community Plan Bylaw to all streams and water 
bodies and specifically designated lands in the eastern area of the community. 

.2 Supports the establishment of low impact trails corridors and natural parks in 
designated riparian areas on Schedule ‘B’ of the Plan along Vaseux Creek and the 
Okanagan River Channel. 

.3 Supports initiatives to enhance stream and lake shorelines and protect water quality 
in Gallagher Lake. 

.4 Will collaborate with the Osoyoos Indian Band regarding the health and protection of 
Gallagher Lake. 

.5 Will explore joint initiative with the Provincial Ministries responsible for their 
particular areas of interest including fisheries and aquatic health of all water bodies. 

.6 Will explore the establishment of a community stewardship program that will 
monitor, maintain and enhance natural areas; program should include signage and 
education for  th e b enef i t  of  t he community and for visitors. 

 

  



Gallagher Lake Area Plan — Appendix 1 
Oliver Rural Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 2452, 2008 Page 19  

11.0 PARKS, TRAILS AND OPEN SPACE 
              
11.1 Background  

The residents of Gallagher Lake appreciate the benefits of protecting the natural 
environment and even more so the ability to access nearby parks and open space. 
Unfortunately, the community itself is void of parks that the public can enjoy for daily 
activities. Besides support for small local public parks, the survey results showed that trail 
connections through Gallagher Lake are a priority.  The dedicated walkway along Vaseux 
Creek and the Okanagan River provides community aNorth of the community is the RDOS 
– owned McIntyre Bluff natural area park. 

 
11.2 Policies 

The Regional Board: 

.1 Supports neighbourhood parks being integrated into new developments as the 
community population grows due to the limited amount of parks avai lable to 
community residents and for day use activities. 

.2 Will seek future neighbourhood park locations in the context of a community wide 
parks plan or as a result of development reviews and approvals.  

.3 Supports trail development allowing for access to destinations such as McIntyre Bluff, 
connections to the KVR system and natural areas and water courses areas shown on 
Schedule ‘B’ of this Plan. 

.4 Supports trail development also connecting to the sidewalk/walkway system in 
newly developed residential areas, and ultimately to the existing commercial area. 

.5 Will explore the use of the 5% park dedication requirement at subdivision stage and 
other means available including d o n a t i o n s ,  agreements, or outright purchase to 
secure sensitive waterfront areas for open space  as well as small local parks. 

.6 Will explore the protection of the KVR right of way as a public corridor and any 
private impediments to passage, and designates the KVR as a Park (P) in this Area 
Plan. 

.7 Will explore the opportunity for a trail/walkway connection under the Vaseux Creek 
(McIntyre) bridge at Highway 97 in collaboration with the Ministry of Transportation 
and Infrastructure. 

.8 Supports improvements within parks, along trails and near water incorporating 
opportunities for seating /contemplative spaces, fishing and wildlife viewing areas. 

.9 Will undertake consultation with the community prior to any future securing of public 
access to Gallagher Lake.  



Gallagher Lake Area Plan — Appendix 1 
Oliver Rural Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 2452, 2008 Page 20  

  
McIntyre Bluff Park 

 

  



Gallagher Lake Area Plan — Appendix 1 
Oliver Rural Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 2452, 2008 Page 21  

12.0 TRANSPORTATION, ROADS & PEDESTRIAN MOBILITY 
              
12.1 Background  

The transportation system for Gallagher Lake is inextricably linked to Highway 97, the 
major traffic corridor that runs through the entire Okanagan Valley. Since the community 
is divided by the highway, safe crossing and access management are critical to the future 
development of the community. The transportation system also includes internal roads 
and pedestrian mobility along 
the roads. The residents 
confirmed in all public forums 
associated with this Area Plan 
that safe movement across 
Highway 97 is of utmost 
importance. Past efforts have 
included petitions to the 
Ministry of Transportation to 
slow traffic along the highway. 
Expected growth in the 
community is likely to increase 
movement across the highway, 
in turn increasing the need for 
safe crossings. 

The Regional Growth Strategy 
suggests working with the 
Provincial Transportation 
authorities to ensure public 
safety and transportation 
efficiency. The community 
survey continued to echo this 
sentiment through high 
support for changing the speed 
limit, implementing pedestrian 
crossings, initiating 
streetscape enhancements 
and developing Frontage Road 
pedestrian walkways. The 
concept of a walkway under 
McIntyre bridge was also 
strongly endorsed and is under 
review by the Ministry.  

 



Gallagher Lake Area Plan — Appendix 1 
Oliver Rural Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 2452, 2008 Page 22  

12.2 Policies 

The Regional Board: 

.1 Will continue communication with Ministry of Transportation and Infrastructure 
regarding safety, traffic speed and development along Highway 97, and to coordinate 
Ministry Access Management Plans for the Corridor and improve safe crossing. 

.2 Will require all new major development that will result in greater vehicular 
movement onto and off the Highway 97 to include a Traffic Impact Assessment as a 
condition of rezoning approval. 

.3 Will require that future development proposals provide an interconnected road 
network and provide secondary access to existing development areas on either side 
of Highway 97 as shown on Schedule ‘B’. 

.4 Will work with the Ministry of Transportation and Infrastructure to focus access to 
Highway 97 at existing intersections by closing other accesses to Highway 97.   

.5 Supports a future crosswalk or controlled pedestrian access across Highway 97 if foot 
traffic counts warrant such a crossing.   

.6 Supports a review of access to the property in the north east section of the  
community at 8703 Highway 97) to determine safe and appropriate access routes if 
re-development is proposed. 

.7 Supports enhancing pedestrian mobility via sidewalks, shoulder widening, walkways 
and trails that are interconnected for the entire community and for both existing and 
new development areas as shown on Schedule ‘B’. 

.8 Supports streetscape improvements along the Gallagher Lake Frontage Road that 
provide pedestrian mobility and safety, enhanced aesthetics by landscaping between 
the Frontage Road and Highway 97, improved street lighting, signage and related 
amenities.   (These improvements are conceptually illustrated on the drawing below). 

 



Gallagher Lake Area Plan — Appendix 1 
Oliver Rural Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 2452, 2008 Page 23  

13.0 SERVICING & UTILITIES 
              
13.1 Background  

Gallagher Lake has the benefit of access to community water and sanitary sewer systems 
but not the entire community is serviced. Over the years, the various neighborhoods 
have developed private on-site systems and some of these systems are in need of 
improvements.  The first agreement for water and sewer services was between Osoyoos 
Indian Band, Senkulmen Utilities Ltd. (SUL), and the Gallagher Village Modular Home 
Development.  

By 2013, the RDOS and the Osoyoos Indian Band (OIB) entered into an agreement 
through SUL to provide domestic water and sanitary sewer services to the Gallagher Lake 
Community. This Agreement provides for an additional 300 dwellings units (or equivalent 
commercial use).  The initial intent was to service the Deer Park bare land strata 
subdivision at the northeast corner of the community and then expand the system. The 
service now consists of the Senkulmen providing potable water and sewer treatment 
facility to the OIB boundary and the RDOS is responsible for the pipes and collection 
system in the Frontage Road.  At present connections to the RDOS system are limited, but 
there are several other owners interested in connecting to the system.   

Water and sewer mains have also been extended to the east side of Highway 97, but there 
are no properties connected in this area. To date, residents from the Country Pines 
development are not supportive of extending sewer  pipe mains or paying for the 
service due to concerns about the potentially high cost.  There is interest in domestic 
water service. 

The Regional District supports the introduction of a community-wide sanitary sewer 
system over the long term to ensure protection of the lake and ground water. Residents 
have been generally supportive of fire protection through the use of hydrants on the 
water system, but there have been mixed views on the extension of the overall-all 
domestic community water system.  At this time the RDOS is in discussions with the OIB 
about provision of domestic water service to the Country Pines area.  The preparation of 
this Area Plan has been a good forum for discussing new policy direction on this 
important matter. 

 
13.2 Policies 

The Regional Board: 

.1 Requires that any new development or subdivision of land less than 1.0 hectare in 
area in the Gallagher Lake Area Plan must be connected to the sanitary sewer system. 

.2 Will prioritize the extension of community sewer services to development on the 
west side of Highway 97 and, as demand warrants, phasing in community sewer 
services on the east side of Highway 97 at a later date.   



Gallagher Lake Area Plan — Appendix 1 
Oliver Rural Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 2452, 2008 Page 24  

.3 Requires that new development petition the Regional District in order to formally 
enter into water and sewer service areas. 

.4 Will work closely with the Osoyoos Indian Band and residents of Gallagher Lake to 
explore the option of extending the domestic water system throughout the 
community in the short term. 

.5 Will work closely with other responsible agencies to monitor the functional and 
environmental aspects of ground water and any potential impacts of existing 
development and attendant septic systems on the natural and aquatic environment. 

.6 Will work with responsible Provincial agencies to implement a long term lake water 
quality testing/monitoring program that serves to confirm water quality for the 
benefit of tourism and the environmental integrity of the lake. 

.7 Will continue to investigate sources of funds and financing mechanisms to lessen 
the financial burden on all residents that may ultimately need to connect to a 
community sanitary sewer system. 

.8 Will continue a close working relationship with OIB with regard to system upgrades 
to their main water and sanitary sewer treatment plants and to extend the Servicing 
Agreement to accommodate growth and development at Gallagher Lake. 

.9 Will continue to engage community residents in their ongoing needs for 
infrastructure improvements and changes as the community evolves and 
circumstances arise. 

.10 Will collaborate with the Town of Oliver regarding the protection, access and use of 
the Irrigation Canal running through the community. 

  



Gallagher Lake Area Plan — Appendix 1 
Oliver Rural Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 2452, 2008 Page 25  

14.0 DEVELOPMENT PERMIT AREAS 
              
14.1 Gallagher Lake Commercial Development Permit Area  

.1   Category 

The Gallagher Lake Commercial Development Permit Area is designated under 
Section 488(1)(f) of the Local Government Act, for the establishment of objectives for 
the form and character of commercial development. 

 
.2   Area 

The designated areas are shown as the Gallagher Lake Commercial Development 
Permit Area in Schedule ‘C’. 
 

.3   Justification 

The Gallagher Lake commercial area is located on the west side of the Frontage Road 
with a focus on local, tourist commercial uses and other service.  With Highway 97 
running right through the community it is highly visible to many motorists. The 
commercial area serves as a strong focal point and it provides a sense of identity for 
the community. Residents would like to encourage the commercial area to develop 
as a pedestrian oriented, vibrant hub of mixed use commercial and residential land 
uses.  Future development should be harmonious and in keeping with the current 
scale and character of Gallagher Lake.  
 

.4   Guidelines 

Development permits issued in this area shall be in accordance with the following 
guidelines: 

a) Buildings and Structures   

i) Buildings should define a pedestrian oriented first floor with canopies, 
window and door trim, varied building facades, and similar design features. 

ii) Variety, continuity and pedestrian interest should be expressed in the design 
of buildings, especially at ground level and articulated roof lines are 
encouraged. 

iii) Front entrances should be well defined and provide a focal point to the 
building. 

iv) Monolithic structures and long expanses of straight walls should be avoided. 

v) Large buildings should be designed in a way that creates the impression of 
smaller units and less bulk, by using building jogs and irregular faces; 



Gallagher Lake Area Plan — Appendix 1 
Oliver Rural Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 2452, 2008 Page 26  

vi) Building finish should be consistent in terms of appearance and colour on all 
elevations, and should be comprised largely of stucco, rock, stone, brick, and 
wood materials.  

vii) Earth tones and natural colour schemes are encouraged but with some 
contrasting colours for accentuating architectural details, façade elements 
or change in materials. 

b) Signage 

Notwithstanding the requirements of the Electoral Area ‘C’ Zoning Bylaw, 
additional signage may be assessed and approved in keeping with the guidelines 
below:   

i) As part of an overall comprehensive sign plan, businesses may erect a 
combination of sign types.  Signs must be of high quality and must be 
appropriately scaled to positively contribute to the community’s visual 
appeal and people’s overall experience. 

ii) Awning, canopy signs or projecting signs, must be located on the first storey 
of a building and must not project 2.5 m beyond the face of the building.   

iii) Fascia signs should not exceed more than 15% of a building face.  

iv) Window signs should not exceed more than 15% of a window face.  

v) Businesses located on corners of intersecting streets may place signs on each 
building’s frontage.  

vi) Only one sidewalk sandwich board sign per business is permitted and must 
be no larger than 1.0 m2.  Sandwich board signs must be located directly in 
front of the business it advertises and must not block pedestrian traffic. 

vii) Signs on roof tops, signs with flashing lights, outdoor neon signs, and signs 
with moving parts are not permitted. 

viii) Free standing signage is permitted if it is low, front lit or unlit, with a 
landscaped base, and free standing signage will not be permitted on 
Highway right-of-way without Ministry of Transportation approval. 

c) Access and Parking  

i) New development must provide safe and efficient vehicle entrances, exits 
and site circulation as approved by Ministry of Transportation and 
Infrastructure. 

ii) Sites should be designed in a way that accommodates alternative modes of 
transportation, with provisions made for such features as pedestrian 
sidewalks, bicycle and walking paths or lanes, and bicycle parking racks on 
the site.  Networks on the site would link with networks off the site. 

iii) Parking lots should be located at the side or rear of the principal buildings.  
Large parking areas should be broken into smaller groups that are screened 



Gallagher Lake Area Plan — Appendix 1 
Oliver Rural Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 2452, 2008 Page 27  

and shaded with landscaping.  Site distances at parking area aisle 
intersections must be preserved to ensure safety of vehicles and 
pedestrians. 

d) Screening, Landscaping and Amenities 

i) Sites should be provided with screening in the form of walls, decorative 
fencing, hedging, planting, other screening materials or a combination of 
materials in the following areas: 

.1 between parking areas and roadways; and 

.2 between buildings and parking areas. 

ii) Landscaping design plans prepared by a landscape professional will be 
required with landscaping densities designed to industry standards. 

iii) Landscaping comprised of plant material that has high decorative value and 
is drought tolerant and indigenous is encouraged.  

iv) Boulevards, landscaped areas, and setback areas adjacent to streets and 
boulevards should be planted with boulevard trees and a combination of 
shrubs, perennials and groundcover with mulch to conserve water and 
discourage weed growth.  

v) Landscaping areas should include an underground irrigation system which 
should be programmed to maximize efficient water use.  

vi) Any existing mature trees or remnant ecosystems that enhance the amenity 
and ecological functioning of the urban environment should be incorporated 
into the site design wherever possible. 

 
.5   Bonding and Security 

a) The Regional District Board may require security as a condition of issuance of a 
development permit in accordance with Section 502 of the Local Government Act 
to pay for remediation if: 

i) a condition in a permit respecting landscaping has not been satisfied; 

ii) an unsafe condition has resulted as a consequence of contravention of a 
condition in a permit.  

b) Where the Regional District requires a security deposit as a condition of the 
development permit approval, the applicant must provide a security deposit at 
115% of the estimated cost of any remediation works, as prepared by a qualified 
professional. 

c) The security deposit shall remain in effect until the Regional District are satisfied 
that the conditions of the development permit have been met.  

 



Gallagher Lake Area Plan — Appendix 1 
Oliver Rural Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 2452, 2008 Page 28  

.6   Exemptions 

A Development Permit is not required under this section for any of the following: 

a) Routine building repairs / maintenance including new roof, residing, re-
stuccoing, window and door replacement. 

b) Internal renovations. 

c) Canopies, awnings and decks. 

d) Building Code and safety requirements / upgrades such as fire alarms, fire exits, 
disabled ramps, etc. 

e) Building additions less than 20 square metres.  

f) Open roofed structures, gazebos and trellises 

g) Glass balcony enclosures. 

h) Subdivision 

i) Construction of fences 

j) Signs attached to businesses they are advertising and not installed at the same 
time as the building construction. 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Examples of building designs consistent with the Commercial Development Permit  



Gallagher Lake Area Plan — Appendix 1 
Oliver Rural Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 2452, 2008 Page 29  

15.0 IMPLEMENTATION 
              

This Area Plan provides policy direction towards achieving a vision, and based on 
principles and goals for a particular part of Electoral Area “C”. This Plan remains a 
component of the Electoral Area “C” Community Plan and many of the overall OCP 
policies are applicable in Gallagher Lake. The purpose of this section is to set out some 
of the main steps that the Regional District can take to implement the plan by working 
closely with other government agencies and through continuous dialogue with residents 
and stakeholders on community development initiatives.  

15.1 Government Agency Coordination 

The Regional District will communicate with all necessary levels of government, First 
Nations, local developers and institutions that will provide assistance, direction or 
cooperation in addressing the studies or initiatives in the Plan and: 

.1 Will coordinate with t h e  Ministry of Transportation and Infrastructure regarding 
pedestrian safety, highway crossings, highway traffic speeds, and access along the 
highway and the Gallagher Lake Frontage Road design of streetscape and pedestrian 
facilities. 

.2 Will continue communication with all agencies regarding the use of the KVR right-of-
way and river walkway to connect Gallagher Lake to a regional trail system. 

.3 Will develop the Vaseux Creek trail network, the Vaseux Creek Bridge underpass and 
walkways along either side of Highway 97 / Frontage Road to connect the community 
to the KVR. 

.4 Will coordinate with the Osoyoos Indian Band regarding provision of sanitary sewer 
treatment and water services in the short term and long term. 

.5 Will work with the Ministry of Environment and/or other Provincial agencies on 
establishing a water quality testing program for Gallagher Lake. 

 
15.2 Future Initiatives 

Other initiatives that have been identified or implied in the policies of this Plan 
include those such as the following: 

.1 Consideration of gaining public access to Gallagher Lake for local residents.  (A 
more definitive survey of the public or properly defined study of the merits of 
public access is warranted). 

.2 Design of frontage road streetscape and pedestrian facilities. 

.3 Over time, review the extension of community water and sewer services 
throughout Gallagher Lake with the Osoyoos Indian Band and the local community 
and with recognition of the concerns of Country Pines residents about the 
potentially high costs of sewer service. 



Gallagher Lake Area Plan — Appendix 1 
Oliver Rural Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 2452, 2008 Page 30  

.4 Acquisition and ongoing development and of trail corridors and local parks 
identified in the Plan. 



   
   
  
Gallagher Lake Area Plan — Appendix 1 
Oliver Rural Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 2452, 2008 Page 31 

SCHEDULE ‘A’ 
GALLAGHER LAKE AREA PLAN – FUTURE LAND USE MAP 

   



   
Gallagher Lake Area Plan — Appendix 1 
Oliver Rural Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 2452, 2008 Page 32 

SCHEDULE ‘B’ 
GALLAGHER LAKE AREA PLAN – ROADS AND TRAILS 

 
  



   
Gallagher Lake Area Plan — Appendix 1 
Oliver Rural Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 2452, 2008 Page 33 

SCHEDULE ‘C’ 
GALLAGHER LAKE AREA PLAN –  DEVELOPMENT PERMIT AREA 

 



For Land Use Designations
at Gallag her Lake, please 
refer to Schedule ‘A’ of 
Appendix ‘1’ to Bylaw No. 
2452, 2008”

Osoyoos IR NO.1
(Osoyoos Indian Band)

Legend
Electoral Boundary

OCP Designations
Rural

RA - Resource Area

AG - Ag riculture

LH - Large Holding s

SH - Sm all Holding s

Commercial
C - Com m ercial

Residential
LR - Low Density Residential

MR - Medium  Density Residential

Industrial
I - Industrial

Community Services and Administration
AI - Adm inistrative, Cultural and Institutional

CA - Conservation Area

P - Park s

PC - Public Corridor

T his is Schedule B (Official Com m unity Plan Map)
as referenced in the Regional District of Okanagan-Sim ilk am een’s
Oliver Rural Official Com m unity Bylaw No. 2452, 2008
__________________                     ________________________
Chair                                                 Chief Adm inistrative Officer

Schedule B –  Oliver Rural Official Com m unity Plan Bylaw No. 2452, 2008
0 1 2 3 40.5

kn

Official Com m unity Plan Map
October 2016 1:30,000



PUBLIC HEARING REPORT 
 

 
Public Hearing Report – Amendment Bylaw No.2452.16 

Page 1 

9TO:  Board of Directors 
 
FROM:  Chair, Director Terry Schafer, Electoral Area “C” 

 
DATE:  November 14, 2016 
 
RE:  Public Hearing Report on Amendment Bylaw No. 2452.16 
 
 
Purpose of Amendment Bylaw: 
The purpose of the amendment bylaw is to adopt the Gallagher Lake Area Plan as a component of the 
Electoral Area “C” Official Community Plan No. 2452, 2008. 
 
Public Hearing Overview: 
The Public Hearing for Amendment Bylaw No 2452.16 was convened on Monday, November 14, 
2016, at 7:00 p.m., at the Oliver Alliance Church, 6835 Leighton Crescent, Oliver. 

There were thirteen (13) members of the public present. 

Members of the Regional District Board present were: 

· Chair, Director Terry Schafer 

Members of the Regional District staff present were: 

· Donna Butler, Planner 

· Nona Lynn, Recording Secretary 

Chair Schaffer called the Public Hearing to order at the Oliver Alliance Church, 6835 Leighton 
Crescent, Oliver. 

Pursuant to Section 464, 465 and 468 of the Local Government Act in order to consider Amendment 
Bylaw Nos 2452.16, 2016. 

In accordance with Section 466, the time and place of the public hearing was advertised in the 
November 2 and 9 editions of the Oliver Chronicle and the November 7 edition of the Penticton 
Herald. 

Copies of reports and correspondence received related to Amendment Bylaw No 2452.16, 2016 were 
available for viewing at the Regional District office during the required posting period. 
 
Summary of Representations: 

There were no written briefs submitted at the public hearing. 

Chair Schafer called a first time for briefs and comments from the floor and noted that a binder is 
available which includes all written comments received to date and anyone wishing to review the 
comments could do so. 
 
Chair Schafer asked if anyone wished to speak to the proposed bylaws. 



  
 

 
Public Hearing Report – Amendment Bylaw No. 2452.16, 2015 

Page 2 

 
Wanda Brooks, Country Pines – Questioned the wording on page 5 of the proposed plan which states 
the word motels.  
 
Planner – Agreed that there is only one motel, and the word motel(s) is a typo. An amendment will be 
made to rectify the typo. 
 
Wanda Brooks, Country Pines – Questioned the potential of future costs of the plan to the tax payers 
and whether future costs would be shared by only Gallagher Lake residents or as a whole of Electoral 
Area “C” residents. 
 
Chair Schafer – Clarified that future plan costs would be the responsibility of the owner of the 
property who is benefiting from the service.   
  
Wanda Brooks, Country Pines – Requested that on page 29 of the plan, under future initiatives, when 
it states that the liquid waste management plan could be revisited as a future initiative, that this 
portion relate back to the concerns which were noted earlier in the plan related to costs and other 
concerns.  Expressed concern for future costs to fixed income residents.  
 
Chair Schafer - Clarified that the liquid waste management plan may be something that would need 
to be addressed in the future.   
 
Planner - Clarified that the residents’ concerns were noted in the document.   Planner clarified that 
the paragraph in question would be reviewed once again and revised to be state that the costs would 
be addressed. 
 
Thor Manson, 91 Country Pines – Suggested an amendment for the cost statement.   
 
Dan Atkinson, 199 Gallagher Lake Road – Questioned if the pedestrian underpass would be built 
before upgrades to the visual aesthetics of the area were made.   
 
Chair Schafer – Explained that the underpass is currently on hold due to proposed relocation of Oliver 
irrigation ditch.  The Director brought this issue forward at UBCM to the Minister of Transportation.  
MLA Larsen is currently trying to obtain funds to have the ditch moved to the west side of the 
highway.  Director explained that there is no point in doing visual upgrades to the area until the work 
commences on the underpass 
 
Thor Manson, 91 Country Pines – Questioned if the Town of Oliver collaborated with RDOS in the 
study of conserving irrigation water in the area.   
 
Chair Schafer – The Town of Oliver has not informed the RDOS of the findings of their study. 
 
Wanda Brooks, Country Pines – Questioned the costs of visual improvements of the highway, once 
the plan is in place and who will pay, and would a budget be provided to the citizens for input? 
 



  
 

 
Public Hearing Report – Amendment Bylaw No. 2452.16, 2015 

Page 3 

Planner – A service area would be set up, which would then have to go through a referendum or 
alternative approval process with the public, and a cost would be attached.   
 
Chair Schafer – Noted that once the project was underway, it would be cost effective to do visual 
improvements such as trees at that time.   
 
Wanda Brooks, Gallagher Lake – Questioned if increase in taxes would be conveyed to citizens before 
it happening.  
  
Planner – Advised that there would be public knowledge before projects take place which would have 
a cost associated for citizens. 
 
Earl Roberts, Deer Park – Question regarding the trails network and the KVR.  Wonders if there is 
something in the plan which protects people to allow access to the RV storage which is across the 
KVR trail. 
 
Planner – Stated that this plan would not affect citizen access to their lands on the other side of the 
KVR trail.  
 
Wanda Brooks, Country Pines – Questioned if the minutes of the public hearing would be accessible 
to the public. 
 
Planner – Stated that all public hearing minutes are attached to Board agenda and minutes which are 
open to the public and can be found on the RDOS website.  
 
Laurence Green, Deer Park – Questioned if the intention is to have an underpass, under the bridge 
which would connect people to the KVR train. 
 
Planner – Stated that the underpass would be south of the bridge, which would lead people to the 
KVR trail.  
  
Chair Schafer asked a second time if there was anyone who wished to speak further to the proposed 
bylaws. 
 

Chair Schafer asked a third time if there was anyone who wished to speak further to the proposed 
bylaws and hearing none, declared the public hearing closed at 7:37 p.m. 
 
 

Recorded by: 

Nona Lynn 
Nona Lynn 
Recording Secretary 

 
___________________________ 
Donna Butler 
Development Services Manager 

Confirmed:  

Terry Schaffer 
Terry Schaffer 
Chair 

 

































Amendment Bylaw No. 2453.30, 2016 
(C2016.082 -ZONE) 

Page 1 of 4 

_________________ 
 

 BYLAW NO. 2453.30 
  _________________ 

 
 
 REGIONAL DISTRICT OF OKANAGAN-SIMILKAMEEN 
 
 BYLAW NO. 2453.30, 2016 
 
 

A Bylaw to amend the Electoral Area “C” Zoning Bylaw No. 2453, 2008 
         
 

The REGIONAL BOARD of the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen in open 
meeting assembled, ENACTS as follows: 

1. This Bylaw may be cited for all purposes as the “Electoral Area “C” Zoning 
Amendment Bylaw No. 2453.30, 2016.” 

2. The Official Zoning Map, being Schedule ‘2’ of the Electoral Area “C” Zoning Bylaw 
No. 2453, 2008, is amended by changing the land use designation on the land 
described as Lot 1 Plan KAP3579 DL 28S SDYD, and shown shaded yellow on 
Schedule ‘Y’, which forms part of this Bylaw, from part Tourist Commercial Four 
(Campground) (CT4) and part Small Holdings Four (SH4) to Small Holdings Four Site 
Specific (SH4s). 

3. The “Electoral Area “C” Zoning Bylaw No. 2453, 2008” is amended by: 

i) replacing Section 16.7.1 under “Site Specific Small Holdings Four (SH4s) 
Provisions” with the following:  

1. In the case of land described as Lot 4, Plan 11959, District Lot 28s, SDYD, 
and shown shaded yellow on Figure 16.15.1: 

a) the following accessory use shall be permitted on that part of the land 
located north of Vaseux Creek, and in addition to the permitted uses 
listed in Section 13.6.1: 

i) retail stores, general, not to exceed 200 m2 in gross floor area. 



Amendment Bylaw No. 2453.30, 2016 
(C2016.082 -ZONE) 

Page 2 of 4 

 
 

NN

Small Holdings Four 
 Site Specific (SH4s) 

(YELLOW SHADED AREA) 

Figure 16.7.1 

Vaseux 
Creek 



Amendment Bylaw No. 2453.30, 2016 
(C2016.082 -ZONE) 

Page 3 of 4 

 

READ A FIRST AND SECOND TIME this 6th day of October, 2016.  

PUBLIC HEARING held on this 14th day of November, 2016. 

READ A THIRD TIME this ___ day of _________, 2016. 

I hereby certify the foregoing to be a true and correct copy of the "Electoral Area ‘C’ 
Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2453.30, 2016” as read a Third time by the Regional 
Board on this ___day of ___, 2016. 

Dated at Penticton, BC this __ day of ___, 2016. 

 
 
____________________________ 
Chief Administrative Officer 

 

Approved pursuant to Section 52(3) of the Transportation Act this ___ day of ______, 
2016. 
 
 
ADOPTED this _________day of ____________ 2016. 
 
 
 
_______________________       ______________________  
Board Chair      Corporate Officer 



Amendment Bylaw No. 2453.30, 2016 
(C2016.082 -ZONE) 

Page 4 of 4 

Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
101 Martin St, Penticton, BC    V2A 5J9 
Tel:  (250) 492-0237    Fax (250) 492-0063 
 
Amendment Bylaw No. 2453.30, 2016 Project No: C2016.082-ZONE 

Schedule ‘Y’ 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Amend Zoning Bylaw No. 2453, 2008: 
from:  part Tourist Commercial Four 

(Campground) (CT4); and 
 part Small Holdings Four (SH4) 
to:  Small Holdings Four Site Specific 

(SH4s) 
(YELLOW SHADED AREA) 

Subject 
Property 

NN



PUBLIC HEARING REPORT 
 

 
Public Hearing Report – Amendment Bylaw No.2453.30 

Page 1 

9TO:  Board of Directors 
 
FROM:  Chair, Director Terry Schafer, Electoral Area “C” 

 
DATE:  November 14, 2016 
 
RE:  Public Hearing Report on Amendment Bylaw Nos. 2453.30 
 
 
Purpose of Amendment Bylaw: 
The purpose of the amendment bylaw is to amend the Electoral Area “C” Zoning Bylaw No. 2453, 
2008, to remove a campground zoning found at the north-west corner of the parcel located at 8703 
Highway 97 and to introduce a site specific provision that will re-introduce give shop (i.e. “retail 
stores, general, not to exceed 200 m2 in gross floor area”) as a permitted use in accordance with a 
previous rezoning approved by the Regional District Board in 1997.  Specifically amending from Part 
Tourist Commercial Four (Campground) (CT4) and part Small Holdings Four (SH4) to Small Holdings 
Four Site Specific (SH4s). 
 
Public Hearing Overview: 
The Public Hearing for Amendment Bylaw No 2453.30 was convened on Monday, November 14, 
2016, at 7:41 p.m., at the Oliver Alliance Church, 6835 Leighton Crescent, Oliver. 

There were thirteen (13) members of the public present. 

Members of the Regional District Board present were: 

· Chair, Director Terry Schafer 

Members of the Regional District staff present were: 

· Donna Butler, Planner 

· Nona Lynn, Recording Secretary 

Chair Schaffer called the Public Hearing to order at the Oliver Alliance Church, 6835 Leighton 
Crescent, Oliver. 

Pursuant to Section 464, 465 and 468 of the Local Government Act in order to consider Amendment 
Bylaw Nos 2453.30, 2016. 

In accordance with Section 466, the time and place of the public hearing was advertised in the 
November 2 and 9 editions of the Oliver Chronicle and the November 7 edition of the Penticton 
Herald. 

Copies of reports and correspondence received related to Amendment Bylaw No 2453.30, 2016 were 
available for viewing at the Regional District office during the required posting period. 
 
Summary of Representations: 

There were no written briefs submitted at the public hearing. 



  
 

 
Public Hearing Report – Amendment Bylaw No. 2453.30, 2015 

Page 2 

Chair Schafer called a first time for briefs and comments from the floor and noted that a binder is 
available which includes all written comments received to date and anyone wishing to review the 
comments could do so. 
 
Chair Schafer asked if anyone wished to speak to the proposed bylaws. 
 
Wanda Brooks, Country Pines – Questioned the Klein Property and its proximity to the Country Pines 
Mobile Home Park.  
 
Planner – Clarified where the Klein Property is located and where the Country Pines Mobile Home 
Park entry is.  
 
Wanda Brooks, Country Pines – Questioned if there could be a business located on the Klein property 
south of Vaseux Creek in the future.  
 
Planner – Explained that is it is possible that a gift shop could be located on this part of the property, 
but stated that it is unlikely.  The owner would have to meet the bylaws which are in place in order to 
do so.  Once the zoning is in place, it would become a building permit and technical exercise.   
 
Laurence Green, Deer Park – Expressed concern to the impact of traffic if a business were to be built 
on the Klein property, due to the fact that people aren’t driving slow enough on the highway.  
 
Chair Schafer – Stated that the Ministry of Highways would likely not allow for an access permit at the 
location in question. 
 
Wanda Brooks, Country Pines – Expressed concern that the Gallagher Lake Area Plan speaks to safety, 
and the rezoning may not comply.  
 
Planner – Discussed that the rezoning would make the property all residential, Small Holdings Four 
Site Specific (SH4s).  rather than the current, Part Tourist Commercial Four (Campground) (CT4) and 
Small Holdings Four (SH4).  
 
Barry Holliday, 70 Country Pines – Questioned the history of the property.   
 
Planner – Reviewed the history of the property.   
 
Wanda Brooks – Country Pines – Discussed the benefits of encouraging the property owner to locate 
the shop in an area which would comply with the Area Plan.   
 
Planner – Stated that that would be possible to amend they bylaw to not allow a gift shop South of 
Vaseux Creek if the owners were open to it.  
 
Chair Schafer asked a second time if there was anyone who wished to speak further to the proposed 
bylaws. 



  
 

 
Public Hearing Report – Amendment Bylaw No. 2453.30, 2015 

Page 3 

Chair Schafer asked a third time if there was anyone who wished to speak further to the proposed 
bylaws and hearing none, declared the public hearing closed at 7:52 p.m. 
 
 
 

Recorded by: 

Nona Lynn 
 
Nona Lynn 
Recording Secretary 

Recorded by: 
 
___________________________ 
Donna Butler 
Development Services Manager 

Confirmed:  

Terry Schaffer 
 
Terry Schaffer 
Chair 

 

















ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 

TO:  Board of Directors 
 
FROM:  B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 

 
DATE:  December 15, 2016 
 
TYPE:  Official Community Plan - Electoral Area “D-1” 
 

THAT Bylaw No. 2683, 2016, Electoral Area “D-1” Official Community Plan, be read a third time, as 
amended and adopted. 
 

Background 

The current Electoral Area “D-1” Official Community Plan (OCP) was originally adopted in 1999.  
Through the Repeal and Re-enactment process in 2008, the bylaw was reformatted; however, no 
substantive changes were made at that time.   

The Board identified the review and update of the “D-1” OCP as a strategic project in the 2014 
Business Plan with anticipation that it will be a two-year project.  A request for proposals for the 
project was issued in June 2014 with the project awarded to EcoPlan International at the September 
18, 2014 Board meeting.  Several very minor adjustments have updated the OCP map schedules since 
the Board gave first and second reading, none of which significantly impact the OCP.  These changes 
include updating the map template (e.g. removing the word ‘draft’ and allowing for more space on 
the bylaw amendment table) and a number of other minor mapping changes as shown on Attachment 
No. 1.  These mapping changes were found as part of the parcel line ‘clean up’ of the OCP and Zoning 
updates.   

Public Process 

The OCP update process was participatory and community driven.  Numerous tools of engagement 
were used to reach as many stakeholders throughout the update process.  These included 
newsletters, postcards, posters, open houses, on-line and hard copy surveys, a dedicated interactive 
website, focus groups, one on one discussions, and a volunteer citizen’s committee.    

There were two Open Houses held at the Kaleden School.  The first in February 2015 was well 
attended with over 100 people attending. The second one, held in November 2015 was also well 
attended with approximately 75 people in attendance.   

The OCP update project included development of an interactive website (www.D-1update.ca) that 
had a comments corner, interactive mapping, the surveys, and a library with all the information about 
the project.  There were approximately 320 unique visits from the Plan area region, an estimated 
100+ visits from seasonal residents.  There were 20 individual comments posted on the site.    

There were two community surveys, the first had the majority of questions and the majority of 
respondents of 137 (61% permanent, year round residents and 29% seasonal, part time residents).  
The second smaller ‘mini’ survey attracted 29 participants.  

The Citizens Committee met ten times throughout the process to review sections of the OCP.  The 
citizen’s committee was also instrumental in spreading the word about the OCP process and getting 
neighbours and friends to come out to the open houses.  The Citizen’s committee also met in a 



  Project No. D2014.071-ZONE 
Page 2 of 4 

number of spots throughout the D-2 area including, St Andrews, Kaleden School, DRAO, PIB, Twin 
Lakes Golf Resort.   

Information on significant policy changes was previously presented to the Planning and Development 
(P&D) Committee of the Board at its meeting of October 15, 2015 

A presentation on the draft OCP and significant changes was provided for the Electoral Area Advisory 
Planning Commission on February 9, 2016.  

A small contract was also arranged with Penticton Indian Band to review a draft of the OCP and 
provide insights into cultural context of the OCP and ensure correct names and sites were cited. A 
presentation of the draft OCP was provided to PIB council in January 2016.    

The draft OCP Bylaw was also referred to legal counsel for review and comments were received on 
April 29, 2016 and incorporated into the Bylaw.   

At a meeting of August 25, 2016, the Citizens Committee resolved to endorse the new draft OCP 
Bylaw No. 2683, 2016.  

On September 15, 2016, the Board of Directors gave first and second reading of Bylaw 2683, 2016. 

On November 21, 2016, a public hearing was held at which there were approximately 19 members of 
the public in attendance. A submission was received at the public hearing from the Dominion 
Astrophysical Radio Observatory (DRAO).  DRAO is supportive of the policies contained in the new 
OCP but have concerns regarding protection measures once the Land Use Contract at St Andrews is 
terminated.  DRAO also suggested several refinements to enhance protection for DRAO from Radio 
Frequency Interference (RFI) and for RDOS to provide a leadership role to coordinate discussion 
between Federal and Provincial representatives to enact an enduring legal basis for RFI management.  

Administration recognizes the unique situation of having a facility like DRAO within its boundaries and 
also recognizes legal limitations imposed on local governments on enforcing third party requirements.  
Legal counsel has also recommended policy language within an OCP be structured to allow some 
degree of flexibility in future land use decision making.  

Analysis 

In accordance with the requirements of the Local Government Act (LGA), the Draft OCP includes 
statements and map designations for the area covered by the Plan respecting: 

.1 the approximate location, amount, type and density of residential development required to 
meet anticipated housing needs over a period of at least 5 years; 

.2 the approximate location, amount and type of present and proposed commercial, industrial, 
institutional, agricultural, recreational and public utility land uses; 

.3 the approximate location and area of sand and gravel deposits that are suitable for future 
sand and gravel extraction; 

.4 restrictions on the use of land that is subject to hazardous conditions or that is 
environmentally sensitive to development; 

.5 the approximate location and phasing of any major road, sewer and water systems; 

.6 the approximate location and type of present and proposed public facilities, including schools, 
parks and waste treatment and disposal sites; 



  Project No. D2014.071-ZONE 
Page 3 of 4 

.7 housing policies respecting affordable housing, rental housing and special needs housing; and 

.8 targets for the reduction of greenhouse gas emissions in the area covered by the plan, and 
policies and actions of the local government proposed with respect to achieving those targets. 

All of the above requirements of the Local Government Act (LGA) for an OCP have been met.   

Policy changes to the new OCP were made using several means and tools available, including 
eliminating out of date policies, updating policies given direction through Regional Growth Strategy 
goals and policies, capacity analysis, best practises in land use, and feedback from the Citizen’s 
Committee and the general public through surveys, open houses, and general dialogue with residents.  

 
Alternative: 
THAT first and second reading of Bylaw No. 2683, 2016 be rescinded and the abandoned. 
 
THAT adoption of Bylaw 2683, 2016 be deferred until the following conditions can be met:  
 
Respectfully submitted  Endorsed by:      Endorsed by:   
 
ERiechert________ _________________________ Donna Butler__________ 
E.Riechert, Planner   C. Garrish, Planning Supervisor D. Butler, Dev. Services Manager 
 
 
 
Attachments:  No. 1 – Schedule ‘B’ Adjustments  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



  Project No. D2014.071-ZONE 
Page 4 of 4 

Attachment No. 1 –Schedule ‘B’ Mapping Adjustments 
 

 
 
 
 

1 

2 

4 

3 

1 

2 

3 & 4 

1. Large Holdings (shaded red) 
2. Administrative and Institutional (shaded red) 

Park and Recreation (shaded purple) 
3. Small Holdings (shaded pink/ red) 
4. Parks and Recreation ([KVR] shaded dark 

purple)  
5. Low Density Residential (shaded orange) 
6. Resource Area (shaded blue)  
7. Resource Area (shaded orange) 

 
 

5&6 

5 & 6 

7 



 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 

  

AREA “D-1” KALEDEN 
APEX 

OFFICIAL COMMUNITY PLAN 
OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016 – Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen  

Photo by: Johnny Smoke 



 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016   



 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016   

Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 

Electoral Area “D-1” 

Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 2683, 2015 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
  
 

1.0 INTERPRETATION AND ADMINISTRATION .............................................................. 4 

1.1 PURPOSE .............................................................................................................................. 4 
1.2 INTERPRETATION .................................................................................................................... 4 
1.3 ADMINISTRATION ................................................................................................................... 4 

2.0 WHAT IS AN OFFICIAL COMMUNITY PLAN? ............................................................ 6 

2.1 BACKGROUND ....................................................................................................................... 6 
2.2 PLANNING PROCESS ............................................................................................................... 6 
2.3 AMENDING THE PLAN ............................................................................................................. 7 
2.4 DEVELOPMENT APPROVAL INFORMATION ................................................................................... 7 

3.0 COMMUNITY PROFILE ........................................................................................... 9 

3.1 LOCATION AND GEOGRAPHY .................................................................................................... 9 
3.2 HISTORY ............................................................................................................................. 10 
3.3 COMMUNITIES AND OTHER AREAS .......................................................................................... 11 
3.4 PENTICTON INDIAN BAND ...................................................................................................... 12 
3.5 POPULATION AND DEMOGRAPHICS .......................................................................................... 13 
3.6 HOUSING TYPES ................................................................................................................... 16 

4.0 OFFICIAL COMMUNITY PLAN DESIGNATIONS ....................................................... 18 

5.0 VISION AND BROAD GOALS ................................................................................. 19 

5.1 VISION ............................................................................................................................... 19 
5.2 BROAD GOALS ..................................................................................................................... 19 

6.0 GROWTH MANAGEMENT .................................................................................... 21 

6.1 BACKGROUND ..................................................................................................................... 21 
6.2 RURAL GROWTH AREAS AND CAPACITY .................................................................................... 21 
6.3 RURAL GROWTH AREAS DEVELOPMENT CONSIDERATIONS AND CONSTRAINTS ................................. 23 
6.4 OBJECTIVES ......................................................................................................................... 27 
6.5 POLICIES............................................................................................................................. 27 

7.0 LOCAL AREA POLICIES ......................................................................................... 28 

7.1 BACKGROUND ..................................................................................................................... 28 
7.2 APEX ................................................................................................................................. 28 



 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016   

7.2.1 Policies ............................................................................................................................ 28 
7.3 KALEDEN ............................................................................................................................ 29 

7.3.1 Policies ............................................................................................................................ 30 
7.4 ST. ANDREWS ..................................................................................................................... 32 

7.4.1 Policies ............................................................................................................................ 32 
7.5 TWIN LAKES ........................................................................................................................ 33 

7.5.1 Policies ............................................................................................................................ 34 
7.6 OTHER AREAS ..................................................................................................................... 36 

7.6.1 Policies ............................................................................................................................ 36 

8.0 RESOURCE AREA ................................................................................................. 39 

8.1 BACKGROUND ..................................................................................................................... 39 
8.2 OBJECTIVES ......................................................................................................................... 39 
8.3 POLICIES............................................................................................................................. 39 

9.0 AGRICULTURE .................................................................................................... 41 

9.1 BACKGROUND ..................................................................................................................... 41 
9.2 OBJECTIVES ......................................................................................................................... 41 
9.3 POLICIES............................................................................................................................. 41 

10.0 RURAL HOLDINGS ............................................................................................... 43 

10.1 BACKGROUND ................................................................................................................... 43 
10.2 OBJECTIVES ....................................................................................................................... 43 
10.3 POLICIES - GENERAL............................................................................................................ 43 
10.4 POLICIES – LARGE HOLDINGS ................................................................................................ 45 
10.5 POLICIES – SMALL HOLDINGS ............................................................................................... 45 

11.0 RESIDENTIAL ...................................................................................................... 46 

11.1 BACKGROUND ................................................................................................................... 46 
11.2 OBJECTIVES ....................................................................................................................... 46 
11.3 POLICIES – GENERAL RESIDENTIAL ......................................................................................... 47 
11.4 POLICIES –LOW DENSITY RESIDENTIAL .................................................................................... 48 
11.5 POLICIES –MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL .............................................................................. 48 
11.6 POLICIES – RESIDENTIAL MIXED USE ...................................................................................... 49 
11.7 POLICIES - VACATION RENTALS ............................................................................................. 50 

12.0 COMMERCIAL ..................................................................................................... 51 

12.1 BACKGROUND ................................................................................................................... 51 
12.2 OBJECTIVES ....................................................................................................................... 51 
12.3 POLICIES – GENERAL COMMERCIAL........................................................................................ 51 
12.4 POLICIES – TOURIST COMMERCIAL ........................................................................................ 52 

13.0 INDUSTRIAL ....................................................................................................... 53 

13.1 BACKGROUND ................................................................................................................... 53 
13.2 OBJECTIVES ....................................................................................................................... 53 



 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016   

13.3 POLICIES ........................................................................................................................... 53 

14.0 ADMINISTRATIVE, CULTURAL AND INSTITUTIONAL ............................................... 54 

14.1 BACKGROUND ................................................................................................................... 54 
14.2 EDUCATIONAL AND COMMUNITY FACILITIES ............................................................................ 54 

14.2.1 Objective......................................................................................................................... 55 
14.2.2 Policies ............................................................................................................................ 55 

14.3 PROTECTIVE SERVICES ......................................................................................................... 55 
14.3.1 Objectives ....................................................................................................................... 56 
14.3.2 Policies ............................................................................................................................ 56 

14.4 DOMINION RADIO ASTROPHYSICAL OBSERVATORY ....................................................................... 57 
14.4.1 Objectives ....................................................................................................................... 57 
14.4.2 Policies ............................................................................................................................ 57 

14.5 HERITAGE AND CULTURAL RESOURCES ...................................................................................... 58 
14.5.1 Objectives ....................................................................................................................... 58 
14.5.2 Policies ............................................................................................................................ 59 

15.0 PARKS, RECREATION AND TRAILS ........................................................................ 60 

15.1 BACKGROUND ................................................................................................................... 60 
15.2 OBJECTIVES ....................................................................................................................... 61 
15.3 POLICIES ........................................................................................................................... 61 
15.4 PARKLAND DEDICATION POLICIES .......................................................................................... 63 

16.0 NATURAL ENVIRONMENT AND CONSERVATION ................................................... 65 

16.1 BACKGROUND ................................................................................................................... 65 
16.1.1 Objectives ....................................................................................................................... 65 
16.1.2 Policies - General ............................................................................................................ 66 

16.2 RIPARIAN AND FORESHORE AREAS ......................................................................................... 66 
16.2.1 Objectives ....................................................................................................................... 68 
16.2.2 Policies ............................................................................................................................ 68 

16.3 TERRESTRIAL AREAS ............................................................................................................ 69 
16.3.1 Objectives ....................................................................................................................... 70 
16.3.2 Policies ............................................................................................................................ 70 

16.4 CONSERVATION AREAS ........................................................................................................ 72 
16.4.1 Objectives ....................................................................................................................... 73 
16.4.2 Policies - General ............................................................................................................ 73 

17.0 HAZARD LANDS .................................................................................................. 74 

17.1 BACKGROUND ................................................................................................................... 74 
17.2 OBJECTIVES ....................................................................................................................... 74 
17.3 POLICIES – GENERAL HAZARD LANDS ..................................................................................... 75 
17.4 FIRE MANAGEMENT ........................................................................................................... 76 

17.4.1 Objectives ....................................................................................................................... 76 
17.4.2 Policies ............................................................................................................................ 76 



 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016   

18.0 TRANSPORTATION .............................................................................................. 78 

18.1 BACKGROUND ................................................................................................................... 78 
18.2 OBJECTIVES ....................................................................................................................... 78 
18.3 POLICIES ........................................................................................................................... 78 

19.0 INFRASTRUCTURE AND SERVICING ...................................................................... 80 

19.1 BACKGROUND ................................................................................................................... 80 
19.2 OBJECTIVES ....................................................................................................................... 80 
19.3 POLICIES ........................................................................................................................... 80 
19.4 WATER SUPPLY AND DISTRIBUTION ....................................................................................... 81 

19.4.1 Objectives ....................................................................................................................... 81 
19.4.2 Policies ............................................................................................................................ 82 

19.5 WASTEWATER AND SEWAGE ................................................................................................ 84 
19.5.1 Objectives ....................................................................................................................... 84 
19.5.2 Policies ............................................................................................................................ 84 

19.6 STORMWATER MANAGEMENT .............................................................................................. 85 
19.6.1 Objectives ....................................................................................................................... 85 
19.6.2 Policies ............................................................................................................................ 85 

19.7 SOLID WASTE .................................................................................................................... 85 
19.7.1 Objectives ....................................................................................................................... 85 
19.7.2 Policies ............................................................................................................................ 86 

19.8 OTHER UTILITIES ................................................................................................................ 86 
19.8.1 Objectives ....................................................................................................................... 86 
19.8.2 Policies ............................................................................................................................ 86 

20.0 AGGREGATE AND MINERAL RESOURCES .............................................................. 88 

20.1 BACKGROUND ................................................................................................................... 88 
20.2 OBJECTIVES ....................................................................................................................... 88 
20.3 POLICIES ........................................................................................................................... 89 

21.0 CLIMATE CHANGE AND GREENHOUSE GAS REDUCTION ........................................ 91 

21.1 BACKGROUND ................................................................................................................... 91 
21.2 OBJECTIVES ....................................................................................................................... 91 
21.3 POLICIES ........................................................................................................................... 91 

22.0 TEMPORARY USE PERMITS .................................................................................. 93 

22.1 BACKGROUND ................................................................................................................... 93 
22.2 OBJECTIVES ....................................................................................................................... 93 
22.3 POLICIES ........................................................................................................................... 93 

23.0 DEVELOPMENT PERMIT AREAS ............................................................................ 96 

23.1 BACKGROUND ................................................................................................................... 96 
23.2 ENVIRONMENTALLY SENSITIVE DEVELOPMENT PERMIT (ESDP) AREA .......................................... 96 

23.2.1 Category ......................................................................................................................... 96 



 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016   

23.2.2 Area ................................................................................................................................ 96 
23.2.3 Justification .................................................................................................................... 96 
23.2.4 Background .................................................................................................................... 96 
23.2.5 Development Requiring a Permit .................................................................................. 97 
23.2.6 Guidelines ....................................................................................................................... 97 
23.2.7 Expedited Development Permit .................................................................................... 99 
23.2.8 Exemptions ..................................................................................................................... 99 

23.3 WATERCOURSE DEVELOPMENT PERMIT (WDP) AREA ............................................................ 101 
23.3.1 Category ....................................................................................................................... 101 
23.3.2 WDP Area ..................................................................................................................... 101 
23.3.3 Justification .................................................................................................................. 101 
23.3.4 Guidelines ..................................................................................................................... 101 
23.3.5 Security and Environmental Monitors ........................................................................ 102 
23.3.6 Exemptions ................................................................................................................... 103 
23.3.7 Variance to Protect the SPEA ...................................................................................... 103 
23.3.8 Expedited Development Permit .................................................................................. 104 

24.0 IMPLEMENTATION ............................................................................................ 105 

24.1 INTRODUCTION ................................................................................................................ 105 
24.2 REFINEMENTS AND AMENDMENTS ....................................................................................... 105 
24.3 ZONING BYLAW ............................................................................................................... 106 
24.4 SUBDIVISION SERVICING BYLAW .......................................................................................... 106 
24.5 OTHER AGENCIES ............................................................................................................. 107 
24.6 FOLLOW-UP STUDIES AND INITIATIVES .................................................................................. 107 
24.7 DISCHARGE OF LAND USE CONTRACTS (LUCS)....................................................................... 108 
24.8 MONITORING .................................................................................................................. 108 

 
 

LIST OF SCHEDULES AND MAPS  
 

 
Schedule ‘A’ Official Community Plan Text 
Schedule ‘B’ Official Community Plan Map 
Schedule ‘C’   Dominion Radio Astrophysical Observatory – Radio Frequency Interference 

(RFI) Area 
Schedule ‘D’   Parks, Recreation and Trails 
Schedule ‘E’   Hazard Lands – Soil 
Schedule ‘F’   Hazard Lands – Steep Slopes 
Schedule ‘G’   Hazard Lands – Wildfire 
Schedule ‘H’   Transportation Network 
Schedule ‘I’   Environmentally Sensitive Development Permit Areas 
Schedule ‘J’   Watercourse Development Permit Areas 
 
Note: Schedules ‘B’, ‘C’, ‘D’, ‘E’, ‘F’, ‘G’, ‘H’, ‘I’ and ‘J’ can be viewed either on the Regional 
District website at www.rdos.bc.ca, or by request in hard copy at the Regional District office. 



 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016   

 

 

LIST OF FIGURES  

Figure 1:  Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Update Open House – Kaleden, February 2015 .................... 7 
Figure 2:  Plan Area Regional Context............................................................................................. 9 
Figure 3:  Kaleden 1912 ................................................................................................................. 11 
Figure 4:  Plan Area Communities and Settlement Areas............................................................. 13 
Figure 5:  Plan Area 2011 Estimated Population by Gender and Age Cohort, 2011 .................... 14 
Figure 6:  Population Growth Rates 2006-2011 BC, RDOS, RDCO ................................................ 15 
Figure 7:  Electoral Area “D” Projected Population Growth (1966-2036) .................................... 16 
Figure 8:  Plan Area Housing by Dwelling Type ............................................................................ 17 
Figure 9:  Electoral Area “D-1” Household Size ............................................................................ 17 
Figure 10: New Dwelling Unit Requirements Projections ............................................................ 22 
Figure 11:  Residential Development Capacity ............................................................................. 22 
Figure 12:  Kaleden Rural Growth Area Containment Boundary.................................................. 24 
Figure 13:  Apex Rural Growth Area Containment Boundary ...................................................... 25 
Figure 14:  Twin Lakes Rural Growth Area Containment Boundary ............................................. 26 
Figure 15:  Plan Area – Designated Community Watersheds ....................................................... 40 
Figure 16:  Plan Area Fire Protection Service Areas ..................................................................... 56 
Figure 17:  Nipit Lake .................................................................................................................... 67 
Figure 18: White Lake Basin .......................................................................................................... 70 
Figure 19:  Mahoney Lake Ecological Reserve .............................................................................. 73 
Figure 20:  Plan Area Aquifers.......................................................... Error! Bookmark not defined. 
Figure 21:  Resource Extraction Potential..................................................................................... 88 
Figure 22:  Potential Future OCP Additions ..................................... Error! Bookmark not defined. 
Figure 23:  Zoning Bylaw Updates .............................................................................................. 106 
Figure 24:  Follow up Studies and Initiatives .............................................................................. 108 
Figure 25:  Land Use Contracts and Replacement Land Use Designations ................................ 108 
 



 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016   

Acronyms used in this document 
 

Agricultural Land Reserve ALR 

Agricultural Land Commission ALC 

Dominion Radio Astrophysical Observatory DRAO 

Environmental Impact Assessment  EIA 

Environmentally Sensitive Development Permit Area ESDPA 

Kettle Valley Railway  KVR 

Official Community Plan OCP 

Radio Frequency Interference RFI 

Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen RDOS 

Watercourse Development Permit Area WDPA 

 



   

 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016  1 

Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
Electoral Area “D-1” Kaleden-Apex  

Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 2683, 2016 
 

A Bylaw to guide land use decisions within Electoral Area “D” pursuant to Division 4 of the Local 
Government Act of British Columbia, R.S.B.C. 2015.  

WHEREAS the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen wishes to adopt an Official 
Community Plan pursuant to Division 4 of the Local Government Act; 
AND WHEREAS the Regional Board may adopt an Official Community Plan by bylaw and each 
reading of the bylaw must receive an affirmative vote of a majority of all directors of the 
Regional Board who are entitled to vote on that bylaw; 
AND WHEREAS after first reading of the bylaw the Regional Board shall, in sequence, examine 
the Official Community Plan in conjunction with its most recent capital expenditure program, 
the waste management plan, wastewater management plan, and economic strategy plan that is 
applicable in the RDOS to ensure consistency between them, in accordance with the Local 
Government Act; 
AND WHEREAS the Regional Board shall refer the Official Community Plan to the Province for 
comment with respect to land in the Agricultural Land Reserve pursuant to the Agricultural 
Land Commission Act; 
AND WHEREAS the Regional Board has provided one or more opportunities for consultation 
with persons, organizations and authorities it considers affected in the development of the 
Official Community Plan in accordance with Section 475 of the Local Government Act; 
AND WHEREAS the Regional Board of the RDOS has complied with all requirements of the Local 
Government Act, prior to adoption of this bylaw and Official Community Plan including all of the 
foregoing; 
AND WHEREAS upon adoption of this bylaw, the Plan is an Official Community Plan of the 
RDOS; 
NOW THEREFORE the Regional Board of the RDOS, in open meeting assembled, enacts as 
follows: 
The Electoral Area “D-1” Official Community Plan attached hereto as Schedule ‘A’ and Map 
Schedules ‘B’, ‘C’, ‘D’, ‘E’, ‘F’, ‘G’, ‘H’, ‘I’, and ‘J’ forming part of this bylaw are adopted as the 
Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen Electoral Area “D-1” Official Community Plan.  
The bylaw shall apply only to that portion of the RDOS shown outlined on Schedule ‘B’ (Official 
Community Plan Map) forming part of this bylaw.   
If any statement, section, sub-section, clause, sub-clause or phrase of this bylaw and the Official 
Community Plan adopted by this bylaw is for any reason held to be invalid by a decision of a 
court of competent jurisdiction, the decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining 
portions of this bylaw and Official Community Plan. 
This bylaw may be cited for all purposes as the Electoral Area “D-1” Official Community Plan 
Bylaw No. 2683, 2016.  



   

 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016  2 

Transition 

The Kaleden-Apex Southwest Sector Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 2456, 2008, is repealed. 

READ A FIRST TIME on the 15th day of September, 2016. 

READ A SECOND TIME on the 15th day of September, 2016. 

PUBLIC HEARING held on the 16th day of November, 2016. 

READ A THIRD TIME, as amended, on the ____ day of __________, 2016. 

ADOPTED this ____ day of __________, 2016. 

 

   

Chair  Corporate Officer 

  



   

 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016  3 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SCHEDULE ‘A’ 
 

Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 

Electoral Area “D-1” 

Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 2683, 2016 

 
 



   

 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016  4 

1.0 INTERPRETATION AND ADMINISTRATION 
 

The provisions of this Plan apply to all lands and surface of water within Electoral Area 
“D-1” identified on Schedule ‘B’ Official Community Plan Map of this bylaw. 
 

1.1 Purpose 

The Electoral Area “D-1” Kaleden-Apex Official Community Plan (OCP) contains 
objectives, policies, and land use designations adopted by the Regional District of 
Okanagan-Similkameen (RDOS) Board of Directors. The purpose of these objectives, 
policies and designations is to provide direction for land use and development 
consistent with the community values of the Electoral Area. The policies of the Plan are 
intended to balance the demands placed on the land base in order to ensure an 
equitable, comprehensive, and logical distribution of land uses. Policies are often 
implemented on a long-term basis, generally over a seven to 10 year period. 

The OCP provides a basis for the following actions: 

.1 The adoption or amendment of land use regulations, such as the Zoning Bylaw. 

.2 The direction of public and private investment. 

.3 The guidance of elected officials, and others who have statutory approval authority, 
in the evaluation of proposals, referrals, and amendment of bylaws. 

.4 Bringing the Regional District into compliance with provincial regulations, such as 
the Riparian Area Regulation and the greenhouse gas management requirements of 
the Local Government Act. 

 
1.2 Interpretation 

An OCP means an Official Community Plan as referred to in the Local Government Act, 
and as adopted by the Regional Board of the RDOS (hereafter referred to as the 
Regional Board), in accordance with the requirements of the Local Government Act. 
 

1.3 Administration 

.1 This OCP comes into effect as of the date of adoption by the Regional Board. 

.2 The Zoning Bylaw will be the primary tool to regulate development, not the OCP. All 
rezoning proposals must be consistent with the intent of this OCP that serves as a 
policy foundation for the Zoning Bylaw. 

.3 This Plan will be reviewed on a regular basis and, in order that the document 
continues to accurately reflect the long-range planning objectives of Electoral Area 
“D-1”, the Plan should undergo a comprehensive review every seven to 10-years. 

.4 The OCP can only encourage senior levels of government to take action; it cannot 
force or require senior governments to act. Furthermore, although the OCP cannot 



   

 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016  5 

commit the Regional Board to specific expenditures, the Regional Board cannot 
enact bylaws or undertake works that are contrary to it without amending the Plan. 

.5 No one goal, objective or policy contained within this OCP should be read in 
isolation from the others to imply a particular action or consequence. 



   

 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016  6 

2.0 WHAT IS AN OFFICIAL COMMUNITY PLAN? 
 
2.1 Background  

An Official Community Plan (OCP) is a planning document that provides policies on a 
broad range of topics including land-use, transportation, housing, parks and 
infrastructure. OCPs designate land for specific purposes, such as commercial/retail, 
residential, park, and industrial. OCPs are developed through public consultation and the 
objectives and policy statements within them reflect the collective desires of the people 
within the planning area.  

Effectively, OCPs provide a blueprint and map for the community’s future.  They are 
created to guide decisions on planning and land use management by establishing a long-
term vision, supporting goals and objectives, and policies to achieve them.  

Municipalities in British Columbia are given the authority to adopt an OCP through the 
Local Government Act (LGA), which describes what must be included in the OCP, what 
may optionally be included, and what steps need to be followed for the OCP to be 
adopted.  The required content of an OCP is defined in Section 473 of the Local 
Government Act. 

This OCP should be re-examined and updated every seven to 10-years to ensure that it 
continues to reflect the long-range planning objectives of Plan Area residents, local 
government staff, and the Regional Board. Occasional updates also ensure the OCP 
remains consistent with other procedures, bylaws and government implementation 
tools.  
 

2.2 Planning Process  

This OCP was developed over a period of fourteen months. Commencing in September 2014, 
development of the Plan included a substantial community outreach component, which 
included open houses, surveys (137 completed on-line and paper copies), project 
newsletters, a project website, regular email updates, and meetings with community 
stakeholders and agencies throughout the process (e.g. South Okanagan Stewardship 
Committee, Penticton Indian Band). The first project open house in Kaleden was attended by 
over 100 people and was one of the best-attended public outreach events the Regional 
District has hosted (see Figure 1). 

 
  



   

 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016  7 

Figure 1:  Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Update Open House – Kaleden, February 2015 

2.3 Amending the Plan  

An OCP is not a static document. Rather, it is intended to be adaptable to new trends 
within society and responsive to changing circumstances within the community. As such, 
following careful consideration by the Regional District Board, policies and land use 
designations in this OCP may be revised by an amending bylaw pursuant to provisions 
outlined within the Local Government Act. A comprehensive review of the OCP should 
occur every seven to 10 years, with public open houses being held to review all major 
development proposals prior to the formal public hearing process.  
 

2.4 Development Approval Information  

Electoral Area “D-1” (the “Plan Area”) is a Development Approval Information Area, and the 
Regional District may require development approval information for a Zoning Bylaw 
amendment application, Development Permit application, or Temporary Use Permit 
application. 

 The objective in designating the Plan Area as a Development Approval Information Area 
is to ensure the Regional District can obtain information from the applicant in order to 
gain a sound understanding of the anticipated impact of the proposed activity or 
development on the community and to make a well informed decision regarding such 
applications. Where deemed relevant, an applicant may be expected to provide 
information regarding: 

.1 The impact of the proposed development on surrounding land uses. 

.2 The consideration of public facilities such as schools, parkland, public spaces, 
and/or amenities. 

.3 The impact of the proposed development on groundwater quantity and quality, 
surface water generated by the proposed development, and the options for 
collection, storage, and dispersal of such drainage. 

.4 The impact of the proposed development on the natural environment such as 
adjacent aquatic areas, vegetation, soils and erosion, geotechnical characteristics, 
topographical features, ecosystems and biological diversity, fish and wildlife, fish 
and wildlife habitat, Environmentally Sensitive Development Permit Areas, 



   

 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016  8 

Watercourse Development Permit Areas, and rare or endangered plant or animal 
species. 

.5 The ability of the proposed development to provide on-site water and septic 
disposal or to connect to community services, if available. 

.6 The impact of the proposed development on public infrastructure and community 
services such as water supply, sewage disposal, fire protection systems, solid 
waste management and recycling. 

.7 The impact of the proposed development on the radio frequency interference 
(RFI) protection requirements of the Dominion Radio Astrophysical Observatory 
(DRAO). 

.8 The aesthetic values of the proposed development such as visual character, 
integration with public areas and the natural environment, lighting, noise, and 
odour. 

.9 The impact of proposed development on traffic volumes and roads. 

.10 How the proposed development provides buffers for adjoining farming and rural 
areas to ensure no negative impact is caused. 

.11 The archaeological impact of a proposed development in areas identified to have 
high archaeological potential.  

.12 Fire hazard risk assessment in accordance with the Community Wildfire Protection 
Plan. 

  



   

 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016  9 

3.0 COMMUNITY PROFILE 
 
3.1 Location and Geography 

The Plan Area extends north along the boundary of Electoral Area “F” and Penticton Indian 
Reserve No. 1; south and west along the boundary of Electoral Area “G” and “C”; and east to 
Skaha Lake.  

The Plan Area is mostly rural with a dispersed and relatively small population. There are 
four main communities – Kaleden, Twin Lakes, St. Andrews, and Apex – and several 
smaller, rural areas, including Farleigh Lake and along Green Mountain Road.  

The area is a semi-arid, mountain-to-valley landscape with human settlements and 
agriculture clustered in the valley bottoms, and cattle grazing in the native grasslands 
between the valleys and the treeline above. 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Figure 2:  Plan Area Regional Context 



   

 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016  10 

3.2 History 

Indigenous people lived in the Regional District area for thousands of years prior to the 
arrival of Europeans. The original people of the Okanagan are known as the Syilx speaking 
people – the “Okanagans” and according to their history have been in the area since the 
beginning of people on this land. The Okanagans (Syilx) people occupied an area that 
extended over approximately 69,000 square kilometres. The northern area of this 
territory stretched from the area of Mica Creek, just north of modern day Revelstoke, BC 
and east to Kootenay Lake. The southern boundary extended to the vicinity of Wilbur, 
Washington and the western border extended into the Nicola Valley. 

Today, there are two First Nations (Syilx/Okanagan) with reserve land in the Plan Area, 
Penticton Indian Band and the Lower Similkameen Indian Band. Neither community is 
engaged in the current BC Treaty process and both are members of the Okanagan Nation 
Alliance (ONA). 

The non-Indigenous historical records of the Plan Area date back to 1821 with establishment 
of the Hudson’s Bay Fur Brigade trail.  The trail represented a fur trading supply route through 
the Okanagan Valley north to Kamloops.  With the United States and Canada boundary 
settlement in 1847, alternative trails were developed from Kamloops through the Fraser 
Canyon to Fort Langley.  The last brigade took the trail in 1847. 

Non-Indigenous settlement in the Plan Area began in the 1890’s.  During this period several of 
the current settlements known today were established (e.g., Okanagan Falls).  Due to the 
absence of a public roadway system connecting the early settlements, stern-wheeler boats 
played an important role transporting supplies to residents, and agricultural produce to trail 
heads at the three Okanagan Valley centres. 

The following provides a brief summary of some of the historical settlements in the Plan Area.  

· White Lake: White Lake derives its name from white alkali, which is found around its 
shoreline. The White Lake area was located along the Hudson’s Bay Brigade Trail. 
Between 1895 and 1905, much of the lower elevation lands were settled. Ranches, 
mixed farms and some orchards dominated the landscape. A post office was 
established in the White Lake area in 1895.  

The area is home to the National Research Council’s Dominion Radio Astrophysical 
Observatory. The White Lake Basin was selected after a Canada-wide search and was 
followed by significant federal land purchases to assemble the site and 
complementary Provincial land reserves. The Observatory opened in 1960. 

· Kaleden: Kaleden was the vision of Mr. Jim Ritchie, who began assembling land in the 
area in 1905.  By 1908 Mr. Ritchie had assembled some 1,200 hectares (3,000 acres) 
of land on the west shores of Skaha Lake.  In 1909 a contest was held to choose a 
name for the development area. Reverend Walter Russell combined the Greek word 
“Kalos” meaning beautiful, with Eden for the name Kaleden.  His prize was a lot in the 
new townsite. 



   

 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016  11 

Mr. Ritchie’s vision for Kaleden included the establishment of an agricultural 
community served by a townsite commercial centre.  This vision was realized with 
development of a concrete irrigation system in 1909, and development of permanent 
buildings in the town site (Kaleden Post Office 1910 and Kaleden Hotel 1912), the 
remains of which still stand.  

· Apex: Mount Beaconsfield was used by local Penticton Scout troops from the late 
1940’s for ski camps. In the late 1950’s a Penticton group initiated steps to establish a 
permanent ski hill on Mount Beaconsfield, and to establish the mountain as a 
Provincial Park. After resolving mineral claims and road access issues through private 
ranch land (today know as Apex Aspen Ranch), the Apex Alpine Ski Resort officially 
opened in December 1961.  Since that time the resort has expanded several times to 
include Mount Riordan (1963) and further development on Mount Beaconsfield 
(1969).   

· Farleigh Lake: named after William James Farleigh who farmed and bred registered 
cats at his Sunnyside Ranch from 1903 to 1908.  

· Green Mountain Road: was first surveyed and roughed in around 1903 to provide 
access to Nickel Plate Mine above Hedley, BC. Over time, it became the main road to 
the Similkameen from the Okanagan, first by stagecoach and later by vehicle.  

 

Figure 3:  Kaleden 1912 
 

3.3 Communities and Other Areas 

The four main communities within the Plan Area are Kaleden, Twin Lakes, Apex and St. 
Andrews. The Plan Area is also home to a number of smaller, settlement areas, including 
Farleigh Lake and along Green Mountain Road. These communities are described further 
in Section 7.0 Local Area Policies. 



   

 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016  12 

 
3.4 Penticton Indian Band 

While not within the jurisdiction or planning authority of the Regional District, a 
significant portion of the Plan Area is occupied by Penticton Indian Band reserve lands. 
The Penticton Indian Band (PIB), also known as SnPink’tn, has three reserves, all of 
which are located within the Regional District. It should also be noted that PIB 
traditional lands, where PIB has significant cultural and environmental interests, occupy 
the totality of the Plan Area.  

Penticton Indian Reserve No.1 (IR#1) is located immediately west of Penticton and is 
located entirely within the Plan Area boundaries. At 19,277 hectares (47,630 acres), 
Penticton IR1 is the largest reserve by land area in BC, and it is the main community for 
the Penticton Indian Band. PIB has 1,035 members (as of 2014), and the population has 
been growing at about 2% per year since 2007. Approximately 450 members currently 
live on PIB’s principal reserve (IR#1). 

In June 2013, PIB, Lower Similkameen Indian Band (who have a small, unpopulated 
reserve in the Plan Area), and the Osoyoos Indian Band signed a protocol agreement 
with the Regional District. The agreement represents a significant step toward improved 
partnership and communication, and commits the parties to more collaborative and 
cooperative land use planning. 

PIB has been involved in several new development projects and has emerged as one of 
the Regional District’s major land developers.  One development in Electoral Area “D-1” 
is a 223 hectare residential development called Skaha Hills. To date, the first phase of 
the multi-phase, mixed-use residential, commercial development is nearing completion 
and the second phase of residential units should commence construction soon. When 
completed, the development will feature a vineyard and up to 600 single-family and 
multi-family units.  

PIB has identified several Crown Land parcels abutting IR#1 on the south and west 
boundaries in the Plan Area that the Band is exploring to have added to the reserve. The 
addition-to-reserve process is a federal process coordinated through Aboriginal and 
Northern Development Canada and can take several years to complete. 

PIB underwent a seven-year process to create a community-driven Comprehensive 
Community Plan that outlines and provides a mandate for leadership to make decisions 
for the community based on a common vision. The plan created the foundation to begin 
a community-driven Land Use Plan that will be completed by December 31, 2015. This 
plan will outline areas for development and protection, both on and off reserve.  

Land Use Plan implementation tasks are expected to include PIB’s continued work on 
building relationships with all levels of government, including the Regional District, by:  

· Encouraging continued recognition and implementation of the existence of 
Indigenous peoples’ inherent title and rights  



   

 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016  13 

· Acknowledgement that Indigenous systems of governance and laws are essential to 
the regulation of lands and resources throughout British Columbia. 

· Acknowledgment of the mutual responsibility that all of our government systems 
shall shift to relationships, negotiations and agreements based on recognition.  

· Move to consent based decision-making and title based fiscal relations, including 
revenue sharing, in our relationships, negotiations and agreements.  

 

Figure 4:  Plan Area Communities and Settlement Areas 
 

3.5 Population and Demographics 

The population of Electoral Area “D” was 5,717 residents in 2011. It is estimated that 
approximately 40% of Electoral Area “D” residents were living in the Plan Area as of 
2011, for a population of about 2,400.i  

                                                 
i This number is an approximation based on data obtained through Statistics Canada’s GeoSearch tool. Because this number is 
based on an amalgamation of smaller dissemination areas that do not precisely comprise the boundaries of Area “D-1”, it is not 
an exact figure. The following Statistics Canada dissemination areas have been included in this approximation: 59070206, 
59070172, 59070177, and 59070178. 
 



   

 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016  14 

The age and gender distribution of the Plan Area is illustrated in Figure 5. Overall, 
approximately 47.5% of the population of the Plan Area is male, while 52.5% is female. 
In the Plan Area, the “baby boomer” generation makes up the most significant 
proportion of the population, particularly in comparison to the number of residents 
aged 20-39. This data indicates the population of the Plan Area is aging, which is a 
consistent trend across the Regional District and the province as a whole. A recently 
completed Age Friendly Assessment Report (2014) recognized this trend and the 
resulting need for seniors housing and associated support services.  

Figure 5:  Plan Area 2011 Estimated Population by Gender and Age Cohort, 2011 

As population data for the Plan Area is not available for past years, the population 
growth pattern of Electoral Area “D” as a whole (i.e., “D-1”and “D-2” together) has been 
used as a proxy to help understand the trends in the region and to project future 
population growth.  

Between 2006 and 2011, the population in Electoral Area “D” as a whole declined 3.3%. 
This downward trend was apparent in the Plan Area where the largest community, 
Kaleden, declined in population 5% between 2006 and 2011.  

Despite the declining population, enrolment at Kaleden Elementary has remained fairly 
constant according to the local School District. While there are fewer school aged 
children in Kaleden, the School District reports parents living in Okanagan Falls and 
working in Penticton are enrolling their children at the school (dropping them off and 
picking them up on their way to and from work in Penticton), which has helped maintain 
enrolment. 

200 150 100 50 0 50 100 150

0-4
5-9

10-14
15-19
20-24
25-29
30-34
35-39
40-44
45-49
50-54
55-59
60-64
65-69
70-74
75-79
80-84

85+

Female

Male

Male population
total: 1150

Female population 
total: 1265



   

 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016  15 

Of the eight electoral areas that comprise the Regional District, just three saw growth 
between 2006 and 2011; Electoral Areas “B”, “F” and “G”. Overall, the population of the 
Regional District grew by just 1.6%, less than half the growth experienced in the 
Regional District of Central Okanagan (RDCO in Figure 6). This low growth rate is 
consistent with other similar areas in BC and influenced by both an aging population and 
decreasing fertility rates. 

Figure 6:  Population Growth Rates 2006-2011 BC, RDOS, Regional District of Central Okanagan 

Although the population of Electoral Area “D” as a whole has declined, some population 
growth is expected over the next twenty to thirty years. According to projections, the 
population of Electoral Area “D” as a whole could grow to 5,910 by 2021, an increase of 
3.3% over 2011, and a return to 2006 levels (see Figure 7). By 2031, the population of 
Area “D” as a whole could total 6,115 (about a 2% growth rate). A more conservative 
growth rate (1.5% below the projected rate) would see Electoral Area “D” as a whole 
return to 2006 population levels by 2026. 

Population forecasts are based on BC Statistics P.E.O.P.L.E. methodology/model 
(Population Extrapolation for Organizational Planning with Less Error) using Statistics 
Canada census data up to 2011. The methodology/model is a standard framework for 
developing population projections and is used by local governments throughout BC. It is 
based on historic population trends (e.g., fertility, death rates) and historic in- and out-
migration trends. 

 

-20.0%

-15.0%

-10.0%

-5.0%

0.0%

5.0%

10.0%



   

 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016  16 

Figure 7:  Electoral Area “D” Projected Population Growth (1966-2036) 
 
3.6 Housing types 

For the most part, housing in the Plan Area consists primarily of single-detached homes. 
There are also a small number of manufactured/mobile homes in the Plan Area, along 
with a limited amount of apartment-style and semi-detached (e.g., row, duplex) 
housing. Much of the medium-density housing in the Plan Area is located in Apex. Figure 
8 illustrates housing by dwelling type in Electoral Area “D-1”. 

  

0

1000

2000

3000

4000

5000

6000

7000

1960 1980 2000 2020 2040

Population

Projected Population

Projected Population (1.5%
above projected)

Projected Population (1.5%
below projected)



   

 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016  17 

 
Figure 8:  Plan Area Housing by Dwelling Type 

 
As illustrated in Figure 9, the majority of households (52%) in Electoral Area “D-1”are two 
person households according to recent Census data. Together one and two person 
households account for 71% of households. The smaller household sizes are consistent 
with an aging population and people having fewer children. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Figure 9:  Electoral Area “D-1” Household Size 
 

86%

6%

0%
2%

6%
Single Detached

Row House

Duplex

Apartment (fewer than 5
stories)

Movable

19%

52%

11%

12%

4%

2%

   1 person

   2 persons

   3 persons

   4 persons

   5 persons

   6 or more persons



   

 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016  18 

4.0 OFFICIAL COMMUNITY PLAN DESIGNATIONS  
 

The future use and development of land within Electoral Area “D-1” must be consistent 
with the land use designations illustrated on Schedule ‘B’ (Official Community Plan 
Map). Inset maps are provided the planning area’s four main communities, Kaleden, 
Twin Lakes, St. Andrews and Apex. 

 
Rural Designations 

Resource Area RA 

Agriculture AG 

Large Holdings LH 

Small Holdings SH 

Residential Designations 

Low Density Residential LR 

Medium Density Residential MR 

Residential Mixed Use RMU 

Commercial Designations  

Commercial C 

Commercial Tourist CT 

Industrial Designation 

Industrial I 

Community Services and Administrative Designations 

Administrative, Cultural and Institutional AI 

Parks, Recreation and Trails P 

Conservation Area CA 

The general types of uses encouraged in each land use designation are explained in 
subsequent sections of this Bylaw.   

The Regional Board recognizes that some existing land uses do not conform to the 
designations shown on OCP maps. The intent of the Regional Board is not to change the 
uses of this land in the immediate future but to illustrate the preferred pattern of land 
use as redevelopment occurs while this Plan is in force. 

 
  



   

 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016  19 

5.0 VISION AND BROAD GOALS 
 
5.1 Vision 

The Plan Area’s communities and settlement areas share a similar rural lifestyle and 
values. While each may face its own unique challenges, community consultation 
identified a set of common values and a shared vision for the Plan Area. The following 
vision statement describes a preferred future for the Plan Area.  

Electoral Area “D-1” is a safe, peaceful rural area made up of small 
communities and settlement areas that support a mix of housing types with 
both permanent and seasonal residents. The area’s rural lifestyle and 
character is valued by all residents and supported by the preservation and 
stewardship of the area’s important agricultural, natural habitat, and 
recreation areas. Water resources are well-managed and protected for 
residential and agricultural uses and ecosystem health and wellbeing. 

 
5.2 Broad Goals 

The following broad goals reflect the input and priorities of Plan Area residents and are 
the guiding principles of this Official Community Plan. These goals will be used by the 
Regional District and senior government agencies to help guide future decisions on 
development proposals, environmental protection initiatives, and infrastructure 
development in the Plan Area. They are organized and prioritized according to feedback 
from Plan Area residents, which was provided through community engagement 
activities and events and resident surveys. 

.1 Natural environment. Steward and protect the area’s natural features and 
systems, including sensitive and endangered ecosystems, fish and wildlife habitats, 
and wildlife corridors. 

.2 Water resources. Protect and manage water resources, including both surface and 
groundwater, for residential and agricultural uses, and for ecosystem health and 
wellbeing. 

.3 Infrastructure and services. Improve and expand infrastructure in designated rural 
growth areas, including water and wastewater treatment systems, and cellular 
and Internet coverage and connectivity for all settled areas without compromising 
the protection of the Dominion Radio Astrophysical Observatory from Radio 
Frequency Interference (RFI). 

.4 Community health and wellbeing. Promote community health, active living and 
recreation, and support the area’s aging population, including encouraging 
supported and/or seniors housing where appropriate and feasible.  

.5 Economic development. Work to strengthen and diversify a sustainable economic 



   

 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016  20 

and employment base for the Plan Area, including year-round tourism and 
recreation, agriculture, research and technology. 

.6 Transportation. Maintain a safe and effective transportation system for all road 
users and improve public transit options from area communities to larger regional 
centres.  

.7 Residential development and housing. Encourage a diversity of housing options 
for all age groups, while ensuring new housing development maintains the area’s 
rural character, protects and respects unique and fragile habitats, and does not 
exceed the sustainable water supply. 

.8 Agriculture. Maintain existing and encourage new, compatible agricultural 
activities in the Agricultural Land Reserve and connect local residents, particularly 
younger generations and new community members, with the agricultural legacy of 
the Plan Area. 

.9 Public and stakeholder engagement. Improve and expand communications, 
consultation and engagement with residents and community stakeholders, 
including the Penticton Indian Band.  

  



   

 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016  21 

6.0 GROWTH MANAGEMENT 
 
6.1 Background 

Growth Management is a critical aspect of planning for a community’s future. It allows a 
community to forecast growth, based on trends and aspirations and to direct 
anticipated growth to areas that align with the community’s vision and broad goals. 

In 2010, the Regional District adopted a Regional Growth Strategy (RGS) for the South 
Okanagan. Under the Local Government Act, once an RGS has been adopted, OCPs must 
be consistent. The goal of the RGS is to direct the substantial majority of future growth 
in the south Okanagan Valley area to designated Primary Growth Areas (e.g., City of 
Penticton, Town of Osoyoos, Okanagan Falls). The RGS envisions maintaining the rural 
character of the Plan Area, but anticipates directing growth to designated Rural Growth 
Areas, which the RGS specifically identifies as areas with:  

· Established rural settlement areas with a minimum of 200 lots and/or dwelling 
units;  

· Community water or community sewer services in place; 
· Existing commercial or industrial; or 
· Where development has been pre-determined through zoning, but not yet 

developed (e.g., Twin Lakes).  

Within the Plan Area, the South Okanagan RGS designates Kaleden, Twin Lakes and Apex 
as Rural Growth Areas. There are no Primary Growth Areas in the Plan Area. The three 
areas were designated based on existing zoning, OCP designations and service areas.  

The South Okanagan RGS recognizes that “some infill development may occur” in areas 
not designated as Rural Growth Areas as these other settlement areas evolve over time, 
provided that development “does not significantly increase the number of units or the 
established density and respects the character of the communities.” Policy H3, “Protect 
the character of rural areas” of the South Okanagan RGS further stipulates that, 
“Proposed developments that do not closely adhere to OCP guidelines for the protection 
of rural and resource areas will not be supported.”  

Because of the South Okanagan RGS’s emphasis to direct growth where infrastructure 
exists, an Infrastructure Study for Electoral Area “D-1” (April 2015, KWL Kerr Wood 
Leidal Consulting Engineers) was completed to understand the capacity of utilities in the 
Plan Area. The Rural Growth Containment Areas were informed by the infrastructure 
study and will help ensure future development is directed to areas known to have some 
capacity in order to maximize community infrastructure efficiencies.  
 

6.2 Rural Growth Areas and Capacity 

Based on population projections carried out as part the OCP Update (see Section 3.5), it 
was determined that the Plan Area could become home to between 160 and 240 
additional residents (low and high projections) by 2031. Based on 2.3 people per 



   

 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016  22 

household (Census Canada figures), there is a projected need for between 70 to 104 
homes by 2031, or between five to seven new homes per year.   

  

 

 

 

Figure 10: New Dwelling Unit Requirements Projections 

It is estimated that there is sufficient development capacity available to accommodate 
projected population growth. This estimate was based on existing zoning established 
through Zoning Bylaw No. 2457. The numbers indicated in the table below represent 
new unit capacity on both vacant and underdeveloped lots on residentially zoned 
properties.  Constraints were considered including the Agricultural Land Reserve, steep 
slopes and other terrain hazards that would not permit development, watercourses, and 
DRAO’s acknowledged requirement for an operating environment with minimal radio 
frequency interference (RFI).  The table differentiates between Rural Growth Areas 
(Kaleden, Twin Lakes and Apex) and ‘other’ areas.   

It is important to note that water supply and servicing was not included as a constraint 
in this analysis.  In some areas the additional dwelling unit capacity would be further 
limited by these considerations.  Also, actual dwelling unit capacity would be subject to 
additional Regional District review and approvals. 

Figure 11:  Residential Development Capacity 

  

 1.5% below projected 
growth rate 

1.5% above projected 
growth rate 

Additional population estimate (2031) 160 240 
Persons per household 2.3 2.3 
New dwellings required 70 104 

Development 
Type 

Zoning Districts Potential New 
Units - Rural 

Growth Areas 

Potential New 
Units - outside 
Rural Growth 

Areas 

Total 
Potential 
new units 

Medium 
Density 

Residential 
Mixed Use 

RMU 

370 - 370 

Medium 
Density 

Residential 

RM1, RM3 
100 - 100 

Low Density 
Residential 

RS1, RS2, RS4, 
RSM1 260 80 340 

Rural 
Residential  

SH2, SH3, LH 15 57 72 

TOTAL  745 137 882 



   

 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016  23 

While not under the jurisdiction of the Regional District, Penticton Indian Band is 
currently developing Skaha Hills in IR#1, a phased, mixed-use development that will 
feature up to 600 single-family and multi-family units, which will add additional 
residential capacity to the Plan Area.  

 
6.3 Rural Growth Areas Development Considerations and Constraints 

Future growth and development in each of the three designated Rural Growth Areas will 
be influenced by a number of potential development constraints and considerations. 
These constraints and considerations are summarized by area on the following pages. 
Approximate Rural Growth containment boundaries are illustrated in accompanying 
figures. 

The Regional Board recognizes that to create a continuous boundary to contain growth 
there are properties within the boundary that are protected from development by 
provincial legislation and Development Permit Area regulations. It is not the intention of 
the Regional Board to encourage development of land within designated Agricultural 
areas or land identified as Parks/Recreation, Conservation Area, environmentally 
sensitive areas, watercourses, or steep slopes and terrain hazards within the defined 
growth boundary. Land with these designations or characteristics should continue to be 
protected from development.  
Kaleden: The Regional District’s South Okanagan Regional Growth Strategy Bylaw 
designated Kaleden as a Rural Growth Area. With a planned sewer extension from a new 
wastewater treatment plant in Okanagan Falls, there may be some capacity for the 
community to grow in the future, although this capacity will be limited by steep, hazard 
slopes and ALR land in the area. 

There is a planned two phase sewer extension to the community. While the first phase 
of the planned sewer extension is not anticipated for at least several years given funding 
requirements and the planned extension of services to Skaha Estates first, the new 
sewer service will permit infill development through subdivision that is not currently 
achievable due to septic system requirements. Completion of the project is not 
anticipated for 10 to 15 years, or beyond the timeline of this OCP. 
 



   

 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016  24 

Figure 12:  Kaleden Rural Growth Area Containment Boundary 

 
 
 

  



   

 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016  25 

Apex: The South Okanagan Regional Growth Strategy designated Apex as a Rural 
Growth Area. While Apex has the most significant growth potential of the three Rural 
Growth Areas, the likelihood of year-round residency is limited by the area’s seasonal 
nature and distance from services and employment opportunities. Until such time as 
a more year-round village develops, Apex’s growth will likely be limited to mostly 
seasonal residents. 

 

Figure 13:  Apex Rural Growth Area Containment Boundary 

 
 



   

 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016  26 

Twin Lakes: The South Okanagan Regional Growth Strategy designated Twin Lakes as 
a Rural Growth Area. Growth capacity for Twin Lakes is constrained by groundwater 
supply issues, or more specifically the significance or consequences of the 
groundwater constraints. Several studies have been undertaken to determine 
groundwater supply and capacity in the area, including a high-level, technical 
summary review carried out in conjunction with the Plan Area OCP update project 
(Infrastructure Study for Electoral Area “D-1”, KWL Consulting Engineers, 2015). The 
issue remains unresolved and will likely require a longer monitoring period to confirm 
supply issues. While zoning has been in place for a proposed 200-unit development 
on a bluff above the golf course since 1992, both the market and groundwater supply 
issues have not enabled the development to proceed. A revised, preliminary 
development concept removes the residential land use designations from the bluff to 
the Twin Lakes Golf Course commercial area where the clubhouse and an RV park are 
currently located. The revised, preliminary development concept features clustered 
townhouses on a relatively small footprint. Any new formal application will remain 
subject to sustainable groundwater supply and capacity issues. 

 

Figure 14:  Twin Lakes Rural Growth Area Containment Boundary 



   

 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016  27 

 
6.4 Objectives  

.1 Manage growth within the Plan Area by directing residential development to 
designated Rural Growth Areas subject to confirmation of sustainable water 
supply.  

.2 Accommodate anticipated growth while maintaining the rural character and 
conserving the natural environment of the Plan Area.  

.3 Consider limited new development in other existing settlement areas where 
appropriate and in keeping with this OCP’s broad goals and policies.  

 
6.5 Policies 

The Regional Board:  

.1 Recognizes Kaleden, Apex and Twin Lakes as the designated Rural Growth Areas in 
the Plan Area.  

.2 Will direct growth to designated Rural Growth Areas, by discouraging the re-
designation or re-zoning of land that permits residential uses outside of the Rural 
Growth Area containment boundaries.  

.3 Recognizes the need for ongoing monitoring of groundwater at Twin Lakes to 
determine the area’s capacity to accommodate additional development on a 
sustainable basis as a currently designated Rural Growth Area. 

.4 Recognizes that there is an appropriate amount of residential land designated to 
permit residential development within the Rural Growth Area containment 
boundaries to accommodate anticipated growth to 2031.  

.5 Recognizes Okanagan Falls and Penticton as designated Primary Growth Areas that 
have the community infrastructure, community services, economic and 
employment opportunities to sustain higher densities and residential growth than 
the Plan Area. 

.6 Will ensure any new development in designated Rural Growth Areas to provide 
community services pursuant to the Regional District’s Subdivision Servicing Bylaw. 

.7 Directs development away from hazard lands, critical habitat areas, watercourses 
and the Dominion Radio Astrophysical Observatory Radio Frequency Interference 
(RFI) area.  

.8 Directs residential development away from designated Agricultural AG areas. 

.9 Requires that all new parcels of less than one hectare in size connect to a 
community sewer system.  

.10 Supports water metering and other residential water conservation measures. 
 

  



   

 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016  28 

7.0 LOCAL AREA POLICIES  
 
7.1 Background 

The Plan Area is comprised of four distinct communities and several smaller rural areas. 
While they each have much in common, including a strong desire to maintain and 
protect the larger Plan Area’s rural qualities and environmental values, each community 
is also unique. This section of the Plan outlines policies for each of the Plan Area’s main 
communities.  

 
7.2 Apex 

Apex is a ski resort community located approximately 33 kilometers west of Penticton 
and is a significant attraction and employer within the D-1 area.  Primarily a winter 
resort, Apex and the surrounding area offer activities such as downhill and cross-country 
skiing, tubing, skating, and snowshoeing during the winter season. The village area at 
the resort has amenities including restaurants, a ski sales and repair shop, a general 
store, day lodges, equipment rental, childcare facilities, and a range of accommodations, 
including a hostel, condos, hotels, B&Bs, and private cabins. During the summer months 
there are many mountain biking and hiking opportunities. 

A large portion of the Apex area has been designated for mixed use and has a greater 
proportion of medium-density housing such as apartments and mixed-use 
commercial/residential buildings than other parts of the Plan Area. A 2006 study 
indicated there were approximately 40 year-round residents2, and had a current “bed 
base” of 2,600, with a total “bed base” of 3,800 at build-out. There is no current 
estimate of year-round residents, but monthly water consumption data indicates that 
between 60 and 180 people may be in the community at any one time during the 
shoulder and summer season. 

Apex is a designated Rural Growth Area with the potential to support a larger, year 
round population. As primarily a seasonal resort area, any new growth and development 
will depend upon a broader range of services being available in the village centre and 
new residential development. Through the OCP update process, Apex homeowners 
were strongly supportive of a renewed local area planning process to address 
community issues, concerns and opportunities that have arisen since the first resort 
master plan was completed for Apex over 30 years ago. The need for a new Local Area 
Plan for the community is underscored by potential resort expansion in the future that 
could greatly expand the community’s footprint. 

 
7.2.1 Policies 

The Regional Board: 

                                                 
2 Feasibility of Fire Protective Services within Apex Mountain Resort, 2006 



   

 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016  29 

.1 Supports the development of a Local Area Plan for Apex in partnership with the 
Resort owners prior to, or concurrent with, any expansion of the resort to: 

a) consolidate and improve the village centre as the community’s service centre 
and social heart;  

b) address residential development and servicing; and 

c) support improved services and infrastructure, including fire and emergency 
services, sewer, water and solid waste management.  

.2 Requests provincial financial and planning support to carry out the creation of a 
new Local Area Plan and help support consultation and engagement with 
Penticton Indian Band. 

.3 Requests that the Province consult with the RDOS in the early stages of any 
proposed expansion of Apex resort. 

.4 Supports the creation of a Form and Character Development Permit Area during 
the development of any Local Area Plan for Apex that includes guidelines around: 

a) environmental considerations, including snow, ice and wind; 

b) site design; 

c) building orientation and form; 

d) building materials; and 

e) snow management. 

.5 Encourages new development to consider and plan for safe storage of snow removed 
from roads and driveways. 

.6 Will continue to support the creation of a local service area for fire protection. 

.7 Strongly encourages and supports the development of a solid waste and recycling 
transfer station in Apex.  

.8 Supports ongoing community consultation and coordination between forestry 
operators within the Resource Area RA designation to minimize the impacts of forest 
harvesting on the community and its associated scenic and recreation values. 

.9 Supports enhanced road connectivity between Apex and the City of Penticton to 
improve safety, provide transportation alternatives to the single occupant vehicle, and 
ensure a safer road environment for residents living along Green Mountain Road and 
in Penticton Indian Band lands. 

.10 Supports the development of a recreational trail network in the area. 
 
7.3 Kaleden 

Kaleden is a small, unincorporated community located along the western side of Skaha 
Lake. Home to approximately 1,224 residents, Kaleden is situated south of Penticton 



   

 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016  30 

with access from Highway 97. Kaleden is the largest community in the Plan Area; though 
it incurred a 5% decrease in residents between 2006 and 2011, primarily due to the 
community’s aging population and an associated decrease in fertility rates. In prior 
years, the community experienced sustained, if slow, growth.  

In recent years, grape production has increased in prominence in tandem with the 
overall growth of the Okanagan’s wine industry. Approximately 45% of Kaleden’s land 
base is in Agricultural Land Reserve, or about 45% of the community’s total area. 
Kaleden is also home to significant tourism industry. The area features a number of 
B&Bs, a beautiful lakeside area, camping, and many recreational options (e.g., biking, 
rock climbing, hiking, swimming, sailing). In addition, the town is located along the 
historic Kettle Valley Railway, which today is a popular trail network for cyclists and 
hikers.  

The community has grown over the years and now supports several community 
amenities, including a small elementary school, a branch of the Okanagan Library, 
community hall, post office, general store, fire hall and gas station.  

As a designated Rural Growth Area, the community has some growth and development 
opportunities, particularly when sewer service is extended to the community from 
Okanagan Falls in the medium-term. Access and traffic safety on Highway 97 entrances 
and exits to the community are concerns. The gradual expansion of commercial and 
community services in Kaleden, including the development of a broader range of 
residential housing opportunities to support and attract young families and permit older 
residents to age-in-place and remain in the community, is important. Access to Skaha 
Lake and the ongoing development and improvement of the Kettle Valley Railway (KVR) 
Trail are also important community issues. 

 
7.3.1 Policies 

The Regional Board: 

.1 Supports extension of community sewer services to Kaleden. 

.2 Supports the development of a Local Area Plan for Kaleden concurrent with 
longer-term sewer service planning and community engagement to: 

a) encourage a broader range of residential housing opportunities; 

b) consolidate and improve the community commercial services; and 

c) ensure that the Regional District’s vision and broad goals direct and guide 
future development in the area.  

.3 Supports maintaining and enhancing the existing commercial uses for both local 
services and tourist commercial activities. 

.4 Supports a broader range of residential housing opportunities, including seniors 
housing, when feasible and appropriate, respects the character of the area, and is 
supported by the community. 



   

 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016  31 

.5 Encourages and supports the Province to continue safety and access improvements 
along the Highway 97 corridor, at Kaleden, within the existing right-of-way, including 
improved lighting, medians and traffic lights. 

.6 Encourages the Province to review safety issues related to commercial development 
accesses along Highway 97 at Kaleden. 

.7 Supports improving transit connections and linkages between Kaleden and 
surrounding communities, including Okanagan Falls, the City of Penticton, the 
Town of Osoyoos and the Town of Princeton. 

.8 Supports Kaleden Recreation and Parks Commission in their efforts to manage and 
enhance Pioneer Park. 

.9 Supports completion of the KVR Trail as an important linear park to link Kaleden with 
Okanagan Falls and, in the future, the City of Penticton. 

.10 Should work collaboratively with the Province and other relevant stakeholders to 
improve and maintain the KVR Trail between Kaleden and Okanagan Falls and the 
City of Penticton including interpretive signage and the development of non-
vehicular accesses. 

.11 Supports improving public access from upper Kaleden to Skaha Lake and the KVR 
trail where feasible and appropriate, including the use of road ends. Potential 
access points for further consideration include from Pineview Drive near the south 
end of Banbury Point, and from Oak Avenue to the KVR trail near the Ponderosa 
Resort. 

.12 Supports working with the Ministry of Transportation and Infrastructure to 
maintain the old Kaleden to Okanagan Falls Road for bicycle and pedestrian traffic 
as an adjunct to the KVR Trail. 

.13 Recognizes that Skaha Lake access and completion of the KVR Trail are priorities in 
terms of parkland acquisition. 

.14 Supports the provision of public access to Skaha Lake and recognizes road ends to 
the Lake as an important public resource that should be open where feasible and 
appropriate. 

.15 Encourages the restoration and re-vegetation of Skaha Lake public access points 
that have been damaged by public access and supports the use of interpretive and 
educational signage to enhance public awareness of the environment and help 
limit potential future damage. 

.16 Should work with partner agencies and organizations to identify Crown land 
parcels and adjacent accreted lands along Skaha Lake that may be suitable for 
designation as a Conservation Area. 

.17 Will consider developing public access objectives and design guidelines for the 
Skaha Lake shoreline that include criteria to minimize impacts to the foreshore 
ecosystem and species. 



   

 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016  32 

.18 Should work with other agencies to limit the number of wharves, docks, retaining 
walls and other structures on Skaha Lake, encourage sharing of docks and wharves 
on the lake, and consider future dock regulations.  

.19 Should work with partner agencies and organizations, to identify and minimize 
shoreline infill below the Skaha Lake high water mark (natural boundary) on 
private properties and public access points.  

.20 Should manage development to ensure that Skaha Lake water quality and supply is 
protected for long-term sustainability.  

.21 Will protect existing ALR areas in Kaleden from residential development, and 
encourage agricultural development on these ALR lands. 
 

7.4 St. Andrews 

Commonly known by the name of nine-hole golf course around which the development 
is centred (St. Andrews-by-the-Lake), St. Andrews is a small, privately developed strata 
community home to approximately 86 residential dwellings, with an additional eight 
parcels surveyed and registered but not yet built. A further 56 units were approved in 
the original Land Use Contract. The built residential units are organized in a cluster-
housing concept ranging from single-family dwellings to attached units. There is also a 
clubhouse at the golf course containing a small pro shop, a full service licensed 
restaurant, a banquet hall, and six rental "motel" rooms. It is a very popular venue for 
weddings and other events.  

While the community has not grown significantly since its initial development, recent 
indications show that a small number of young families are moving into the community, 
which has helped stabilize its population. 

New development at St. Andrews is constrained by its proximity to the Dominion Radio 
Astrophysical Observatory (DRAO), an internationally important research facility (and the 
Plan Area’s largest year-round employer) that is extremely sensitive to human generated 
Radio Frequency Interference (RFI). As a result, the St. Andrews development was 
intentionally restricted as a condition of initial project approval and several specific 
clauses were included in the Land Use Contract to protect the Observatory from RFI 
related to human development and activity. The Land Use Contract specifically laid out 
conditions to restrict installation and use of electrical equipment on the lands that could 
cause radio interference with the Observatory. These are included in agreements 
between the developer and buyers of lots in St. Andrews.  

Technical background studies carried out as part of the development of this OCP determined 
that sustainable groundwater supply is also an issue for the community along with 
wastewater management. The studies recommend no further groundwater development in 
this area without a detailed capacity assessment. 

 
7.4.1 Policies 



   

 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016  33 

The Regional Board: 

.1 Supports the eventual termination of the existing Land Use Contract in St. Andrews 
and its replacement with appropriate designations and zoning and other necessary 
measures including supporting DRAO securing an enduring legal basis for RFI 
protection and management.  

.2 Supports the Residential - Low Density Residential (LR) designation in the St. 
Andrews Land Use Contract area with implementation and zoning subject to: 

a) clear demonstration of consistency with the broad goals and objectives of this 
OCP;  

b) location of new development outside the identified RFI area as shown on 
Schedule ‘C’ (Dominion Radio Astrophysical Observatory RFI Area). 

c) proof of sustainable water availability and supply based on measured 
residential use and St. Andrews Golf Course use; 

d) establishment of adequate community on-site domestic water and sewage 
disposal in accordance with the Regional District’s Subdivision Servicing Bylaw 
and provincial regulations and submission of an assessment from a Qualified 
Professional; 

e) compatibility and integration with adjacent land uses and designations, and 
the character of the existing area; 

f) proximity and access to existing roads and other community and essential 
services;  

g) appropriate distribution of land uses, timing and staging of the development; 
and 

h) clear demonstration of best practice residential water conservation standards, 
including water metering and xeriscaping.  

.3 Supports low densities of land within the identified RFI area as shown on Schedule 
‘C’ (Dominion Radio Astrophysical Observatory RFI Area) designated AG Agricultural, 
RA Resource Area or AI Administrative, Cultural and Institutional to reflect its ALR 
status, environmental sensitivity, or presence of DRAO facilities as the case may be.  

.4 Encourages the reuse of treated grey water for golf course irrigation, where feasible 
and appropriate. 

.5 Supports upgrading the community wastewater infrastructure and will explore the 
feasibility and appropriateness of establishing a community sewer service. 

.6 Supports detailed assessment and determination of a sustainable supply of 
groundwater as a condition of all potential new development in the area. 

 
7.5 Twin Lakes 

Located about twenty minutes southwest of Kaleden, the Twin Lakes area is a small, but 



   

 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016  34 

relatively dispersed community that developed over time from a number of historic 
ranches that operated in the area. The Twin Lakes Guest Ranch existed from 1945 to 
1975. The first owners of the Guest Ranch also initiated the area’s first residential 
property subdivisions in 1959.   

With the popular 18-hole Twin Lakes Golf Course roughly marking the geographic centre 
of the community today, the area generally includes Twin Lake (also known as Nipit 
Lake), Horn Lake, Trout Lake (across Highway 3A from the golf course), Toy Lake, Sheep 
Creek, and the Marama Creek areas. Over the years, the area has grown to about 
approximately 175 properties, including about 55 residential properties and a small 
commercial complex with a gas station, convenience store and restaurant clustered near 
Trout Lake. The area’s year-round population estimated to be about 200 people, though 
there are more seasonal residents (most of whom live in summer homes around Twin 
Lake).  

Much of the housing in Twin Lakes consists of single-family detached homes. There is 
also a 39-site RV park adjacent to the Twin Lakes Golf Course, which includes a seasonal 
clubhouse and associated facilities.  

Groundwater supplies the majority of residential users in the Twin Lakes area and 
community members have expressed concerns regarding aquifer and groundwater 
sustainability. Engineering studies, including a high-level, technical summary review 
carried out in conjunction with the Plan Area OCP update project (Infrastructure Study 
for Electoral Area “D-1”, KWL Consulting Engineers, 2015), have identified and 
confirmed a number of aquifer issues and groundwater scarcity issues. The golf course 
uses a significant amount of water for irrigation, but has reported reducing its 
consumption by 50% over the past several years. Balancing any new potential 
development with water conservation and environmental stewardship is the 
community’s driving objective. Longer-term monitoring of groundwater with community 
observation wells, combined with monitoring of residential, agricultural and golf course 
use will determine the long-term sustainability of groundwater supply in the community 
and, potentially, Twin Lakes viability as a designated Rural Growth Area. Technical 
background studies carried out as part of the development of this OCP recommended no 
further development without additional groundwater studies. 

Twin Lakes is a designated Rural Growth Area in the South Okanagan RGS. A preliminary 
revised concept envisions shifting a development originally proposed for bench lands 
above the Twin Lakes Golf Course to an area in and around the existing clubhouse and 
RV park (see Section 6.3). Should development not proceed in Twin Lakes over the 
lifetime of this OCP, there is an opportunity for the Regional District to consider 
removing the area as designated Rural Growth Area during an RGS review process.  

 
7.5.1 Policies 

The Regional Board: 

.1 Supports the termination of the Land Use Contract in Twin Lakes and its 



   

 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016  35 

replacement with appropriate zoning, specifically: 

i) designating Lot 20, Plan KAP17461, Section 36, Township 89, District lot 2169, 
SDYD, as Agriculture (AG); and 

ii) designating Lots 1, 2 & 4-6, Plan KAP38989, Section 36, Township 89, District 
Lot 2169, SDYD, and Lots 1 & 2, Plan KAP58497, District Lot 2169, SDYD, as 
Small Holdings (SH). 

.2 Supports the designation of the Rural Growth Area as Residential Mixed Use 
(RMU). 

.3 Should consider new residential development proposals within the designated 
Rural Growth Area containment boundary subject to water supply availability. 

.4 Must require new, multi-unit or multi-lot residential development, or RV park 
development proposed for the designated Rural Growth Area to: 

a) clearly demonstrate its consistency with the broad goals and objectives of this 
OCP;  

b) provide an assessment of the proposal against the following criteria:  

i) provision of sustainable water supply without impacting existing 
residential developments and environmental flows; 

ii) establishment of adequate community on-site domestic water and sewage 
disposal in accordance with: 

.1 the Regional District’s Subdivision Servicing Bylaw  

.2 provincial regulations and  

.3 submission of an assessment from a Qualified Professional. 

iii) compatibility with adjacent land uses and designations, and the character 
of the existing area; and 

iv) type, timing and staging of the development.  

c) consider an urban village concept with pedestrian focus;  

d) clearly demonstrate best practice residential water conservation standards, 
including water metering, water re-use, and xeriscaping; and 

e) be organized around a phased concept plan where any future development 
phases are contingent upon sustainable water availability and supply based on 
at least ten-years of supply data monitored by a Qualified Professional from 
both existing groundwater observation wells and measured residential and 
Twin Lakes Golf Course use.  

.5 May review the suitability of Twins Lakes as a Rural Growth Area in the event 
development does not proceed within the area designated for Residential Mixed 
Use by 2025. 



   

 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016  36 

.6 Supports the Small Holdings SH designation within the RFI area as shown on 
Schedule ‘C’ (Dominion Radio Astrophysical Observatory RFI Area) to reduce 
subdivision potential and prevent and minimize potential additional RFI from new 
residential development.  

.7 Supports the development of a community sewer system in the Nipit and Trout 
Lake areas in coordination with potential new residential development in the 
designated Rural Growth Area. 

.8 Supports water metering and water conservation measures for existing and new 
development. 

.9 Supports the reuse of treated grey water for golf course irrigation, where feasible and 
appropriate. 

.10 Supports the establishment of a fire protection service for Twin Lakes, when 
appropriate and feasible. 

.11 Supports the development of a recreational trail network in the area. 
 
7.6 Other Areas 

Farleigh Lake, Green Mountain Road and Marron Valley are three rural areas in the Plan 
Area.  

The Farleigh Lake area is home to about 14 homes on both large lot and agricultural 
designations, with properties primarily clustered around the lake. The area is accessed 
via a paved road from Green Mountain Road. 

Unlike Farleigh Lake, which is a focused area around its namesake lake, Green Mountain 
Road is a rural area spread along approximately 60 kilometres of road between Highway 
3A, the Apex turn off, and the Penticton Indian Band IR#1. Located primarily in the 
Resource Area designation, the area is home to approximately 34 homes on large rural 
parcels. The area includes 17 properties that are designated Large Holdings (LH) close to 
the intersection of Apex Mountain Road and Green Mountain Road intersection. 

Marron Valley includes about 24 rural properties along Highway 3A between Twin Lakes 
and Kaleden, and along Marron Valley Road between Highway 3A and Green Mountain 
Road. 

 
7.6.1 Policies 

The Regional Board: 

.1 Supports working with the Ministry of Transportation and Infrastructure and the 
RCMP to improve road safety on Green Mountain Road. 

.2 Supports working with Penticton Indian Band to minimize conflict between 
agricultural and non-agricultural uses (i.e., livestock) in areas where Penticton 
Indian Band IR#1 abuts Regional District lands in the Farleigh Lake and Green 
Mountain Road areas. 



   

 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016  37 

.3 Supports ongoing collaboration with Penticton Indian Band regarding the 
management of wild horses in the area. 

.4 Recognizes the limited potential for further expansion of rural holdings in the Farleigh 
Lake area within the time frame of this Plan in consideration of physical and servicing 
limitations of the remaining lands.  



   

 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016  38 

  



   

 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016  39 

8.0 RESOURCE AREA  
 
8.1 Background 

This designation encompasses lands used and valued for grazing or rangelands, forestry, 
natural resource extraction, recreation, environmental conservation opportunities, and 
large rural residential. The designated Resource Areas in Electoral Area “D-1” reinforce 
the rural character of Plan Area and are a valued community resource.  

The Resource Area designation is intended to guide development outside of existing 
settlement areas, and provide direction for responses to referrals from provincial 
agencies. Resource Areas are described as large parcels of land, and includes both 
private and/or Crown land.  

It is recognized that certain matters considered in this section are beyond the 
jurisdiction of the Regional District (e.g., Crown land); however, the objectives and 
policies relating to these are intended to serve as indicators of community preference 
and to assist senior levels of government in planning and decision making. 

 
8.2 Objectives 

.1 Conserve scarce water resources and protect the quality and quantity of those 
resources for future generations. 

.2 Maintain the renewable natural resource land base and protect it from activities 
that may diminish the resource value and potential.  

.3 Plan for and protect wildlife corridors, habitat of threatened and endangered 
species and ecosystem connectivity.  

.4 Encourage and protect responsible outdoor recreation activities. 
 
8.3 Policies 

The Regional Board: 

.1 Supports the use of lands designated Resource Area (RA) identified in Schedule ‘B’ 
(Official Community Plan Map) for grazing or rangelands, forestry, natural resource 
extraction, recreation, environmental conservation, watershed protection and 
management opportunities, and limited rural residential uses. 

.2 Supports lands designated as Resource Area (RA) generally being maintained as 
large land parcels (i.e., as un-surveyed Crown land, or as District Lots).  

.3 Supports a 20 hectare minimum parcel size in recognition that these areas will remain 
as rural, with limited community services and infrastructure. 

.4 Supports responsible, low impact recreational uses which avoid critical habitats 
and minimize disturbance; and will work with the Province and others to ensure 
there are adequate staging areas with off-road parking. 



   

 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016  40 

.5 Supports communication with and participation by Syilix/Okanagan communities 
in the management and development of Crown resources.  

.6 Supports activities that improve range and forage conditions, including the 
continuation of the Noxious Weed Control Program to help control the invasion 
and spread of noxious weeds in the Plan Area.  

.7 Where there is forestry use, supports selective logging to maintain undiminished 
the capacity of the land to absorb and retain water, prevent erosion, and permit 
groundwater recharge throughout the harvest cycle.  

.8 Supports the identification and establishment of a Watershed Resource Area (WRA) 
zone in the Zoning Bylaw for designated community watersheds under the Forest 
and Range Practices Act where: 

a) one of the primary land management priorities is to maintain and manage 
local water quality and quantity;  

b) the minimum parcel size is 120 ha with a limited range of uses permitted; 
c) intensive recreation, subdivision and rezoning of lands within the zone are 

discouraged; 
d) recreationalists are encouraged to minimize stream crossings and stay on 

existing trails to prevent erosion; and 
e) the Province is encouraged to retain, in perpetuity, public ownership and to 

manage, for watershed protection purposes, all Crown land within designated 
community watersheds of existing major or minor domestic water sources. 

 
 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Figure 15:  Plan Area – Designated Community Watersheds 
  



   

 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016  41 

9.0 AGRICULTURE  
 
9.1 Background 

The agricultural land base in the Plan Area is limited and widely dispersed.  
Approximately 9.3% of the total land base of the Plan Area is designated as Agriculture 
(AG). The area’s agricultural land generally consists of two types. Small intensively 
managed areas are devoted to the production of tree fruits, grapes and vegetables; and 
larger areas, usually at higher elevations, generally consisting of rangeland for grazing 
cattle.  The smaller areas are at lower elevations and are often irrigated. The larger 
areas consist mainly of Crown land leases and may have some forest cover. 

Land used for agricultural purposes is generally located within the Agricultural Land 
Reserve (ALR) and is therefore regulated by the Agricultural Land Commission (ALC).  

The Agriculture AG designation within the Plan Area applies to land used or intended to 
be used for an agricultural operation or activity generally including the production of 
livestock, poultry, farmed game, fur bearing animals, crops, fruit, grain, vegetables, milk, 
eggs, honey, mushrooms, wood and fibre crops, grapes, and horticultural and 
aquaculture products, as well as activities associated with the production and 
processing of these items. 

 
9.2 Objectives 

.1 Protect the agricultural land base of the Plan Area and associated farming, ranching 
and general agricultural activities.  

.2 Minimize conflicts and improve the compatibility between non-agricultural uses and 
agricultural uses. 

.3 Minimize the impacts of agriculture and ranching on sensitive environmental 
resources. 

 
9.3 Policies 

The Regional Board: 

.1 Generally supports the use of lands designated Agriculture (AG) identified on 
Schedule ‘B’ (Official Community Plan Map) for an agricultural operation or activity 
generally including the production of livestock, poultry, farmed game, fur bearing 
animals, crops, fruit, grain, vegetables, milk, eggs, honey, mushrooms, wood and 
fibre crops, grapes, and horticultural and aquaculture products, as well as 
activities associated with the production and processing of these items. 

.2 Recognizes agricultural land as necessary for agricultural businesses that provide 
regional economic stability and growth opportunities. 



   

 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016  42 

.3 Encourages the preservation of environmental values in the Agriculture (AG) 
designation. 

.4 Discourages subdivisions that fragment farm, vineyard, or orchard units and will 
encourage consolidation of small parcels into larger farm units to increase 
efficiency and production.  

.5 Considers that any application proposing to exclude land from the ALR shall be 
accompanied by an assessment from a qualified Professional Agrologist (P.Ag) 
stating the property is incorrectly designated and that exclusion would not 
adversely affect the long-term agricultural value of adjoining lands.  

.6 Supports second dwellings within the ALR where they are used to support agricultural 
activities and purposes (e.g., workers’ housing). 

.7 Encourages new development adjacent to agricultural areas to provide sufficient 
buffering in the form of setbacks, fencing and landscaping that is consistent with 
Ministry of Agriculture guidelines. 

.8 Encourages provincial and utility agencies to minimize the impact of new roads and 
utility corridors through agricultural land by utilizing only those lands necessary, and by 
maximizing the capacity of existing corridors and roads. 

.9 Supports the agricultural industry by considering the establishment of economic 
strategies that promote the industry, and identify new farm markets. 

.10 Supports the agricultural and rural economy by encouraging secondary, value-added 
uses such as agritourism, secondary processing of products, and home 
occupations/industry provided they are compatible with surrounding land uses. 

.11 Encourages the consolidation of legal parcels that form part of the same farm unit 
where the consolidation permits a more efficient use of agricultural land. 

.12 Supports measures by the Province to reduce agricultural/residential conflicts through 
education, aimed at helping residents better understand the requirements of farm 
operations, and helping farm operations use different methods that may create fewer 
conflicts. 

.13 Recognizes that parcel sizes within the Agriculture designation may vary depending on 
respective zoning, and the decisions of the Agricultural Land Commission, but generally 
shall not be smaller than 4 ha for orchards, 10 ha for vineyards and 20 ha for ranching. 

.14 May consider supporting applications to subdivide parcels smaller than 4 ha within the 
Agricultural Land Reserve, subject to approval of the ALC, in the following cases: 

a)  For a homesite severance under the ALC’s homesite severance policy; and  

b)  Where the subdivision or boundary adjustment enhances agricultural viability. 
  

Note:  In these cases, the individual parcel sizes within the Agriculture designation are subject 
to approval by the Agricultural Land Commission, and must meet minimum parcel size required 
to satisfy the relevant Provincial regulations for septic disposal fields. The Agricultural Land 
Commission maynot always support applications for these forms of subdivision. 



   

 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016  43 

10.0 RURAL HOLDINGS 
 
10.1 Background   

The Plan Area’s rural character and lifestyles are some of the most valued aspects to 
area residents. While the majority of future residential growth will be directed to 
designated Rural Growth Areas, there is potential for limited rural development.  

Within the Plan Area, Rural Holdings are generally grouped into two categories, Large 
Holdings (LH) and Small Holdings (SH).   

The Large Holdings designation, applies to typically privately-held properties smaller 
than Resource Area parcels and includes large parcels of land generally used for 
acreages, hobby farms, limited agriculture, ranching, grazing, and other uses that fit 
with the character of this area. Large Holdings should have a range of minimum parcel 
sizes but no less than of 4 hectares. 

The Small Holdings designation includes medium sized parcels of land generally used for 
rural residential, part time farming, limited agriculture, home industry uses and other 
uses that fit with the character of the area. As with Large Holdings, Small Holdings are 
located outside of the Agricultural Land Reserve. 

 
10.2 Objectives 

.1 Retain and enhance the rural character of lands designated for Large Holdings and 
Small Holdings. 

.2 Prevent rural sprawl, by limiting development on Small Holdings properties to 
rural residential densities and agricultural uses.  

.3 Reduce potential conflicts between rural residential developments and agricultural 
operations on Rural Holdings. 

.4 Reduce the wildfire hazard threat to residential areas located within the Small and 
Large Holdings designations. 

 
10.3 Policies - General 

The Regional Board: 

.1 Supports home occupation and home industry uses on lands designated Small 
Holdings (SH) and Large Holdings (LH), provided the uses are compatible with the 
surrounding rural character.  

.2 Will evaluate new Rural Holdings developments against the implications and impacts 
on the agricultural uses in the area. 

.3 Generally does not support additional development outside of the designated 
Rural Growth Areas. 



   

 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016  44 

.4 Requires any proposal to create additional land designated or zoned either Large 
Holdings or Small Holdings to:  

a) Clearly demonstrate and articulate the need for it in the context of its impact 
on the community and the objectives of this OCP; and  

b) Provide an assessment of the proposal against the following criteria:  

i) availability of vacant land currently designated as either Large Holdings 
or Small Holdings;  

ii) capability of the natural environment to support the proposed 
development;  

iii) impact on environmentally sensitive areas, as illustrated on Schedule ‘I’ 
(Environmentally Sensitive Development Permit Areas); 

iv) capability of accommodating on-site domestic water and sewage disposal, 
or availability of community water or sewer, and submission of an 
assessment from a qualified professional in accordance with the 
Regional District Subdivision Servicing Bylaw;  

v) proximity to existing roads and other community and essential services; 

vi) susceptibility to natural hazards including but not limited to flooding, 
slope instability or wildfire risk;  

vii) compatibility with adjacent land uses and designations, and the 
character of the existing area;  

viii) consideration of visual impacts where development is proposed on 
hillsides and other visually sensitive areas; and  

ix) type, timing and staging of the development. 

.5 Supports home occupation and home industry uses which can potentially generate 
RFI within the identified RFI area as shown on Schedule ‘C’ (Dominion Radio 
Astrophysical Observatory RFI Area) only if compatible with DRAO’s operations. 

.6 Protects and conserves agriculturally productive land, and environmentally 
sensitive areas within designated Small Holdings and Large Holdings areas.  

.7 Should work collaboratively with the Subdivision Approving Authority to ensure 
that rural developments and subdivisions allow for public access to Crown land.  

.8 Encourages voluntary environmental stewardship on private lands within Small 
and Large Holdings areas.  

.9 Generally will not support applications for rezoning or subdivision of lands designated 
as Radio Frequency Interference (RFI) areas as shown on Schedule ‘C’ (Dominion Radio 
Astrophysical Observatory RFI Area). 

.10 Encourages new developments that abut agricultural land or livestock grazing land to 
provide perimeter fencing.  



   

 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016  45 

 
10.4 Policies – Large Holdings 

The Regional Board: 

.1 Supports the use of lands designated Large Holdings identified in Schedule ‘B’ 
(Official Community Plan Map) for ranching, grazing, outdoor recreation, open 
space, limited residential use and other uses that will have minimal environmental 
impact and preserve the lands in a largely undeveloped state. 

.2 Will establish a range of densities and parcel sizes, to be no less than 4 ha in area, 
for land designated Large Holdings in the Plan area through the Zoning Bylaw. 

.3 Allows secondary suites and may consider additional accessory dwellings based on 
the size of parcel. 

.4 Will not consider accessory dwelling units within the identified RFI area as shown 
on Schedule ‘C’ (Dominion Radio Astrophysical Observatory RFI Area) to reduce RFI 
risks. 

.5 Discourages changes in land designation or zoning that will allow for incompatible 
land uses or the subdivision of Large Holdings parcels to less than four hectares in 
size. 

 
10.5 Policies – Small Holdings 

The Regional Board: 

.1 Generally supports a range of uses on the lands designated Small Holdings in 
Schedule ‘B’ (Official Community Plan Map), including: rural residential, hobby 
farming, limited agriculture and others uses that fit within the rural character of 
the surrounding area.  

.2 Will establish a range of densities and parcel sizes for lands designated Small Holdings 
in the Plan Area through the Zoning Bylaw. 

.3 Supports a minimum parcel size of one hectare for lands without community 
sewer within the Small Holdings (SH) designation.



   

 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016  46 

11.0 RESIDENTIAL 
 
11.1 Background 

Residential development in the Plan Area has occurred in four primary locations -- 
Kaleden, St. Andrews, Twin Lakes and Apex. Low-density single detached dwellings are 
the predominant housing form throughout the Plan Area including these settlement 
areas. Other forms of low-density residential housing include semi-detached, and 
manufactured homes.  

The Plan Area contains a significant amount of medium density residential housing in 
the Apex area. The Twin Lakes Golf Resort also contains lands which are designated 
Medium Density Residential, but which are not yet developed. The St. Andrews Land 
Use Contract includes ‘rowhouses’ and ‘semi-detached’ housing. 

There are three residential land use designations recognized within this Plan. Rural 
Holdings (i.e., Large Holdings and Small Holdings) are not included as residential 
designations. 

· Low Density Residential (LR): generally includes single detached dwellings, 
mobile homes, duplexes, and complementary secondary uses such as daycares, 
preschools, and small parks which are integral to a low density residential 
neighbourhood.  

· Medium Density Residential (MR): generally includes townhouses, duplexes, 
triplexes, fourplexes, and those complementary secondary uses such as 
daycares, preschools, and small parks, which are integral to a medium density 
area.  

· Residential Mixed Use (RMU): generally incorporates mixed medium density 
residential, institutional and commercial lands in Apex and the designated Rural 
Growth Area in Twin Lakes. The designation also includes a range of higher 
density housing types from row housing to apartments, mixed use recreation 
and commercial uses, natural open spaces, and administrative, cultural or 
institutional uses.  

 
11.2 Objectives 

.1 Direct new residential development to existing serviced areas, within designated Rural 
Growth Areas to protect the predominately rural character of the Plan Area. 

.2 Minimize impacts from new residential development on the natural environment. 

.3 Accommodate a range of housing types and tenures to meet the socio-economic 
needs of the community.  

.4 Direct new residential development away from Environmentally Sensitive 
Development Permit Areas, Watercourse Development Permit Areas and hazard lands. 



   

 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016  47 

.5 Protect the Dominion Radio Astrophysical Observatory by minimizing residential uses 
in the White Lake Basin, St. Andrews and other areas within the RFI areas shown on 
Schedule ‘C’ (Dominion Radio Astrophysical Observatory RFI Area), to help minimize 
Radio Frequency Interference (RFI) from residential uses. 

 
11.3 Policies – General Residential 

The Regional Board: 

.1 Directs the development of new housing to existing vacant lots (with servicing), or 
previously approved residential subdivisions, prior to considering more residential 
development on non-residential designations in identified Rural Growth Areas. 

.2 Should not support new residential development outside of designated Rural Growth 
Areas. 

.3 Supports a range of residential densities and parcel sizes for the existing residential 
areas and resort communities in the Plan Area. 

.4 Supports housing for a range of income levels, lifestyles and ages including rental 
housing and secondary suites where appropriate and feasible. 

.5 Will assess proposed residential developments on the following development criteria: 

a) capability of accommodating on-site domestic water and sewage disposal, or the 
availability of community water or sewer; 

b) ability of community water or sewer systems to be extended to existing 
neighbouring subdivisions which are presently un-serviced; 

c) proximity to Environmentally Sensitive Development Permit Areas; 

d) proximity to Watercourse Development Permit Areas; 

e) impact on adjacent land uses and character of the existing area; 

f) proximity to existing roads and other community and essential services; 

g) susceptibility to natural hazards including, but not limited to, flooding, soil 
instability, land slide, rockfall, moderate or higher forest fire;  

h) parkland dedication; and 

i) demonstration of housing need, and provision for a variety of housing types. 

.6 In consideration of the potential of RFI impacts on the Dominion Radio Astrophysical 
Observatory facility, generally will not support applications for rezoning or subdivision 
upon lands identified as radio frequency interference (RFI) areas as shown on Schedule 
‘C’ Dominion Radio Astrophysical Observatory RFI Area. 

.7 Will evaluate any new residential development on its implications and impacts on 
adjacent lands designated as Agriculture AG.   



   

 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016  48 

.8 Encourages new developments that abut agricultural land or livestock grazing land to 
provide perimeter fencing. 

.9 Encourages residential development that abuts land designated Agriculture AG to 
provide buffers pursuant to Ministry of Agriculture guidelines. 

 
11.4 Policies –Low Density Residential 

The Regional Board: 

.1 Generally supports the use of lands designated Low Density Residential (LR) 
identified in Schedule ‘B’ (Official Community Plan Map) for single family 
dwellings, secondary suites, manufactured homes, small parks, small religious 
buildings and facilities, institutional buildings, local convenience stores and other 
uses that fit with the low density residential character of the designation.  

.2 Considers the maximum density of lands designated Low Density Residential (LR) 
to be 15 to 20 dwelling units per gross hectare, subject to servicing requirements. 

.3 Encourages clustering of Low Density Residential (LR) development within 
designated Rural Growth Areas to achieve lower servicing costs and to minimize 
environmental impacts. 

.4 Supports home occupations and bed and breakfasts within a single family dwelling 
provided the operation does not have an unacceptable negative impact on the 
surrounding homes and the quality of life of existing residents. 

  
11.5 Policies –Medium Density Residential 

The Regional Board: 

.1 Generally supports the use of lands designated Medium Density Residential (MR) 
identified in Schedule ‘B’ Official Community Plan Map for multi-family 
developments, including duplexes, triplexes, fourplexes, and townhouses that fit 
with the residential intent of the designation.  

.2 Considers the maximum density of lands designated Medium Density Residential 
(MR) to be between 30 and 35 dwelling units per gross hectare for townhouse 
developments, subject to servicing requirements. 

.3 May consider the designation of new Medium Density Residential (RM) areas in 
Kaleden in conjunction with planned sewer service to the area, additional planning 
and analysis, and community input. 

.4 Supports the following types of special housing in areas designated Medium 
Density Residential (MR):  

a) community care housing; and 

b) seniors and special needs housing. 



   

 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016  49 

.5 Will avoid locating Medium Density Residential (MR) development next to land 
designated as Agriculture (AG). If multiple family development is to be located 
near land designated as Agriculture (AG), then the following steps must be taken:  

a) buffering should be constructed in accordance with Ministry of Agriculture 
guidelines;  

b) the ground floor of the building should be set back far enough from the 
agricultural use to minimize conflicts; and 

c) the building should be designed to step back away from the Agriculture land 
as the building increases in height. 

  
11.6 Policies – Residential Mixed Use 

The Regional Board: 

.1 Generally supports the use of lands designated Residential Mixed Use (RMU) 
identified in Schedule ‘B’ Official Community Plan Map for medium density mixed 
use developments with residential and commercial components that fit with the 
mixed use intent of the designation.  

.2 Considers the maximum density of lands designated Residential Mixed Use (RMU) 
to be between 50 and 55 dwelling units (townhouses and apartments) per gross 
hectare, subject to servicing requirements. 

.3 Supports the following types of special housing in areas designated Residential 
Mixed Use (RMU), subject to the creation of a local service area for fire protection:  

a) community care housing; and 

b) seniors and special needs housing 

.4 Will avoid locating Residential Mixed Use (RMU) development next to land 
designated as Agriculture. Low Density Residential (LR) uses will be preferred as a 
transition between Agriculture and Residential Mixed Use (RMU) development. If 
residential mixed use development is to be located near land designated as 
Agriculture (AG), the following steps must be taken:  

a) buffering should be constructed in accordance with Ministry of Agriculture 
guidelines;  

b) the ground floor of the building should be set back far enough from the 
agricultural use to minimize conflicts; and 

c) the building should be designed to step back away from designated 
Agriculture (AG) land as the building increases in height. 

.5 Commercial uses in Residential Mixed Use (RMU) development are encouraged 
that cater to the local neighbourhood service and retail needs or provide small 
scale tourist accommodation services. 

 



   

 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016  50 

11.7 Policies - Vacation Rentals 

The Regional Board: 

.1 Supports the provision of paid accommodation for visitors through the short-term 
rental of residences provided that community and neighbourhood residential 
needs and other land use needs can be addressed. 

.2 Supports the use of a residence for short-term vacation rental where permitted by 
a Temporary Use Permit. The Regional Board may use the following criteria to 
assess applications: 

a) capability of accommodating on-site domestic water and sewage disposal; 

b) mitigating measures such as screening and fencing; 

c) provision of adequate off-street parking; 

d) confirmation that the structure proposed complies with the BC Building Code; 
and 

e) benefits that such accommodation may provide to the community. 



   

 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016  51 

12.0 COMMERCIAL 
 
12.1 Background 

Commercial development in the Plan Area is limited and generally occurs in the form of gas 
stations (with convenience stores), some tourist commercial lodgings and RV sites, and 
fruit stands in Kaleden. Currently, most commercial sites are located along Highway 97 at 
Kaleden and Highway 3A at Twin Lakes. There are a few smaller, neighbourhood commercial 
sites located in Kaleden. Apex includes mixed-use commercial and residential development, 
clustered primarily in the village centre. There is a designated Tourist Commercial area on 
Green Mountain Road at the turn-off for Apex that is currently undeveloped. 

The Plan recognizes highway commercial and tourist commercial developments under 
the same Commercial designation and also generally encourages larger scale services 
and commercial developments be directed to designated Primary Growth Areas such as 
Okanagan Falls and the City of Penticton, which are better able to function as regional service 
centres. 

At the time of adoption of this Plan, the Regional District is not designating any 
additional areas for proposed commercial uses, as it considers that there is sufficient 
unused land presently designated for commercial uses. 

 
12.2 Objectives 

.1 Maintain the current level of local commercial sites to serve the existing communities 
and tourists, and expand services as future growth may dictate. 

.2 Direct major commercial development to Primary Growth Areas.  

.3 Support existing and new recreation and resort commercial opportunities. 
 
12.3 Policies – General Commercial 

The Regional Board: 

.1 Generally supports the use of lands designated Commercial (C) identified in 
Schedule ‘B’ Official Community Plan Map for smaller-scale, neighbourhood-serving 
commercial activities. 

.2 Limits local commercial uses to those existing designated areas, or to areas where they 
may be developed in conjunction with future residential or commercial tourism 
developments. 

.3 Limits highway commercial development along Highways 97 and 3A to parcels already 
zoned accordingly, or designated as Commercial (C) or Commercial Tourist (CT). 



   

 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016  52 

.4 Will work with the Ministry of Transportation and Infrastructure to help ensure safe 
access and egress for commercial areas fronting Highway 97 in Kaleden and Highway 
3A at Twin Lakes. 

.5 Directs major office, service and general business commercial uses to Primary Growth 
Areas such as Okanagan Falls or the City of Penticton, which have the necessary 
infrastructure and support services. 

 
12.4 Policies – Tourist Commercial 

The Regional Board: 

.1 Generally supports the use of lands designated Commercial Tourist (CT) identified in 
Schedule ‘B’ Official Community Plan Map for commercial services and activities 
catering to tourists, including campgrounds, resorts, RV parks, golf courses, and agri-
tourism businesses, including fruit stands. 

.2 Encourages open space recreation and resort commercial opportunities, such as 
guest ranches, trail rides, campgrounds, and/or wilderness guides in areas 
designated as Resource Area or Large Holdings provided they do not impact on 
abutting land uses and meet Watercourse Development and/or Environmentally 
Sensitive Development Permit Area requirements. 

.3 May support proposed tourist and resort developments that: 

a) are located outside the Agricultural Land Reserve; 

b) are located outside the Radio Frequency Interference (RFI) areas as shown on 
Schedule ‘C’ (Dominion Radio Astrophysical Observatory RFI Area); 

c) can accommodate on-site domestic water and sewage disposal, or have community 
water or sewer available; 

d) enhance adjacent land uses or the character of the existing area; 

e) can be accessed safely from local highways (Highway 97 or Highway 3A); 

f) can be adequately serviced by emergency services, in particular fire protection; 

g) meet any Watercourse or Environmentally Sensitive Development Permit Area 
requirements; 

h) are outside areas susceptible to natural hazards, including but not limited to, steep 
slopes, flooding, soil instability, or rock fall; and 

i) indicate an adequate wildfire hazard interface area if located in or near an identified 
high-risk wildfire hazard area. 

  



   

 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016  53 

13.0 INDUSTRIAL 
 
13.1 Background 

There are currently no designated Industrial areas in the Plan Area, however, the 
principal industrial activity in the Plan Area is logging, which generally occurs on 
Crown lands that are subject to the Resource Area designation. Small-scale resource 
extraction also occurs within the Plan Area. 

Limited and small-scale industrial home-occupations (e.g., small scale sawmilling) can 
occur in Resource Areas and Rural Holdings.  Larger industrial activities, including light 
manufacturing and fabricating are encouraged to locate in designated, serviced 
industrial areas in Okanagan Falls, which are better suited to accommodate them. 

The Plan recognizes the importance — to the whole of the Electoral Area — of the 
former Weyerhaeuser site in Okanagan Falls as an industrial park and supports this 
initiative by directing more intensive industrial development to this site, which is also 
better able to function as a service centre  

Accordingly, at the time of adoption of this Plan, the Regional District is not 
designating any areas for proposed industrial uses. The Regional District may consider 
designating land for proposed industrial uses on a case-by-case basis if or when 
demand warrants. 

 
13.2 Objectives 

.1 Support Okanagan Falls as the industrial centre for the larger area (i.e., outside of the 
Plan Area). 

.2 Support small-scale home industry and home occupation activities in Resource 
Areas and Large Holdings where appropriate. 

 
13.3 Policies 

The Regional Board: 

.1 Encourages larger-scale industrial and light manufacturing activities to locate in 
Okanagan Falls and other serviced and designated industrial areas in the Regional 
District. 

.2 May consider designating land Industrial, where appropriate, on a case-by-case basis. 

.3 May consider accommodating time limited industrial uses through Temporary Use 
Permits if compatible with adjacent uses and RFI impacts. 

 
  



   

 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016  54 

14.0 ADMINISTRATIVE, CULTURAL AND INSTITUTIONAL 
 
14.1 Background 

As a primarily rural area with a relatively small, dispersed population, the Plan Area 
contains limited administrative and community facilities and cultural resources.   

The Administrative, Cultural and Institutional designation includes public, non-profit or 
utility uses such as schools, religious buildings, recreation facilities, community 
centres, public health facilities, community care facilities, fire halls, libraries, post 
offices, and local government and improvement or irrigation district buildings.  

The principal institutional use in Plan Area is the National Research Council of 
Canada’s Dominion Radio Astrophysical Observatory (DRAO) at White Lake. 
Inaugurated in 1960, the internationally significant component of NRC activities 
currently operates three telescopes on its extensive radio-quiet site, including a 26-
metre fully steerable radio receiver dish. The only radio astronomy site in Canada, the 
large facility site was selected following a Canada wide site selection process for its 
rural location and the fact that it is shielded significantly by surrounding terrain from 
Radio Frequency Interference (RFI). The site remains sensitive to RFI and requires 
ongoing protection. DRAO is the Plan Area’s largest, year-round employer with 
approximately 50 staff and plays an important role in the regional economy as well as 
being of national and international scientific importance. 

At the time of adoption of this Plan, the Regional District is not designating any 
additional areas for proposed institutional uses. The Regional District may consider 
designating land for proposed institutional uses on a case-by-case basis, as demand 
warrants. 

 
14.2 Educational and Community Facilities 

The school system within the Plan Area is operated by two school districts, School District 
No. 67 and School District No. 53.  The Regional District has no mandate on education 
policies other than advocating to the School Districts on policy areas that impact the 
Regional District. 

Presently there is only one elementary school in the Plan area and it is located in Kaleden, 
School District No. 67. Students in the rural areas are bussed into the more populated 
communities such as Kaleden for elementary school and to the Town of Oliver and City of 
Penticton for high school. The school population is stable and the School District does not 
anticipate any changes to Kaleden Elementary School over the longer term. 

The Plan Area presently has one community hall at Kaleden. The facility is joint use with a 
library and daycare centre operated from the building. 

 



   

 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016  55 

14.2.1 Objective 

.1 Maintain existing facilities and provide new or expanded community facilities 
consistent with population growth. 

 
14.2.2 Policies 

The Regional Board: 

.1 Continues to liaise with School Districts No. 67 (Okanagan Skaha) and No. 53 
(Okanagan Similkameen) to determine needs and issues. 

.2 Will continue to encourage the use of school buildings and grounds, after regular 
school hours, by community groups, clubs, sports teams and Plan Area residents. 

.3 Recognizes the use of private community facilities and amenities (e.g., clubhouses, 
etc.) for community activities, events and programs in Apex, St. Andrews and Twin 
Lakes. 

.4 Supports Kaleden Recreation and Parks Commission and Kaleden Community 
Association in their efforts to maintain and enhance Kaleden Community Hall and 
park amenities. 

 
14.3 Protective Services 

The Kaleden fire district includes Kaleden as well as the area to the southwest along White 
Lake Road to St. Andrews. It is important to ensure these communities have sufficient 
water supply to support fire protection. There is also a need to provide fire protection 
services to those areas presently not covered. This includes Apex Mountain where a local 
service area for fire protection has been proposed for a number of years, but has been 
difficult to secure given the limited number of year-round residents (i.e., limited volunteer 
capacity).  

Police services are provided by the RCMP, which has stations in the City of Penticton and 
the Town of Oliver as does the BC Ambulance Service. 

 

 

 



   

 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016  56 

Map Note: 
Apex Fire 
District is 
proposed but it 
does not yet 
exist due to 
limited tax 
base and 
volunteer base. 
 

 
Figure 16:  Plan Area Fire Protection Service Areas 

 
14.3.1 Objectives 

.1 Maintain existing protective services and facilities, and coordinate resources to 
establish new facilities and services. 

.2 Expand and enhance existing community policing programs as resources and 
population growth allow. 

 
14.3.2 Policies 

The Regional Board: 

.1 Should continue exploring opportunities to establish fire protection services to Twin 
Lakes and Apex Mountain. 

.2 Should continue to work with senior governments to ensure adequate and visible 
provincial and federal services are maintained in the Plan Area. 

.3 Encourages new community water systems to be capable of fire suppression as 
required under the Regional District’s Subdivision and Servicing Bylaw. 

.4 Should work with the RCMP and Regional District staff to review opportunities to 
expand community policing in the Plan Area where necessary. 

.5 Should support and facilitate effective and efficient bylaw enforcement in the 
Plan Area. 

.6 Supports fire protection service for all established communities within the Plan Area. 
 



   

 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016  57 

14.4 Dominion Radio Astrophysical Observatory 

The Dominion Radio Astrophysical Observatory (DRAO) is the only research facility of its 
kind in Canada, and, as the largest year-round employer the Plan Area, provides a 
significant contribution to the local economy and ongoing contributions to national and 
international research initiatives.   

The Regional District acknowledges the critical scientific and economic importance of 
DRAO, and recognizes its sensitivity to Radio Frequency Interference (RFI) that may result 
from development and human activity outside of DRAO property but within the RFI area. 

The degree to which development may interfere with Observatory activities is, in part, a 
function of distance and whether the development lies within lines-of sight of radio-
telescope equipment.  Schedule ‘C’ (Dominion Radio Astrophysical Observatory RFI Area) 
identifies the approximate areas that are:  

· directly within the lines-of-sight of existing telescopes or potentially within the lines-of-
sight of any future telescopes; 

· within 61.0 metres vertically of such lines-of-sight; and  

· within 2.5 km of the Observatory. 

Development within the area identified in Schedule ‘C’ (Dominion Radio Astrophysical 
Observatory RFI Area) could significantly interfere with the research activities conducted at 
DRAO.  While the impact of RFI generated by human activity within 61 metres vertically of 
the lines-of-sight of existing telescopes; it is nevertheless important to minimize the levels 
of RFI or risks of potential RFI.   

The Regional District will work with DRAO with respect to any development proposed in 
the area identified in Schedule ‘C’ to avoid RFI risk. 

 
14.4.1 Objectives 

.1 Minimize the levels of Radio Frequency Interference (RFI) on DRAO from existing 
development. 

.2 Prevent and/or minimize additional RFI from potential new development. 
 
14.4.2 Policies 

The Regional Board: 

.1 Supports the designation of that part of Lot A, Plan KAP27201, Section 3 10, 
Township 88, District Lot 2463S, SDYD, Except Plan SPK180 (St Andrews), situated 
outside the RFI area as Low Density Residential (LR), provided such development 
meets the criteria outlined in Section 7.4.1 (Local Area Policies). 

.2 Generally will not support future rezoning or subdivision applications that will create 
additional development or intensify development within the area illustrated on 
Schedule ‘C’ (Dominion Radio Astrophysical Observatory RFI Area).   



   

 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016  58 

.3 Encourages the Federal Government to purchase undeveloped lands that could 
present a potential significant risk of RFI wherever feasible and appropriate. 

.4 Will continue supporting and working with DRAO to: 

a) help inform current and prospective residents about their properties being 
located within, or near, an RFI area as illustrated on Schedule ‘C’ (Dominion Radio 
Astrophysical Observatory RFI Area); 

b) inform current and prospective owners about RFI impacts on this major scientific 
facility; and 

c) educate current and prospective residents on how to prevent and minimize uses 
with a RFI impact. 

 
14.5 Heritage and Cultural Resources 

The Regional District recognizes that heritage conservation is an important community 
value that contributes to the distinct identity of the region. 

The Regional Heritage Strategic Plan will identify community heritage values and places 
of historical significance in Electoral Area “D-1”, such as historic buildings and 
landscapes, features such as the Fur Brigade Trail, and other significant heritage 
resources.  

With Indigenous traditional use activities dating back millennia, the Plan Area is also 
home to a large number of important cultural sites and landscapes of profound value to 
`the Penticton Indian Band, Lower Similkameen Indian Band and other Okanagan Nation 
Alliance members. One of the most important cultural resource areas is White Lake, 
which is still actively used for cultural activities. Other important sites include a number 
of important Senklip (Coyote) landmarks (e.g., winter house, tribute rock) and other 
cultural sites in the Twin Lakes area. 

 
14.5.1 Objectives 

.1 Promote the conservation of heritage resources in the Plan Area, as indicated by the 
Regional District’s Regional Heritage Strategic Plan. 

.2 Celebrate the culture and heritage of the peoples and communities, including 
Indigenous communities, within the Plan Area to educate and inform visitors and 
residents alike. 

.3 Seek opportunities to work with Penticton Indian Band and Lower Similkameen 
Indian Band through the Protocol Agreement’s Joint Council and other planning 
avenues, to recognize, protect and, where appropriate and feasible, interpret 
important cultural sites and features in the Plan Area. 

.4 Support incorporation of Penticton Indian Band and Lower Similkameen Indian Band 
cultural and heritage resource objectives within the Regional District’s Regional 
Heritage Strategic Plan where appropriate and practical. 



   

 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016  59 

.5 Seek opportunities to work with the Osoyoos Indian Band to recognize, protect and, 
where appropriate and feasible, interpret important cultural sites and features in the 
Plan Area. 

 
14.5.2 Policies 

The Regional Board: 

.1 May consider the inclusion of heritage conservation in all aspects of community and 
regional planning.  

.2 Supports the Province and other interest groups in identifying and protecting 
features and sites of Indigenous, paleontological, scenic, architectural, historical, 
archaeological and other sites of significance within the Plan Area. 

.3 Supports the management of heritage resources on a regional basis including the 
establishment of a Regional District community heritage commission and the 
creation of a community heritage register. 

.4 Should undertake the conservation and protection of heritage resources through the 
Regional Heritage Strategic Plan using appropriate heritage conservation tools. 

.5 Encourages developers to consider cultural and heritage resource opportunities in 
project planning and design. 

.6 Recognizes and celebrates the rich Syilix/Okanagan cultural and cultural features 
that exist in the Plan Area.   

.7 Should consult with Penticton Indian Band, Lower Similkameen Indian Band and 
other Okanagan Nation Alliance (ONA) members on development proposals within 
the Plan Area through the Protocol Agreement’s Joint Council and other appropriate 
planning avenues.



   

 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016  60 

15.0 PARKS, RECREATION AND TRAILS 
 
15.1 Background 

Parks are generally publicly owned areas that provide an opportunity for individuals to 
pursue leisure and recreation activities. In the Plan Area, parkland includes Crown land, 
such as Apex Recreation Area, land owned by the Regional District, land zoned for park 
purposes and land designated as park on a subdivision plan, including some private 
park and recreation areas. Parkland also includes land or general areas that the 
Regional District may have an interest in for park in the future.  

The types of park and recreation facilities under the Parks, Recreation and Trails (PR) 
designation in the Plan Area include: 

· Regional District Parks: There are two small parks, one regional park (Kaleden 
Hotel Park), and one local park (Pioneer Park). Both are operated and maintained 
by the Regional District.  

· Kettle Valley Railway (KVR) Trail: The sections of the KVR Trail that are publically 
owned and maintained by the Regional District are designated Park.  

· Controlled Recreation Area: Apex Mountain is a provincially designated 
Controlled Recreation Area. 

· Provincial Protected Areas: There are two provincial protected areas in the Plan 
Area. Brent Mountain Protected Area, and White Lake Grasslands Protected Area. 

The Plan Area also includes diverse recreation opportunities for a range of trail users.  
Local residents use the trail system for activities ranging from an evening stroll along 
the KVR to commuting to work from one community to another, to active motorized 
and non-motorized trail-based recreation. Visitors also frequent the Plan Area’s trails 
to participate in a wide range of activities from walking and backcountry hiking to cycle 
touring and off-road vehicle recreation.  

Together, parks and trails provide a valued amenity for Plan Area residents and visitors 
and provide important environmental benefits. While the Plan Area includes only one 
small regional park, Kaleden Hotel Park, and one small community park, Pioneer Park, 
the need for additional parks is moderated both by the area’s small population and the 
extensive opportunities available on Crown land, Plan Area lakes, and in provincial 
protected areas. It is also a challenge to provide community park services to areas with 
small, dispersed populations.  

Provincial legislation authorizes the provision of land to the Regional District as 
parkland equivalent in size up to 5% of the parcel being subdivided. As an alternative, 
the Regional District may take cash in lieu representing the market value equivalent in 
size to 5% of the parcel being subdivided land. It is anticipated that acquisition of new 
land will be focused upon completion of the Kettle Valley Railroad (KVR) trail and 



   

 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016  61 

improving Skaha Lake access, although the Regional District will consider acquiring new 
parkland as opportunities arise. 

In 2012, the Regional District adopted a Regional Trails Master Plan that defines future 
direction, policies, priorities, standards and actions for the Regional District and its 
partners with respect to existing and potential future linear parks and trails and 
support of a regional trail network. The plan provides the basic framework to define 
and guide regional trail development and management through to 2021.   

The Parks designation applies to the Plan Area’s regional and local parks, the 
completed portion of the KVR trail, a potential park area behind Kaleden Elementary 
School, and an area in St. Andrews that was designated for future park development 
for its conservation values during the early development of the area.  

See Schedule ‘D’ (Parks, Recreation and Trails) for a map of designated parks and trails 
in the Plan Area. 

 
15.2 Objectives 

.1 Provide a level of parks and recreational opportunities that can meet the needs of 
local residents, within their ability and resources to pay for such facilities.  

.2 Promote recreational opportunities that meet local needs and complement the 
natural environment and existing resources. 

.3 Improve and maintain public access to park and recreation resources. 

.4 Promote the development of an integrated trail and park system. 

.5 Identify and work to acquire parks and recreation sites to meet the present and 
future needs of residents. 

 
15.3 Policies 

The Regional Board: 

.1 Supports the stewardship, enhancement and interpretation of important 
environmental features and areas in park and recreation lands. 

.2 Supports Kaleden Recreation and Parks Commission in their efforts to manage 
and enhance Pioneer Park and other parks and recreation amenities. 

.3 Supports completion of the KVR Trail as an important linear park to link Kaleden with 
Okanagan Falls and, in the future, the City of Penticton. 

.4 Should work collaboratively with the Province and other relevant 
parties/organizations to improve and maintain the KVR Trail between Kaleden 
and Okanagan Falls and the City of Penticton including the signage and 
development of non-vehicular accesses. 

.5 May explore opportunities to establish interpretative signage along the KVR Trail 
between Kaleden and Okanagan Falls. 



   

 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016  62 

.6 Recognizes that Skaha Lake access and completion of the KVR Trail are priorities 
in terms of land acquisition. 

.7 Supports improving local linkages and connections to the KVR Trail in Kaleden. 

.8 Supports improving public access from upper Kaleden to Skaha Lake and the KVR 
trail where feasible and appropriate, including the use of road ends. Potential 
access points for further consideration include from Pineview Drive near the 
south end of Banbury Point, and from Oak Avenue to the KVR trail near the 
Ponderosa Resort. 

.9 Supports working with the Ministry of Transportation and Infrastructure to 
maintain the old Kaleden to Okanagan Falls Road for bicycle and pedestrian 
traffic as an adjunct to the KVR Trail. 

.10 Supports the Provincial Approving Officer taking all accesses to water to the 
Regional District for review and comment. 

.11 Should work to implement the action items, recommendations and overarching 
direction for the Plan Area identified in the Regional Trails Master Plan. 

.12 Encourages that all new trail projects are designed and constructed using 
provincial best management practices, in order to minimize the impact on the 
natural environment. 

.13 Seeks to mitigate existing and future conflicts between trail users, agricultural 
operators and rural landowners. 

.14 Encourages relevant provincial agencies and tenure holders to manage public 
access to the backcountry. 

.15 Encourages trails proposed on agricultural lands, including those located within 
the ALR, to be developed using Ministry of Agriculture guidelines. 

.16 Encourages tenure holders to preserve, steward and maintain trails to maintain 
the integrity of the larger trail system and the natural environments they 
traverse. 

.17 Encourages the Province to undertake a backcountry recreation planning 
process.  

.18 Encourages the Province to ensure timber harvesting is carried out in such a manner 
as to preserve the recreational and aesthetic qualities of the Apex Mountain Resort 
Area. 

.19 Supports consultations with Penticton Indian Band in all processes related to 
establishing parks, recreation areas and trails, and their operation. 

.20 Should work with regional partners and local environmental organizations to support 
wildlife education programs to minimize wildlife/human conflicts on trails. 



   

 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016  63 

.21 Should work with regional partners to ensure that trails within Plan Area boundaries 
include adequate parking, bear-proof garbage and recycling receptacles and signage 
where feasible and appropriate. 

.22 Supports trail use guidelines that promote “leave no trace” trail use. 
 
15.4 Parkland Dedication Policies 

The Regional Board: 

.1 For the purposes of Section 510(2) of the Local Government Act, designates the 
entirety of the Electoral Area covered by this OCP as having future park potential.  

.2 Recognises that the Plan Area is generally rural in nature, and that when land is 
acquired it should be focused upon lake accesses, greenways, and trails, 
including the KVR Trail. 

.3 May determine, in accordance with the criteria below, whether at the time of a 
subdivision, the owner of land being subdivided must:  

a) provide without compensation, parkland in an amount that does not exceed 
5% of the land being proposed for subdivision and in a location acceptable to 
the Regional District; or  

b) pay to the Regional District an amount that equals the market value of the 
land up to 5% required for park purposes.  

.4 Prefers that if cash in-lieu is chosen at the time of subdivision for park acquisition 
and development in the Plan Area, that the benefits accrue to those 
communities from which the funds are received. 

.5 May consider, when determining a potential parkland dedication under Section 
510 of the Local Government Act, the following criteria: 

a) proximity to settlement areas, other parks & trails, and bodies of water;  

b) distance from environmental hazard areas;  

c) average slope should be 10% or less;  

d) adequate accessibility: 

i) vehicular ingress and egress should meet or exceed Ministry of 
Transportation standards; 

ii) in the case of trails and pedestrian-access only parks, there should be 
various linkages to and from the trail or park, with at least one linkage 
wide enough to allow for maintenance vehicle access; 

e) cultural or natural features of significance;  

f) potential for additional dedication of parkland from subdivision applications 
of surrounding parcels; and  



   

 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016  64 

g) Potential for recreation, stewardship and preservation of important natural 
features and areas, or enhancement of public access.  

.6 Considers that park proposals must provide a benefit for the community; 
proposals with no benefit to the community may not be accepted.  

.7 Strongly prefers that land considered for park be maintained in its natural state 
and should not be cleared. Cleared and disturbed lands should only be accepted 
where the proposed park is to be used for recreational uses that require cleared 
lands, or can be reclaimed for other purposes.   



   

 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016  65 

16.0 NATURAL ENVIRONMENT AND CONSERVATION 
 
16.1 Background 

The South Okanagan-Similkameen is recognized as a region that combines a wide 
range of natural habitat areas with a large number of unique species, many of which 
are not found elsewhere in the province or in Canada. The area is also home to the 
largest number of endangered and threatened species of plants and animals in BC and 
Canada.  

The variety of life (also called biodiversity) is very high in the South Okanagan-
Similkameen, because of the region’s milder climates and diversity of landscapes. 
Species at risk are linked to human settlement areas and land use. As the Plan Area 
contains significant developed areas and a variety of land uses including recreation, 
agriculture, forestry areas and the like, it also contains a high number of species at risk. 

The Plan Area itself is home to many unique environmental features, including White 
Lake Basin and Skaha Lake among others.  

Under the Local Government Act, the Regional District has the authority to establish 
Development Permit (DP) Areas in order to protect the natural environment, its 
ecosystems and biological diversity. 

In order to protect important habitat areas for wildlife, including plant communities, 
the Regional District has also implemented an Environmentally Sensitive Development 
Permit (ESDP) Area.  These areas generally comprise “high” and “very high” 
ecologically sensitive areas as identified by the Keeping Nature in our Future: A 
Biodiversity Conservation Strategy for the South Okanagan-Similkameen (2013) 
prepared by South Okanagan Similkameen Conservation Program (SOSCP), and as 
described further in Section 23.2 of this Plan.  The two layers on the ESDP mapping 
indicate all of the “high” and “very high” ecological sensitive areas; however the 
Permit area does not include Crown land or ALR land.  

As a local government listed under Section 3 of the Riparian Area Regulation, the 
Regional District has implemented a Watercourse Development Permit (WDP) Area 
designation in order to protect riparian areas; being lakes, watercourses and wetlands 
along with lands and vegetation within a 30 metre buffer, and as described further at 
Section 23.3 of this bylaw. 

For maps of sensitive foreshore areas, watercourses, and habitat areas in the Plan Area 
see Schedule ‘I’ (Environmentally Sensitive Development Permit Areas) and Schedule 
‘J’ (Watercourse Development Permit Areas). 

 
16.1.1 Objectives 

.1 Maintain and sustain a healthy environment by encouraging the enhancement of 
ecological systems and by protecting biodiversity. 



   

 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016  66 

.2 Integrate measures to sustain environmental quality and consider impacts on the 
environment in future land use decisions. 

.3 Work with property owners and agents to inform and guide the design of 
development in a way that is sensitive to important landscape features such as 
watercourses, hillsides, and sensitive ecosystems of the Okanagan. 

.4 Support efforts to protect source water quality and quantity today and for future 
generations. 

 
16.1.2 Policies - General 

The Regional Board:  

.1 Recognizes the importance of containing and controlling invasive plants and 
noxious weeds through the continued endorsement of weed prevention and 
control initiatives. 

.2 Recognizes and encourages the educational and eco-tourism contribution toward 
protection of the community’s natural environment made by environmental 
organizations, and supports accommodating these uses with the necessary 
changes to the land use designations so long as the general intent of policies in this 
Plan are met.  

.3 Requires that, where a proposed development affects land subject to an 
Environmentally Sensitive Development Permit Area, an Environmental Impact 
Assessment (EIA) be prepared by a Qualified Environmental Professional (QEP) in 
accordance with the policies outlined at Section 23.2 as well as relevant federal 
and provincial best management guidelines. 

.4 Requires that EIA reports prepared by QEPs be undertaken in accordance with the 
Regional District’s approved terms of reference for professional reports. 

.5 Supports the incorporation of traditional ecological knowledge in the stewardship 
of important foreshore, riparian, and terrestrial ecosystems, and will work with the 
Penticton Indian Band and Lower Similkameen Indian Band to incorporate it where 
feasible, practical and appropriate. 

 
16.2 Riparian and Foreshore Areas 

Riparian areas are places under the influence of water. They surround and contain 
wetlands, ponds, permanent and intermittent creeks, springs, wet meadows, etc.  The 
foreshore is specifically defined as the areas surrounding lakes, including land within 
30.0 metres of the high water mark and areas in shallow shoal areas beneath the 
water. The Plan Area includes one large lake, Skaha Lake, and several smaller lakes 
including Nipit, Twin, Trout, Green and Mahoney Lakes.  

The Plan Area is generally dry and riparian areas tend to be unusually productive and 
support a disproportionately high number of species. In addition, riparian and 



   

 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016  67 

foreshores areas tend to have significant land use and development impacts. Most 
wetlands that once occurred in the Okanagan have been lost to infilling, development, 
roads, agriculture etc. Thus, the areas that remain are very important to retain. Many 
species and species at risk require riparian habitats for some part of their life cycle. 

Activities in riparian areas have potential to impact water quality, affect erosion, 
damage fish habitat and impact habitat for species at risk.  

Trees like Black Cottonwood that once were common in these areas have been 
removed and replaced with non-native trees or invasive trees like Russian Olive and 
Siberian Elm. Some limited areas of willow, birch, red osier dogwood and other shrubs 
remain in foreshore areas, but much of the developed area has been replaced by lawns 
and landscaped yards. Road construction near, or within riparian areas is also 
common. Agriculture impacts are significant and range from infilling to cultivation and 
livestock use.  

Because riparian and foreshore areas are so strongly connected to both habitats for 
species at risk and water quality through groundwater/surface water, it is vital that 
land use practices protect riparian areas by retaining and restoring native species, and 
ecosystems. Natural riparian areas provide significant ecosystems benefits that costly 
water treatment and recovery planning for species at risk cannot replace. 

Generally land above the high water mark (natural boundary) is privately held and land 
below the high water mark belongs to the Crown and forms part of the water resource 
in the province. Land within 30.0 metres of the high water mark is identified as being 
within a Watercourse Development Permit Area and any development within this area 
may require a Development Permit (see Section 23.0). Other foreshore activities that 
may be subject to provincial regulation include dock construction and modification, 
mooring buoy installation, and shoreline modifications (including sand, soil, vegetation 
removal, disturbance, and addition). 

 
Figure 17:  Nipit Lake 



   

 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016  68 

 
16.2.1 Objectives 

.1 Foster community awareness of the importance and sensitivity of the riparian 
and foreshore environments in the Plan Area. 

.2 Protect aquatic habitat areas and associated environmentally sensitive areas 
from negative impacts of development as identified in Schedule ‘I’ 
(Environmentally Sensitive Development Permit Areas) and Schedule ‘J’ 
(Watercourse Development Permit Areas).  

.3 Improve and better manage waterfront public access along the Skaha Lake 
shoreline in Kaleden, while limiting the overall number of public access points. 

.4 Minimize and avoid development in high hazard soil instability areas on the 
Skaha Lake foreshore. See Schedule ‘E’ (Hazard Lands – Soil) and Schedule ‘F’ 
(Hazard Lands – Steep Slopes). 

.5 Encourage high quality lakeshore development that maintains the natural 
character of all lakes and sustains the sensitive foreshore ecosystems. 

.6 Conserve, protect and enhance surface, ground and aquifer water sources in 
cooperation with provincial ministries, local water purveyors and landowners. 

.7 Identify, manage and protect significant watercourses to maintain their natural 
habitat and environmental quality. 

 
16.2.2 Policies 

The Regional Board: 

.1 Recognizes riparian values and, in accordance with the provincial Riparian Area 
Regulation, has designated watercourses as Development Permit Areas in the 
Watercourses Development Permit (WDP) Area. Development in designated 
WDP areas is to occur according to guidelines outlined in Section 23.3 of this 
OCP. WDP Areas are identified in Schedule ‘J’ (Watercourse Development Permit 
Areas).  

.2 Encourages provincial and federal water and resource managers to protect and 
enhance water quality, base flows, natural drainage patterns, and continuous 
riparian corridors of sufficient width to accommodate the dynamic nature of the 
hydrologic system, to avoid and reduce flood damage, to avoid the need for 
channel stabilization, to avoid underground drainage systems and groundwater 
interruption, and to protect and sustain aquatic biota, important fish populations 
and habitats. 

.3 Supports efforts that maintain appropriate riparian buffers, determined by 
qualified professionals that take into account processes of natural erosion, 
deposition and movement of natural stream boundaries, floodplain provisions 
and sensitive terrestrial habitats. 



   

 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016  69 

.4 Continues to work with the Okanagan Basin Water Board (OBWB) to promote 
the shared water interests of Okanagan communities. 

.5 Encourages and supports the analysis of groundwater hydrology in areas with 
identified aquifers, and require environmental assessments in advance of 
considering zoning amendments for uses such as heavy industrial, mining, fuel 
storage and/or sewage containment. 

.6 Discourages development that will have a negative environmental impact on 
lake foreshore areas. 

.7 Will work with other partners and landowners to identify and restore riparian 
areas. 

.8 Encourages the provincial Subdivision Approving Officer to ensure that public 
access to lakes is provided pursuant to Section 75 of the Land Title Act.  

.9 Encourages the restoration and re-vegetation of Skaha Lake public access points 
that have been damaged by public access and supports the use of interpretive 
and educational signage to enhance public awareness of the environment help 
limit potential future damage. 

.10 May consider developing public access objectives and design guidelines for the 
Skaha Lake shoreline that include criteria to minimize impacts to the foreshore 
ecosystem and species. 

.11 Should work with other agencies to limit the number of wharves, docks, retaining 
walls and other structures on Skaha Lake, and encourage sharing of docks and 
wharves on all lakes. 

.12 Supports the use of Section 86 of the Land Title Act and Section 56 of the Community 
Charter to regulate development in a floodplain and provide for the safe use of the 
land for the intended purpose. 

 
16.3 Terrestrial Areas  

Terrestrial areas are simply described as the areas upland or beyond water. They 
include areas with grassland and shrub-steppe, sparsely vegetated, broadleaf 
woodlands, coniferous woodlands and old forest ecosystems. Many at risk species are 
found in terrestrial ecosystems in the Plan Area.  

Like foreshore and riparian areas, terrestrial areas also contain areas sensitive to 
development and land use. Of the various ecosystem types, the grassland and shrub-
steppe ecosystems are particularly sensitive to disturbance and subject to habitat loss 
through development, agriculture conversion, impacts from invasive plants, and 
habitat loss resulting from recreation use. 

Significant proportions of sensitive terrestrial habitat have been provincially recognized 
and protected in the Plan Area and include: the Mahoney Lake Ecological Reserve, Brent 
Mountain Protected Area, and White Lake Grasslands Protected Area. Additional lands 



   

 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016  70 

have been protected in the White Lake Basin around the Dominion Radio 
Astrophysical Observatory, where sensitive lands owned by the National Research 
Council of Canada plus those dedicated by the Province for Observatory purposes limit 
development. The Nature Trust of BC and other conservation organizations have also 
purchased properties for habitat and terrestrial ecosystem conservation purposes. 

  
16.3.1 Objectives 

.1 Protect and steward sensitive and important terrestrial ecosystem areas as identified 
in Schedule ‘I’ (Environmentally Sensitive Development Permit Areas). 

.2 Encourage provincial and federal governments, private organizations and private 
landowners to protect, enhance and manage critical habitat areas for endangered or 
threatened species in the Plan Area. 

.3 Work cooperatively with regional partners and support rehabilitation, restoration 
and enhancement of wildlife habitats and environmentally sensitive areas that 
have been subject to negative impacts in the past.  

.4 Encourage and facilitate linkages of protected habitat areas.  

Figure 18: White Lake Basin 

16.3.2 Policies 

The Regional Board: 

.1 Recognizes the values of environmentally sensitive lands and designates these 
lands on Schedule ‘I’ (Environmentally Sensitive Development Permit Areas) as: 

a) Development Permit Areas under Section 920 of the Local Government Act; 
or 

b) “Important Ecosystem Areas”. 



   

 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016  71 

.2 Requires that land designated as environmentally sensitive on Schedule ‘I’ 
(Environmentally Sensitive Development Permit Areas) shall be retained in a 
natural state and not developed prior to the issuance of an Environmentally 
Sensitive Development Permit (ESDP) in accordance with the guidelines outlined 
at Section 23.2 of this Plan. 

.3 Considers that land listed as comprising “Important Ecosystem Areas” should 
generally be retained in a natural state and, if a re-designation of land under the 
OCP or Zoning bylaws is proposed, that these lands be considered for inclusion as 
formal development permit areas in Schedule ‘I’. 

.4 Encourages the parcel sizes of areas designated as environmentally sensitive on 
Schedule ‘I’ (Environmentally Sensitive Development Permit Areas) to remain as 
large as possible to protect these habitat areas. 

.5 Will not support the re-designation of land under the OCP or Zoning bylaws 
where it is determined that the proposed development is contrary to the ESDP 
Area Guidelines of this Plan and the impact cannot be mitigated to a level 
acceptable to the Regional Board. 

.6 Will strive for development that avoids impacting important native species, 
habitats, ecosystems or sensitive areas and to retain important ecosystem 
features and functions. Responsiveness to this policy will be a very important 
consideration in the approval of an application. 

.7 Encourages the protection, preservation, enhancement and management of 
sensitive ecosystems or land contiguous to sensitive ecosystems of private lands 
through the following methods: 

a) donation of areas to the Regional District or provincial government; 

b) donation of areas to a land trust or conservation organization; 

c) introduction of conservation area designation and zoning; 

d) creation of conservation covenants in favour of the local government, 
provincial government, or private conservation organizations; 

e) establishment of statutory right of ways under the Land Title Act for affected 
areas; 

f) establishment of long-term leases for sensitive areas; or 

g) land stewardship and participation in conservation initiatives by the private 
landowner. 

.8 Supports conserving, enhancing and promoting the protection of wildlife 
corridors and ecosystem connectivity with interfacing Crown lands. 

.9 Encourages the use of native vegetation to restore disturbed sites. 

.10 Supports the retention of land listed as comprising “important ecosystem areas” 
in a natural state but has not designated such lands on Schedule ‘I’ 



   

 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016  72 

(Environmentally Sensitive Development Permit Areas) where they are in Crown 
ownership or regulated by the ALC. In the event of a Crown land disposition, ALR 
exclusion, or re-designation of land in the OCP, such lands will be considered for 
inclusion in Schedule ‘I’ (Environmentally Sensitive Development Permit Areas). 

 
16.4 Conservation Areas 

For the purpose of protecting environmentally sensitive areas (ESAs), the Regional 
District may designate lands as Conservation Area (CA).  The Conservation Area 
designation is applied to land that is preserved and protected for its unique natural 
value, land left in a natural or semi-natural state for the purpose of conserving plant 
life and providing habitat for wildlife or fish.  

Conservation Area lands may include Crown land designated as an Ecological Reserve 
or Wildlife Management Area. It can also include private lands that have been acquired 
or donated for conservation purposes and which are held by an individual or an 
organisation, such as The Nature Trust of British Columbia or the Nature Conservancy 
of Canada. In the Plan Area, the CA designation applies to one small ecological reserve, 
Mahoney Lake Ecological Reserve. It also applies to two parcels located behind the 
Kaleden Elementary School. 

There are two significant areas of private lands that have been acquired for 
conservation purposes in the Plan Area. In the spring of 2012, The Nature Trust of BC 
secured the Twin Lakes Ranch Conservation Area. The 809 hectare property is one of 
the largest intact private grassland properties in the South Okanagan. A second area is 
The Nature Trust of BC's White Lake Basin Biodiversity Ranch, acquired in phases 
between 1996 and 2012. The biodiversity ranch program integrates livestock 
management with conservation of habitat for species at risk. The 905.9 hectare site is 
home to a number of threatened and endangered species. As these lands are within 
the Agricultural Land Reserve, and portions of the properties are used for 
environmentally sensitive ranching and agriculture, both areas are designated 
Agriculture. They are sufficiently protected for their conservation values by the 
designation, underlying zoning and the conservation covenants that apply to the areas. 

For a map of Conservation Areas in the Plan Area see Schedule ‘B’ (Official Community 
Plan Map). 
 



   

 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016  73 

Figure 19:  Mahoney Lake Ecological Reserve 

16.4.1 Objectives 

.1 Protect and steward designated Conservation Areas in their natural or semi-
natural state for the purpose of conserving plant life and providing habitat for 
wildlife or fish. 

.2 Work with agencies and partners, including Penticton Indian Band and Lower 
Similkameen Indian Band to enhance, protect and interpret ecological systems and 
biodiversity in Conservation Areas. 

.3 Work with property owners and agents to inform and guide the design of 
development in a way that is sensitive to adjacent or abutting Conservation Areas. 

 
16.4.2 Policies - General 

The Regional Board:  

.1 Recognizes and encourages the educational and eco-tourism contributions toward 
protection of Conservation Areas made by environmental organizations, and 
supports accommodating these uses where they do not conflict with Conservation 
Area objectives.  

.2 Supports the incorporation of traditional ecological knowledge in the stewardship 
of Conservation Areas, and will work with the Penticton Indian Band and Lower 
Similkameen Indian Band to incorporate it where feasible, practical and 
appropriate. 

.3 Will work with partner agencies and organizations to identify Crown land parcels 
and accreted lands along Skaha Lake that may be suitable for designation as a 
Conservation Area. 
 



   

 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016  74 

17.0 HAZARD LANDS  
 
17.1 Background 

Hazard lands include, but are not limited to areas the Regional District has reason to 
believe are subject to natural hazards including flooding, mud flows, torrents of debris, 
erosion, rockfall, landslip, sink holes, avalanche and wildfire. 

The information available for the entire Regional District can be variable and may lack 
detail, so hazards often need to be investigated on a site-by-site basis. Recognizing this, 
site planning for proposed developments should consider the potential hazards on any 
given site. Some hazards, such as geologic issues, can be evaluated and the risk reduced 
at the time of development. Other hazards, such as wildfire, can not only impact new 
developments, but also threaten existing structures. 

In 2011, the Regional District prepared a Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) for 
those communities with a high probability and consequence of fire in the interface zone. 
The plan was developed in accordance with recommendations contained within the 
provincial government’s Firestorm 2003 Provincial Review. The CWPP program was 
launched to improve fire prevention in the Wildfire-Urban Interface Zone and to 
improve community safety and reduce the risk of property damage. 

As dynamic systems, forested ecosystems change over time along with the fuel hazards 
they pose. As the South Okanagan Valley contains ecosystems within which wildfire is a 
natural disturbance, and since wildfire cannot be eliminated from these ecosystems, the 
threat of wildfire will always be present. However, the risk wildfire poses to 
development can be managed through appropriate development policies and continual 
management efforts. 

The Plan Area and larger region has been recognized for radon issues. Radon gas is a 
recognized health hazard and the Province has established regulations in the BC Building 
Code for new construction to vent radon that may seep into homes.  

See Schedule ‘E’ (Hazard Lands – Soil), Schedule ‘F’ (Hazard Lands – Steep Slopes), and 
Schedule ‘G’ (Hazard Lands – Wildfire) for maps of key hazard areas in the Plan Area. 

 
17.2 Objectives 

.1 Prevent injury and loss of life and to prevent or minimize property damage as a 
result of natural hazards.  

.2 Ensure development does not occur in areas subject to known hazardous 
conditions, unless the hazard has been sufficiently addressed and mitigated. 

.3 Recognize that important habitat may also be found in natural areas that are 
considered hazardous, and that disruption of these areas should be minimized.  

.4 Reduce wildfire hazard threats to proposed new and existing development. 



   

 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016  75 

 
17.3 Policies – General Hazard Lands 

The Regional Board: 

.1 Will strive to prevent development on lands that may be susceptible to a potential 
natural hazard, or have been identified as hazardous by the Regional District or 
other agencies having jurisdiction, unless the applicant can prove the land can be 
safely used for the use intended. 

.2 Will direct development away from lands identified as being susceptible to soil 
instability and potentially hazardous geotechnical conditions.  

.3 Discourages development on slopes with grades in excess of 30% to avoid 
geotechnical hazards. 

.4 Requires new development areas with slopes greater than 30% to be reviewed for soil 
instability, potentially hazardous conditions and environmental sensitivity. 
Development shall follow the recommendations of a geotechnical report.  

.5 Requires that where the Regional District or the Subdivision Approving Officer has 
requested a geotechnical report, a qualified professional registered by the 
Association of Professional Engineers and Geoscientists of British Columbia 
(APEGBC) shall prepare the report.  

.6 Requires that where the Regional District or the Subdivision Approving Officer has 
requested a geotechnical report, the report should be registered in a Section 218 
covenant on title to ensure safe use for all subsequent owners as per Section 86 
(1)(d) of the Land Title Act. 

.7 Requires that where a non-geotechnical report has been requested by the 
Regional District or the Subdivision Approving Officer, the report must be prepared 
by a relevant qualified professional (e.g., RPBio, certified arborist, BCSLA) 
acceptable to the Regional District. 

.8 Discourages development of land susceptible to flooding and encourages those 
lands to be used for parks, open space, habitat conservation, recreation or 
agricultural uses. 

.9 Requires that where land subject to flooding is required for development and no 
alternative land is available, construction and siting of buildings and manufactured 
homes to be used for habitation, business, industry, or the storage of goods 
damageable by floodwaters shall comply with Provincial Flood Hazard Area 
Management Guidelines or the recommendations of a geotechnical report 
prepared by a qualified professional. 

.10 Encourages provincial and/or federal agencies to conduct further research on 
possible radon health risks in and around the Plan Area. 



   

 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016  76 

.11 Encourages Plan Area residents to test their homes for radon exposure and to take 
appropriate mitigation measures where radon levels are found to be higher than 
recommended levels. 

.12 Supports providing information on radon and radon mitigation opportunities to 
Plan Area residents. 

 
17.4 Fire Management  

A Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) was completed for the Regional District in 
2011. The plan assessed wildfire risk across the region and made recommendations to 
improve the community’s risk profile through pre-planning and preparedness, policy, 
and fuel management. 

As a predominantly rural area, the CWPP determined that development in the Plan Area 
generally consists of:  

· low to moderately dense rural intermix areas (>1structure/ha) with more forested 
areas between structures and a less defined perimeter; 

· a well-defined urban/interface complex where the interface perimeter is more 
clearly defined; and  

· individual structures remotely scattered within the wildlands.  

See Schedule ‘G’ (Hazard Lands – Wildfire) for a map of wildfire hazard areas in the Plan 
Area. 

 
17.4.1 Objectives  

.1 Minimize fire risk to people and property within the Plan Area. 
 
17.4.2 Policies  

The Regional Board: 

.1 In reviewing a rezoning application submitted to the Regional District for 
development in those areas identified in the Community Wildfire Protection Plan 
(CWPP) and shown on Schedule ‘G’ (Hazard Lands – Wildfire), the Regional District 
may require a fire hazard risk assessment from the applicant that is recommended 
to include, but is not limited to, the following: 

a) incorporating fuel breaks adjacent to or on the residential subdivisions; 

b) establishing zones around potential structures and homes which are clear of debris, 
highly combustible material or trees; 

c) utilizing fireproofing techniques and fireproof materials in building design; 

d) designing roads that provide evacuation routes and facilitate movement of 
firefighting equipment; 



   

 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016  77 

e) ensuring all roads are named and signed; 

f) ensuring availability of water supply facilities adequate for fire suppression;  

g) ensuring the provision of access to local water sources, lakes and watercourses 
as part of access requirements; and  

h) implementing setbacks, interface fire protection standards, and building 
material standards pursuant to Provincial guidelines, or their equivalent.  

.2 Strives to foster wildfire awareness and resiliency through public education 
materials, programs and events. 

.3 Strongly encourages that all new developments be designed to incorporate best 
practice interface forest fire mitigation techniques for buildings and landscaping. 

.4 Should review and update wildfire protection approaches as often as necessary 
based on changing community circumstances, climate change driven ecosystem 
conditions, and mitigation techniques. 

.5 Encourages property owners to adhere to the relevant Provincial guidelines to 
protect properties and communities from wildfire risk through such measures as 
reducing fuel loads. Such measures should be supportive of the natural 
environment and mimic the natural effects of localized ground fire such as 
thinning and spacing trees and vegetation, removal of debris and dead material 
from the ground, and removal of lower tree branches. 

.6 Supports pursuing provincial funding and resources to undertake wildfire risk 
reduction in the community/forest interface areas. 
 



   

 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016  78 

18.0 TRANSPORTATION 
 
18.1 Background 

The Province identifies Highway 97 as a primary highway (Okanagan Valley Corridor), and 
Highway 3A as a secondary highway.  The Province’s projections forecast that Highway 97 in 
the vicinity of Kaleden will see traffic volumes and congestion increase over the next 20 
years.  The Regional District does not; however, anticipate construction of any new major 
road systems within the Plan area.  

The road network indicated on Schedule ‘H' (Transportation Network) shows: 

· Highways (Highway 97 and Highway 3A), allow for rapid, efficient movement of large 
volumes of through traffic to achieve regional continuity.  To secure swift and safe traffic 
movement, direct access onto Controlled Access Highways will be limited, and more 
turning lanes and channelization may be required at major intersections;  

· Collector Roads (e.g., Green Mountain Road, Apex Mountain Road, White Lake Road, 
Lakehill Road) are paved secondary roads linking rural communities. 

· Local Roads (e.g., Farleigh Lake Road) are generally gravel roads providing access to 
smaller, secondary communities. 

In addition, Schedule ‘D’ (Parks, Recreation and Trails) shows existing trails within the Plan 
Area.   

 
18.2 Objectives 

.1 Enable safe, efficient mobility of goods and people within the Plan Area. 

.2 Ensure safe and convenient movement of goods and people through Highway 97 
and 3A.  

.3 Provide for safe and convenient pedestrian and bicycle access to schools and parks 
throughout all Plan Area communities.  

.4 Minimize the impacts of traffic corridors on farmland, ESDP Areas and WDP Areas.  

.5 Support an expanded regional transit system that services communities 
throughout the Regional District.  

.6 Provide a multi-model transportation system and secure road and trail networks for all 
forms of transport, including pedestrians and bicycles.  

 
18.3 Policies 

The Regional Board: 



   

 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016  79 

.1 Encourages and supports the Province to continue safety and access improvements 
along the Highway 97 corridor, at Kaleden, within the existing right-of-way, including 
improved lighting, medians and traffic lights. 

.2 Encourages the Province to review safety issues related to commercial development 
accesses along Highway 97 at Kaleden. 

.3 Encourages and supports the Province to work with regional partners, including 
Penticton Indian Band and the Regional District, to improve safety at the Highway 97 
and Highway 3A intersection. 

.4 Supports and encourages the provision of safe pedestrian and cycling opportunities 
along all Plan Area roads where feasible and appropriate as improvements are made to 
the roadways. 

.5 Encourages the Province to widen and pave shoulders on designated cycle routes and 
improve safety signage for cyclists and drivers. 

.6 Supports large-scale cycling events on Plan Area roads, such as the Granfondo, and 
encourages the Province to improve cyclist safety for these events. 

.7 Encourages the Province to require traffic impact studies as part of development 
proposals which may impact safety and mobility on network roadways and, to ensure 
that: 

a) existing and future roads and alignments are designed with due consideration for 
watercourses and critical habitat areas; 

b) safety is maintained through access management and control; 

c) disruption to farming operations is minimized; and 

d) projected traffic volumes do not reduce the present service levels for the existing 
roadway. 

.8 Supports the development of an improved local road network system in Kaleden to 
reduce the reliance on Highway 97 for short local trips. 

.9 Encourages and supports the Province to locate and design at-grade intersections 
along Highway 97 such that they do not interfere with passing sight distance for 
highway traffic. 

.10 Supports and facilitates bicycle safety improvements in the White Lake area. 

.11 Supports the implementation of the Okanagan-Similkameen Transit Future Plan. 

.12 Encourages the RCMP to improve traffic safety and enforcement on all Plan Area 
roads. 
 

 
 
 



   

 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016  80 

19.0 INFRASTRUCTURE AND SERVICING  
 
19.1 Background 

A well-planned community ensures services are able to meet the needs of its residents, 
with development occurring in a manner that allows infrastructure and utilities to be 
provided efficiently and cost-effectively. 

By having a more compact form of growth, it is more affordable to provide 
infrastructure to the community. Sewer and water lines do not have to be extended 
over long distances, and there will be a population base in a defined area, large enough 
to fund infrastructure and services. 

Infrastructure and services within the jurisdiction of the Regional District include water 
distribution, liquid waste management, stormwater and solid waste management. As 
electrical, gas and communication utilities are also important to the community, the 
Regional District has an interest in helping guide the provision of these services. 

Within the life of this Plan, sewer services may be provided to Kaleden.  The presence of 
community sewer in Kaleden could encourage further development in the community.  
With the provision of sewer services Kaleden has the capacity to absorb modest growth 
within the existing lands designated for residential use.  

It is also anticipated that a Waste Transfer Station should be constructed in the Apex 
area in the next year.  The Waste Transfer Station will be to consolidate and reload solid 
waste and recycling but not to permanently dispose of materials. 

 
19.2 Objectives 

.1 Implement a coordinated approach to infrastructure planning within the Plan 
Area.  

.2 Ensure that water, sewer and drainage systems support good health and safety, 
and meet recognized standards of service.  

.3 Maintain and foster relationships with provincial agencies, Improvement Districts 
and Irrigation Districts that influence the delivery and management of 
community infrastructure.  

.4 Discourage the development of additional private systems for the provision of 
water and sewer services. 

 
19.3 Policies  

The Regional Board: 

.1 Promotes orderly, logical, economic growth and extension of community water 
and sewer services. 



   

 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016  81 

.2 May require that adequate infrastructure, including water, sewer, roads, and 
stormwater management be provided in new developments, at no cost to public 
agencies.  

.3 Requires that all new parcels of one hectare or less in size connect to a community 
sewer system.  

.4 Encourages the implementation of sustainable development principles through 
consideration of renewable and alternative technologies for community 
infrastructure.  

 
19.4 Water Supply and Distribution 

The Plan Area contains two water purveyors or irrigation districts, a number of private 
community systems, and private individual wells and water licenses. There is a need to 
ensure future developments have a secure, safe, and sustainable water supply and 
distribution system.   

For the Plan Area, groundwater is a critical resource and source for residential and, 
agricultural uses in all communities and rural settlement areas. The Regional District 
acknowledges that land use activities play a significant role in the quality and quantity of 
local groundwater resources. Local aquifer’s water quality and quantity varies due to a 
number of factors, including geological conditions, soils, vegetation cover, impermeable 
cover, sewage disposal methods, and handling and storage of potential contaminants. A 
large number of aquifers are located within the Plan area as documented in Figure 20. 
Managing these aquifers to ensure their long-term sustainability is essential. The 
Regional District will take into account the effects of climate change, the needs of 
residential and agricultural water users, and the intrinsically regional character of 
groundwater resources when assessing future development. 

Surface water is also a critical resource with Skaha Lake providing water for Kaleden. 
Protecting Skaha Lake water quality is highlighted in multiple OCP policy sections, 
including local area policies for Kaleden and Section 16.0 Natural Environment and 
Conservation. 

  
19.4.1 Objectives 

.1 Continue cooperation and coordination between water purveyors (e.g. irrigation 
districts), the Province, and fire protection services in order to ensure adequate water 
quantity and quality. 

.2 Manage development to ensure that surface water sources and aquifers are not 
depleted and their long-term sustainability is protected.  

.3 Manage and protect the Plan Area’s groundwater resources on a sustainable basis 
and work to prevent irreversible or other adverse impacts to water resources. 

.4 Continue to work in conjunction with the Ministry of Environment, the Interior 
Health Authority, and residents to protect, manage and maintain high water 



   

 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016  82 

quality and to ensure the sustainable use of the Plan Area’s surface and 
groundwater resources. 

 
19.4.2 Policies 

The Regional Board: 

.1 May consider developing a groundwater bylaw for the Regional District to better 
protect, manage and steward groundwater resources in the Plan Area and other 
electoral areas. 

.2 Actively promotes, educates, coordinates and implements water conservation 
practices, and will work with water utilities to establish water conservation 
programs.  

.3 Should consider new development only if proven adequate water supply and 
appropriate water systems are in place. New community water systems should be 
designed and built to the satisfaction of the Regional District.  

.4 Encourages continued maintenance and upgrading of existing water systems.  

.5 May consider undertaking a study, or encourage water utilities to undertake a 
study, to examine the options for coordinating or amalgamating some of the 
various small water utilities in the Plan Area under Regional District management.  

.6 Encourages private water utilities to adopt the Regional District’s Subdivision 
Servicing Bylaw regulations, requirements, standards and specifications.  

.7 Strongly discourages the creation of new private water utilities.  

.8 Strives to ensure that new developments do not restrict or limit the availability of 
water supply for existing users and agricultural irrigation. 

.9 Supports amending the Development Procedures Bylaw to require all rezoning 
applications to include information on water and liquid waste servicing design for 
the subject lands. 

.10 Promotes management of demand through water conservation measures to reduce 
per capita consumption levels. 

.11 Supports working with Penticton Indian Band on regional water management 
initiatives to protect, revitalize and restore waters systems within the Plan Area. 

.12 As a development information area, may request additional information for Twin 
Lakes and St. Andrews for aquifer protection containing the following: 

a) a professionally prepared background analysis that includes the following 
known information on the site:  

i) a description of the hydrological system and setting, including the type of 
aquifer, aquifer boundaries, local surficial and bedrock geology, physical 
hydrogeology, local surface water features, estimated recharge area and 
conditions and climate;  



   

 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016  83 

ii) a description of existing users within 1.0 km of the development site;  

iii) a preliminary pre-development water budget;  

iv) water quality, including characterization of natural groundwater quality, 
potability, as well as possibility of contamination; and 

v) methodology and, if applicable, uncertainties and limitations of the 
report.  

b) a description of the proposed work, detailing construction, cut and fill, 
blasting, road, driveway or utility line construction, vegetation clearing, water 
supply requirements, alteration to hydrological systems, septic field 
installation, landscaping, or other land alteration during or after the 
development phase.  

c) conclusions and recommendations consisting of:  

i) a summary of results and impact assessment;  

ii) a statement that the proposed development will not adversely impact 
aquifer(s), existing wells, or surface water bodies in terms of water quality 
and quantity; or  

iii) specific recommendations on well and aquifer protection measures and 
mitigation activities.  

d) any recommended monitoring requirements, identifying actions that will be 
taken to ensure all proposed activities are completed as described, including a 
monitoring schedule. 

 Figure 20: Plan Area Aquifers 
Map Note: Please see Infrastructure Study for Electoral Area “D-1”, KWL Consulting Engineers, 2015 for aquifer details. 



   

 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016  84 

  
19.5 Wastewater and Sewage  

The predominant sewage disposal method in the Plan Area is individual on-site septic 
systems. Individual septic systems are not viewed as a long-term sustainable method of 
sewage disposal unless parcels are over one hectare in size. This method of disposal also 
increases the probability of potable groundwater contamination and nutrient loading into 
watercourses such as Skaha Lake.   

The Okanagan Falls Area Liquid Waste Management Plan reviewed the potential for the 
provision of sewer services to Kaleden.  For the purpose of the review Kaleden was spilt into 
two sewerage areas.  The first, Kaleden Lakeshore, is immediately adjacent to the southwest 
portion of Skaha Lake and is considered high priority for sewer as it has a high water table.  
The Kaleden Lakeshore Sewerage Area covers a 32 hectare area of Kaleden and includes 142 
lots.  The second, Kaleden Bench Sewerage Area, is considered a lower priority, even though 
it covers the majority of Kaleden, as it consists mainly of large agricultural parcels.  The 
Kaleden Bench Sewerage Area covers 349 hectares and includes 438 lots. 

  
19.5.1 Objectives 

.1 Reduce levels of nutrients and effluent disposal into watercourses.  

.2 To maintain healthy aquatic and groundwater environments and protect human 
health from water contamination. 

.3 Establish long-term sustainable sewage collection and disposal methods. 
 
19.5.2 Policies 

The Regional Board: 

.1 Strives to work with the Province and local authorities to ensure any development 
is in compliance with all applicable legislation governing sewage disposal.  

.2 Encourages the Province to educate residents about the requirements for properly 
maintaining a septic tank and tile fields.  

.3 In areas where there is no community sewer or water systems, requires all new 
and re-development to adhere to the best practices recommendations of the 
Regional District’s Liquid Waste Management Plan as well as the Provincial 
Sewerage System Regulation administered by Interior Health Authority for on-site 
sewage disposal and private wells.  

.4 Strives to ensure that private septic tanks and ground disposal systems be sited to 
minimize pollution of surface and groundwater, and have appropriate setbacks 
from watercourses, lakes, and water wells.  

.5 Does not the support the use of septic holding tanks for new developments. 
 



   

 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016  85 

19.6 Stormwater Management   

Effective stormwater management will help protect the water quality of the various 
lakes and other water bodies found within the Plan Area. Currently, stormwater drainage 
in the Plan Area is comprised of open ditches, natural drainage courses and absorption into 
the ground through dry wells. Skaha Lake and other watercourses are the ultimate 
destination for much of the stormwater in the Plan Area.  Given these watercourses are a 
source of drinking water, and an important ecosystem, it is important to manage the quality 
and quantity of stormwater. 

 
19.6.1 Objectives 

.1 To improve the management of stormwater quality and quantity within the Plan Area. 

.2 To develop responsible surface water drainage standards for development in the 
Plan Area. 

.3 Coordinate stormwater management with the Ministry of Transportation and 
Infrastructure. 

 
19.6.2 Policies 

The Regional Board: 

.1 Encourages the Province to require master storm drainage plans for new 
residential subdivisions. 

.2 Encourages the Approving Officer to require that each parcel of land within a 
proposed subdivision address stormwater runoff and that it protect aquatic 
ecosystems (lakes, wetlands, rivers, streams).  

.3 Encourages the use of permeable surfaces on driveways, parking lots and access 
roads, as well as other measures such as xeriscaping, infiltration basins, swales and 
other sustainable design features to reduce overland runoff.  

 
19.7 Solid Waste  

The Regional District has established a Solid Waste Management Plan (SWMP) for the region.  
This has been in response to the Province, which has set goals to reduce waste delivered to 
landfills, through waste diversion initiatives. 

 
19.7.1 Objectives 

.1 Reduce the volume of solid waste requiring disposal in accordance with Provincial 
waste reduction targets.  

.2 Establish recycling and transfer stations in the Plan Area. 
 



   

 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016  86 

19.7.2 Policies 

The Regional Board:  

.1 Encourages and supports efficient and environmentally acceptable solid waste 
disposal methods through an education process, especially reduction of waste, reuse 
of materials, recycling, and backyard composting.  

.2 Continues to implement the strategies of its Solid Waste Management Plan, as it is 
amended from time to time.  

.3 Continues to work towards developing a waste transfer station and recycling depot 
in Apex. 

 
19.8 Other Utilities 

Utility services, including electrical, gas, phone and Internet are vital services to a 
community. The Regional District is not the provider of these utility services; however 
through the objectives and policies of this section, the community is encouraged to 
work with utility providers to ensure that Plan Area residents have access to the best 
possible services. 

Being a predominately rural community, the Plan Area, particularly smaller settlement 
areas (e.g., Green Mountain Road, Farleigh Lake) are not well serviced by high-speed 
Internet or cellular phone service. Residents support the improvement of 
communication services in the community.  

Reliable, high quality electricity service is also an issue for some residents in the Green 
Mountain Road area. There is no electricity service along Green Mountain Road from 
the Apex Mountain turnoff south to Highway 3A. 
 

19.8.1 Objectives 

.1 Encourage the operators of utilities to provide residents and businesses in the 
rural settlement areas with utility services. 

.2 Encourage cooperation and coordination of the provision of utilities to existing and 
future developments. 

 
19.8.2 Policies 

The Regional Board:  

.1 Should work with utility providers to deliver affordable and convenient utility 
services, including high-speed Internet and cellular service, throughout the Plan 
Area.  

.2 Should work with utility providers and DRAO to ensure new utility installations and 
upgrades are compatible with Observatory operations. 



   

 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016  87 

.3 Encourages public utility companies and the Province to develop and maintain 
infrastructure corridors in a manner that will not negatively impact existing 
residents and the natural environment, or have a negative impact on existing 
Environmentally Sensitive Development Permit Areas and Watercourse 
Development Permit Areas. 

.4 Supports the establishment of renewable energy projects that use water, wind, 
sunlight, biomass or geothermal energy to generate electricity for sale into the 
electrical transmission and distribution infrastructure when those facilities:  

a) have been properly evaluated and are shown to be technically sound, 
environmentally sensitive and socially responsible;  

b) are located, designed, constructed and operated in a manner that is 
consistent with the overall vision for the region;  

c) can be connected into the existing transmission and distribution infrastructure 
with minimal impact; and  

d) provide tangible community benefits.   



   

 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016  88 

20.0 AGGREGATE AND MINERAL RESOURCES  
 
20.1 Background 

The Regional District has limited influence on the location of mineral and aggregate 
resource extraction.  The objectives and policies of this section remain broad in nature 
to offer guidance to senior governments in their decision-making process. Figure 21 
illustrates potential aggregate areas in the Plan Area (i.e., where aggregate resources 
are located, not that they should be extracted wherever they are located). The 
Province placed a no registration reserve to prevent mineral claim staking within the 
area shown on the figure to protect DRAO from RFI.  

Figure 20:  Resource Extraction Potential 

20.2 Objectives 

.1 Protect sand and gravel aggregate supplies for anticipated future needs. 

.2 Protect non-agricultural lands having recoverable aggregate or mineral resources 
from development or adjacent uses that would limit or prohibit extraction.  



   

 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016  89 

.3 Minimize conflicts between sand and gravel processing operations and adjacent land 
uses. 

.4 Support the Province to require rehabilitation and remediation of resource extraction 
sites. 

.5 Direct sand and gravel extraction proposals toward sites that have no adverse 
environmental impact or where the impact can be adequately mitigated. 

 
20.3 Policies 

The Regional Board: 

.1 Encourages the Province to continue referrals of mineral exploration proposals to the 
Regional District for comment and due consideration of the impact of resource 
extraction activities on surrounding land uses and development. 

.2 Supports the use of designated Resource Areas for sand and gravel extraction, 
where the uses will not cause a significant visual, environmental or RFI area 
disturbance. 

.3 Will consider rezoning applications for the processing of aggregate resources 
based on any or all of the following criteria:  

a) extent of visual screening, and other mitigation works proposed;  

b) type of processing proposed;  

c) prevailing wind direction, and the potential for noise and dust;  

d) compatibility with adjacent land uses;  

e) environmental sensitivity of the site, and lands adjacent to potential 
aggregate resource processing site;  

f) avoiding potential risk of generating RFI with DRAO operations; 

g) accessibility; and  

h) characteristics of aggregate deposits and groundwater resources.  

.4 Encourages the Province not to issue new surface leases and permits for mineral 
processing within 1,000 metres of designated residential areas unless effective 
mitigation measures can be implemented to significantly reduce or nullify the 
effects of the proposed activity.  

.5 Supports the Provincial reserve preventing mineral claim staking in the 
designated section of White Lake Basin.  

.6 Encourages the Province not to issue leases or permits for aggregate or mineral 
extraction or processing.within the designated RFI area. 



   

 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016  90 

.7 Encourages the Province to include in their licensing, the rehabilitation of 
aggregate extraction and processing sites after extraction and processing are 
completed.  

.8 May consider implementing conditions set by the ALC to mitigate the impact of 
aggregate extraction and processing sites on lands outside the ALR.  

.9 Supports additional product end-use consideration for areas slated for gravel and 
sand extraction. Specifically: gravel or rock crushing sites characteristic of radon 
rich materials should be avoided for concrete mix, otherwise the concrete used 
in the foundation could import an indoor radon gas problem into the house for 
centuries. Likewise, material taken from sites high in crystalline silica or 
containing significant clay/silt fines used as winter road grit may cause an 
outdoor air dust problem, and associated air quality advisory, that could 
otherwise be avoided if equally or better quality road grit was used with a lesser 
capacity for airborne fines. 

.10 Does not support the exploration and mining of uranium within the Plan Area.  
 
  



   

 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016  91 

21.0 CLIMATE CHANGE AND GREENHOUSE GAS 
REDUCTION  

 
21.1 Background 

 The scientific community has reached general consensus that the increasing emissions 
of human-caused greenhouse gases (GHGs) are rapidly changing the earth’s climate.  
Greenhouse gases refer to any or all of carbon dioxide, methane, nitrous oxide, hydro 
fluorocarbons, perfluorocarbons, sulphur hexafluoride and any other substance 
prescribed by regulation.   

Globally, the impacts of climate change will be significant, and are already evident in 
some areas.  Locally, the potential impacts and vulnerabilities are less well documented; 
however they are a growing concern.   

As one of 182 local governments that are signatory to the B.C. Climate Action Charter, 
the Regional District is committed to reducing GHGs and has agreed to take actions to 
achieve certain goals. In order to address growing concerns regarding climate change, 
B.C.’s Local Government Act was amended in 2008 to require all Official Community 
Plans to set targets for the reduction of greenhouse gases, as well as policies and actions 
to achieve the targets set.  

Under the Greenhouse Gas Reduction Targets Act, B.C.'s GHG emissions are to be 
reduced by at least 33% below 2007 levels by 2020. A further emission-reduction target 
of 80% below 2007 levels is required for the year 2050. The three areas where local 
government can play a role in reducing greenhouse gas emissions are in the 
transportation, waste management and building sectors. 
 

21.2  Objectives 

.1 Understand the likely impacts and vulnerabilities of regional climate change within 
the Plan Area. 

.2 Reduce GHG emissions within the Plan Area as per the B.C. Climate Action Charter 
reduction targets. 

.3 Achieve carbon neutral local government operations. 

.4 Promote and provide community outreach and education related to climate 
change and reduction of GHG emissions. 

 
21.3 Policies 

The Regional Board: 

.1 Will work towards the target of reducing GHG emissions by 33% below 2007 levels 
by 2020. 



   

 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016  92 

.2 Will work with other agencies, stakeholders and the community to achieve 
emission reduction targets and energy conservation goals by encouraging: 

a) the construction of energy efficient buildings; 

b) improvements to the energy efficiency of existing buildings; 

c) the increased use of alternative energies; 

d) energy efficient developments; 

e) improvements to alternative transportation amenities; 

f) the use of fuel-efficient vehicles; 

g) reduction and diversion of waste from landfills; 

h) maximizing value from agricultural wastes; 

i) the development of more compact and complete communities; 

j) the protection and restoration of natural areas and forest ecosystems; and  

k) the protection of riparian areas and sensitive habitats. 

.3 Will work towards a corporate GHG reduction strategy to achieve carbon neutral 
operations. 

 
  



   

 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016  93 

22.0 TEMPORARY USE PERMITS 
 
22.1 Background 

Temporary Use Permits may be considered by the Regional Board to allow specific land 
uses to occur for a short period of time.  The permit can contain detailed requirements 
such as indicating the buildings that can be used, the time frame of the permit, and the 
other conditions. 

Such permits are provided at the discretion of the Regional Board and are only in effect 
for a limited period of time.  Temporary Use Permits are not a substitute for a rezoning. 
 

22.2 Objectives 

.1 To avoid conflicts between different types of uses (i.e., residential, commercial, 
agricultural). 

.2 To provide for temporary approval of transitional uses, or uses where uncertainty 
exists respecting appropriateness or viability of the use, and where it is premature 
to decide rezoning and long term land use patterns. 

.3 To ensure that Temporary Use Permits are not considered a substitute for a 
rezoning application. 

.4 To allow on-going short-term vacation rental uses on properties designated 
Residential through the issuance of Temporary Use Permits.  

 
22.3 Policies 

The Regional Board’s policies are as follows: 

.1 Land within all of the Land Use Designations in this OCP is designated under 
Section 492 of the Local Government Act as an area in which Temporary Use 
Permits may be issued. 

.2 The holding of a public information meeting may occur prior to the issuance of a 
Temporary Use Permit. 

.3 Any proposed access to public roads must be reviewed and approved by the 
Ministry of Transportation and Infrastructure. 

.4 In evaluating a Temporary Use Permit application submitted to the Regional 
District, the Regional District may consider the following criteria: 

a) the use must be clearly temporary or seasonal in nature; 

b) compatibility of the proposal with adjacent uses; 

c) compatibility with the RFI requirements of DRAO; 



   

 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016  94 

d) impact of the proposed use on the natural environment, including 
groundwater, wildlife, and all Environmentally Sensitive Development Permit 
and Watercourse Development Permit Areas; 

e) intensity of the proposed use; 

f) opportunity to conduct the proposed use on land elsewhere in the community; 
and 

g) the remedial measures to be carried out to mitigate any damage to the natural 
environment as a result of the temporary use. 

.5 In issuing a Temporary Use Permit, the Regional District may specify conditions 
including, but not limited to: 

a) the buildings to be used; 

b) the area of use; 

c) the hours of use; 

d) appearance; 

e) environmental protection measures, and 

f) groundwater protection. 

.6 In issuing a Temporary Use Permit for a short-term vacation rental, the Regional 
District may specify conditions, in addition to those listed under sub-section 22.3.5 
of this Plan, including, but not limited to:   

a) the provision of screening or fencing in order to address potential impacts or to 
address neighbour privacy issues; 

b) the provision of the manager or owner’s contact information, as well as a copy 
of any issued Temporary Use Permit, to each neighbour whose property is 
located within 100 metres of the subject property; 

c) the availability or accessibility by telephone of the manager or owner; 

d) the posting of the following information: 

i) the location of property lines by way of a map; 

ii) any applicable Regional District noise bylaws; 

iii) measures to address water conservation; 

iv) fire safety regulations; 

v) storage and management of garbage; 

vi) septic system care; and 

vii) control of pets (if pets are permitted) in accordance with the applicable 
Regional District bylaw. 



   

 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016  95 

e) a maximum accommodation of ten persons, with an aggregate occupancy of 
two persons per bedroom within a dwelling unit when such dwelling unit is 
being occupied as a vacation rental; 

f) the provision of one parking space for each bedroom available for vacation 
rental use; 

g) the prohibition of the use of recreational vehicles or camping on the property 
or any use of accessory buildings for vacation rental occupancy; 

h) confirmation from a qualified person that the building used for vacation rental 
meets a minimum standard for health and safety; and 

i) other requirements that the Regional District Board may consider appropriate. 

.7 As a condition of issuing a Temporary Use Permit, the Regional District may 
require the posting of a bond or other applicable security to ensure compliance 
with the conditions of a permit.  



   

 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016  96 

23.0 DEVELOPMENT PERMIT AREAS 
 
23.1 Background 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 488 of the Local Government Act, an Official 
Community Plan (OCP) may designate Development Permit Areas within the Plan Area. 
Unless otherwise specified, a Development Permit must be approved by the Regional 
Board prior to any disturbance, development or subdivision of land within a designated 
Development Permit Area.  

For lands within a Development Permit Area, the OCP must describe the special 
conditions or objectives that justify the designation and specify guidelines respecting 
the manner by which the special conditions or objectives will be addresses. 

There are two Development Permit Areas designated in the Electoral Area “D-1” OCP: 

· Environmentally Sensitive Development Permit (ESDP) Area 

· Watercourse Development Permit (WDP) Area 
 
23.2 Environmentally Sensitive Development Permit (ESDP) Area 
 
23.2.1 Category 

The Environmentally Sensitive Development Permit Area (ESDP Area) as shown on 
Schedule ‘I’ (Development Permit Areas – Environmentally Sensitive Areas) is 
designated as a Development Permit Area under section 488(1)(a) of the Local 
Government Act, for the protection of the natural environment, its ecosystems and 
biological diversity. 

 
23.2.2 Area 

The lands shown as ESDP Area on Schedule ‘I’ are designated as “Environmentally 
Sensitive Development Permit Area”. 

 
23.2.3 Justification 

To regulate development activities within environmentally sensitive areas in order to 
protect habitat for endangered species of native, rare vegetation or wild, and provide 
wildlife corridors and secondary habitat. 

 
23.2.4 Background 

The natural environment provides essential habitat and corridors for plants, fish, birds 
and other organisms. It also acts as a natural water storage, drainage and purifying 
system, which can help to protect private property from flooding or land loss due to 
watercourse erosion. Furthermore, as concerns over climate change grow, it should be 



   

 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016  97 

recognized that functioning ecosystems are more efficient at consuming carbon 
dioxide as well as carbon storage. Vegetation adjacent to watercourses needs to 
remain in a largely undisturbed state in order to maintain a healthy environment and 
clean water. 

The south Okanagan-Similkameen area is considered one of the most ecologically 
diverse in British Columbia and Canada, and includes sensitive ecosystems which 
support a number of provincially Red and Blue-listed species (extirpated, endangered, 
threatened, and vulnerable) and federally listed Species at Risk. This Development 
Permit Area is intended to protect habitat for endangered species of native, rare 
vegetation or wildlife, and provide wildlife corridors and secondary habitat within the 
Plan Area. 

The ESDP Area is comprised of important habitat areas for wildlife habitat and plant 
communities. Sensitive ecosystems in the area include grasslands, riparian areas, 
forest, wetlands, shallow soiled rock outcrops and ridges. It is the close proximity of 
these diverse habitats that contributes to the wide diversity of species, both common 
and rare, that are found within Electoral Area “D-1”. 

  
23.2.5 Development Requiring a Permit 

.1 A Development Permit is required, except where specified under Exemptions, for 
development on lands within the ESDP area. Where not exempted, development 
requiring a Development Permit includes: 

a) subdivision; 

b) the construction of, addition to or alteration of a building or other structure; 
and 

c) alteration of the land, including grading, removal, deposit or moving of soil, 
paving, installation of drainage or underground services. 

 
23.2.6 Guidelines 

.1 A Development Permit is required for development within an ESDP Area, and shall 
be in accordance with the following guidelines: 

a) An Environmental Assessment (EA) Report, prepared in accordance with the 
requirements of the Regional District’s Development Procedures Bylaw, must 
be submitted to the Regional District in respect of the proposed development 
by a qualified environmental professional (QEP) that is a Registered 
Professional Biologist in British Columbia (RPBio) or team that shall include a 
RPBio under contract to the development applicant, and shall include: 

i) An Ecological Assessment Phase including: 

.1 background information;  

.2 an ecological assessment; 



   

 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016  98 

.3 listing of rare and endangered species; and 

.4 stratification and rating of Environmentally Sensitive Areas (ESAs). 

ii) An Impact Assessment and Mitigation Phase including: 

.1 description of proposed development;  

.2 assessment of potential impacts; 

.3 short and long term impacts; 

.4 cumulative and residual impacts; 

.5 avoidance of ESAs; 

.6 mitigation and compensation; 

.7 security requirements; 

.8 monitoring reports; 

.9 accountability; and 

.10 monitoring plan. 

b) Development should be planned away from native trees and trees containing 
active nest sites or cavities. If removal of native trees cannot be avoided, 
mitigation should include restoration and replanting with equivalent native 
trees. 

c) Habitat connectivity and the retention of connectivity corridors between 
sensitive ecosystems should be preserved. Wildlife crossings should be 
designed to protect continuity of wildlife corridors where these are 
interrupted by roadways. 

d) Monitoring reports may be required to be submitted to the Regional District 
following the completion of a development in order to confirm the conditions 
of a development permit have been met. 

e) The Regional District may incorporate any areas or measures identified in an 
EA to protect sensitive ecosystems from the effect of development as terms 
and conditions of the development permit. 

.2 If an area of land is subject to additional Development Permit Area designations 
under Section 488(1)(a) of the Local Government Act, the Regional District requires 
that a single development permit application that combines the requirements of 
each Development Permit Area be submitted. The application will be assessed in 
accordance with the individual development permit guidelines for each applicable 
Development Permit Area under this bylaw and, if approved, issued under a 
combined development permit. 

 
 



   

 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016  99 

23.2.7 Expedited Development Permit 

.1 Despite sub-section 18.2.6(a), the Regional District may issue a development 
permit on the basis of a Rapid Environmental Assessment (REA) Report for 
development where: 

a) A REA, prepared in accordance with the Regional District’s Development 
Procedures Bylaw, has been submitted to the Regional District in respect of 
the proposed development by a qualified environmental professional (QEP) 
that is a Registered Professional Biologist in British Columbia or team that 
includes a Registered Professional Biologist in British Columbia (RPBio) under 
contract to the development applicant, and includes: 

i) a site plan documenting, if applicable, the location and extent of 
Environmentally Valuable Resources (EVRs) occurring within 100 metres 
of the proposed footprint of the development. 

ii) a completed Rapid Environmental Assessment Checklist signed and sealed 
by the responsible QEP indicating: 

.1 There is no known occurrence of an EVR on or within 100 metres of 
the proposed footprint of the development; or 

.2 Known EVR occurrence(s) have been identified and: 

a) measures have been prescribed to avoid impacts; or 

b) acceptable restoration/mitigation have been prescribed. 

iii) recommended avoidance or mitigation measures if known EVR 
occurrences have been identified. 

b) If a QEP cannot certify the absence of EVRs or that impacts to known EVRs 
have been avoided or acceptably mitigated through a REA to the satisfaction 
of the Regional District, an EA as outlined under sub-section 18.2.6(a) will be 
required. 

c) The Regional District may incorporate any areas or measures identified in a 
REA to protect sensitive ecosystems from the effect of development as terms 
and conditions of the development permit. 

  
23.2.8 Exemptions 

A development permit is not required for development within land in the ESDP area 
for: 

.1 The  construction,  repair,  maintenance  or  alteration  of  public  utility  works,  
including  sanitary  sewer,  storm  sewer,  water,  natural  gas,  cable,  hydro-
electric or telecommunications works, but excluding communication towers and 
antenna systems; 



   

 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016 
 100 

.2 the repair or maintenance of existing buildings and structures provided there are 
no additions or increases to the footprint of the building or structure;  

.3 Residential development where a completed Building Permit application has been 
accepted by the Regional District, the proposed development does not exceed 
50.0 m2 from the original footprint of the principal dwelling unit and the 
development comprises either: 

a) an alteration or addition to the original footprint of an existing principal 
dwelling unit; or 

b) the construction of an accessory building or structure, provided the accessory 
building or structure is not situated beyond 10.0 metres of a principal dwelling 
unit. 

.4 works conducted in accordance with the Provincial FireSmart Manual, provided 
that all landscaping is conducted within 10.0 metres of an existing structure or 
building (existing on-site native plants which meet the FireSmart Manual 
guidelines are encouraged to be maintained as part of the landscaping); 

.5 the construction, alteration, addition, repair, demolition and maintenance of 
buildings and structures to be used in relation to a farm use as defined in the 
Agricultural Land Commission Act on land located in the ALR and classified as 
“farm” under the Assessment Act; 

.6 any farm use as defined in the Agriculture Land Commission Act on land located in 
the ALR; 

.7 any farm use that is subject to an approved Environmental Farm Plan(EFP) through 
the Canada-British Columbia Environmental Farm Plan Program; 

.8 the repair of existing fences; and 

.9 subdivisions that propose to: 

a) consolidate existing parcels, including the consolidation of parts of a closed 
road to an existing parcel; or 

b) alter parcel lines between two or more parcels where no additional parcels 
are created upon completion of the alteration.  



   

 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016 
 101 

23.3 Watercourse Development Permit (WDP) Area 
   
23.3.1 Category 

The Watercourse Development Permit (WDP) Area is designated pursuant to Section 
488(1)(a) of the Local Government Act, for the protection of the natural environment, 
its ecosystems and biological diversity. 

 
23.3.2 WDP Area 

The lands shown as WDP Area on Schedule ‘J’ are designated as a “Watercourse 
Development Permit Area”. 

The definitions used in the Local Government Act and Provincial Riparian Areas 
Regulation (RAR) shall apply. 

 
23.3.3 Justification 

To regulate development activities within Riparian Assessment Areas (RAA) as a means 
to protect aquatic habitat, enhance, conserve and restore watercourses and their 
riparian areas. 

 
23.3.4 Guidelines 

.1 Where not exempt, development requiring a Development Permit includes any of 
the following associated with or resulting from residential, commercial or 
industrial activities or ancillary activities to the extent that they are subject to local 
government powers under Part 26 of the Local Government Act: 

a) removal, alteration, disruption or destruction of vegetation; 

b) disturbance of soils; 

c) construction or erection of buildings and structures; 

d) creation of non-structural impervious or semi-impervious surfaces; 

e) flood protection works; 

f) construction of roads, trails, docks, wharves and bridges; 

g) provision and maintenance of sewer and water services; 

h) development of drainage systems; 

i) development of utility corridors; 

j) subdivision as defined in Section 566 of the Local Government Act. 

.2 A Development Permit is required for development within the WDP Area, and shall 
be in accordance with the following guidelines: 



   

 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016 
 102 

a) an Assessment Report must be submitted to the Regional District in respect of 
the proposed development by a QEP under contract to the development 
applicant, including: 

i) certification that the professional is qualified to undertake the 
assessment and has used the appropriate assessment methods, all in 
accordance with the Provincial RAR; 

ii) description and map of all pertinent aspects of the proposed 
development; 

iii) confirmation of the boundaries of the RAA, and within that, the 
determined width of the Streamside Protection and Enhancement Area 
(SPEA); 

iv) description of the natural features, functions and conditions in the 
riparian area that support fish life processes; 

v) recommended measures necessary for conserving, restoring or enhancing 
the integrity of the riparian area; and 

vi) professional opinion that either the development as proposed would not 
result in serious harm to fish as defined under the Fisheries Act.  

b) the Regional District may require a Section 219 covenant to ensure long term 
protection of vegetation along a natural watercourse, pond or lake so that it 
will be maintained to provide shade for the water surface, bank stability, and 
wildlife or waterfowl habitat sufficient for species which frequent the area; 
and  

c) the Regional District may incorporate the SPEA determined by the QEP 
assessment report and any measures identified in the QEP assessment report 
necessary to protect the integrity of that area from the effect of the 
development as terms and conditions of the Development Permit. 

 
23.3.5 Security and Environmental Monitors 

Development Permits may include requirements for environmental monitoring where 
riparian areas must be protected. Remediation must be completed or where 
construction requires environmental controls must include an Environmental 
Monitoring Report.  Environmental monitoring reports, when required, must be 
prepared by the QEP. 

The Regional District Board may require security in accordance with Section 925 of the 
Local Government Act and any applicable Regional District Policies to correct a 
situation where: 

a) a condition in a permit respecting landscaping has not been satisfied; 

b) an unsafe condition has resulted as a consequence of contravention of a condition 
of a permit; or 



   

 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016 
 103 

c) damage to the natural environment has resulted as a consequence of a 
contravention of a condition in a permit. 

Security shall be based on the estimated cost of any environmental controls, 
remediation works, landscape or other planting and monitoring as determined by a 
QEP and accepted by the Regional District. 

 
23.3.6 Exemptions 

A WDP is not required under this section for any of the following: 

.1 The construction, repair, maintenance or alteration of any public structure, facility 
or land, including parkland, open space, roads or trails; 

.2 The construction, repair, maintenance or alteration of public utility works, 
including sanitary sewer, storm sewer, water, natural gas, cable, hydro-electric or 
telecommunications works; 

.3 An area where the applicant can demonstrate that the conditions of the WDP Area 
have already been satisfied, or a Development Permit for the same area has 
already been issued in the past and the conditions in the Development Permit 
have all been met, or the conditions addressed in the previous Development 
Permit will not be affected; 

.4 Any type of development, provided a QEP has confirmed that there is no 
watercourse or riparian area as defined by the Riparian Areas Regulation on the 
parcel to be developed or subdivided. 

.5 The activity is limited to the environmentally sensitive removal of trees and shrubs 
designated as hazardous by a professional forester or professional biologist 
registered in British Columbia and certified by the Wildfire Danger Tree Committee 
for Danger Tree Assessment in Urban and Recreational Areas, in accordance with 
Provincial “FireSmart” standards or those trees and shrubs designated as host 
trees by the Sterile Insect Release Program as recommended in a report submitted 
to the Regional District. 

.6 Environmentally sensitive removal of infested, diseased, or hazardous trees in 
accordance with Best Management Practices for Tree Topping, Limbing and 
Removal in Riparian Areas (Provincial guidelines) as indicated in a report by a QEP 
or ISA certified Arborist with the provision of environmental monitoring to ensure 
the tree removal is carried out in accordance with the report recommendations. 

.7 Development Permit provisions do not apply to activities such as gardening and 
yard maintenance activities within an existing landscaped area, such as mowed 
lawns, minor pruning of trees and shrubs, planting vegetation and minor soil 
disturbance that does not alter the general contours of the land. 

  
23.3.7 Variance to Protect the SPEA 



   

 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016 
 104 

The Regional District encourages Development Variance Permit (DVP) applications for 
the relaxation of zoning (parcel line) setbacks on existing small lots in order to reduce 
impacts and preserve the SPEA. 

 
23.3.8 Expedited Development Permit 

In the following cases the Regional District may issue a Development Permit without 
the provision of an Assessment Report, and the Regional District may require security 
and environmental monitoring under Section 23.3.5: 

.1 Where the development applicant provides a sketch or plan prepared by a B.C. 
Land Surveyor or QEP indicating to the Regional District’s satisfaction that no 
physical alteration of land is proposed within the Watercourse Development 
Permit Area or within any RAA within the Watercourse Development Permit Area, 
in which case the Development Permit must indicate by means of a sketch or plan 
the area of the land to which physical alterations are restricted; 

.2 Where the applicant proposes to reconstruct, repair, alter or add to an existing 
permanent building or other structure without increasing the footprint of the 
building or structure within any RAA or within a SPEA identified in a riparian area 
assessment previously provided to the Regional District, in which case the 
Development Permit must indicate by means of a sketch or plan the location and 
extent of the footprint; 

.3 Where the applicant proposes a subdivision of land that adjusts an interior lot line 
and each proposed lot provides, outside any RAA, a building envelope of sufficient 
area to permit the construction of a building of reasonable floor area complying 
with all building siting regulations applicable to the lot, in which case the 
Development Permit must indicate by means of sketch or plan the proposed lot 
configuration and the location of the building envelope; 

.4 Where the applicant proposes a subdivision of land in which each proposed lot 
complies with the applicable minimum parcel area and width regulations exclusive 
of any area within the Watercourse Development Permit Area and no land 
alteration is proposed within that area, in which case the Development Permit 
must indicate by means of a sketch or plan the proposed subdivision layout and 
the area of the land to which physical alterations are restricted; 

.5 Where the applicant proposes a subdivision of land in respect of which no land 
alteration is proposed within any RAA, in which case the Development Permit 
must indicate by means of a sketch or plan the area of the land to which the 
subdivision is restricted; and 

.6 Where the applicant proposes to restore the natural environment based upon a 
planting plan completed by a QEP and submitted to the Regional District for 
approval. 

  



   

 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016 
 105 

24.0 IMPLEMENTATION 
 
24.1 Introduction 

The OCP sets out broad objectives, polices and directions for the Plan Area, but does not 
provide the tools for implementing its policies. The Regional District has a number of 
tools and methods available for implementing the Plan. The purpose of this section is to 
set out specific steps the Regional District can take to implement this Plan. Some of the 
steps include refining the Plan; changing existing bylaws; adopting new bylaws; 
conducting studies to obtain more information and direction; and working closely with 
other jurisdictions and government agencies. Some of the specific steps are set out in 
the subsections below. 

 
24.2 Refinements and Amendments 

OCP amendments are usually triggered by site-specific rezoning proposals that are 
inconsistent with the OCP. Other changes to the OCP may be proposed by RDOS staff to 
keep the plan up-to-date and to meet the needs of a changing community. 

The Local Government Act regulates the process for an application for an OCP 
amendment. The process requires public notification, public hearing, and opportunities 
for consideration of the application by the RDOS Board. 

The Regional District may also consider refinements to this OCP. These refinements may 
include but are not limited to the following: 

.1 Periodic assessment of the Plan Area OCP to determine area revisions; 

.2 Coordination with changes to Provincial legislation (e.g. Local Government Act, 
Community Charter, Agricultural Land Commission Act, etc.) 

.3 Coordination with new or revised Provincial plans and policies that relate to land 
use and community issues in the Plan Area. 

.4 Coordination with new or revised regional plans and policies (e.g. South Okanagan 
Regional Growth Strategy). 

.5 Changes resulting from transportation planning (e.g. Okanagan-Similkameen 
Transit Future Plan) and capital improvements (e.g., Kaleden sewer extension). 

.6 Changes to the known geographic extent of Environmentally Sensitive 
Development Permit Areas, as determined through the review of plans, reports 
and applications submitted by project proponents to the Regional District. 

.7 Changes suggested by the Joint Council (i.e., Regional District, Penticton Indian 
Band, Lower Similkameen, Osoyoos Indian Band). 



   

 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016 
 106 

Recognizing this Plan is a living document, it has been identified that the Plan should be 
reviewed and updated every seven to 10 years and that a comprehensive review and update 
should take place every 10 to 15 years. 

Some future additions to the OCP have also been identified as follows: 

Figure 21:  Potential Future OCP Additions 

24.3 Zoning Bylaw 

The Zoning Bylaw sets out the density of development on a parcel of land, as well as 
specifying the permitted uses allowed.  It also contains specific regulations that control 
the size, siting and various other details of development on a parcel of land. The Zoning 
Bylaw will be updated to ensure consistency with the OCP and to implement portions of 
this Plan. Specific Zoning Bylaw updates recommended by this OCP’s policies are 
outlined in the following table.   
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

F
igure 22:  Zoning Bylaw Updates 

24.4 Subdivision Servicing Bylaw 

The Regional District’s Subdivision Servicing Bylaw sets out minimum standards for 
roads, sidewalks, curb and gutter, water systems, sewer systems, storm drainage, and 
street lighting. Subdivisions must meet these standards before they are approved. The 
Subdivision Servicing Bylaw will need to be reviewed and amended where necessary to 

OCP Policy  Action Required 

7.2.1.4 Consider creation of a Form and Character DPA in conjunction with a Local Area 
Plan for the Apex area 

7.3.1.16 Identify Crown land parcels and accreted lands along Skaha Lake that may be 
suitable for designation as Conservation Area 

7.3.1.17 
Consider development of public access objectives and design guidelines for the 
Skaha Lake shoreline that include criteria to minimize impacts to the foreshore 
ecosystems and species  

7.5.1.5 Review the suitability of Twin Lakes as a Rural Growth Area when the Regional 
Growth Strategy is reviewed or updated 

OCP Policy  Action Required 

8.3.8 Establish a Watershed Resource Area Zone for designated community 
watersheds 

NA Remove Residential zoning from the slopes east of Twin Lakes golf course  

NA Update Zoning Bylaw for the 13 Large Holdings (LH) parcels in the Green 
Mountain Road / Apex Road intersection area 

10.5.2 Establish a range of densities and parcel sizes within the Zoning Bylaw for lands 
designated Small Holdings 



   

 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016 
 107 

ensure it works to implement various policies in the Plan, particularly with respect to 
servicing levels related to parcel sizes. 
 

24.5 Other Agencies 

The Regional District will take a leadership role in coordinating work with Provincial, 
Federal and other agencies to help implement and complement portions of the Plan. 
 

24.6 Follow-up Studies and Initiatives 

The following are studies and initiatives that have been identified in the OCP as actions 
that could implement portions of this Plan. The actions are organized into short-term 
(one to three years), medium-term (four to six years), and long-term (seven+ years) 
actions. 

Recognizing the capacity issues (i.e., limited time, human resources, financial resources) 
faced by the RDOS and stakeholders who may be involved in implementing OCP actions, 
RDOS staff screened and prioritized the actions. Actions currently underway or in 
process (e.g., Regional Heritage Strategic Plan) are identified as short-term actions.   

Short-term / ongoing (one to three years) 
Actions Lead Responsibility 
Water Sustainability Act – policy 
implications/revisions RDOS 

Explore groundwater bylaw for RDOS RDOS with support from Okanagan Basin Water 
Board and Province 

Development of Apex transfer and recycling 
station  

RDOS in partnership with Apex Mountain Resort, 
community and local businesses 

Development of a new Local Area Plan for Apex RDOS with support from Province and in 
partnership with Apex community and Resort 

Medium-term (four to six years) 
Development of a Local Area Plan for Kaleden RDOS with support from Province 
Explore the feasibility of an RDOS maintained and 
operated community sewer service at St Andrews RDOS with St. Andrews Strata 

Explore the feasibility of an RDOS maintained and 
operated community sewer service at Twin Lakes RDOS with Twin Lakes developer 

Explore opportunities to establish fire protection 
services for Apex and Twin Lakes 

Regional District; with support from local 
communities and stakeholders (e.g., Apex 
Mountain Resort) 

Explore the feasibility for coordinating and/or 
amalgamating water utilities in the Plan Area 
under Regional District management 

Regional District in partnership with water utilities 

Long-term (seven+ years) 
Expansion of sewer services to Kaleden RDOS with support from Province 
Plan Area transit improvements  BC Transit with support from RDOS 



   

 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016 
 108 

Figure 23:  Follow up Studies and Initiatives 
  

24.7 Discharge of Land Use Contracts (LUCs) 

Legislative changes adopted under the Section 547 of the Local Government Act will 
result in the termination of all LUCs by June 30, 2024. Local governments must adopt 
zoning that applies to land regulated by LUCs by June 30, 2022.  

Land use designations in this Plan reflect the proposed land uses to be implemented 
through future zoning changes. The discharge of LUCs will not take effect until at least 
one year after a zoning bylaw has been adopted that applies to the lands currently 
regulated by LUCs. Voluntary discharges of a LUC can implement new zoning as soon as 
the bylaw is adopted.  

The Plan provides for the following land use designations for existing LUCs. 

Land Use Contract Land Use Designation  

LU-23-D77  
(Bylaw No. 377, 1977) 

Small Holdings (SH) along the north and east sides of Trout Lake 

LU-10-D  
(Bylaw No. 218, 1974) 

Small Holdings (SH) on four small parcels, Resource Area (RA) on 
remainder 

LU-9-D  
(Bylaw No. 206, 1974) 

Small Holdings (SH) along the north shore of Nipit Lake and Agriculture 
(AG) on one parcel on the ALR on the northwest shore of Nipit Lake 

LUC-6-D 
(Bylaw No. 169, 1973) 

Resource Area (RA) on remaining undeveloped parcels, Low Density 
Residential (LR) on developed parcels. NOTE: the Regional District 
Board supports DRAO securing measures to ensure enduring legal 
protection and management to protect the ongoing operations of the 
Observatory prior to discharging the LUC.  

Figure 24:  Land Use Contracts and Replacement Land Use Designations 

 
24.8 Monitoring 

The Regional District Board should monitor the OCP on an ongoing basis.  The OCP 
should be revised when necessary to ensure it addresses current needs and aspirations 
of the community and reflects changing local and external conditions.  In support of this 
initiative, the Regional District will monitor: 

.1 population and demographic changes; 

.2 groundwater supply, consumption and management issues; 

.3 land supply / demand; 

.4 changing housing requirements; and 

.5 economic, social, and environmental factors. 



   

 
Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016 
 109 

Based on the review of information collected from OCP monitoring, the Regional District 
may choose to refine or amend the Electoral Area “D-1” OCP accordingly as resources 
permit. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

~ end of Schedule ‘A’ ~ 











































































































































































PUBLIC HEARING REPORT 
 

 
Public Hearing Report – Bylaw No. 2683, 2016 

Page 1 

TO:  Regional Board of Directors 
 
FROM:  Chair Tom Siddon, Electoral Area “D” 

 
DATE:  November 16, 2016 
 
RE: Public Hearing Report Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 2683, 2016, Electoral Area 

“D-1” 
 
 
Purpose of Bylaw: 
The purpose of the bylaw is to update and replace the Electoral Area “D-1” Kaleden Apex Official 
Community Plan Bylaw. 
 
Public Hearing Overview: 
The Public Hearing for Bylaw No. 2683, 2016, was convened on Wednesday, November 16, 2016, at 
7:05 pm, at the Kaleden Community Hall, 320 Lakehill Road, Kaleden. 

There were nineteen (19) members of the public present. 

Members of the Regional District Board present were: 

· Chair Tom Siddon 

Members of the Regional District staff present were: 

· Evelyn Riechert, Planner 

· Gillian Cramm, Recording Secretary 
 

Chair Siddon called the Public Hearing to order at 7:05 pm at the Kaleden Community Hall, Kaleden, 
pursuant to Section 464, 465 & 468 of the Local Government Act in order to consider Bylaw No. 2683, 
2016. 

In accordance with Section 466, the time and place of the public hearing was advertised in the 
November 2nd and 9th editions of the Penticton Western and the November 7th edition of the 
Penticton Herald. 

Copies of reports and correspondence received related to Bylaw No 2683, 2016, were available for 
viewing at the Regional District office during the required posting period. 
 

Summary of Representations: 
One written submission was received from DRAO that reflects what was stated during the public 
hearing.  
 



 
Public Hearing Report – Bylaw No. 2683, 2016 

Page 2 

Chair Siddon called a first time for briefs and comments from the floor and noted that a binder is 
available which includes all written comments received to date and anyone wishing to review the 
comments could do so.  
 
E. Riechert, Planner, outlined the proposed bylaw.  
 
Chair Siddon asked if anyone wished to speak to the proposed bylaw.  
 
Ken Tapping, representing Dominion Radio Astrophysical Observatory (DRAO), read from a 
submission about the benefits of DRAO and threats to it from Radio Frequency Interference (RFI).  He 
proposed several refinements to the bylaw to ensure that DRAO is protected from an increase in RFI.  
He requested RDOS play a leadership role in working with Provincial and Federal governments and 
DRAO to ensure continued protection from Radio Frequency Interference (RFI). He noted that he had 
previously submitted a copy of his notes. 
 
Lorraine Stephanson spoke regarding vacation rentals and temporary use permits, and asked whether 
Apex was still exempt from them.   
 
Ms. Riechert noted that the use of vacation rentals is addressed in the zoning bylaw, and that nothing 
had changed with respect to vacation rentals and temporary use permits at Apex. 
 
Barb Leslie, co-chair of the Citizens Group that reviewed the draft OCP Bylaw, thanked the Regional 
District for the opportunity to be involved in the creation of the bylaw.   
 
Chair Siddon asked a second time if there was anyone who wished to speak further to the proposed 
bylaw. 
 
Chair Siddon asked a third time if there was anyone who wished to speak further to the proposed 
bylaw and hearing none, declared the public hearing closed at 7:52 p.m. 

 
Recorded by: 
 

G. Cramm 
 
Gillian Cramm 
Recording Secretary 

Confirmed: 
 
E. Riechert 

 
Evelyn Riechert 
Planner 

Confirmed:  
 

T. Siddon 
 
Tom Siddon 
Chair 

  





















































































ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 
 

 Project No. D2016.096-ZONE 
Page 1 of 2 

TO:  Board of Directors 
 
FROM:  B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 

 
DATE:  December 15, 2016 
 
RE:  Zoning Bylaw Amendment — Electoral Area “D-1”  
  Large Holdings Two (LH2) 
 

Administrative Recommendation: 

THAT Bylaw No. 2457.15, 2016, Electoral Area “D” Zoning Amendment Bylaw be read a third time 
and be adopted. 
 

Proposal: 
That the Regional District Board initiate an amendment to the Electoral Area “D-1” Zoning Bylaw No. 
2457, 2008, in order to include a new Large Holdings Two (LH2) Zone into the zoning bylaw with an 8 
ha minimum parcel size requirement and; secondly, to rezone three specific properties to LH2.    

The new LH2 zone is being introduced in conjunction with the Draft Electoral Area “D-1” Official 
Community Plan Bylaw.  
 
Site Context:  
The three properties that will be specifically rezoned to Large Holdings Two (LH2) at this time are on 
Green Mountain Road near the junction of Apex Mountain Road.  The parcels range from 25.7 ha to 
41.1 ha in size.  The properties are currently being used as rural residential and ranching.   
 
Background: 

At its meeting of October 11, 2016, the Electoral Area “D” Advisory Planning Commission (APC) made 
a recommendation to the RDOS Board to support the rezoning proposal.  

At its meeting of October 20, 2016, the Regional District Board resolved to approve first and second 
reading of the amendment bylaw and direct a public hearing.  

A public hearing was held on November 16, 2016, where approximately 19 members of the public 
attended.  

Approval from the Ministry of Transportation and infrastructure (MOTI) will be not required prior to 
adoption as the proposal is not situated within 800 metres of a controlled area.   

All comments received through the public process, including the Public Hearing Report are compiled 
and included as a separate item on the Board agenda.  
 
Analysis:  
In considering this proposal, Administration notes that in the new Electoral Area “D-1” OCP Bylaw a 
total of 17 parcels in the Green Mountain Road are re-designated from Resource Area to Large 
Holdings.  The original planning concerns relating to this designation change included the precedent 



  
 

 Project No. D2016.096-ZONE 
Page 2 of 2 

setting nature of the proposed parcel size and increased rural subdivision potential that may 
contradict the goals of growth management in the region.   

Countering the above concerns is the potential for new parcels and number of dwelling units possible 
under current zoning for this particular area.  Two of the properties have the potential for significant 
development, one zoned as SH3 being 26.6 ha in size has the ability to create up to 25 new parcels 
and the second, 41.2 ha in area is zoned Commercial Recreation (CR) and has the potential to 
construct up to 36 dwelling units.  

Neither owner has made efforts to develop their properties to the extent they have been allowed to 
over the past several decades.  The owners have been consulted and will have subdivision 
opportunities under the new LH2 zone.   

Consequently, by providing an option of an 8 ha minimum parcel size LH2 zone results in the re-
distribution of density and still keeps the area as rural in nature.  This way the rezoning is not 
precedent setting because there has been no overall gain in density while still providing subdivision 
potential of large rural properties.  

Given the direction of the new OCP and the above reasons, Administration supports rezoning the 
subject properties and to create a LH2 zone for the “D-1” area.   
 
Alternative: 
THAT the Board of Directors rescind first and second reading of Bylaw No. 2657.15, 2016, and 
abandon the bylaw.  
 
 
Respectfully submitted: Endorsed by: Endorsed by: 

ERiechert__________ __________________________ __Donna Butler_______________ 
E. Riechert, Planner C. Garrish, Planning Supervisor D. Butler, Development Services Manager 
  
 
 
 



 

Amendment Bylaw No. 2457.15, 2016 
(D2016.096-ZONE) 

Page 1 of 7 

 _________________ 
 
 BYLAW NO. 2457.15 
  _________________ 
 
 
 REGIONAL DISTRICT OF OKANAGAN-SIMILKAMEEN 
 
 BYLAW NO. 2457.15, 2016 
 
 

A Bylaw to amend the Electoral Area “D” Zoning Bylaw No. 2457, 2008 
         
 

The REGIONAL BOARD of the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen in open 
meeting assembled ENACTS as follows: 

1. This Bylaw may be cited for all purposes as the “Electoral Area “D” Zoning 
Amendment Bylaw No. 2457.15, 2016.” 

2. The Official Zoning Bylaw Map, being Schedule ‘2’ of the Electoral Area “D-2” Zoning 
Bylaw No. 2455, 2008, is amended by changing the land use designation on the lands 
shown shaded purple on Schedule ‘X-1’, which forms part of this Bylaw, from 
Commercial Recreation (CR) to Large Holdings Two (LH2). 

3. The Official Zoning Bylaw Map, being Schedule ‘2’ of the Electoral Area “D-2” Zoning 
Bylaw No. 2455, 2008, is amended by changing the land use designation on the lands 
shown hatched purple on Schedule ‘X-1’, which forms part of this Bylaw, from 
Agricultural Three (AG3s) to Large Holdings Two (LH2). 

4. The Official Zoning Bylaw Map, being Schedule ‘2’ of the Electoral Area “D-2” Zoning 
Bylaw No.2455, 2008, is amended by changing the land use designation on the lands 
shown hatched lime green on Schedule ‘X-1’, which forms part of this Bylaw, from 
Small Holdings Three (SH3) to Large Holdings Two (LH2).  

5. The Official Zoning Bylaw Map, being Schedule ‘2’ of the Electoral Area “D-2” Zoning 
Bylaw No.2455, 2008, is amended by changing the land use designation on the lands 
shown shaded brown on Schedule ‘X-1’, which forms part of this Bylaw, from 
Resource Area (RA) to Large Holdings Two (LH2) 



 

Amendment Bylaw No. 2457.15, 2016 
(D2016.096-ZONE) 

Page 2 of 7 

(i) replacing all references to Large Holdings (LH) with Large Holdings One 
(LH1).  

6. The “Regional District Okanagan-Similkameen, Electoral Area “D” Zoning Bylaw No. 
2457, 2008” is amended by: 

i) replacing the reference to “Large Holdings Zone LH” under Section 6.1 
(Zoning Districts) with the following: 

Large Holdings One    LH1 

ii) adding a new reference to “Large Holdings Two Zone LH2” under Section 6.1 
(Zoning Districts). 

iii) deleting the reference to “Commercial Recreation Zone CR” under Section 6.1 
(Zoning Districts). 

iv) replacing the title of Section 10.4 (Large Holdings) with the following: 

10.4 LARGE HOLDINGS ONE (LH1) 

v) replacing Section 10.4.2 under Section 10.4 (Large Holdings Zone) with the 
following: 

10.4.2  Site Specific Large Holdings One (LH1s) Provisions: 

a) see Section 16.4 

vi) adding the following as a new Section following 10.4 (Large Holdings Zone) 
and renumbering any subsequent sections accordingly:  

10.5  LARGE HOLDINGS TWO ZONE (LH2) 

10.5.1  Permitted Uses: 

Principal uses: 

a) agriculture, subject to Sections 7.22, 7.23 and 7.24; 

b) processing and retail sales of farm and off-farm 
products, subject to Section 7.23;  

c) stable, subject to Section 7.22; 

d) forestry; 

e) guest ranch; 

f) guide camp; 



 

Amendment Bylaw No. 2457.15, 2016 
(D2016.096-ZONE) 

Page 3 of 7 

g) kennels, subject to Section 7.22; 

h) open land recreation; 

i) single detached dwelling or mobile home;  

j) veterinary establishment; 
 

Secondary uses: 

k) accessory dwelling or mobile home, subject to Section 
7.11; 

l) secondary suite, subject to Section 7.12;  

m) agri-tourism accommodation, subject to 7.30; 

n) home occupation, subject to Section 7.17 

o) home industry, subject to Section 7.18; 

p) bed and breakfast, subject to Section 7.19; and 

q) accessory buildings and structures, subject to Section 
7.13. 

 

10.5.2  Site Specific Large Holdings Two (LH2s) Provisions: 

a) see Section 16.25 
 

10.5.4 Minimum Parcel Size: 

a) 8 ha, subject to servicing requirements. 
 

10.5.4  Minimum Parcel Width:  

a) Not less than 25% of the parcel depth. 
 

10.5.5  Maximum Number of Dwellings Permitted Per Parcel: 

a) the number of principal and the number of accessory 
dwellings or mobile homes permitted per parcel shall 
be as follows:  

Parcel Size 
Maximum Number of 

Accessory Dwellings or 
Mobile Homes 

Maximum Number of 
Principal Dwellings 



 

Amendment Bylaw No. 2457.15, 2016 
(D2016.096-ZONE) 

Page 4 of 7 

Less than 12.0 ha 0 1 

12.0 ha or greater 1 1 

b) one (1) secondary suite. 

 
10.5.6  Minimum Setbacks: 

a) Principal buildings, principal dwellings, accessory 
dwellings, or accessory buildings and structures, 
subject to Section 7.22: 

i) Front parcel line 7.5 metres 

ii) Rear parcel line 7.5 metres 

iii) Interior side parcel line  4.5 metres 

iv) Exterior side parcel line  4.5 metres 

 

10.5.7  Maximum Height:  

a) No building or structure shall exceed a height of 10.0 
metres; 

b) despite sub-section 10.5.7(a), no “farm building” shall 
exceed a height of 15.0 metres. 

 

10.5.8  Maximum Parcel Coverage: 

a) 35% for parcels less than 2,020 m2 in area; 

b) 10% for parcels greater than 2,020 m2  
 

vii) replacing Section 13.5 (Commercial Recreation Zone) with the following: 

13.5   deleted 
 

viii) replacing Section 16.4 (Site Specific Large Holdings (LHs) Provisions) with the 
following:  

16.4    Site Specific Large Holdings One (LH1s) Provisions: 
 



 

Amendment Bylaw No. 2457.15, 2016 
(D2016.096-ZONE) 

Page 5 of 7 

ix) replacing the reference under Figure 16.4.1 (Site Specific Large Holdings (LHs) 
Provisions) to “Large Holdings Site Specific (LHs)” with “Large Holdings One 
Site Specific (LH1s)”. 

 
x) replacing the reference under Figure 16.4.3 (Site Specific Large Holdings (LHs) 

Provisions) to “Large Holdings Site Specific (LHs)” with “Large Holdings One 
Site Specific (LH1s)”. 

 
xi) adding the following as a new sub Section under Section 16.0 (Site Specific 

Designations):  

16.25 Site Specific Large Holdings Two (LH2s) Provisions:  

.1    blank 
 

xii) replacing Section 16.19 (Site Specific Rural Recreation (RRs) Provisions) with 
the following:  

16.19    deleted 

 
 
 

READ A FIRST AND SECOND TIME this 20th day of October, 2016. 

PUBLIC HEARING held on this 16th day of November, 2016. 

READ A THIRD TIME AND ADOPTED this ___ day of _________, 2016. 

 
 
_______________________       ______________________  
Board Chair      Corporate Officer 



 

Amendment Bylaw No. 2457.15, 2016 
(D2016.096-ZONE) 

Page 6 of 7 

Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
101 Martin St, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9 
Tel: 250-492-0237    Email: info@rdos.bc.ca  
 
Amendment Bylaw No. 2457.15, 2016 Project No: D2016.096-ZONE 

Schedule ‘Y’ 
  

 
 
 

  
   
       
  

Subject 
Properties 
 

NN

APEX 



 

Amendment Bylaw No. 2457.15, 2016 
(D2016.096-ZONE) 

Page 7 of 7 

Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
101 Martin St, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9 
Tel: 250-492-0237    Email: info@rdos.bc.ca 
 

Amendment Bylaw No. 2457.15, 2016 File No.  D2016.096-ZONE 
Schedule ‘X-1’ 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Amend Zoning Bylaw No. 2457, 2008  
from: Commercial Recreation (CR) 
to: Large Holdings Two (LH2)  

 (PURPLE AREA) 

Amend Zoning Bylaw No. 2457, 2008  
from: Agriculture Three (AG3) 
to: Large Holdings Two (LH2)  

 (PURPLE HATCHED AREA) 

Amend Zoning Bylaw No. 2457, 2008  
from: Resource Area (RA) 
to: Large Holdings Two (LH2)  

 (BROWN SHADED AREA) 

Amend Zoning Bylaw No. 2457, 2008 
from:  Small Holdings Three (SH3) 
to:       Large Holdings Two (LH2)  

(GREEN HATCHED AREA) 



PUBLIC HEARING REPORT 
 

 
Public Hearing Report – Amendment Bylaw No. 2457.15, 2016 

Page 1 

TO:  Regional Board of Directors 
 
FROM:  Chair Tom Siddon, Electoral Area “D” 

 
DATE:  November 16, 2016 
 
RE:  Public Hearing Report on Amendment Bylaw No 2457.15, 2016 
 
 
Purpose of Amendment Bylaw: 
The purpose of the amendment bylaws is to amend the Electoral Area “D-1” Zoning bylaw No. 2457, 
2008 by adding a Large Holdings Two (LH2) zone and to amend the zoning designation of three 
properties to Large Holdings Two (LH2). 
 
Public Hearing Overview: 
The Public Hearing for Amendment Bylaw No. 2457.15, 2016, was convened on Wednesday, 
November 16, 2016, at 7:59 pm, at the Kaleden Community Hall, 320 Lakehill Road, Kaleden. 

There were 19 members of the public present. 

Members of the Regional District Board present were: 

· Chair Tom Siddon 

Members of the Regional District staff present were: 

· Evelyn Riechert, Planner 

· Gillian Cramm, Recording Secretary 
 

Chair Siddon called the Public Hearing to order at 7:59 pm at the Kaleden Community Hall, Kaleden, 
pursuant to Section 464, 465 & 468 of the Local Government Act in order to consider Amendment 
Bylaw No. 2457.15, 2016. 

In accordance with Section 466, the time and place of the public hearing was advertised in the 
November 2nd and November 9th editions of the Penticton Western and the November 7th edition of 
the Penticton Herald. 

Copies of reports and correspondence received related to Amendment Bylaw No. 2457.15, 2016, 
were available for viewing at the Regional District office during the required posting period. 
 

Summary of Representations: 
There were no written briefs submitted at the public hearing. 
 
Chair Siddon called a first time for briefs and comments from the floor and noted that a binder is 
available which includes all written comments received to date and anyone wishing to review the 
comments could do so.  



 
Public Hearing Report – Amendment Bylaw No. 2457.15, 2016 

Page 2 

 
E. Riechert, Planner, outlined the proposed amendment bylaws.  
 
Chair Siddon asked if anyone wished to speak to the proposed bylaw.  
 
Esther Minty asked about the term “down-zoning”.  She expressed concern that families would miss 
out on opportunities by the change of zoning.  She was also concerned about short notice for the 
public hearing. 
 
Ms. Riechert explained that the affected property owners had been consulted. 
 
Mark Kildaw stated that the consensus in the Committee was that there were several property 
owners that wanted to be able to have smaller property sizes for various reasons.  He asked whether 
all the Resource Area properties would be compelled to rezone to Large Holdings, and whether the 
subject properties had an option to withdraw from this application. 
 
Chair Siddon asked a second time if there was anyone who wished to speak further to the proposed 
bylaw. 
 
Chair Siddon asked a third time if there was anyone who wished to speak further to the proposed 
bylaw and hearing none, declared the public hearing closed at 8:09 p.m. 

 
Recorded by: 
 
G. Cramm 
 
Gillian Cramm 
Recording Secretary 

Confirmed: 
 
ERiechert 
 
Evelyn Riechert 
Planner 

Confirmed:  
 
T. Siddon 
 
Tom Siddon 
Chair 

 















 
Page 1 of 2 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 
  

 

TO: Board of Directors 
  
FROM: B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 
  
DATE: December 15, 2016 
  
RE: Fire Master Plan Award of Contract 

 
Administrative Recommendation: 
 
THAT the board authorize the Chair and Chief Administrative Officer to execute a contract with  
Dave Mitchell & Associates Ltd. for $ 50,000.00 (plus applicable taxes) for the purpose of 
providing a Fire Master Plan to include the seven Regional District Fire Departments. 
 
Background: 
The British Columbia Office of the Fire Commissioner recently released the 'Structure Firefighters 
Competency and Training Playbook'. The "Playbook" establishes a new fire training standard for all 
Fire Departments in B.C., pursuant to section 3 of the Fire Services Act. Staff have reviewed the new 
standards along with the seven Regional District fire departments and it has raised concerns for our 
ability and capacity to meet the identified standards while maintaining volunteerism and budgets. 
 
In its 2016 Business Plan, the RDOS Board identified the need to seek qualified expertise to address 
these matters. A Fire Master Plan will provide an analysis of each Regional District fire department 
and offer guidance to address current and future issues related to, but not limited to, growing 
service needs, the continued challenges of recruitment and retention and meeting additional 
responsibilities required by the Office of the Fire Commissioner, Worksafe BC and other governing 
legislation and agencies.   
 
Reference: 
4 RFP submissions received 

Business Plan Objective:  
Key Success Driver 3.0:  Build a Sustainable Region 
Objective 3.1.2: By Developing a Regional Fire Service Master Plan  
 
Analysis: 
The Board received 4 submissions which ranged in price from $46,970.00 to $ 101,624.25. All 
submissions were from qualified companies who met the mandatory requirements. 
 

Emergency Mgt. and 
Training Inc. 

Dave Mitchell & 
Associates Ltd. 

Pomax Consulting Inc. Behr Energy Services 
Ltd. 

$ 46,970.00 total $ 52,050.00 total $ 81,223.00 total $ 101,624.25 total 
 

 
* All bids prices above include GST. 



 
Page 2 of 2 
 

 
The evaluation (“committee”) consisted of the Manager of Community Services, Emergency 
Services Supervisor and the Tulameen Fire Chief. The committee underwent an individual review 
and scoring of each submission and then deliberated on the results as a group.  
 
While the highest rank on the evaluation form was for pricing, the lowest bid priced submission was 
not recommended. It was felt by the committee that the recommended submission from Dave 
Mitchell & Associates Ltd. (DMA) provided a more thorough delivery of services to meet the desired 
scope of work. Specifically, DMA provided a more comprehensive list of resources and availability 
to achieve the proposed plan and the committee agreed there was a benefit to the additional cost.  
 

 Dave Mitchell 
and Associates 
Ltd. 

Emergency 
Mgt. and 
Training Inc. 

Behr Energy 
Services Ltd. 

Pomax 
Consulting 
Inc. 

Qualifications/ Experience/ 
Resources (out of 30) 

29 24 29 28 

Scope/Methodology/ Schedule  
(out of 40) 

38 34 37 34 

Price (out of 30) 27 30 14 17 
Overall Score (out of 100) 94 88 80 79 

                          
 
Alternatives: 

1. Cancel the project 
2. Revise the terms of reference for the Plan and go back for proposals 
3. Increase budget amount for 2017 budgets 

 
 
Respectfully submitted: 
 

 
__________________________________________ 
D. Kronebusch, Emergency Services Supervisor 
 

 



ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 
  

 

TO: Board of Directors 
  
FROM: B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 
  
DATE: December 15, 2016 
  
RE: Naramata Creek Park Land Acquisitions 

 
Administrative Recommendation: 
 
THAT the Board of Directors approve the purchase of 0.6 Acres of Lot A, DL 2711, SDYD Plan 
42415 for $30,300. Contingent on the successful subdivision rezoning and consolidation with the 
existing Creek Park Parcel AND, 
 
THAT the Board of Directors approve the purchase of 4.6 Acre of Lot A, DL 2711, SDYD, Plan 
29843 Except Plans 37741 & 42415 for $50,000. Contingent on the successful subdivision rezoning 
and consolidation with the existing Creek Park Parcel. 
 
Purpose: 
To acquire portions of the two parcels east of Creek Park to maintain and enhance an existing trail 
from the town site of Naramata to the KVR. 
 
Reference: 
Area Trail Map 

Business Plan Objective:  
             KEY SUCCESS DRIVER 3 – BUILD A SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITY 
             Goal 3.1:  To develop a socially sustainable region 
             Objective 3.1.6 By implementing the 2016 Phase of the Parks Program 
 
Background: 
Creek Park Trail is a well-used public foot path that extends 1100m adjacent to Naramata Creek, 
leading to scenic waterfalls and the KVR Regional trail.  The trail head is located in Creek Park and 
travels 600m until the trail enters the first of two private properties before re-entering public crown 
land at the KVR trail. The trail is maintained and well-marked through the park but does not see the 
benefits of regular maintenance beyond the park boundary. As there are no public land 
opportunities to connect the trail, the Naramata Parks and Recreation Commission has committed 
to purchase land under which the trail travels.  
 
In 2014 members of the Commissions approached both land owners to request their consideration 
of a trail use agreement to allow for the maintenance and improvement of the trail by the RDOS. 
Neither party was interested in a use agreement, but were open to selling portions of the 
properties. 
 



In the spring of 2016 the RDOS re-engaged the landowners and began negotiations. Both 
landowners have now signed an Offer to Purchase agreement. The Offer to Purchase agreements 
included non-refundable deposits, are contingent upon the successful application to subdivide and 
rezone each parcel of land and eventual consolidation with existing Creek Park parcels. 
 
Analysis: 
Each property’s value was assessed by an independent land appraisal firm and was the basis of the 
negotiations. On August 8th 2016, the Naramata Parks and Recreation Commission through 
resolution approved the following purchase prices and now recommend to the Board that the final 
purchase be approved.  
 

Property  Lot A, DL 2711, SDYD Plan 
42415 

Lot A, DL 2711, SDYD, Plan 29843 
Except Plans 37741 & 42415 

Assessment Value/Area $18,000 / 0.6 Acre $35,000 / 3.3 Acre 
Purchase Price /Area $30,300 / 0.6 Acre $50,000 / 4.6 Acre 

 
Financial: 
Electoral Area E Parks and Recreation Service Capital Reserve will be used to purchase both parcels. 
Regular maintenance and improvements for the newly acquired land and trail will be funded 
through the Naramata Park and Recreation Service Area annual operating budget.  
 
Alternatives: 
The Board could choose not to purchase the properties. 
 

Respectfully submitted: 
 
Justin Shuttleworth  
___________________________________________ 
J. Shuttleworth, Park/Facilities Coordinator 
 

 



1285

1235

3059

1432

3740

3820

3830

3840

1330

3030

3040

3050

30603055

3045

3035

3250

3285

1165

1185

1415

3216

1305 1315
1325

3090

3084

3076
3070

1225

1223

1221

3095

3109

3115

3048
3056

3064
3055

3045

3140

1170

3186

1380

1145

1310

1320
1185

1175
1165

1150

1160

1170

1180

1190

1210

1220

1230

1240

1250

1260

1280

3208

3175

3185
3240

3225

3710

1290

1305

1400

1360

1320

1340

1420
1430

1450

1480
1510

1440

3264

3256

3239

3232

3240

3145

3096

3085

3135

3110

1095

3480

1435
1239

1298

1306

1312

3230

LY
O

N
S

 R
D

.

N
O

R
TH

 N
A

R
AM

AT
A 

R
D

.

SM
ETH

UR
ST RD

.

UPPER DEBECK RD.

LYO
N

S R
D.

SMETHURST RD.

JUNIPER DR.

NA
RA

M
AT

A 
RD

.

P
O

N
D

ER
O

SA
 D

R.

1316

31653159

3201

100

104

110

118

130

134

100119

123

127

131

135

144

140
139

122
126

127

131

135

139

143

152

130

134

136

138

142

146

150

3455

3453

3451

34473241

3449

111

3264

ALB
R

E
C

H
T S

T.

SMETHURST RD.

38423850

3845
3836

3830

3824

3818

3812

1099

G
R

AN
ITE

 P
LA

C
E

SLATE PLAC
E

FLA
G

S
TO

N
E R

IS
E

3200

3224

111

115

105

109

115

SMETHURST PL.

VI
N

E
YA

R
D

 L
AN

E

3195

3199

3265

3257 3440

1180

3125

1155

108

114

1145

1490

Naramata Creek Trail
GPS

Streams

GPS Line

Lot Lines

0 20 40 60 80 10010

Meters

* ortho photo 2008

Jshuttleworth
Polygonal Line

Jshuttleworth
Polygon

jshuttleworth
Polygon

jshuttleworth
Polygonal Line

jshuttleworth
Callout
Lot A DL 2711, SDYD Plan 42415

jshuttleworth
Callout
Lot A, DL 2711, SDYD, Plan 29843

jshuttleworth
Line

jshuttleworth
Polygon

jshuttleworth
Callout
Creek Park



Https://Portal.Rdos.Bc.Ca/Departments/Officeofthecao/Boardreports/2016/20161215 Board Report/Boardreports/F.1. Funding For 
Area G Residents - Water Meters.Docx File No: Click here to enter 
text. 
Page 1 of 2 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 
   
TO: Board of Directors 
  
FROM: B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 
  
DATE: December 15, 2016 
  
RE: Bylaw 2766 Area ‘G’ Community Works Gas Tax Expenditure – Keremeos 

Irrigation District Water Meter Installation 
 
Administrative Recommendation: 
 

THAT Bylaw 2766, 2016 Electoral Area ‘G’ Community Works Gas Tax Reserve Fund Expenditure 
Bylaw be read a first, second and third time, and be adopted 
 

Reference: 
 

Keremeos Irrigation District Request for Funding letters to Area Director 
 

Background: 
 

The Keremeos Irrigation District (KID) water system was constructed in the late 1960’s to primarily 
service the rural agricultural industry and the Village of Keremeos. The system services potable 
water to 1011 residential and 260 irrigation customers in total with approximately 381 of the 
residential connections connected to Area G property owners. The irrigation customers consist 
predominantly of Area G customers. 
 
KID is proactively implementing a water conservation program through seasonal water restrictions 
but are now committed to evaluating important data from the pumping wells to quantify water 
consumption. Pumping history show that during the winter months, the water service area can be 
serviced with one pump, but during the spring, summer and fall months, an additional 8 pumps are 
required to keep up with agricultural demand.  
 
Presently, no pumping wells are installed with water flow meters so KID has no confidence in the 
amount of consumption delivered and the performance of each well. With flow meters installed, 
KID will better be able to quantify consumption and track conservation efforts. 
 

Analysis: 
 

Improvement and Irrigation Districts were previously eligible for Infrastructure Grants from Senior 
Levels of Government.  The Province terminated that practice a few years ago, restricting 
infrastructure grant eligibility to local governments, one would assume, to encourage a reduction in 
the number of small water purveyors and for those systems to revert into the public domain.   
 



Https://Portal.Rdos.Bc.Ca/Departments/Officeofthecao/Boardreports/2016/20161215 Board Report/Boardreports/F.1. Funding For 
Area G Residents - Water Meters.Docx File No: Click here to enter 
text. 
Page 2 of 2 
 

However, the new Community Works Fund agreement does allow for not-for-profit organizations to 
be the recipient of RDOS gas tax funding as long as they meet the new eligibility criteria, which is 
very broad as long as the funds are for public use or benefit.  Due to the focus on water 
conservation, this project is considered eligible. 
 
The Keremeos Irrigation District is requesting $78,000 from Area ‘G’ Community Works Gas Tax 
funding to assist in the installation of nine water flow meters. 
 
The Area ‘G’ Community Works Gas Tax reserve fund had an uncommitted balance of 
approximately $360,000 at November 30, 2016. 
 
 

 
 
 
Respectfully submitted: 
 
 
Noelle Evans-MacEwan 
______________________ 
N. Evans-MacEwan, Acting Manager of Finance 
 
 
Roger Huston 
________________________________________               
R. Huston, Public Works Manager 
 

 



Page 1 of 1 
Bylaw No. XXXX 

Electoral Area ‘G’ Community Works (Gas Tax) Reserve  Fund  Expenditure Bylaw 

REGIONAL DISTRICT OF OKANAGAN-SIMILKAMEEN 
 

BYLAW NO. 2766, 2016 
 

 
A bylaw to authorize the expenditure of monies from the Electoral Area ‘G’ Community Works 
(Gas Tax) Reserve Fund for Keremeos Irrigation District water meter installation  
 
 
WHEREAS Section 377(1) of the Local Government Act and Section 189 of the Community 
Charter authorises the Board, by bylaw adopted by at least 2/3 of its members, to provide 
for the expenditure of any money in a reserve fund and interest earned on it; 
 
AND WHEREAS the ‘Electoral Area ‘G’ Community Works (Gas Tax) Reserve Fund’ 
Expenditure has sufficient monies available for Keremeos Irrigation District water meter 
installation 
 
NOW THEREFORE, the Board of the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen, in open 
meeting assembled, enacts as follows:  
 

1. This bylaw may be cited as the ‘Electoral Area ‘G’ Community Works (Gas Tax) 
Reserve Fund Expenditure Bylaw No. 2766, 2016’ 

 
The expenditure of not more than $78,000 from the Electoral Area ‘G’ Community Works 
(Gas Tax) Reserve Fund is hereby authorised for Keremeos Irrigation District water meter 
installation. 
 
 
READ A FIRST, SECOND, AND THIRD TIME this     day of             , 2016        
 
 
ADOPTED this    day of             , 2016 
 
 
 
 
 
________________________________  ___________________________________ 
RDOS Board Chair     Chief Administrative Officer 
 
 
 
 







Https://Portal.Rdos.Bc.Ca/Departments/Officeofthecao/Boardreports/2016/20161215 Board Report/Boardreports/G.1. MRDT.Docx File 
No: Click here to enter text. 
Page 1 of 1 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 
  

 

TO: Board of Directors 
  
FROM: B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 
  
DATE: December 15, 2016 
  
RE: Municipal and Regional District Tax Program 

 
Administrative Recommendation: 
 
THAT the Regional District provide a letter of support to Travel Penticton to renew the 2% Municipal 
and Regional District Tax (MRDT) 
 
Purpose: 
To support Travel Penticton in their application to the Province of British Columbia for collection of a 
2% tax on hotel rooms. 
 
 
Reference: 
Email from Barb Haynes, Co-Chair, Travel Penticton – 30 Nov. 2016 
 
 
Background: 
If a business indicates on its registration for a Provincial Sales Tax number that it provides four or 
more units of accommodation in a B.C. jurisdiction that collects the municipal and regional district tax 
(MRDT), it is automatically set up to collect MRDT.  
 
Travel Penticton provides tourism marketing and attraction services on behalf of the City of Penticton 
and they are partially funded by the MRDT.  Travel Penticton receives permission to collect the tax 
from the Province of British Columbia and they are currently in the process of renewing their permit. 
 
The MRDT is jointly administered by the Minister of Finance, the Ministry of Jobs, Tourism and Skills 
Training and Destination British Columbia.  Travel Penticton requires a letter of support from the 
Regional District prior to January 1, 2017. 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 
 
16 December 2016 
 
 
 
Ministry of Jobs, Tourism & Innovation 
Ministry of Finance 
PO Box 9830  
Stn Prov Govnt 
Victoria, BC 
V8T 5C3 
 
To Whom it May Concern: 
 
RE:   Municipal and Regional District Tax (MRDT) Application 
 
At their meeting of 15 December 2016 the Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen resolved 
to support the successful renewal of the 2% MRDT for our area, with the understanding that 
these funds will be administered by Travel Penticton and their industry-led Board of Directors.   
 
Travel Penticton provides tourism marketing and attraction services on behalf of the City of 
Penticton and they are partially funded by the MRDT.  Travel Penticton is currently in the 
process of renewing their permit. 
 
Sincerely, 

 
 

 
 
Karla Kozakevich 
Chair 
 
 
c. City of Penticton 
 Destination BC  



Https://Portal.Rdos.Bc.Ca/Departments/Officeofthecao/Boardreports/2016/20161215 Board Report/Boardreports/G.2. LS Community 
Forest Corp.Docx File No: Click here to enter 
text. 
Page 1 of 2 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 
  

 

TO: Select meeting type... 
  
FROM: B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 
  
DATE: December 15, 2016 
  
RE: Lower Similkameen Community Forest Corporation 

 
Administrative Recommendation: 
 
THAT the Board of Directors withdraw the Regional District participation in the Lower 
Similkameen Community Forests Ltd (“Ltd”) and the Lower Similkameen Community Forest 
Limited Partnership (“LLP”) and transfer its interest to the Lower Similkameen Indian Band 
Business Trust. 
 
THAT, in accordance with the Declaration of Trust signed by the Electoral Area “G” Director on 
December 11, 2014, the Electoral Area “G” Director be instructed to execute all documents 
requiring his signature to transfer the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen’s interest in the 
Lower Similkameen Community Forest Ltd; and further, 
 
THAT should the Electoral Area “G” Director not execute the required documents, the Board of 
Directors authorize the transfer of legal interest in the shares registered in the name of Elef 
Christensen to the Chair of the Board of Directors. 
 

Reference: 
Declaration of Trust – December 11, 2014 
 

Background: 
1. The Regional District, Village of Keremeos and LSIB went through the process of forming a 

partnership and applying for a Community Forest License back in 2005.  In order to hold a 
community forest license a corporation had to be established, but the Local Government Act 
requires a Regional District to obtain approval from the Inspector of Municipalities first.  RDOS 
was denied this approval but we went ahead and entered the partnership anyway.  We’ve 
consequently been ordered by the Province to withdraw from the Partnership. 

 
2. The Village of Keremeos has resolved to withdraw from the partnership and transfer shares to 

LSIB, pending the approval of LSIB.  
 
3. On October 20, 2016, the Corporate Services Committee recommended that the Board of 

Directors withdraw the Regional District participation in the Lower Similkameen Community 
Forests Ltd (“Ltd”) and the Lower Similkameen Community Forest Limited Partnership (“LLP”), 
pending the approval of the Lower Similkameen Indian Band. 



Https://Portal.Rdos.Bc.Ca/Departments/Officeofthecao/Boardreports/2016/20161215 Board Report/Boardreports/G.2. LS Community 
Forest Corp.Docx File No: Click here to enter 
text. 
Page 2 of 2 
 

 
4. The Lower Similkameen Indian Band has approved the withdrawal of RDOS and has signed off to 

accept the RDOS shares. 
 

5. At the Board Meeting of 17 November 2016, the Area G representative moved a motion to 
transfer the RDOS shares to the Similkameen Valley Planning Society (SVPS), rather than 
LSIB.   Due to uncertainty around the legality of that, the Board referred it over to the SVPS to 
see if they were interested.   

 
6. The Partnership Act of BC specifically provides that the RDOS could only assign their units if all 

other partners consent to the assignment.  That would mean that RDOS could not assign our 
units to SVPS without LSIB approval.  Further, the Partnership Agreement specifically provides 
that RDOS could only assign their units to another partner.  So, if LSIB allowed RDOS to transfer 
their units to SVPS, the Partnership Agreement would have to be restructured to allow for that 
to happen. 

 
7. LSIB respectfully declines the suggestion that RDOS shares be transferred to any party other 

than LSIB. 
 
Analysis: 
The Lower Similkameen Indian Band and the Electoral Area “B” Director have now signed all 
required documents to permit the transfer of shares from the Regional District to the Band.  In 
order to complete the transfer, the signatures of the Electoral Area “G” Director, or an alternate 
designate of the Board, must now be obtained. 
 
Paragraph 2 of the Declaration of Trust signed by the Director on December 11, 2014 states that 
said shares are beneficially owned by the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen Area “G” (the 
“Principal”) and that the Director will hold the same in trust for the account and benefit of the 
Principal and that the Director will, at the request of the Principal, execute all such documents and 
do all such things as may be required to transfer the said share into the name of the Principal or its 
nominee. 
 
Should the Board need to transfer authority to sign on behalf of the Regional District to the Chair, 
this may be done with a Board resolution. 
 
Respectfully submitted: 
 
“Christy Malden” 
  
C. Malden, Manager of Legislative Services 
 

 



Https://Portal.Rdos.Bc.Ca/Departments/Officeofthecao/Boardreports/2016/20161215 Board Report/Boardreports/G.3. 
BL2690 RPT Environmental Conservation.Docx  File No: BL2690  Page 1 of 1 

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 
  

 

TO: Board of Directors 
  
FROM: B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 
  
DATE: December 15, 2016 
  
RE: Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen Environmental Conservation Service 

Establishment Bylaw No. 2690, 2016 
 

Administrative Recommendation: 
 
THAT Bylaw No. 2690, 2016 Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen Environmental Conservation Service 
Establishment Bylaw be adopted. 
 
Reference: 
1. Bylaw No. 2690, 2016 (attached) 
2. Staff reports of July 7, September 1, and October 20, 2016 
 
History: 
On September 1, 2016, the Board gave third reading to Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
Environmental Conservation Service Establishment Bylaw No. 2690, 2016.  The purpose of the bylaw is to 
establish an Environmental Conservation Service to undertake and administer activities, projects and works 
that will include, but is not limited to, water, environment, wildlife, land, habitat conservation efforts to 
protect natural areas within the Regional District. 
 
The Inspector of Municipalities provided statutory approval on October 11, 2016 and Administration received 
consent from the Board on October 20, 2016 to proceed with an Alternative Approval Process. 
 
Analysis: 
The December 5, 2016 deadline for receipt of elector response has passed and the results below confirm that 
elector approval through an AAP has been obtained for the bylaw. 
 
AAP Results for Bylaw No. 2690, 2016: 
 
Number of eligible electors within the affected area – 56,025 
Number of elector response forms needed to prevent adoption of the bylaw – 5,603 
Valid elector response forms received prior to deadline - 60  
 
On the basis of the elector response forms received before the deadline, I have determined and hereby certify 
that elector approval in accordance with Section 86 of the Community Charter has been obtained, therefore 
the Board may now proceed with the adoption of Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen Environmental 
Conservation Service Establishment Bylaw No. 2690, 2016. 
 
Respectfully submitted: 

 
 
 
 
 

 

C. Malden, Manager of Legislative Services 
  



Page 1 of 2 
Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen Environmental Conservation  Service Establishment Bylaw No. 2690, 2016 

REGIONAL DISTRICT OF OKANAGAN-SIMILKAMEEN 
 

BYLAW NO. 2690, 2016 
 

 

A bylaw to establish an Environmental Conservation Service 
 

  
WHEREAS a Regional District may, by bylaw, establish and operate a service under the 
provisions of the Local Government Act; 
 
AND WHEREAS the Board of the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen wishes to 
establish a service for the purpose of creating an Environmental Conservation Service in 
the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen; 
 
AND WHEREAS the Board of Directors resolved by a 2/3 vote that participating area 
approval be obtained for the entire proposed service area; 
 
AND WHEREAS approval of the Electors has been obtained for the entire service area 
by the alternative approval process, in accordance with the Local Government Act; 
 
NOW THEREFORE the Board of the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen, in 
open meeting assembled, enacts as follows: 
 
1. CITATION 
 
1.1 This Bylaw may be cited as the “Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 

Environmental Conservation Service Establishment Bylaw No. 2690, 2016”.   
 
2. ESTABLISHMENT OF THE SERVICE 
 
2.1 The Service established by this bylaw is for the purpose of establishing  an 

Environmental Conservation Service in the Regional District of Okanagan-
Similkameen for the purpose of undertaking and administering activities, projects, 
and works that will include, but is not limited to, water, environment, wildlife, land, 
habitat conservation efforts to protect natural areas within the Regional District of 
Okanagan-Similkameen.  

 
3. BOUNDARIES OF THE SERVICE AREA 
 
3.1 The boundaries of the service area are the boundaries of Electoral Areas “A”, “C”, 

“D”, “E”, “F”, the City of Penticton, District of Summerland, and the Town of Oliver. 
 
4. PARTICIPATING AREA 
 
4.1 The participating areas are Electoral Areas “A”, “C”, “D”, “E”, “F”, the City of 

Penticton, District of Summerland, and the Town of Oliver. 
 
5. SERVICE PROVISION 

 
5.1 The Board of Directors may enter into an agreement for the administration of the 

Environmental Conservation service. 



Page 2 of 2 
Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen Environmental Conservation Service Establishment Bylaw No. 2690, 2016 

 
6. COST RECOVERY 
 
6.1 As provided in the Local Government Act, the annual costs of the Service shall 

be recovered by one or more of the following: 
 

(a) property value taxes imposed in accordance with Division 3 [Requisition and 

Tax Collection]; 

(b) subject to subsection (2) of section 378, parcel taxes imposed in accordance 

with Division 3; 

(c) fees and charges imposed under section 397 [imposition of fees and charges]; 

(d) revenues raised by other means authorized under this or another Act; 

(e) revenues received by way of agreement, enterprise, gift, grant or otherwise. 
 
7. LIMIT 
 
7.1 The annual maximum amount that may be requisitioned for the cost of the service 

shall not exceed the greater of $450,000 or $0.0372 per thousand dollars of net 
taxable value of land and improvements in the service area. 

 
 
 
READ A FIRST, SECOND AND THIRD TIME this 7th day of July, 2016. 
 
THIRD READING RESCINDED this 1st day of September, 2016 
 
THIRD READING RE-READ AS AMENDED this 1st day of September  2016 
 
APPROVED BY THE INSPECTOR OF MUNICIPALITIES this 11th day of October, 
2016. 
 
RECEIVED APPROVAL OF THE ELECTORATE THROUGH AN ALTERNATIVE 
APPROVAL PROCESS  this 5th day of December, 2016. 
 
ADOPTED this __ day of __, 201_. 
 
 
 
            
RDOS Board Chair    Corporate Officer  



Https://Portal.Rdos.Bc.Ca/Departments/Officeofthecao/Boardreports/2016/20161215 Board Report/Boardreports/G.4. Naramata 
Water System Petition-Kettle Ridge.Docx  
File No:  E07171.015 
Page 1 of 3 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 
  

 

TO: Board of Directors 
  
FROM: B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 
  
DATE: December 15, 2016 
  
RE: Petition to Enter Naramata Water Service Area 
 
Administrative Recommendation: 

THAT the first three readings of Bylaw No. 2431, 2008, "Naramata Water Service Extension Bylaw 
be rescinded and the bylaw be abandoned; and, 

THAT the first three readings of Bylaw No. 1804.03, 2008, " Naramata Water System 
Development Cost Charge Amendment Bylaw be rescinded and the bylaw be abandoned; and, 

THAT Bylaw No. 2747, 2016, "Naramata Water Service Extension Bylaw” be read a first second 
and third time; and,  

THAT Bylaw No. 1804.07, 2016, "Naramata Water System Development Cost Charge Amendment 
Bylaw” be read a first, second and third time. 

 

Reference: 

Naramata Water System Development Cost Charge Bylaw No. 1804, 1998  
Naramata Water Service Establishment Bylaw No. 1620, 1995. 

History: 

The original petition was requested in 2007, for the Kettle Ridge Development Phase 2 and 3, and 
brought forward to the Board in 2008.  Unfortunately, the development was stalled with the 
economic down-turn in 2008 and the petition process also went dormant.   

A new development group for Kettle Ridge applied for subdivisions in 2015 and 2016 respectively 
and is moving forward with the construction of the development.  

 

Analysis: 

The owners of Kettle Ridge Development are requesting entry into the Naramata Water System for 
the lots legally described as:   

· Lot 1, Plan KAP38207, District Lot 207, SDYD, Except Plan KAP72459, KAP84271; and, 
· Lot C, Plan KAP35028, District Lot 206, SDYD. 

 
The Lands are currently outside of the Naramata Water Service Area and the corresponding 
Development Cost Charge boundary.   
 



Https://Portal.Rdos.Bc.Ca/Departments/Officeofthecao/Boardreports/2016/20161215 Board Report/Boardreports/G.4. Naramata 
Water System Petition-Kettle Ridge.Docx  
File No:  E07171.015 
Page 2 of 3 
 

The owners of the aforementioned Lands have petitioned the Regional District for entry into the 
Naramata Water System and have agreed to pay the existing development cost charges and any 
additional costs associated with bringing water to these properties. 

Alternatives: 

THAT Bylaw No. 1804.07, 2016 "Naramata Water System Development Cost Charge Amendment 
Bylaw” not be read a first, second and third time; 
 
AND THAT Bylaw No. 2747, 2016 "Naramata Water Service Extension Bylaw” not be read a first, 
second and third time; 
 

Referral Comments:  

Naramata Water Advisory Committee (NWAC) 

NWAC did review this petition for expansion of the water system in 2007, and recommended that 
the Board support the petition allowing entry into the Naramata Water system. 

 

Respectfully submitted: 
 
“Christy Malden” 
___________________________________________ 
C. Malden, Manager of Legislative Services 
 

 
Attachments: Attachment No. 1 - Context Maps 
  



Https://Portal.Rdos.Bc.Ca/Departments/Officeofthecao/Boardreports/2016/20161215 Board Report/Boardreports/G.4. Naramata 
Water System Petition-Kettle Ridge.Docx  
File No:  E07171.015 
Page 3 of 3 
 

Attachment No. 1 - Context Maps 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Subject 
Properties 

NN

Naramata Water 
Service Area 



Page 1 of 3 
Naramata Water Service Area 

Extension Bylaw No. 2747, 2016 

 

 

REGIONAL DISTRICT OF OKANAGAN-SIMILKAMEEN 
 

BYLAW NO. 2747, 2016 

 

A bylaw to amend the Naramata Water System Service Area Boundaries. 

 

WHEREAS the owners of the property described in this bylaw have petitioned the Board of the 
Regional District to extend the boundaries of the Naramata Water Service Area to include that 
property; 

 
AND WHEREAS consent on behalf of the participating areas has been given by the Director of 
Electoral Area “E” in accordance with the Local Government Act; 

 
NOW THEREFORE, the Board of the Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen, in open meeting 
assembled, ENACTS AS FOLLOWS: 

 
TITLE 

 
1. This bylaw may be cited as the "Naramata Water Service Area Extension Bylaw No. 2747, 

2016". 
 

SERVICE AREA EXTENSION 
 

2. The “Naramata Water System Local Service Area Establishment Bylaw No. 1620, 1995”, 
as amended, is further amended by altering Schedule “A” to that bylaw to include within 
the boundaries of the service area that portion of the Lands legally described as 

 
(a) PID: 007-717-750, Lot 1, Plan 38207, District Lot 207, Land District Similkameen 

Div of Yale, Except Plan KAP72459 KAP84271; and 
 

(b) PID: 002-906-210, Lot C, Plan 35028, District Lot 206, Land District Similkameen 
Div of Yale, 

 
outlined in heavy black on the plan entitled “Sketch Plan to Accompany an Application 
of Inclusion into the Naramata Water Service”, a reduced copy of which is attached as 
Schedule “A” to this Bylaw. 



Page 2 of 3 
Naramata Water Service Area 

Extension Bylaw No. 2747, 2016 

 

 
READ A FIRST, SECOND AND THIRD TIME this    day of    , 2016.  

ELECTORAL AREA DIRECTOR CONSENT OBTAINED on     day of    , 2016. 

ADOPTED this   day of    , 2017. 
 
 
 

 
Chair Corporate Officer 

 
 
 

FILED with the Inspector of Municipalities this      day of  ,  2017 



Page 3 of 3 
Naramata Water Service Area 

Extension Bylaw No. 2747, 2016 

 

 

Schedule ‘A’ 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

N 
 
 
 

Sketch Plan to Accompany an Application for Inclusion 

into the Naramata Water Service 

Existing Naramata 
Water Service 
Area 

Lands to be included in 
the NWSA; BL 2431 

Lands in previous extension 
of NWSA; BL 2200 



Page 1 of 3 
Naramata Water System Development Cost Charge 

Bylaw Amendment Bylaw No. 1804.07, 2016 

 

REGIONAL DISTRICT OF OKANAGAN-SIMILKAMEEN 
 

BYLAW NO. 1804.07, 2016 

 

A bylaw to amend the Naramata Water System Development Cost Charge Bylaw. 

 

WHEREAS the owners of the properties described in this bylaw have petitioned the Board of the 
Regional District to extend the boundaries of the Naramata Water Service Area to include the 
properties; 

 
AND WHEREAS the Regional District has, pursuant to that request, extended the boundaries of the 
Naramata Water Service Area to include the properties; 

 
AND WHEREAS the owners have expressly agreed that, in order for the Regional District of 
Okanagan Similkameen to provide water to the properties, the Regional District must impose 
development cost charges; 

 
AND WHEREAS the owners have agreed to pay development cost charges; 

 
NOW THEREFORE, the Board of the Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen, in open meeting 
assembled, ENACTS AS FOLLOWS: 

 
TITLE 

 
1. This bylaw may be cited as the “Naramata Water System Development Cost Charge Bylaw 

Amendment Bylaw No. 1804.07, 2016.” 
 

AMENDMENTS 
 

2. The Naramata Water System Development Cost Charge Bylaw No. 1804, 1997, is amended 
by including the properties legally described as: 

 
(a) Parcel Identifier No. 007-717-750 

Lot 1, Plan 38207, District Lot 207, 
Land District Similkameen Div of Yale, 
Except Plan KAP72459 KAP84271 

 
(b) Parcel Identifier No. 002-906-210 

Lot C, Plan 35028, District Lot 206, 
Land District Similkameen Div of Yale 



Page 2 of 3 
Naramata Water System Development Cost Charge 

Bylaw Amendment Bylaw No. 1804.07, 2016 

 

The Naramata Water System Development Cost Charge Bylaw No. 1804, 1997, is further amended 
by altering Schedule “B” to that bylaw to include within the area shown as “Zone A” on Schedule 
“B” to that bylaw that portion of the lands legally described as 

 
(a) PID: 007-717-750, Lot 1, Plan 38207, District Lot 207, Land District Similkameen Div. 

of Yale, Except Plan KAP72459 KAP84271; and 
 

(b) PID: 002-906-210, Lot C, Plan 35028, District Lot 206, Land District Similkameen Div. 
of Yale, 

 
outlined in heavy black on the plan entitled “Sketch Plan to Accompany Applications for 
Inclusion into the Naramata Water Service:”, a reduced copy of which is attached as 
Schedule “A” to this bylaw. 

 

READ A FIRST, SECOND AND THIRD TIME this 15th day of December, 2016. 
 

APPROVED BY THE INSPECTOR OF MUNICIPALITIES this           day of  , 2017. 
 

ADOPTED this           day of  , 2017. 
 
 
 

 
Chair Corporate Officer 
 



Page 3 of 3 
Naramata Water System Development Cost Charge 

Bylaw Amendment Bylaw No. 1804.07, 2016 

 

Schedule ‘A’ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Sketch Plan to Accompany an Application for Inclusion 

into the Naramata Water Service 

Existing Naramata 
Water Service Area Lands to be included in 

the NWSA; BL 1804.07 

Lands in previous extension 
of NWSA; BL 1804.02 

NN



 

 

 Page 1 of 3 
Naramata Water Service Area  

Extension Bylaw No. 2431, 2008 

 
 REGIONAL DISTRICT OF OKANAGAN-SIMILKAMEEN 
 
 BYLAW NO. 2431, 2008 
  
 
A bylaw to amend the Naramata Water System Service Area Boundaries. 
  

WHEREAS the owners of the property described in this bylaw have petitioned the Board of the 
Regional District to extend the boundaries of the Naramata Water Service Area to include that 
property; 

AND WHEREAS the Regional District has agreed to act on that request in accordance with 
sections 802 and 802.1 of the Local Government Act; 

AND WHEREAS consent on behalf of the participating areas has been given by the Director of 
Electoral Area “E” pursuant to sections 802(1)(b), 802(2) and 801.5(2) of the Local Government Act;  

NOW THEREFORE, the Board of the Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen, in open meeting 
assembled, ENACTS AS FOLLOWS: 

TITLE 

1. This bylaw may be cited as the "Naramata Water Service Area Extension Bylaw No. 2431, 
2008". 

SERVICE AREA EXTENSION 

2. The “Naramata Water System Local Service Area Establishment Bylaw No. 1620, 1995”, 
as amended, is further amended by altering Schedule “A” to that bylaw to include within 
the boundaries of the service area that portion of the Lands legally described as  

(a) PID: 007-717-750, Lot 1, Plan 38207, District Lot 207, Land District Similkameen 
Div of Yale, Except Plan KAP72459 KAP84271; and 

(b) PID: 002-906-210, Lot C, Plan 35028, District Lot 206, Land District Similkameen 
Div of Yale,  

outlined in heavy black on the plan entitled “Sketch Plan to Accompany an Application of 
Inclusion into the Naramata Water Service”, a reduced copy of which is attached as 
Schedule “A” to this Bylaw. 
 



 

 

 Page 2 of 3 
Naramata Water Service Area  

Extension Bylaw No. 2431, 2008 

READ A FIRST, SECOND AND THIRD TIME this 24th day of January, 2008. 

ELECTORAL AREA DIRECTOR CONSENT OBTAINED on 24th day of January, 2008. 

APPROVED THE _____ day of ___________, 2008 by the Inspector of Municipalities, pursuant to 
Section 802(3) of the Local Government Act. 

ADOPTED this _______ day of __________, 2008. 

 

_______________________________  ____________________________________ 
Chair       Chief Administrative Officer 

 
 

FILED with the Inspector of Municipalities this ___ day of _____________, 2008, pursuant to 
Section 802(7) of the Local Government Act. 

 
  



 

 

 Page 3 of 3 

Schedule ‘A’ 

 

 

 

Naramata Water Service Area  
Extension Bylaw No. 2431, 2008 

 

Sketch Plan to Accompany an Application for  

Inclusion into the Naramata Water Service 

 

Existing Naramata 
Water Service Area Lands to be included 

in the NWSA; BL 2431 

Lands in previous 
extension of NWSA; 
BL 2200 

NN



 REGIONAL DISTRICT OF OKANAGAN-SIMILKAMEEN 
 
 BYLAW NO. 1804.03, 2008 
  
 
A bylaw to amend the Naramata Water System Development Cost Charge Bylaw. 
  

WHEREAS the owners of the properties described in this bylaw have petitioned the Board of the 
Regional District to extend the boundaries of the Naramata Water Service Area to include the 
properties;  

AND WHEREAS the Regional District has, pursuant to that request, extended the boundaries of 
the Naramata Water Service Area to include the properties; 

AND WHEREAS the owners have expressly agreed that, in order for the Regional District of 
Okanagan Similkameen to provide water to the properties, the Regional District must impose 
development cost charges; 

AND WHEREAS the owners have agreed to pay development cost charges; 

NOW THEREFORE, the Board of the Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen, in open meeting 
assembled, ENACTS AS FOLLOWS: 

TITLE 

1. This bylaw may be cited as the “Naramata Water System Development Cost Charge Bylaw 
Amendment Bylaw No. 1804.03, 2008.” 

AMENDMENTS 

2. The Naramata Water System Development Cost Charge Bylaw No. 1804, 1997, is 
amended by including the properties legally described as: 
 
(a) Parcel Identifier No. 007-717-750 

Lot 1, Plan 38207, District Lot 207,  
Land District Similkameen Div of Yale,  
Except Plan KAP72459 KAP84271 
 

(b) Parcel Identifier No. 002-906-210 
Lot C, Plan 35028, District Lot 206,  
Land District Similkameen Div of Yale  

 

Page 1 of 3 
Naramata Water System Development Cost Charge  

Bylaw Amendment Bylaw No. 1804.03, 2008 



The Naramata Water System Development Cost Charge Bylaw No. 1804, 1997, is further 
amended by altering Schedule “B” to that bylaw to include within the area shown as “Zone A” on 
Schedule “B” to that bylaw that portion of the lands legally described as 

(a)  PID: 007-717-750, Lot 1, Plan 38207, District Lot 207, Land District Similkameen 
Div of Yale, Except Plan KAP72459 KAP84271; and 

(b) PID: 002-906-210, Lot C, Plan 35028, District Lot 206, Land District Similkameen 
Div of Yale,  

outlined in heavy black on the plan entitled “Sketch Plan to Accompany Applications for 
Inclusion into the Naramata Water Service:”, a reduced copy of which is attached as 
Schedule “A” to this bylaw.   

 
 
READ A FIRST, SECOND AND THIRD TIME this 24th day of January, 20086. 
 
APPROVED BY THE INSPECTOR OF MUNICIPALITIES this _____ day of ____________, 2008. 
 
ADOPTED this _____ day of ____________, 2008. 
 
 
 
              
Chair       Chief Administrative Officer 
 

Page 2 of 3 
Naramata Water System Development Cost Charge  

Bylaw Amendment Bylaw No. 1804.03, 2008 



Schedule ‘A’ 

 

 

 

 

Sketch Plan to Accompany an Application for  

Inclusion into the Naramata Water Service 

 

Existing Naramata 
Water Service Area 

Lands in previous 
extension of NWSA; 
BL 1804.02  

Lands to be included in 
the NWSA; BL 1804.03 

NN

Page 3 of 3 
Naramata Water System Development Cost Charge  

Bylaw Amendment Bylaw No. 1804.03, 2008 



Https://Portal.Rdos.Bc.Ca/Departments/Officeofthecao/Boardreports/2016/20161215 Board Report/Boardreports/G.5. RPT External 
Agency Appointments.Docx   File No: 0340.20  Page 1 of 2 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 
  

 

TO: Board of Directors 
  
FROM: B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 
  
DATE: December 15, 2016 
  
RE: Select Committees and External Agencies Appointments 
 

Administrative Recommendation: 
 
THAT appointments to the Municipal Finance Authority, Municipal Insurance Association and 
Intergovernmental FN Joint Council reflect the change in Chair and Vice Chair; and,  
 
THAT Mark Pendergraft be appointed as the third representative on the Intergovernmental FN Joint 
Council; and,  
 
THAT all other external agency representation for 2017 remain unchanged from 2016.    
 
 
Analysis: 
 
Each year members of the Board of Directors are asked to submit expressions of interest to determine 
which appointments to external agencies would be of interest to them. 
 
Typically, changes to these positions do not occur midway through an election term unless a Director 
wishes to step down from an external appointment or unless a change to the Chair and Vice Chair 
have taken place. 
 
For 2017, the Municipal Finance Authority and the Municipal Insurance Association will be advised of 
the change in Chair and Vice Chair.  No additional changes to appointments are anticipated and 
therefore would remain as follows:   
 
External Agencies: 
 
Municipal Finance Authority - Chair and Vice Chair 

- Karla Kozakevich (Board Chair) 
- Manfred Bauer (Vice Chair), alternate 

 
Municipal Insurance Association - Chair and Vice Chair 

- Karla Kozakevich (Board Chair) 
- Manfred Bauer (Vice Chair), alternate 

 
Okanagan Basin Water Board – Participants are Electoral Areas A, C, D, E, F, part of G, City of 
Penticton, District of Summerland, Town of Osoyoos, Town of Oliver 

- Sue McKortoff 
- Andre Martin 
- Peter Waterman 
- Tom Siddon (alternate to Director Martin) 
- Mark Pendergraft (alternate to Director McKortoff) 
- Toni Boot (alternate for Peter Waterman) 

 
Okanagan Film Commission - Participants are all jurisdictions 

- Andrew Jakubeit 
 



Https://Portal.Rdos.Bc.Ca/Departments/Officeofthecao/Boardreports/2016/20161215 Board Report/Boardreports/G.5. RPT External 
Agency Appointments.Docx   File No: 0340.20  Page 2 of 2 
 

Okanagan Regional Library - Participants are Electoral Areas A, B,C,D,E,F,G 
- Karla Kozakevich 
- Elef Christensen - Alternate 

 
Okanagan Sterile Insect Release Board - Participants are Electoral Areas A, B, C, D, E, F,& G, City 
of Penticton, District of Summerland, Town of Osoyoos, Town of Oliver, Village of Keremeos 

- George Bush 
- Terry Schafer - Alternate 

 
Southern Interior Beetle Action Coalition - Participants are all jurisdictions 

- Frank Armitage 
 

Southern Interior Municipal Employees Association - Participants are all jurisdictions 
- Karla Kozakevich 
- Andre Martin 

 
Starling Control – Participants are all jurisdictions 

- George Bush 
 

UBCO Water Research Chair Advisory Committee – All Jurisdictions 
- Manfred Bauer 

 
Sustainable Rural Practice Communities Committee – All Jurisdictions 

- Sue McKortoff 
 
Intergovernmental FN Joint Council – Board Chair, Vice Chair and one other member 

- Karla Kozakevich  
- Manfred Bauer 
- Mark Pendergraft 

 
 
Respectfully submitted: 
 

 
______________________________  
C. Malden, Manager of Legislative Services 
 



ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 
  

 

TO: Board of Directors 
  
FROM: B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 
  
DATE: December 15, 2016 
  
RE: Parks and Recreation Commission Appointments 

 
Administrative Recommendation: 
THAT the Board of Directors appoint the following members to the subsequent Commissions 
AND, 
 

Area “B” - 
Kobau Park 

Area “E” - 
Naramata  

Area “F” - 
West Bench 

Area “D” - 
Okanagan 
Falls  

Area “D” - 
Kaleden  

Similkameen 
Recreation 

Marie Marven Jeff Gagnon Heather Allan Ron Obriek Doug King Charlene 
Cowling 

Deanna Gibbs Dennis Smith Warren 
Everton 

Brian Jackson Neal 
Dockendorf 

Marie Marven 

Bob 
McAtamney 

Richard Roskell   Gail Jeffery Marnie Todd 

 Jacqueline 
Duncan 

  Jennifer 
Charlish 

Jennifer Roe 

 
AND THAT the Board of Directors rescind the appointment of the following commission members 
as follows AND, 
 

Area “B” - 
Kobau Park 

Area “E” - 
Naramata  

Area “F” - 
West Bench 

Area “D” - 
Okanagan 
Falls  

Area “D” - 
Kaleden  

Similkameen 
Recreation 

 Deborah Linton  Lynn Tsumuraya   
   Mike Pearce   
   Tim Devlin   

 
THAT a letter be forwarded to these commission members thanking them for their contribution 
to their recreation commission. 
 
Purpose: 
As outlined in RDOS Parks and Recreation Commission Bylaw No. 2732, 2016, advertisements were 
placed in local news publications seeking new membership for all Commissions. The Electoral Area 
Directors have reviewed all new applications and expiring members wishing to let their name stand, 
and are recommending the following members for Board appointment to the various commissions. 



Reference: 
Bylaw 2732, 2016 Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen Parks and Recreation Commission 
Establishment Bylaw.  
 
Background: 
Commission membership is for a 2-year term and the members are staggered by one year in order 
to provide continuity. Advertising for commission members whose terms were expiring as of 
December 31, 2016 took place in October. Bylaw 2732 allows for 5 to 11 members for each 
commission.  
 
Alternatives: 
The Board not appoint new members to the commissions. 
 
Communication Strategy:  
Provide a letter to commission each retiring member thanking them for their contribution to their 
respective commission. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted: 
 
Mark Woods 
___________________________________________ 
M. Woods, Manager of Community Services 
 

 



Https://Portal.Rdos.Bc.Ca/Departments/Officeofthecao/Boardreports/2016/20161215 Board Report/Boardreports/G.7 Milfoil 
Equipment Report.Docx File No: Click here to enter 
text. 
Page 1 of 1 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 
  

 

TO: Board of Directors 
  
FROM: B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 
  
DATE: December 15, 2016 
  
RE: Milfoil Equipment Agreement 

 
Administrative Recommendation: 
 
THAT the Regional District enter into agreement with the Okanagan Basin Water Board to take 
possession of their milfoil equipment; and, to hold that title in trust for OBWB and their 
Members. 
 
 
Reference: 
Letter from OBWB – 7 December 2016 
Milfoil Equipment Agreement 
 
 
Background: 

OBWB Resolution as Approved December 6, 2016: That the OBWB approves the “Okanagan Basin Water 
Board Milfoil Control Equipment Trust and Agency Agreement” as presented and forwards it to the 
Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen for their approval, and when this is secured, to the Regional 
District of Central Okanagan and the Regional District of North Okanagan. 
 
Analysis: 

The agreement would transfer the title of the OBWB’s milfoil equipment to RDOS, with OBWB as “beneficial 
owner.” OBWB would retain control of decisions regarding the equipment, maintenance and operations. 
The agreement also binds OBWB to continue to provide insurance, and reimburse RDOS for expenses 
incurred with this trust agreement. In essence, only the official ownership would change. A schedule of 
milfoil vessels is attached to the agreement, and this will be amended from time to time as new equipment 
is acquired. 
 
Respectfully submitted: 
 
 
“insert digital signature; or name in italics” 
___________________________________________ 
Select report author... 
 

 



 

{00633693;1}   

 

OKANAGAN BASIN WATER BOARD MILFOIL CONTROL EQUIPMENT  

TRUST AND AGENCY AGREEMENT 

 

THIS AGREEMENT is made as of and with effect on the______________ day of 
_____________, 2016, (the “Effective Date”). 

 

BETWEEN 

REGIONAL DISTRICT OF OKANAGAN SIMILKAMEEN 

101 Main Street  
Penticton BC  
Canada V2A 5J9 

(referred to below as “RDOS”) 

 

AND  

OKANAGAN BASIN WATER BOARD 

1450 KLO Road 
Kelowna BC  
Canada V1W 3Z4  

(referred to below as “OBWB”) 

 

WHEREAS 

A. RDOS, together with the North Okanagan Regional District and the Regional District of 
Central Okanagan (collectively the “Regional Districts”) work together to provide for 
various water matters, through the OBWB; 

B. OBWB is undertaking the operation of an aquatic weed control program including a 
milfoil control function within the Regional Districts;  

C. The OBWB budget is approved each year by the Regional Districts; 



 

{00633693;1}   

- 2 - 

D. OBWB requires certain vessels, cultivation equipment and related equipment to operate 
the milfoil control program, described in more detail in Schedule “A”, attached to and 
forming part of this Agreement, which requires registration under the Canada Shipping 
Act, 2001, with Transport Canada, (the “Equipment”);  

E. Transport Canada requirements dictate the nature of the owner of a registered vessel and 
the appointment of an authorized representative with respect to any vessel under the 
Canada Shipping Act, 2001 (which includes small vessel regulations);  

F. RDOS has authority under the Local Government Act to accept and hold property in trust 
and RDOS hereby agrees to hold the Equipment as nominee, agent and bare trustee for 
the sole benefit and account of the OBWB pursuant to the terms of this Agreement. 

 

NOW THEREFORE in consideration of the premises and the amount of $1.00 now paid by 
OBWB to RDOS, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties 
agree as follows: 

1. APPOINTMENT 

OBWB hereby appoints RDOS as the nominee, agent and bare trustee to hold legal title to the 
Equipment as of and from the Effective Date for and on behalf of OBWB in accordance with this 
Agreement, with full power to hold the Equipment and to execute any instrument, document or 
encumbrance in respect of the Equipment for the sole benefit and account of OBWB, all at the 
direction of OBWB as principal and beneficial owner and strictly in accordance with this 
Agreement, and RDOS hereby accepts such appointment. 

2. RDOS AGREEMENTS 

RDOS hereby acknowledges and agrees that: 

a) RDOS holds the legal title to the Equipment as of and from the Effective Date as 
nominee, agent and bare trustee for the sole benefit and account of OBWB as 
principal and beneficial owner of the Equipment and RDOS will have no 
equitable or beneficial interest therein, and the equitable and beneficial interest in 
the Equipment will be vested solely and exclusively in the OBWB; 

b) RDOS holds legal title to the Equipment subject to and in accordance with this 
Agreement and subject to the terms and conditions of any transfer, security 
agreement, or encumbrance pertaining to the Equipment; 

c) RDOS will provide for a person to act as the authorized representative for any 
vessel included in the Equipment, to be responsible under the Canada Shipping 
Act 2001, unless otherwise assigned by that Act to any other person; 



 

{00633693;1}   

- 3 - 

d) any benefit, interest, profit or advantage arising out of or accruing from the 
Equipment is and will continue to be a benefit, interest, profit or advantage of 
OBWB and if received by the RDOS will be received and held by RDOS as 
nominee agent and bare trustee for the sole use, benefit and advantage of OBWB 
and RDOS will account to OBWB for any money or other consideration paid to or 
to the order of the RDOS in connection with the Equipment as directed in writing 
by OBWB; 

e) OBWB will have the sole benefit and use of the Equipment and will manage and 
operate the Equipment and keep the Equipment under its care and control; 

f) RDOS will, upon the direction of OBWB, deal with the Equipment and do all acts 
and things in respect of the Equipment at the expense of and as directed by 
OBWB from time to time and will assign, transfer, convey, lease, pledge, charge, 
or otherwise deal with the Equipment or any portion thereof at any time and from 
time to time in such manner as OBWB may determine, to the extent permitted 
under all relevant laws; and without limiting the generality of the foregoing, 
RDOS will transfer legal title in the Equipment or any portion thereof to or as 
directed by OBWB forthwith upon the written demand of OBWB; 

g) as circumstances may require from time to time and at least once per year, OBWB 
agrees to review and confirm that the list of the Equipment in Schedule A is 
current and may request that the list of Equipment in Schedule “A” be 
supplemented or corrected by a written modification to this Agreement;  

h) RDOS, will, upon and in accordance with the direction of OBWB, act as the agent 
of OBWB, as undisclosed principal, in respect of any matter relating to the 
Equipment or the performance or observance of any contract or agreement 
relating to the Equipment; 

i) acting under this Agreement and at the express written direction of OBWB, 
RDOS will have the full right and power, within the limits of its statutory 
authority, to execute and deliver, under seal or otherwise, any agreement or other 
instrument or document including any transfer, security interest or license, 
pertaining to the Equipment, without delivering proof to any person (including, 
without limitation, any other party to any such instrument or document) of its 
authority to do so and any person may act in reliance on any such instrument or 
document and for all purposes any such instrument or document will be binding 
on OBWB;  

j) RDOS will not deal with the Equipment in any way or execute any instrument or 
document, or grant any security interest or encumbrance in respect of the 
Equipment without the prior written consent or direction of OBWB; and 

k) RDOS will notify OBWB forthwith upon receipt by RDOS of notice of any 
matter or thing in respect of the Equipment or any item thereof, including, without 



 

{00633693;1}   

- 4 - 

limitation, in respect of any license, limitation, lien or proceeding in respect of the 
Equipment. 

3.  REIMBURSEMENT OF EXPENSES 

Any payments or disbursements made by RDOS in respect of the Equipment in accordance with 
this Agreement will be made as the agent of and for the account of OBWB as principal, and 
OBWB will reimburse RDOS for any amount reasonably and properly expended by RDOS in 
connection with the Equipment with the consent or direction of OBWB. RDOS will not be 
entitled to any remuneration or any revenue or profit beyond its expenses in respect of the 
Equipment for acting as nominee, agent and bare trustee under this Agreement. 

4. RDOS REPRESENTATIONS 

RDOS represents and warrants to OBWB that RDOS is a regional district corporation duly 
created under British Columbia’s Local Government Act as a corporation and neither carries on 
nor intends to carry on a business that is a trust business as defined in the Financial Institutions 

Act (British Columbia). 

5. TIME LIMITATION 

The powers herein conferred on RDOS will not extend beyond the expiration of 80 years from 
the date of execution and delivery of this Agreement, unless renewed. 

6. INSURANCE  

In addition to any insurance placed by OBWB for the operation and control of the Equipment, 
OBWB hereby agrees that the Equipment is to be insured to the requirements of OBWB and 
RDOS, and in compliance with any requirements of Transport Canada, where such insurance 
will name RDOS as an included insured, will be paid for by OBWB from the annual budget of 
OBWB, and will fully indemnify RDOS from liability (including professional fees, 
disbursements and taxes thereon) from and against any and all losses resulting from the holding 
of the Equipment by RDOS, except as may be specifically excluded in the terms of an agreed 
insurance policy.  

7. NOTICES 

Any notice given pursuant to or in connection with this Agreement will be in writing and 
delivered personally to the party to whom it is intended to be addressed at the address of such 
party last known to the other party. 



 

{00633693;1}   

- 5 - 

8. FURTHER ASSURANCES 

OBWB and RDOS will perform all such other acts and things and execute all such other 
documents as are necessary or desirable in the reasonable opinion of OBWB to evidence or carry 
out the terms or intent of this Agreement. 

9. NO WAIVER AND NO FETTER 

No failure or delay on the part of either party in exercising any right, power or privilege under 
this Agreement will operate as a waiver thereof, nor will any single or partial exercise of any 
right, power or privilege preclude any other or further exercise thereof or the exercise of any 
other right, power or privilege. Except as may be limited herein, either party may, in its sole 
discretion, exercise any and all rights, powers, remedies and recourses available to it under any 
statutory authority, this Agreement or any other remedy available to it in law or in equity and 
such rights, powers, remedies and recourses may be exercised concurrently or individually 
without the necessity of making any election. And, nothing is this Agreement shall be construed 
as limiting or fettering the rights powers or privileges of any statutory body under any enactment 
in the exercise of its authority, all such authority which may be fully and effectively exercised as 
if this Agreement had not been entered into, nor shall this Agreement be construed as abrogating 
from or affecting any rights in any prior agreements between the parties.  

10. GOVERNING LAW 

This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the Province of British Columbia and the laws 
of Canada applicable therein and shall be treated in all respects as a British Columbia contract.  
The parties agree that the courts of the Province of British Columbia will have exclusive 
jurisdiction to determine all disputes and claims arising between the parties. 

11. AMENDMENT 

This Agreement may be altered or amended only by an agreement in writing signed by the 
parties hereto. 

12. ENTIRE AGREEMENT 

This Agreement sets forth the entire agreement and understanding of the parties with respect to 
the subject matter hereof and supersedes any prior agreements and understandings between the 
parties with respect to the matters herein and there are no oral or written agreements, promises, 
warranties, terms, conditions, representations or collateral agreements whatsoever, express or 
implied, with respect to the Equipment, other than those contained in this Agreement. 

13. ENUREMENT 

This Agreement will enure to the benefit of and be binding upon the respective heirs, executors, 
administrators, successors and assigns of the parties. 



 

{00633693;1}   

- 6 - 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF this Agreement has been executed as of and with effect on the 
Effective Date first above written. 

OKANAGAN BASIN WATER BOARD  
 
By:  
Authorized Signatory 
 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

By:  
Authorized Signatory 
 

) 
) 
) 
 

 

REGIONAL DISTRICT OF OKANAGAN 
SIMILKAMEEN  
 
By:  
Authorized Signatory 
 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

 

By:  
Authorized Signatory 
 

) 
) 
) 
 

  



 

{00633693;1}   

- 7 - 

SCHEDULE “A” 

EQUIPMENT 

The following Equipment is included under this Agreement: 



 

 
161207OBWB-RDOS trust agreement_memo 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
To: RDOS Board and Chair  

From: Anna Warwick Sears, OBWB Executive Director 

Date: December 7, 2016 

Subject: Milfoil Equipment Trust Agreement  

This memo is to request the RDOS to enter into a trust agreement with the OBWB, to assume 
registered ownership of the OBWB’s milfoil vessels.  
 
Background: For several years, the OBWB has been corresponding with Transport Canada regarding 
the registration of our milfoil vessels. The OBWB, legislated as a partnership between the three 
Okanagan regional districts, does not fit into their categories of entities that can hold registration; 
that is, the entity must be incorporated or must register the equipment as an individual. We have 
looked at a number of options, including incorporating, establishing a separate holding company or 
society, or getting changes to our supplementary letters patent. These approaches are all either 
expensive, unworkable under current legislation, and/or very lengthy processes.  
 
As we are seeking to make some large equipment purchases over the next several years, it has 
become necessary to resolve the issue in a timely way. After consulting with counsel, the most direct 
and inexpensive solution is to transfer the equipment title to one of the regional district partners, to 
hold in trust for the OBWB and the other two Okanagan regional districts.  
 
Bill Newell has indicated that RDOS may be willing to act in this capacity – pending approval by the 
board, and the other regional districts. On December 6, 2016, the OBWB approved the attached 
Trust Agreement, and requested that it be forwarded to RDOS. If the RDOS Board accepts, the OBWB 
will approach the RDNO and RDCO for their resolutions of approval. 
 
The agreement would transfer the title of the OBWB’s milfoil equipment to RDOS, with OBWB as 
“beneficial owner.” OBWB would retain control of decisions regarding the equipment, maintenance 
and operations. The agreement also binds OBWB to continue to provide insurance, and reimburse 
RDOS for expenses incurred with this trust agreement. In essence, only the official ownership would 
change. A schedule of milfoil vessels is attached to the agreement, and this will be amended from 
time to time as new equipment is acquired. 
 
The following is the formal OBWB resolution regarding this agreement. We hope that you will support 
this request, which will allow us to continue our milfoil control program and upgrade our equipment. 
 
OBWB Resolution as Approved December 6, 2016: That the OBWB approves the “Okanagan Basin 
Water Board Milfoil Control Equipment Trust and Agency Agreement” as presented and forwards it to 
the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen for their approval, and when this is secured, to the 
Regional District of Central Okanagan and the Regional District of North Okanagan. 



Https://Portal.Rdos.Bc.Ca/Departments/Officeofthecao/Boardreports/2016/20161215 Board Report/Boardreports/G.8. 2017 Business 
Plan Report.Docx File No: Click here to enter 
text. 
Page 1 of 1 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 
  

 

TO: Board of Directors 
  
FROM: B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 
  
DATE: December 15, 2016 
  
RE: 2017 Business Plan 

 
Administrative Recommendation: 
 
THAT the Regional District approve the 2017 Business Plan. 
 
Reference: 
2017 Business Plan 
 
Background: 

Local governments are facing significant challenges that impact their ability to satisfactorily fulfill their 
purpose and serve those citizens within their geographic boundaries, as stipulated in the enabling legislation 
under which they were created. 
 
These challenges occur as a result of several factors resulting from both internal and external conditions.  
Demographic changes, revenue funding structures, provincial unfunded mandates, economic development, 
technological changes, aging and inadequate infrastructure systems, healthcare and cost containment, and 
perhaps foremost, a volatile international economy. 
 
The Board of Directors and the Senior Management Team of the Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen 
meet each autumn and, amongst other processes, consider the internal and external environments that they 
needed to work in as a basis for planning. 
 
Respectfully submitted: 
 
 
“insert digital signature; or name in italics” 
___________________________________________ 
Select report author... 
 

 



   

 
 
 

REGIONAL DISTRICT OF OKANAGAN-SIMILKAMEEN 
 

2017 CORPORATE BUSINESS PLAN 
(Approved ?) 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(This page left blank intentionally) 
 
 
 

   



 

 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
INTRODUCTION 

STRATEGIC OVERVIEW 

KEY SUCCESS DRIVERS 

ECONOMIC OVERVIEW 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT OVERVIEW 

2017 CORPORATE OBJECTIVES 

2017 BUDGET 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(This page left blank intentionally)



3 

 RDOS 2015  

RDOS Business Plan - 2017 

 

INTRODUCTION 
 
Local governments are facing significant challenges that impact their ability to satisfactorily 
fulfill their purpose and serve those citizens within their geographic boundaries, as stipulated in 
the enabling legislation under which they were created. 
 
These challenges occur as a result of several factors resulting from both internal and external 
conditions.  Demographic changes, revenue funding structures, provincial unfunded mandates, 
economic development, technological changes, aging and inadequate infrastructure systems, 
healthcare and cost containment, and perhaps foremost, a volatile international economy. 
 
The Board of Directors and the Senior Management Team of the Regional District of Okanagan 
Similkameen meet each autumn and, amongst other processes, consider the internal and 
external environments that they needed to work in as a basis for planning. 
 
The restrained global and local economy is a constant in our decision-making process.  The 
economy is not stable and it’s not growing.  This has an impact on pensioners that form a 
significant component of our population base. 
 
Governments have an over-riding responsibility to make decisions now that will have no 
adverse impact on our future.  This whole issue of sustainability is of growing importance and 
the Board of the Regional District has taken this concept into account in all of their decisions.  
Our fragile water resource in the Okanagan and Similkameen Valley’s is one small part of 
sustainability that we need to address sooner rather than later. 
 
At the same time, we see some opportunities that we need to take advantage of.  We don’t 
have to be the delivery mechanism for economic development services, but we need to steer 
the ship and jobs are a foundation for success.  Our stakeholder engagement can improve and 
any activity that we undertake that goes to improving quality of life will be important for us. 

 

STRATEGIC OVERVIEW 
Vision 
The current vision was crafted by the Board of Directors over a 
number of years with the intent of providing very clear direction  
as to where the Board envisions the Regional District may  
advance to in the future.  This vision will be used to guide  
activities associated with: 
§ Governance and Oversight 

§ Development of land, facilities and services; 

§ Enhancement of the Regional District’s vital role of promoting 
the three pillars of community sustainability; environmental, 
economic and social will add to the quality of life of its citizens. 

Vision 

We envision the Regional 
District of Okanagan-

Similkameen as a steward of our 
environment, sustaining a 

diverse and livable region that 
offers a high quality of life 
through good governance. 

 



4 

 RDOS 2015  

RDOS Business Plan - 2017 

The vision acknowledges that we wish to provide a high quality of life for our citizens, but to do 
so in a sustainable manner where none our decisions today impact adversely on future 
generations.  Our future actions will move us incrementally towards this vision. 

Mission 

Along with the vision, the mission statement helps us establish the 
priorities of the RDOS.  The key concepts within the mission will 
guide the way RDOS does business.  We will continue to strive to: 

§ Exceed customer and community expectations; 

§ Manage the regional district in the best interests of the 
community;  

  

Mission 

To initiate and implement 
policies which preserve and 

enhance the quality of life and 
serve the broader public 
interest in an effective, 

equitable, environmental and 
fiscally responsible manner. 



5 

 RDOS 2015  

RDOS Business Plan - 2017 

Core Values 

The core values are the foundation of our vision and mission and integral to the way we do 
business.  These values reflect our beliefs, define who we are and what we stand for.  

 

Honesty, Integrity, Ethical and Respectful Behaviour 
We are honest, ethical, and fair in all of our activities, using consistent and sound 
judgment to build trust in our working relationships. 
 
Accountability 
We take responsibility for our actions by embracing common goals through teamwork 
and collaborative decision-making while putting the interest of the community first.  
We dedicate ourselves to maintaining professionalism in our work using our guidelines 
and standards that enable us all to be answerable for our choices and achieve results 
stated in our organizations goals and objectives. 
 
Leadership/ Transparency 
We value “leadership with integrity” and are committed to open, accessible and 
transparent local government.   
 
Consistent Focus on the Customer Experience 
We provide courteous, responsive, high-quality service by fostering a respectful, 
positive and welcoming environment for our customers.  We provide consistency 
through sound business practices and professional standards. 
 
Environmental Responsibility 
We believe that a healthy environment promotes healthy living in our communities.  
We have a responsibility to maintain, enhance and protect the environment through 
the consideration of environmental impacts in our decision-making process. 



6 

 RDOS 2015  

RDOS Business Plan - 2017 

Corporate Assumptions 

The following assumptions were generated at the 2016 Management and Board Strategic Plan 
Workshops and used as the foundation for our 2017 Goals: 

i. External 
· That we value citizen input and citizen engagement. 
· That technology will increasingly play a role in Regional District business. 
· That by measuring staff and customer perception of service we can develop a plan to 

improve service. 
· That citizens are reluctant to pay higher taxes or fees for existing services but may be 

willing to pay for value. 
· That infrastructure grants will continue in 2017. 
· That achieving corporate GHG targets will cost money. 
· That impacts of community sustainability decisions are important to citizens. 
· That senior government expectations of local government and downloading will 

continue to increase. 
· That regulatory requirements are likely to continue to increase. 
· That there will be growth related to hospital construction. 
· That public scrutiny of local government decisions will increase. 
· The Canadian economy may not be stable throughout 2017 
· That more of our business will be conducted on-line. 
· That climate change will affect cores services, infrastructure and the frequency of 

environmental emergencies. 
 

ii. Internal 
• That fiscal responsibility is one of the primary drivers for organizational decisions 
• That the Board wants to be an employer of choice 
• That effective and fiscally responsible should be balanced 
• That new technologies will facilitate our business processes 
• That we must build relationships to be successful 
• That government effectiveness is enhanced by good communication. 
• That measurement is essential to good management 

STRAT 

  



7 

 RDOS 2015  

RDOS Business Plan - 2017 

KEY SUCCESS DRIVERS 

The Key Success Drivers focus our energies and resources on those activities that help us to 
advance towards and ultimately achieve our vision.  RDOS has identified four Key Success 
Drivers under which we build the 5-year goals that support our vision.   

 

Goals 

1.1 To be an effective, fiscally responsible organization. 
1.2 To be a healthy and safe organization. 
1.3 To cultivate a high-performing organizational culture. 
1.4 To embrace technology for service delivery, information and efficiencies. 

 

 

Goals 

2.1 To increase public awareness of RDOS Services. 
2.2 To foster dynamic, credible and effective community relationships 
2.3 To meet public needs through the provision and enhancement of key services 

 

 

Goals 

3.1 To develop a socially sustainable region 
3.2 To develop an economically sustainable region 
3.3 To develop an environmentally sustainable region 
 

 
Goals 
4.1 To execute a well-defined strategic planning cycle.  
4.2 To enhance communications and relations with other governments in the region. 
4.3 To promote Board effectiveness. 
4.4 To develop a responsive, transparent, effective organization. 

 
 

Key Success Driver 1.0:  Be a High Performing Organizing  
 

Key Success Driver 2.0:  Optimize the Customer Experience 

Key Success Driver 3.0:  Build a Sustainable Community 

Key Success Driver 4.0:  Governance & Oversight in a Representative Democracy 



8 

 RDOS 2015  

RDOS Business Plan - 2017 

ECONOMIC OVERVIEW 
 
Global View 
The global economy continues to struggle, with China's slowdown, the downward bias in 
commodity prices, and the renewed increase in financial market turbulence risking further 
weakness. Currently there are not enough growth engines around the world. Only the U.S. and 
India can be considered relative outperformers, countries which appear to be the most resilient 
and have the potential to generate stronger, and importantly, more sustainable activity. In 
contrast, most nations and regions are reporting moderate output growth, and a number of large 
nations, including Brazil, Russia and Venezuela, are still mired in recession. 

All told, the global economy is undergoing a period of heightened uncertainty and modest 
economic growth. The outcome of the U.K. vote, which surprised everybody, created a material 
downside risk for the world economy.  As a result, the global outlook for 2016-17 has declined, 
based on the sizable increase in uncertainty, including on the political front. This uncertainty is 
projected to take a toll on confidence and investment, including through its repercussions on 
financial conditions and market sentiment more generally.  As of mid-July 2016, the pound had 
weakened by about 10 percent; despite some rebound, equity prices are lower in some sectors, 
especially for European banks; and yields on safe assets have declined.   
 
The overall impact of lower oil prices on U.S. growth has so far been broadly neutral.  According 
to the survey of private sector economists conducted by the Government of Canada in February 
2016, real GDP growth in the U.S. is projected to remain steady over the next few years. 
Growth is expected to be in the range of 2-2.5 per cent through 2020, due to a solid labour 
market, sound corporate and household balance sheets, and a continued gradual recovery in 
the housing market. This contrasts with the RBC Global Markets group predicting 1.3% for the 
U.S. in 2016 to 1.8% in 2017 due to a rapidly increasing demand, but shrinking workforce and 
no plans for additional stimulus packages that we saw come out in 2008.  These projections are 
volatile, and we can see that the U.S. GDP is sitting around a 2.9% growth at the end of Q3 
2016 based on factors identified above, especially the improving jobs market.  Even with earlier 
gloomy predictions, the U.S. economy remains strong at year-end. 
 
Overall, the IMF has revised its outlook for the global economy downward and expects growth 
will continue to be modest in 2016 and 2017, well below the pace at the beginning of the 
decade. Important risks remain to global growth, including the possibility of a hard landing in 
China and continued weaker-than-expected growth in the U.S. and other advanced economies.  
RBC sees China in the 6% range, which is less than anticipated and significantly down from the 
14% growth in 2010.  The transition from a manufacturing economy to a service economy 
requires less raw materials, drastically reducing imports. 
 

 Year over Year Q4 over Q4 
 Estimates Projections Estimates Projections 
 2014 2015 2016 2017 2015 2016 2017 

World Output 3.4 3.1 3.1 3.4 3.0 2.7 3.3 

Advanced Economies 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.9 
United States 2.4 2.4 2.2 2.5 2.0 1.5 2.1 
Euro Area 0.9 1.7 1.6 1.4 1.7 1.4 1.5 



9 

 RDOS 2015  

RDOS Business Plan - 2017 

Germany 1.6 1.5 1.6 1.2 1.3 1.5 1.3 
Canada 2.5 1.1 1.4 2.1 0.3 1.8 2.2 
Other Advanced Economies 2.8 2.0 2.0 2.3 2.2 2.0 2.6 
 

Emerging Market and Developing 
Economies 

4.6 4.0 4.1 4.6 4.1 4.4 4.9 

Commonwealth of Independent States 1.0 -2.8 -0.6 1.5 -3.4 -0.3 1.8 

Russia 0.7 -3.7 -1.2 1.0 -4.0 -0.3 1.8 
Emerging and Developing Asia 6.8 6.6 6.4 6.3 6.8 6.3 6.3 
China 7.3 6.9 6.6 6.2 6.8 6.5 6.1 
India 7.2 7.6 7.4 7.4 8.1 7.4 7.4 
 
National 
In February 2016, private sector economists retained by the Government of Canada revised 
down their near-term outlook for real gross domestic product (GDP) growth and GDP inflation, 
reflecting the impact of sharp declines in crude oil prices since the Fall Update and ongoing 
elevated uncertainty in the global economy. 

They now expect real GDP growth of 1.4 per cent in 2016, lower than expectations of 2.0 per 
cent growth in the Fall Update, and 2.2 per cent in 2017.  RBC Global is, again, a little more 
pessimistic for the Canadian GDP anticipating 1.3% growth in 2016 and 1.5% in 2017. 

For West Texas Intermediate (WTI) crude oil prices, the economists now expect an average of 
US$40 per barrel in 2016 compared to the US$54 per barrel expected in the Fall Update. Lower 
crude oil prices have led the private sector economists to revise down their expectations for 
GDP inflation (the broadest measure of economy-wide price inflation) in 2016. The February 
survey forecasts GDP inflation of 1.0 per cent in 2016, down from 2.1 per cent in the 
Fall Update.  
 
Canada’s economy has lost considerable momentum in response to the persistent weakness in 
exports and business investment. The fallout from the energy sector, aggravated by the 
renewed slump in crude oil prices, is still taking a toll on the producing provinces — primarily 
Alberta, Saskatchewan, and Newfoundland/Labrador — though most regions are being affected 
by the weakness in energy-related demand for manufactured goods and business services. The 
importance of the energy sector to Canada’s performance is reflected in its export share — oils 
& mineral fuels represent 27% of Canadian exports, equal to the combined share of the next 
four largest shipments of motor vehicles & parts, machinery, metals & precious stones, and 
electronic machinery & equipment. The roughly 8% decline in aggregate energy-related output 
through late winter has already reduced output national growth by around ½ percentage point. 
 
Alberta wildfires can’t be blamed for all the weakness in the second quarter. However, the 
Canadian economy is showing renewed signs of life in the third quarter.  Growth for the year will 
likely turn in a weak tally at 1.1%. Activity in 2017 and 2018 should accelerate to 1.8% and 



10 

 RDOS 2015  

RDOS Business Plan - 2017 

1.7%, respectively, supported by government stimulus and stabilization in business investment. 
 

 

Canada Forecast Quarterly GDP Growth Rates 

 

 
 

 
The current weakness in Canada is expected to give way to a gradual rebound, with non-energy 
exports piggybacking upon the improving conditions south of the border. The sharply lower 
exchange rate should also provide some relief to export earnings — the dollar’s decline vis-à-vis 
the greenback has amounted to a cumulative 23% since peaking at US1.04 in mid-2011 — 
though the country’s overall competitive position must be viewed from an international 
perspective. Many of our trading partners and direct competitors internationally are witnessing 
similar interest rate and/or currency adjustments, whether in Mexico, Australia, New Zealand, 
South Korea, or the euro zone. 



11 

 RDOS 2015  

RDOS Business Plan - 2017 

 

Provincial Economic Overview 

B.C. economic growth is expected to outperform Canada in the coming years. On average, the 
council is forecasting B.C. real GDP growth at 3.0% in 2016, 2.3% in 2017, and 2.3% in 2018. 

Average forecast growth is higher for 2016 and slightly lower for 2017 and beyond compared to 
the council’s previous forecast in January of this year. The council also projects B.C.’s real GDP 
will grow by an average of 2.2% for the 2019-21 period. An updated forecast from the council 
will be published with Budget 2017. 

There is increasing uncertainty around the U.S. economy and trade agreements (including the 
Softwood Lumber Agreement); slowing growth in China and throughout the world; and the 
importance of export market diversification. Economists also discussed the implications of 
B.C.’s aging population and the importance of immigration to the province’s long-term labour 
force and growth potential. Observations from the council include: 

· “Looking ahead, we expect B.C.’s labour productivity to exceed the national average 
because of its advantageous positioning in high-end services and manufacturing, and its 
in-roads into export markets beyond the U.S….” 

· “The impact on the B.C. economy from the slowdown in resale market activity should be 
tempered by near-record new residential construction and elevated renovation 
spending…” 

· “In the long run, B.C. remains well-positioned to benefit from Asian economic growth, 
higher population growth, and investments in human and physical capital.” 

The Economic Forecast Council includes some of the most respected independent economic 
forecasters in Canada. The 13-member council's mandate — as determined by the Budget 
Transparency and Accountability Act — is to provide economic advice to the Minister of Finance 
in advance of each year's budget and fiscal plan. 

 



12 

 RDOS 2015  

RDOS Business Plan - 2017 

 
 

 
 



13 

 RDOS 2015  

RDOS Business Plan - 2017 

 
 

Regional 

The Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen is a unique and vibrant community of 
approximately 80,000 residents.  It encompasses pristine wilderness and, as a result of its 
warm, dry climate, is one of the best tree fruit and grape producing eco-systems in Canada.  It is 
characterized by six urban centres and eight electoral areas, including a large rural area with a 
small population base. The City of Penticton is the primary service centre of the region. The 
communities of Summerland, Oliver and Osoyoos are our other incorporated communities in the 
Okanagan Valley and Princeton and Keremeos in the Similkameen Valley.  The Okanagan and 
Similkameen Rivers, along with our lakes, is the lifeline for the region. 
 
Tourism, agriculture and viticulture, logging, forest products manufacturing, secondary 
manufacturing and information technology are foundations of the economy in the Regional 
District.  Public sector wages and government transfer payments (pensions) remain as 
significant contributors.  

 
Population growth in the Region remains flat at less than 1%, although there is anticipation that 
the proposed Corrections Facility in Gallagher Lake and the Penticton Regional Hospital 
Expansion Project will have a positive impact in the next few years. 
 
The age demographic will continue to increase in the Okanagan/Similkameen, with 25% of our 
population being over the age of 65 by 2022.  This will exceed that of the rest of the Province by 
a full 5% 
 
Tourism will continue to be a strong economic driver in the Okanagan and Similkameen Valley’s 
in 2017, following an increased market in 2016.  The flat Canadian dollar is a strong attraction to 
keep Canadians home and attract U.S. visitors.  Housing markets continue to show 
improvement and we have improved prospects for forestry.  Uncertainty in the mining sector 



14 

 RDOS 2015  

RDOS Business Plan - 2017 

and an increased downturn in the Alberta economy pose risks that will have to be monitored. 
 
Any threat to the Alberta economy will have an impact on the labour market in British Columbia 
as the number of interprovincial employee’s make up a significant percentage of workers in the 
Thompson-Okanagan work in the oil patch.  The oil shock will continue to weigh heavily on 
prospective home buyers in Alberta, but poses a risk to regional demand, as well, Alberta home 
buyers form a significant share of regional demand. 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 



15 

 RDOS 2015  

RDOS Business Plan - 2017 

 
 

 
 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT OVERVIEW 
 

Overview 

The Constitution Act of 18671 identifies the specific services the Canadian Parliament administers 
and delegates the specific authorities belonging to the provinces2, one of which is the creation of 
Local Governments.  Consequently, the Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen is a corporation 
officially established on March 4th, 1966 by Letters Patent issued by the Executive Council pursuant 
to Section 766 of the Municipal Act of British Columbia.  As a creation of the Province, the Regional 
District relies on Provincial Legislation to provide the authority necessary for it to fulfil its mandate 
of providing services to the citizens within its corporate boundaries. 
 
Mandate and Authority 

Section 2 of the Local Government Act (LGA) provides that regional districts are an 
independent, responsible and accountable order of government within their jurisdiction.  The 
purposes of a regional district include: 

(a) providing good government for its community, 
(b) providing the services and other things that the board considers are necessary or desirable 

for all or part of its community, 
                     
1 The Constitution Act 1867 to 1982, Section 91, Part VI, Department of Justice Canada, (Ottawa, Ontario: Minister of Supply and Services 

Canada, 1983). 
2 Ibid, Section 92(8) of Part VI 



16 

 RDOS 2015  

RDOS Business Plan - 2017 

(c)  providing for stewardship of the public assets of its community, and 
(d) fostering the current and future economic, social and environmental well-being of its 

community. 
 
Letters Patent 
The Regional District is led by a Board of eighteen Directors, eight rural and ten urban.  The eight 
electoral areas, each have one elected director and of the six municipal members, Penticton 
appoints 4 Directors, Summerland appoints two Directors and Osoyoos, Oliver, Keremeos and 
Princeton each appoint one.  The rural Directors are elected to a three-year term3 while the urban 
members are appointed by their councils annually.  The Act also provides that the authority and 
power to govern the municipality is vested in the Board as a whole4. 

 
Establishment Bylaws 
Where authority to provide a service was initially established in the Letters Patent, changes to the 
Municipal Act in 1989 made it possible for Regional Districts to provide services with the adoption 
of a service establishment bylaw.  The service can be for all or part of the Region, but only the people 
receiving the service contribute to its cost.   
 
 
Vote Allocation 
To fairly represent the population that makes up the Regional District at the Board, the 
Supplementary Letters Patent have identified that 1 voting unit = 1800 people.  I director may carry 
a maximum of 5 votes.   

# of Members/ Representing 
 

Weighted 
Votes 

Electoral Area “A” 2 
Electoral Area “B” 1 
Electoral Area “C” 3 
Electoral Area “D” 5 
Electoral Area “E” 2 
Electoral Area “F” 2 
Electoral Area “G” 2 
Electoral Area “H” 1 
Town of Osoyoos 3 
Town of Oliver 3 
City of Penticton 19 
District of Summerland 7 
Village of Keremeos 1 
Town of Princeton 2 

Total Votes Allocated 53 

                     
3 Municipal Act, Chapter 19, Revised Statutes of British Columbia, 1998 
4 Ibid, Section 167  



17 

 RDOS 2015  

RDOS Business Plan - 2017 

 

Jurisdiction Unweighted 
Votes 

Weighted 
Votes 

Similkameen Valley  
Okanagan Valley  

5 
13 

7 
46 

Municipal Votes 
Rural Votes 

10 
8 

35 
18 

 

RDOS subscribes to a corporate culture and operating philosophy where measureable results 
against specific objectives that support the mission and vision are important.  In these tight 
economic times, it becomes a matter of clearly identifying what it is we intend to do so we can 
focus our resources, both human and financial, on those issues most important to our success. 

 
  



18 

 RDOS 2015  

RDOS Business Plan - 2017 

RDOS ANNUAL PLANNING CYCLE 
 
RDOS relies on a structured business planning framework to set the overall direction for the 
regional district and to guide its operation.  Fundamental elements for guiding the strategic 
development of the airport are the RDOS’s Vision and Mission Statements, Strategic Plan, and 
the Annual Business Plan.  The Annual Business Plan delineates what we plan to work on in that 
given year and outlines how we intend to proceed to achieve our goals for the 2014 – 2018 
term of office.   

Annual Planning Cycle 

Phase I:
Preparation - Input

Phase II:
Planning

Phase III:
Approval

Phase IV:
Communication

Phase V:
Ongoing Measurement

July

Aug-Oct

Nov - Jan

February

Quarterly

 

 



19 

 RDOS 2015  

RDOS Business Plan - 2017 

2017 Corporate Objectives 
Summary of Key Success Drivers (KSDs), 5-Year Goals, 2017 Corporate Objectives, Performance 
Indicators and Point Weightings 

KSD #1 –  HIGH PERFORMING ORGANIZATION 
(3 Goals; 5 Objectives; 15 pts.) 

2017 Objectives Performance Indicator Points 
Goal 1.1  To be a fiscally responsible organization  

1.1.1  By providing the Board with 
accurate, current financial 
information 

Develop a new document for the Board in the form of a Management Discussion and Analysis 
Report, including comparative metrics 

2 points  

Receipt of an unqualified audit for the 2016 calendar year 1 point 

Meet Budget at the end of the year 2 points 

1.1.2 By being an effective local 
government 

 

Develop a  Business Continuity Plan for 101 Martin St 1 point 

Participate in the Shared Services Project with other regional local government/education 
entities 

1 point 

Sub Total = 7 

Goal 1.2  To be a healthy and safe organization  
1.2.1 By implementing the 2017 

joint occupational health 
and safety action plan 

Develop a plan for the Safe Work procedures and implement the 2017 phase 2 points 
 

Keep the RDOS injury rate below the average for our classification unit (WorkSafeBC) 2 points 

1.2.2 By implementing an 
employee wellness program 

Implement the 2017  Employee Wellness Action Plan 1 point 

Sub Total = 5 

Goal 1.3  To Cultivate a High Performing Organizational Culture 
1.3.1 By developing and 

implementing an 
Organizational Development 
Plan 

Improved results on the 2017 Survey over 2016 Survey 
2 points 

Organize All Staff Business Meeting with topic relevant to staff perception survey results. 
1 point 

Sub Total = 3  

KSD #1 Total = 15  
  



20 

 RDOS 2015  

RDOS Business Plan - 2017 

 

  

KSD #2 – FOCUS ON THE CUSTOMER EXPERIENCE 
(3 Goals; 3 Objectives; 20 pts.) 

2017 Objectives Performance Indicator Points 
Goal 2.1  To increase public awareness of RDOS Services 
2.1.1 By promoting regional 

district facilities and 
services 

· Promote Local Government Awareness Week 1 point 

· Complete the 2017 citizen survey and develop a schedule for implementing 
recommendations 

2 points 

· Investigate setting up a “panel” for use as a rolling survey program 1 point 

· Improve communications by advertising in local community hot spots such as store 
bulletin boards and coffee shops, going beyond newspaper advertisements 

1 point 

· Continue weekly articles  1 point 

Sub Total = 6 

Goal 2.2 To foster dynamic and effective community relationships 
2.2.1 By developing and 

implementing a community 
relations program 

Develop a community relations plan and implement the 2017 phase   2 points 

Organize an open house, public meeting or tour in each electoral area. 2 points 
 

Implement Area “D” Governance Committee recommendations 2 points 

Sub Total = 6  

Goal 2.3 To meet public needs through the provision and enhancement of key 
services 

2.3.1 By introducing a process of 
continuous improvement 
into the organization 

 

Facilitate two Kaizens under the Lean Management Program 2 points 

Review RDOS Bylaws and Policies for relevancy and currency  1 point 

Ensure all irrigation district bylaws have been transferred to RDOS format  3 points 

Conduct a “Lessons Learned” exercise at end of all projects and exit 
surveys for all departing staff 

1 point 

Implement the actions identified in the 2017 Request for Decision Kaizen 1 point 

Sub Total = 8  

KSD Total = 20 



21 

 RDOS 2015  

RDOS Business Plan - 2017 

KSD #3 – BUILD A SUSTAINABLE REGION 
(3 Goals; 19 Objectives; 50 pts.) 

2017 Objectives Performance Indicator Points 
3.1 To develop a socially sustainable region 
3.1.1 By implementing the 

regional transit future plan  
Develop an annual program under the Transit Future Plan and implement 
the 2017 phase 

1 point 
 

Transfer operations of the South Okanagan Transit Service from the Town 
of Osoyoos to the RDOS  1 point 

Develop a marketing program for existing services  1 point 

3.1.2 By developing a regional 
fire service master plan 

Administer the contract for the development of the Plan  1 point 
 

Ensure that regional fire chiefs are involved in the development of the 
plan 

1 point 

3.1.3 By establishing a Naramata 
Fire Service Satellite Fire 
Hall 

Acquire an appropriate site for the satellite fire hall 1 point 

Finalize building site design and contract for construction 1 point 

3.1.4 By developing the Erris 
Volunteer Fire Department 

Undertake the Fire Underwriter study of proposed service 1 point 

Establish the service 1 point 

Provide an orientation for the Department Members to ensure 
compliance with RDOS standards 

1 point 

3.1.5 By implementing the 
regional trails program 

Construct the KVR Trail South Spur section from Road 18 to Osoyoos Lake 1 point 

Assist the Province with a critical habitat inventory management plan for 
the KVR trail from Vaseux Lake to Osoyoos 

1 point 

Secure Provincial tenure for the KVR trail – Area A and C phase  1 point 

Secure tenure for the KVR trail – OIB phase  1 point 

Work with senior levels of government to secure tenure for the KVR trail 
– Vaseux Lake phase  

1 point 

3.1.6 By implementing the 2017 
Phase of the Parks Program 

Implement a 2017 parks improvement program 1 point 

Establish an Electoral Area H parks service 1 point 

Update Regional and Community parks bylaws  1 point 

Complete a Contribution Agreement and Facility Use Agreement with the 
Tulameen Community Club 

1 point 

Review the Princeton/ Area H Park Contribution Service 1 point 

3.1.7 By providing public 
recreational opportunities 

Carry out the 2017 Recreation and Wellness Programs under the 
guidance of the Recreation Advisory Commissions 

1 point 

Implement a Regional approach to booking Recreation Programs, 
Facilities and Events, e.g. common calendar between Rec programs 

1 point 

3.1.8 By constructing a 
pedestrian pathway in 
Okanagan Falls 

Undertake the design, consultation and permitting phases 1 point 

Complete final design and submit for 2018 Budget consideration 1 point 

3.1.9 Investigate energy options Research and report on solar and wind power advancements 1 point 

Sub Total = 25  



22 

 RDOS 2015  

RDOS Business Plan - 2017 

2017 Objectives Performance Indicator Points 
Goal 3.2  To develop an economically sustainable region 
3.2.1  By developing an Asset 

Management Plan 
Investigate options for asset management systems and which would be 
appropriate for the Regional District 3 points 

3.2.2 By updating the Naramata 
Water System Development 
Cost Charge Bylaw 

Complete the business case for revised development cost charges 
2 points 

Sub Total = 5  

 

2017 Objectives Performance Indicator Points 
Goal 3.3 To develop an environmentally sustainable region  

3.3.1 By commencing the 
Electoral Area “F” Official 
Community Plan review 

Citizen Committee appointments, project Inventory, Issue identification, constraints 
and opportunities, Background Report 

1 point 

Community engagement, Draft Plan 1 point 

3.3.2 By conducting a Bylaw 
Enforcement Policy 
Review 

Review Best Practices for bylaw enforcement and compare to current RDOS 
procedures and policies 

1 point 

Identify gaps and prepare revised procedures and polices  1 point 

3.3.3 By completing a new 
Water Regulatory and 
Conservation Bylaw 

Conduct literature search and benchmarking exercise 2 points 

Develop a draft bylaw for discussion and present final version 2 points 

3.3.4 By implementing the 2017 
Phase of the Solid Waste 
Management Plan 

Complete site analysis, procurement, design and construction of the new organics 
processing facility 

2 points 

Complete the procurement for Curbside service beginning in July 2018 2 points 

Pilot a Bio-cover methane mitigation project to achieve approval for substituted 
requirements permit. 

2 points 

Develop the Keremeos landfill closure plan  1 point 

3.3.5 By bringing Kaleden and 
Skaha Estates into the 
Okanagan Falls Waste 
Water Treatment System 

Initiate the public assent process to establish a Service to attach to the Okanagan Falls 
Wastewater Treatment Plant 

1 point 

Complete the detail design of a sewerage collection system for Kaleden and Skaha 
Estates 

1 point 

Actively search for a grant to move this project forward 1 point 

3.3.6 By  constructing a 
wetlands filtration 
system for the Okanagan 
Falls Waste Water 
Treatment Plant 

Complete the design and construction of Wetland system 
 

1 point 

3.3.7 Set out the Regional 
District responsibility for 
orphan dikes 

Conduct an inventory of orphan dikes within the regional district and present a 
discussion paper to the Board identifying liability when/if there is flooding or disaster 
related to the dikes 

1 point 

3.3.8 Establish a position 
around Uplands Water 
Storage  

Bring a report to the Board identifying the issue/history/risk of RDOS involvement in 
uplands water storage 

 

Sub Total = 20  

KSD Total = 50  
 

  



23 

 RDOS 2015  

RDOS Business Plan - 2017 

KSD #4 – GOVERNANCE and OVERSIGHT in a REPRESENTATIVE DEMOCRACY 
(4 Goals; 6 Objectives; 15 pts.) 

2017 Objectives Performance Indicator Points 
Goal 4.1 To execute a Well-Defined Strategic Planning Cycle  
4.1.1 By maintaining, 

evaluating and 
executing the Strategic 
Planning and 
Enterprise Risk 
Management 
Programs. 

Development of the 2018 Corporate Business Plan 2 points 

Review and update the Enterprise Risk Management Register 1 point 

Sub Total = 3 

Goal 4.2 To Encourage Partnerships with all Member Municipalities, Electoral Areas, 
Indian Bands and Other Levels of Government 

4.2.1 By organizing 
government to 
government meetings  

Organize and host one C2C Forum. 1 point 

Organize regular Regional CAO meetings 1 point 

4.2.2 By implementing the 
terms of the First 
Nations Protocol 
Agreement 

Support regular joint council and steering committee meetings to promote good relations in 
the Regional District and report to the Board on highlights 

1 point 

Implement the 2017 actions identified in the Joint Council Action Plan 1 point 

Sub Total = 4 

Goal 4.3 To Promote Board Effectiveness 

4.3.1 By assisting the Board 
to operate in an 
effective manner 

Plan and implement a legislative workshop in 2017 1 point 

Enhance relationship with committees/commissions 1 point 

Facilitate the Board evaluation 1 point 

4.3.2 By supporting a 
governance review for 
Electoral Area “D” 

Implement recommendations from the Area “D” governance review 2 points 

Sub Total = 5 

Goal 4.4 To Develop a Responsive, Transparent Corporation 
4.4.1 By ensuring all existing 

bylaws and policies are 
kept in a current and 
useful form and 
content. 

Ensure all irrigation district bylaws have been transferred to RDOS format 2 points 

Conduct Privacy Impact Assessments on new recreation software, building permit tracker, 
enforcement ticket tracker, development tracker and Vadim updates 

1 point 

Sub Total = 3  

KSD Total = 15  
 

  



24 

 RDOS 2015  

RDOS Business Plan - 2017 

 

2017 CORPORATE OBJECTIVES - WORKSHEETS 
  
KEY SUCCESS DRIVER 1 – HIGH PERFORMING ORGANIZATION 
Goal 1.1  To be a fiscally responsible organization 
Objective 1.1.1: By providing the Board with accurate, current financial information. 
 
Description 
The citizens of the Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen expect their elected officials and 
staff to provide leadership for the efficient and effective fiscal planning and operation of the 150 
services provided by the corporation.  The services offered by the regional district are diverse, 
ranging through regional, sub-regional, inter-jurisdictional and local.  By law, only those citizens 
receiving a service, pay for it. 

Ownership  
§ Office of Prime Interest (OPI):  Manager of Financial Services 
§ Offices of Collateral Interest (OCI):  Senior Management Team; Finance Department 
 
The Activity 
The Regional District has a legislative requirement to develop and submit a Five-Year financial 
plan (the “Plan”) each year.  Staff submits the Plan to Budget Committee each November for the 
subsequent calendar year, with projections rolling forward for the next five-year period.  The 
Board is obligated to adopt a budget by March 31st of each year.  The Public has full access to 
budget meetings and a wide citizen engagement process is offered each year prior to budget  
adoption.  The Board provides oversight on the budget against actuals on a quarterly basis 
throughout the year. 
 
Typically, administration uses a narrative variance report to present to the Corporate Services 
committee each quarter.  In 2017, the intent is to move to a more robust Management 
discussion and Analysis of our financial status that should provide the Board better oversight of 
our financial position. 
 
Measurements 
The Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen has a very robust financial management 
system and has established rigorous controls to ensure Administration provides sound financial  
management, fulfills the fiduciary trust the Board places on them to use taxpayer dollars wisely; 
and, that the Board receives the information they need to provide financial oversight.   
 
Department Managers review financial statements monthly and employ a TimeTracker data 
base to ensure expenses are applied to the right Service to ensure we maintain a fair balance 
between urban and rural participants in regional services. 



25 

 RDOS 2015  

RDOS Business Plan - 2017 

 
Weighting (5 points of 15 for the KSD) 
· 2 points for the development and production of a Management Development and Analysis 

Report for presentation to the Corporate Services Committee in Q2 and Q3. 

· 1 point for obtaining an unqualified audit from an independent auditor for the 2016 calendar 
year. 

· 2 points for successfully achieving the 2017 budget targets. 
 
 
Goal 1.1:  To be an effective, fiscally responsible organization 
Objective 1.1.2: By being an effective local government 
 
Description 
The Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen understands that the success of our 
organization depends on all Board and staff members working together to achieve our goals; all 
with the intent of providing effective service to our citizens.  To do this, we need to keep a lean, 
flat organizational structure and having the Management Team meet weekly to discuss 
corporate and interdepartmental issues is one method, but we still need to work out of our 
departmental silos and ensure our front line staff has the information necessary to keep citizens 
informed. 

Ownership 

§ Office of Prime Interest (OPI):  Manager of Legislative Services  
§ Offices of Collateral Interest (OCI); Manager of Information Systems 
 
The Activity: 
While we cover a large geographical area, the hub of our operation is at 101 Martin Street.  We 
need to examine the risk of losing our corporate office and how we could continue to operate 
our business efficiently.  In 2017 RDOS will develop a Business Continuity Plan and commence 
implementation in a phased manner. 
 
In addition, we realize that there may be economies of scale by working with our partners in the 
South Okanagan and we’ll work with School District 67, the City of Penticton and the District of 
Summerland on implementing a couple of pilot programs through a Shared Services concept 
plan. 
 
Measurement 
Success on this activity will be based the completion of a Business Continuity Plan and 
participation in the Shared Services Project.  The end result will be a more effective 
organization. 

 

Weighting (2 points of 15 for the KSD) 



26 

 RDOS 2015  

RDOS Business Plan - 2017 

· 1 point for development of a Business Continuity Plan 

· 1 point for participation in the Shared Services Project 

 
Goal 1.2: To be a healthy and safe organization 
 
Objective 1.2.1: By implementing the 2017 phase of the occupational health and 

safety action plan 
 
Description 
The Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen takes its responsibility for the safety of its 
employees very seriously.  We have always complied with provincial legislation, but in 2009, 
RDOS aspired to achieve the standard set by the BC Municipal Safety Association and applied 
under the Certificate of Recognition (CoR) Program.  In fact, we applied under two programs; 
one for their Health and Safety Program and one for their Return to Work Program.  In 2010, 
2011 and 2012 we were awarded both.  In 2013, our Joint Health and Safety Committee 
determined to continue in-house due to the cost and onerous reporting requirements for the 
provincial certification.  We continue to have trained in-house auditors and conduct an annual 
safety audit, which forms the basis for our Safety Action Plan. 

Ownership  
§ Office of Prime Interest (OPI):  Manager of Human Resources 
§ Offices of Collateral Interest (OCI):  Workplace Health & Safety Committee; Department 

Managers 

The Activity 
The Regional District Joint Health and Safety Committee annually audits the Regional District 
work places and they’ll be implementing the actions identified in the Workplan for 2017.  The 
Audit indicated that we needed to work more closely with our external Parks & Recreation 
Departments and our Fire Departments.  That outreach will continue in 2017.  It will also involve 
training and information sharing, with a concentration on corporate-wide WHMIS training. 

Measurement 
The RDOS has used “Total Recorded Incident Ratio” as a measurement in the past, but in 2017 
we intend to move to benchmarking on the injury rate identified by WorkSafe BC for our 
classification unit.  In addition, the completion of the 2017 Worksafe Plan, training for our staff 
and networking with our external departments will be success factors.   

Weighting (4 points of 15 for this KSD) 
· 2 points for developing and implementing the 2017 safe work procedures for all departments 

within the organization 
· 2 points for keeping the RDOS injury rate below the average for our WorkSafe BC 

classification unit. 

 
  



27 

 RDOS 2015  

RDOS Business Plan - 2017 

Goal 1.2: To be a healthy and safe organization 
Objective 1.2.2: By implementing the 2017 Wellness Program 
 
Description: 
The Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen believes that every employee contributes 
directly to the growth and success of our organization.  In recognition of that belief, a Wellness 
Committee has been established to foster the development and growth of a healthy workplace 
by establishing a positive work environment and paying attention to the factors that keep 
employees happy and healthy at work. 
 
2017 GOALS 
· Develop a program that promotes a healthy work environment that attracts, retains, and most 

importantly engages employees. 
· Develop a program that has an impact on employees’ intellectual, physical, emotional, social, 

and spiritual well-being as well as on their occupational and environmental wellness. 
· Promote employees’ health and the health of the organization by creating a positive 

workplace culture through a focus on credibility, respect, fairness, pride, and camaraderie. 
· Develop ways to recognize, reward, and motivate employees. 
· Develop recruitment strategies to encourage employee participation on the Wellness 

Committee and with Wellness events with equal department representation. 

Ownership  
§ Office of Prime Interest (OPI):  Manager of Human Resources 
§ Offices of Collateral Interest (OCI):  Workplace Health & Safety Committee; Department 

Managers 

The Activity 
Staff can sign up to join the Wellness Rewards Points Program at point of hire or at any time 
thereafter through HR.  Points are collected in the following categories:  wellness, health & 
safety, physical, and environment.  Once a staff member reaches a certain milestone, they can 
cash their points in to receive a gift certificate from a local retailer for the pre-assigned amount 
equated to the number of points being redeemed.  It would also be the intent of the Committee 
to encourage fitness “challenges” with our member municipalities in 2017. 

Measurement 
This objective can be measured by the number of employees signed up, the number of events 
sponsored and the number of points awarded.   

Weighting (1 point of 15 for the KSD) 
· 1 point for the implementation of the 2017 Employee Wellness Plan. 
 
 



28 

 RDOS 2015  

RDOS Business Plan - 2017 

Goal 1.3: To cultivate a high-performing organizational culture  
Objective 1.3.1  By developing and implementing an Organizational Development Plan 
 
Description 
The Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen has a recognized cultural change program.  
We identified eight characteristics that we want our organization to resemble and we steadfastly 
measure our progress against those characteristics by an annual staff perception survey.  Each 
year, when we produce the results from our survey we create an employee committee to 
develop a plan to make some sort of intervention into the organization.   

 
Ownership  
§ Office of Prime Interest (OPI):  Manager of Human Resources 
§ Offices of Collateral Interest (OCI):  Committee for Organizational Excellence and 

Development 

The Activity 
The field of Organizational Development is huge and so important to the success of an 
organization.  In addition to the support we offer to our own employees, we offer HR support to 
most of our member municipalities.  This is an important service for us and we need to 
continually review how we’re doing, but we also need to expand and improve the capabilities of 
our service.   

Internal communication and the ability to effectively inform the organization about what our 
different parts are doing is essential to achieve our vision.  The RDOS has established a 
Communications Committee that includes a focus on how we communicate with each other and 
we’ve made significant progress, but still have room to grow.  In 2016, we added the 
Interdependency Workshop into our strategic planning process and that should help coordinate 
activities in 2017. 

Measurement 
The High Performance and Innovation Committee promotes the eight characteristics of high-
performing organizations and has an annual cycle they follow to entrench this cultural change.  
The eight characteristics are presented to each Board and Staff member in November, at which 
time we also conduct our staff perception survey to measure our organization against these 
characteristics.  The survey results produce quantitative and qualitative data upon which we can 
measure our progress.  Measurement tools also include the development of the Organizational 
Development Plan. 

Weighting (3 points of 15 for this KSD) 
· 1 point for organizing the all-staff business meeting 

· 2 points for improved results on the 2017 Staff Perception Survey over 2016 Survey 
 

 
 
  



29 

 RDOS 2015  

RDOS Business Plan - 2017 

KEY SUCCESS DRIVER 2 – FOCUS ON THE CUSTOMER EXPERIENCE 

Goal 2.1  To increase public awareness of RDOS services 
 
Objective 2.1.1:  By promoting regional district facilities and services 
 
Description 

Our citizen surveys clearly indicate that the majority of our citizens don’t have a good idea of 
what services we offer.  The Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen believes strongly that 
we need to consult with our citizens to determine if we’re meeting their expectations with regard 
to services, but we also need to keep them informed about the services we offer.   

Ownership 

§ Office of Prime Interest (OPI):  Manager of Legislative Services 

§ Offices of Collateral Interest (OCI):  Senior Management Team 

The Activity 

The Regional District already devotes a significant effort to customer service and improving the 
customer experience.  In 2016, we developed an inventory of our facilities and properties so that 
we can properly brand them.  Our 2017 program will continue a program to properly sign our 
assets so our citizens can better identify what we currently provide and take the opportunity to 
leverage exposure through various local government events.  Activities may include hosting 
open houses in a number of Electoral Areas during local government week in 2017, partnering 
with some of our member municipalities and talking to our local school districts about delivering 
educational seminars in schools.   

Measurement 

This is an activity based objective, but administration will report on our progress to the Board 
with our quarterly activity reports and our quarterly report on the Business Plan. 

Weighting (6 points of 20 for this KSD) 
· 1 point for promoting Local Government Awareness Week 
· 2 points for completing and analyzing the 2017 citizen survey  
· 1 point for investigating the establishment of a “panel” for use in future surveys 
· 1 point for improving communications by advertising in local community hot spots 
· 1 point for continuing the weekly information articles in local media 

 

 
  



30 

 RDOS 2015  

RDOS Business Plan - 2017 

Goal 2.2 To foster dynamic and effective community relationships 
 
Objective 2.2.1: By developing and implementing a Community Relations Program 
 
Description 
With the large geographic area encompassing the Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen, 
we need an outreach program to interact with our citizens.  We know from previous surveys that 
60% have limited contact with our staff or our office.  We need to close that gap. 

Ownership  
§ Office of Prime Interest (OPI):  Manager of Legislative Services 
§ Offices of Collateral Interest (OCI):  Senior Management Team 

The Activity 
If our citizens don’t come to us, we need to develop a strategy to go to them.  In 2017, we intend 
to get out and organize an open house on local issues or tour each electoral area.  We also 
want to actively identify interaction opportunities at Home Shows, events and other public 
gatherings in each area. 

Measurement 
The measurement of success of this objective will be the number of events or tours produced in 
2017. 

Weighting (6 points of 20 for this KSD) 

· 2 points for developing a community relations plan and implementing the 2017 phase 

· 2 points for organizing an open house, public meeting or tour in each electoral area. 

· 2 points for implementing the Area “D” Governance Committee recommendations 

 

Goal 2.3 To meet public needs through the provision and enhancement of key 
services 

 
Objective 2.3.1: By introducing a process of continuous improvement into the 

organization 
Description 
The Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen is always interested in improving the customer 
experience.  The “Lean Management” program initiated by the regional district in 2015 is 
maturing.  It’s all about improving service and efficiency, without spending more money, using 
management practices developed in leading private companies and public sector institutions.  
Processes are improved, decisions are streamlined and employees are more engaged.  Service 
gets faster and better. 
 
  



31 

 RDOS 2015  

RDOS Business Plan - 2017 

Lean Management creates a more systemic impact by changing how managers manage and 
workers work.  Changes have proven more sustainable when employees in the organization feel 
fully accountable, have the tools and are trained in Lean Management techniques.  Lean 
Management addresses the systems and management practices critical to continuous 
improvement. 
 
Lean Government organizations teach their employees to look at themselves from the 
perspective of their customers and stop doing what customers and taxpayers do not value, 
including: 

- Eliminating unnecessary touch points and wait times from the beginning of the process to the 
end 

- Improving coordination across functional areas 
- Standardizing work to reduce variations in process and performance; and, 
- Creating a culture of continuous improvement by exposing problems and their causes for all 

to see and act on. 
 
Ownership  
§ Office of Prime Interest (OPI):  MHR; Manager of Legislative Services 
§ Offices of Collateral Interest (OCI):   

 
The Activity 
In 2017 we’ll continue to offer training for interested employees.  In the meantime, our one 
“Greenbelt” level employee will conduct two Kaizens in 2017.  Further, the expanding scope of 
our water services requires that old bylaws of systems that have been assumed by the RDOS 
need to be re-written to meet our standards and we need, generally, to improve lessons learned 
from project management opportunities. 

Measurement 
The measurement will be based on our activities to introduce Lean Management throughout the 
organization, train a trainer and conduct a number of Kaizen’s in 2017 to promote continuous 
improvement through process mapping. 
 
Weighting (8 points out of 20 for this KSD) 
 
· 2 points for conducting two Kaizen’s in 2017 

· 1 point for reviewing RDOS Bylaws and Policies for relevancy and currency 

· 3 points for transferring all water system bylaws to RDOS standards 

· 1 point for conducting a “lessons learned” exercise at the end of all projects and introducing 
exit surveys for departing staff. 

· 1 point for implementing the recommendations from the Area “D” office consolidation Kaizen. 

 
 
 
 

 

 



32 

 RDOS 2015  

RDOS Business Plan - 2017 

KEY SUCCESS DRIVER 3 – BUILD A SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITY 
There are three recognized pillars of community sustainability; being social, economic and 
environmental.   

Goal 3.1:  To develop a socially sustainable region 
The Social Sustainability Pillar is based on people and how we improve their quality of life.   
 
Objective 3.1.1: By implementing the Regional Transit Future Plan  
 
Activity: 
BC Transit, in collaboration with the Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen, completed a 
25-year Transit Future Plan for the region in 2015. The Transit Future Plan envisions what the 
transit network should look like 25 years from now and describes what services, infrastructure 
and investments are needed to get there. The plan is designed to support local community 
goals and objectives, such as strengthening the link between transportation and land use in 
order to support sustainable growth.  It also describes the transit service, fleet and facility 
changes required to transition existing transit systems to the proposed vision, including 
identifying improvements that provide an immediate, positive impact, and providing 
recommendations on priorities and phasing. 
 
Ownership  
§ Office of Prime Interest (OPI):  Manager of Community Services 
§ Offices of Collateral Interest (OCI):  Rural Projects Coordinator 

The Activity 
A Regional Transit Technical Advisory Committee began work in early 2016 and they made 
significant progress with consolidating schedules and fees.  Further work will be done in 2017 to 
develop an acceptable Governance system for Transit in the Regional District and the Regional 
District will assume responsibility for the South Okanagan Transit System early in the new year. 

Measurement 
This objective will be activity based and progress will be measured continuous progress against 
the Transit Future Plan. 

Weighting (3 points of 25 for Goal 3.1) 

· 1 point for developing an annual program under the Transit Future Plan and implementing 
the 2017 Phase. 

· 1 point for transferring operations of the South Okanagan Transit System to the Regional 
District 

· 1 point for developing a marketing program for existing services. 



33 

 RDOS 2015  

RDOS Business Plan - 2017 

 
Goal 3.1:  To develop a socially sustainable region 
Objective 3.1.2: By developing a regional fire service master plan 
 
Description: 
The British Columbia Office of the Fire Commissioner recently released the 'Structure 
Firefighters Competency and Training Playbook'. The "Playbook" establishes a new fire training 
standard for all Fire Departments in B.C., pursuant to section 3 of the Fire Services Act.  An 
internal review of the new standards, including our seven Regional District fire departments has 
raised concerns for our ability and capacity to meet the identified standards, while maintaining 
volunteerism and budgets.  
 
Ownership  
§ Office of Prime Interest (OPI):  Manager of Community Services 
§ Offices of Collateral Interest (OCI):  Emergency Preparedness Coordinator 

The Activity 
In 2016, the Regional District awarded the contract to conduct a coordinated review our fire 
services that will address;  

· roles and responsibilities 
· gaps in service 
· management and administration 
· training requirements 
· human resource management; and,  
· fire and life safety inspection requirements for electoral areas.  

The proposed "Master Plan" will assist us in determining actions for each of our fire 
departments that will address the concerns arising from the “Playbook”. The plan will also 
identify individual strengths and challenges facing each of our fire departments and provide 
industry standard solutions to meet the requirements imposed by the Office of the Fire 
Commissioner and future growth issues as they arise. 
 

Measurement 
This objective will be measured by the presentation of a Fire Services Master Plan to the Board 
in 2017. 

Weighting (2 points of 25 for this Goal) 
· 1 point for administering the contract to a successful conclusion 

· 1 point for ensuring that the Regional Fire Chiefs are involved in the development of the Plan. 
 

 
  



34 

 RDOS 2015  

RDOS Business Plan - 2017 

Goal 3.1:  To develop a socially sustainable region 
Objective 3.1.3: By establishing a Naramata Fire Service Satellite Fire Hall 

Description: 
Bylaw No. 1619, 1995 established a service for fire prevention and suppression on certain 
properties within a designated portion of Electoral Area “E”, in a piecemeal manner, leaving 
gaps within the area.  Over time, many of the properties which were not included in the original 
adoption of the fire service area bylaw have petitioned in.  With the application by several 
owners of properties outside the existing service area it proved beneficial to incorporate all 
remaining properties within the boundaries of the existing service area which were not originally 
included in the service at the same time. 
 
Ownership: 
§ Office of Prime Interest (OPI):  Manager of Community Services 
§ Offices of Collateral Interest (OCI):  Emergency Preparedness Coordinator 

The Activity: 
Bylaw No 2733, 2016 completing the inclusion of all properties within the existing service area 
and expanding it by incorporating several properties to the north of Naramata received public 
assent in 2016.  By including these properties into the existing fire service area, through taxation 
they share the costs, and become eligible for the service if/when an emergency occurs.  The 
Naramata Fire Department is in full support of the application. 
 
A benefit of coming into a fire service area is typically a reduction in insurance rates, but for that 
to be of full force, the homes must be within 8 Km. of a fire hall.  The RDOS will investigate the 
development of a satellite fire hall for Area E in 2017. 

Measurement: 
The success of this objective will be measured by the construction of a satellite fire hall and 
bringing it into operation in 2017. 

Weighting (2 points of 25 for this Goal) 
· 1 point for acquiring a site  

· 1 point for the design and construction of a satellite fire hall 
 

  



35 

 RDOS 2015  

RDOS Business Plan - 2017 

Goal 3.1:  To develop a socially sustainable region 
Objective 3.1.4: By developing the Erris Volunteer Fire Department 

Description: 
Erris is a small hamlet in Electoral Area “H” that has developed a fire brigade with good 
participation from community volunteers, but they aren’t eligible for subsidization until a Fire 
Service is established.  They’re doing well, and have received grants for capital purchases, but 
they are to the point now where a tax-based fire department seems the best option. 

Ownership: 

· Office of Prime Interest (OPI):  Manager of Community Services 

· Offices of Collateral Interest (OCI):  Manager of Legislative Services 

Activity: 

There is a regulatory process required for the establishment of a service in a regional district.  In 
2017, a first step would be to have the Fire Underwriters Association conduct a study to 
determine if a fire department would lower insurance rates, RDOS could then conduct the 
process to establish a service and then we would ensure that volunteers are trained to the 
standard required for a Fire Department. 

Measurement: 
Success on this objective would be the establishment of the Service. 

Weighting:  (3 points of 25 for this Goal) 
· 1 point for organizing and completing the Fire Underwriters Study 

· 1 point for establishing the service  

· 1 point for successfully training Erris volunteers to RDOS standards 
 

Goal 3.1:  To develop a socially sustainable region 
Objective 3.1.5: By implementing the Regional Trails Program 

Description 
The Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen developed a robust Trails Master Plan in 2012 
and is continually striving to enhance both the quality and quantity of developed trail.   

Ownership 

§ Office of Prime Interest (OPI):  Manager of Community Services 
§ Offices of Collateral Interest (OCI):  Parks Coordinator 

  



36 

 RDOS 2015  

RDOS Business Plan - 2017 

Activity 
In addition to continuing our work to improve our KVR trails in the south Okanagan and our 
similkameen trails, the Regional District will plan to acquire, design and construct additional trail 
in the south Okanagan and similkameen valley’s. 

Measurement 
This is an activity based objective and progress will be measured against trail constructed. 
 
Weighting (5 points of 25 for this Goal) 
· 1 point for constructing the KVR Trail south spur section from Road 18 to Osoyoos 

· 1 point for securing provincial tenure for the KVR in Electoral Areas “A” and “C” 

· 1 point for assisting the province with a critical habitat inventory management plan for the 
KVR trail from Vaseux Lake to Osoyoos 

· 1 point for securing tenure for the KVR – Osoyoos Indian Band phase 

· 1 point for working with senior levels of government to acquire tenure for the KVR trail – 
Vaseux phase 

Goal 3.1:  To develop a socially sustainable region 
Objective 3.1.6: By undertaking the 2017 Phase of the Park Program 
 
Activity 
The Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen has a Regional Parks & Trails Service, but the 
majority of work done in parks is through local service areas.  Greenways and blueways play a 
significant role in a high quality of life for our citizens and we’re continually upgrading our 
inventory of parkland and the quality of parks on an annual basis. 

Ownership  
§ Office of Prime Interest (OPI):  Manager of Community Services 
§ Offices of Collateral Interest (OCI):  Manager of Legislative Services; Parks Supervisor 

The Activity 
In 2017, the Regional District will continue with their park improvement program and to 
implement the recommendations from the Parks Master Plan that is currently under 
development. 
 
Measurement 
This objective will be measured by the successful completion of the Plans. 
 
  



37 

 RDOS 2015  

RDOS Business Plan - 2017 

Weighting (5 points out of 25 for this Goal) 
• 1 point for implementing a 2017 parks improvement plan 
• 1 point for establishing an Area “H” parks service 
• 1 point for updating the Regional and Community Parks Bylaw 
• 1 point for reviewing the Princeton/ Area H Contribution Agreement 
• 1 point for investigating participation in a contribution agreement and facility use agreement 

with the Tulameen Community Club 

 
Goal 3.1:  To develop a socially sustainable region 
Objective 3.1.7 By providing public recreational opportunities 
 
Description: 
The Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen realizes that recreation is a foundation for 
quality of life in our rural areas.  We have been actively growing our recreation programming 
opportunities in Areas D, E, F and look forward to enhancing those programs in 2017. 

Ownership 
§ Office of Prime Interest (OPI):  Manager of Community Services 
§ Offices of Collateral Interest (OCI):  Parks Coordinator; Rural Projects Coordinator 

Activity 
2017 will be about establishing closer ties with our recreation commissions and investigating 
how we can leverage existing facilities, staff and programs to provide a better service to all of 
our citizens. 
 
Measurement 
This is an activity based objective and progress will be measured against our work with our 
commissions. 

Weighting (2 points out of 25 for this Goal) 
• 2 points for implementing a regional approach to booking recreation programs, facilities and 

events. 
 
 
Goal 3.1:  To develop a socially sustainable region 
Objective 3.1.8 By constructing a pedestrian pathway in Okanagan Falls 
 
Description: 
The Regional District has been in the process of developing a pedestrian pathway along the south 
shore of Skaha Lake in Okanagan Falls for several years now.  While the pathway is well used, 
there are still pieces that are not under RDOS control and where public access is difficult. 
 
  



38 

 RDOS 2015  

RDOS Business Plan - 2017 

Ownership  
§ Office of Prime Interest (OPI):  Manager of Community Services 
§ Offices of Collateral Interest (OCI):  Area D Rural Services Manager 

The Activity 
The 2017 activity will include the design of the remainder of the trail and getting it ready for 
construction in 2018 
 
Measurement 
This objective will be measured by support for a sustainable committee and the acquisition of a 
parcel of land for a low-cost senior’s housing project in Okanagan Falls. 
 
Weighting (1 point of 25 for this Goal) 
• 1 point for acquisition of tenure on the remainder of the trail and submitting it to the 2018 

budget committee. 

 
Goal 3.1:  To develop a socially sustainable region 
Objective 3.1.9 By investigating energy options 
 
Description: 

The Regional District is a participant in the provincial climate action charter and are very 
interested in energy conservation.  It seems with new developments in both solar and wind 
technology that we may be able to introduce improvements on how we power regional district 
buildings. 
 
Ownership: 
§ Office of Prime Interest (OPI):  Manager of Development Services 
§ Offices of Collateral Interest (OCI):  Planning Technician 

 
Activity: 
The 2017 activity will be limited to a literature search to determine advancements in energy 
technology and perhaps a look at opportunities for consideration in future years. 
 
Weighting:  (1 point out of 25 for this goal) 
· 1 point for researching and reporting on solar and wind power advancements 

 
 
  



39 

 RDOS 2015  

RDOS Business Plan - 2017 

Goal 3.2:  To develop an Economically Sustainable Region 
The second pillar of community sustainability is to develop an economically sustainable region.  
This pillar focusses on economic development in the Region, but also includes being fiscally 
responsible as an organization and by ensuring that we are good stewards of the assets of the 
Regional District. 
 
Objective 3.2.1: By developing an asset management plan 

Description 
The Regional District, as have all public agencies, has complied with the Public Service 
Accounting Board and produced a Tangible Capital Assets Register.  The Province of British 
Columbia has determined that it would be beneficial for all local governments to develop an 
Asset Management Plan, with the intent to deliver sustainable services by extending and 
deepening asset management practices.  Asset Management is defined as an integrated 
process bringing together planning, finance, engineering and operations to effectively manage 
existing and new infrastructure to maximize benefits, reduce risks and provide satisfactory 
levels of service to community users in a socially, environmentally and economically sustainable 
manner. 

The Regional District initiated investigation into the development of an asset management plan 
in 2016 with the assistance of a grant made available through UBCM.  While this study identified 
the current gap, it recommended additional work in 2017. 

Ownership  
§ Office of Prime Interest (OPI):  Manager of Public Works  
§ Offices of Collateral Interest (OCI):  Manager of Financial Services 

The Activity 
The next step in our process would be to conduct a study to provide maintenance scheduling, 
lifecycle planning and financial planning for the replacement of assets.  The focus for 2017 will 
be investigating options for asset management systems and which would be appropriate for the 
Regional District. 
 
Measurement  
Success on this objective will be measured by the engagement of a consultant to conduct the 
next step in 2017. 

Weighting (3 points of 5 for this Goal) 
• 3 points for investigating options of asset management systems and which would be 

appropriate for the Regional District. 
 
Goal 3.2:  To develop an Economically Sustainable Region 
Objective 3.2.2: By updating the Naramata Water System Development Cost Charge 

Bylaw 
 
Description 
Urban development often leads to an increase in the demand for water and other services.  
Development Cost Charges (DCC’s) are monies that the Regional District would collect from 
land developers to offset that portion of the costs related to the water system that are incurred 



40 

 RDOS 2015  

RDOS Business Plan - 2017 

as a direct result of the new development.  New development may require increases to the size 
of the water treatment plant; storage facilities or trunk mains and the philosophy would be that 
existing ratepayers shouldn’t have to pay if they’re not benefiting from the new infrastructure. 
The Naramata Water System currently has a Development Cost Charge Bylaw, but it is dated 
and needs to be revised.  Engineering studies have been completed to determine the condition 
of the existing infrastructure and the bylaw will establish specific rates for new development to 
contribute for the expansion to the existing infrastructure. 

Ownership 
§ Office of Prime Interest (OPI):  Manager of Public Works 
§ Offices of Collateral Interest (OCI):  Subdivision Supervisor 

Activity: 
In 2017, the Regional District will complete the business case for revised development cost 
charges for the Naramata Water System. 

Measurement: 
Success would be the adoption of a revised DCC bylaw by the end of 2017. 

Weighting (2 points of 5 for this Goal) 
• 2 points for completing the business case for revised development cost charges for the 

Naramata Water System 
 
Goal 3.2:  To develop an Economically Sustainable Region 
Objective 3.2.3: By investigating regional or sub-regional economic development 

outside the Film Commission 
Description: 
The Regional District has a responsibility for enhancing the economic well-being of their citizens 
and have, from time-to-time, investigated the development of a regional economic development 
service.  There are currently localized or shared services throughout the RDOS that have had 
varying degrees of success, some still functioning and others dormant. 
 
It is clear from previous discussion at the Board that there are different opinions on the value of 
regional economic development, and perhaps concern that there may be overlap, not only with 
existing local services but with Community Futures or perhaps even the Province. 
 
 
Ownership: 
§ Office of Prime Interest (OPI):  Manager of Community Services 
§ Offices of Collateral Interest (OCI):  Area D Rural Services Manager 
 
Activity: 
Further discussion at the Board would be required prior to any further activity on this objective.   
 
Measurement: 
The 2017 objective would be limited to a discussion at the Board Table. 
 



41 

 RDOS 2015  

RDOS Business Plan - 2017 

Weighting (0 points of 6 for this goal) 
 
 
 
Goal 3.3: To develop an environmentally sustainable region  
The third pillar of community sustainability is to develop an environmentally sustainable 
community. 

Objective 3.3.1: By commencing the Electoral Area “F” official community plan review 
 
Description 
An Official Community Plan (OCP) is the vision a community has for its future.  It contains goals 
and policies that will shape future land use in a way that reflects the community's vision.  These 
goals and policies form a framework used by the Regional District staff, other agencies and the 
community to guide their decisions about future land use.  
 
Under the Local Government Act, an OCP must include certain information, such as: 
1. Residential development; 
2. Commercial, industrial, and industrial land uses; 
3. Land subject to hazardous conditions or environmentally sensitive to development; 
4. Major road, sewer and water systems; 
5. Housing policies related to affordable housing, rental housing, and special needs housing; 
6. Public facilities, including schools, parks, and waste treatment and disposal sites; and  
7. Greenhouse gas emission policies, targets, and actions. 

Beyond this, an OCP may also consider other community priorities such as heritage protection, 
food security, water quality, economic development or transportation and mobility. 

The plan process will be conducted in accordance with the Local Government Act which 
specifies purpose, required content, and adoption procedures of the OCPs.  

There have been a number of changes to the current plan, to Provincial legislation and to the 
development of a Regional Growth Strategy all of which need to be reflected within the OCP. 

Ownership  
§ Office of Prime Interest (OPI):  Manager of Development Services 
§ Offices of Collateral Interest (OCI):  Planning Supervisor 

Activity 
The 2017 activity will entail the background research to commence the review and update of the 
Area F OCP.  This is a 2-Year project and 2016 will include the establishment of the OCP 
Review Committee and background research for the development of the OCP.  2017 will also 
include the environmental scan which will lead to the development of the issues list for future 
consideration. 

Measurement 
This will be an activity-based objective for 2017, culminating in the production of the OCP in 
2018. 
 
Weighting (2 points of 20 for this Goal) 



42 

 RDOS 2015  

RDOS Business Plan - 2017 

• 1 point for establishing and supporting an Area “F” OCP Review Committee and conducting 
background research to commence the review and update of the Area F OCP. 
 

• 1 point for conducting a robust community engagement program 

 
Goal 3.3:  To develop an environmentally sustainable region  
Objective 3.3.2 By conducting a Bylaw Enforcement Policy Review 
 
Description: 
In 2016, the Office of the BC Ombudsman developed a “Best Practices Guide for Local 
Governments”.  Bylaw enforcement is becoming of increasing interest to the Board, in that as 
our density increases our citizens require more of us in mediating disputes and imposing our 
laws to enable neighbours to co-exist peacefully.  The Area D Governance Study identified 
bylaw enforcement as one of their most significant indicators of quality of life and an area where 
we have to step up our game. 
 
Ownership: 
§ Office of Prime Interest (OPI):  Manager of Development Services 
§ Offices of Collateral Interest (OCI):  Bylaw Enforcement Coordinator 

Activity: 
It is our intent in 2017 to review our current bylaw enforcement philosophy, our service 
establishment bylaws, our enforcement policies and compare them with the “Best Practices” 
Guide developed by the Office of the Ombudsman.  We’ll identify gaps and bring 
recommendations to the Board for discussion. 
 
 
Measurement: 
Measurement on this objective will be the conclusion of the Best Practice Review and 
submission of a discussion document to the Board in 2017. 
 
Weighting:  (2 points of 20 for this Goal) 
· 1 point for reviewing the Best Practice Guide and comparison of RDOS practices. 
· 1 point for identifying gaps and preparing a discussion document for the Board. 

 
Goal 3.3:  To develop an environmentally sustainable region  
Objective 3.3.3: By completing a new Water Regulatory and Conservation Bylaw 
 
Description: 
Focus on water quality and quantity has become of evolving importance within the Okanagan 
and Similkameen Valleys.  The Regional District is a water purveyor.  We currently own, operate 
or manage eight water systems, are investigating two others and expect other private or public 
systems to approach us in the future as infrastructure deteriorates or volunteers are no longer 
available.  The RDOS needs to be secure that we’re prepared to provide potable water to an 
acceptable standard, in a consistent, sustainable manner. 
 
Ownership  
§ Office of Prime Interest (OPI):  Manager of Public Works 



43 

 RDOS 2015  

RDOS Business Plan - 2017 

§ Offices of Collateral Interest (OCI):  Engineering Supervisor 

Activity 
As the RDOS has acquired water systems over the years, we’ve assumed the bylaws of those 
entities transferring systems to us; e.g. Naramata Irrigation District, West Bench Improvement 
District, etc.  These bylaws and are dated, don’t comply with current regulations and we need to 
adopt a holistic approach to our systems that these bylaws don’t allow.  In 2017, the Regional 
District will review all of our water system bylaws, develop a comprehensive draft and bring it to 
the Board for discussion. 
 
Measurement: 
The objective will be measured by development and completion of a comprehensive water 
system bylaw that takes water conservation into account. 
 
Weighting (4 points of 20 for this Goal) 
· 1 point for conducting a literature search and benchmarking exercise 
· 1 point for drafting a bylaw for discussion at the Board 
· 2 points for approval and implementation of a comprehensive Water Regulatory and 

Conservation Bylaw. 
 
 
 
Goal 3.3:  To develop an environmentally sustainable region  
Objective 3.3.4: By implementing the 2016 phase of the Solid Waste Management 

Plan 
 
Description 
Guiding Principles in a Solid Waste Management Plan 
· Reduce the amount of waste requiring disposal to the greatest extent possible; 
· Be cost effective and establish objectives and targets that are clear and measureable; 
· Engage and involve all sectors of the community; 
· Reduce environmental impacts of solid waste management to air, water and land; 
· Establish programs, policies and objectives that are efficient, flexible and simple; 
· Encourage and support options that develop local socio-economic opportunities, such as the 

development of new businesses, and the creation or expansion of employment through 
waste management activities; 

· Develop and deliver services through effective partnerships with member municipalities, 
private and non-profit agencies, neighbouring regional districts, other levels of government 
and First Nations; and 

· Plan for and secure future disposal capacity for the region, recognizing the capacity limits of 
the current disposal system. 

Ownership  
§ Office of Prime Interest (OPI):  Manager of Public Works 
§ Offices of Collateral Interest (OCI):  Solid Waste Coordinator 



44 

 RDOS 2015  

RDOS Business Plan - 2017 

Activity 
An updated RDOS Solid Waste Management Plan was adopted by the Board in September 
2012.  Based on the Guiding Principles stipulated above, the Plan calls for the implementation 
of over 80 projects and directives over a 5-year period.  The 2017 activity will include the 
completion of the organics siting study, continuation of the Campbell Mountain Landfill Gas 
Capture Plan, implementation of seepage mitigation requirements and other important projects.   
Measurement 
This objective will be measured by completion of the identified plans and compliance with the 
SWMP Checklist. 

Weighting (6 points of 20 for this Goal) 
• 2 points for completing the siting and development of the organics processing facility 
• 1 point for completing the procurement for curbside service 
• 1 point for completing the Keremeos Operations/Design/Closure Plan 
• 2 points for piloting a Bio-cover methane mitigation project to achieve approval for substituted 

requirements permit. 
 
Goal 3.3:  To develop an environmentally sustainable region  
Objective 3.3.5: By bringing Kaleden and Skaha Estates into the Okanagan Falls 

Waste Water Treatment System 
 
Description 
The communities of Kaleden and Skaha Estates are currently on septic to provide for their 
sewerage requirements.  During the preparation of the Liquid Waste Management Plan in 2008, 
various alternatives were discussed for adding a sewage collection and treatment system for 
these two high density areas.  Alternatives were reviewed in 2005 during the design for the 
upsizing of the Okanagan Falls Waste Water Treatment Plan.  The Kaleden Lakeshore and 
Skaha Estates Sewage Treatment Plant Options enabling tie into Okanagan Falls was 
investigated in 2007 and again in 2010 during the Okanagan Falls Liquid Waste Management 
Plan process.   
The Regional District has identified this project as their highest priority for a Building Canada II 
Grant Application and work is underway to develop a detailed design and cost estimate for the 
project.  The communities have yet to determine a service area, but it could include 
approximately 140 lots in Kaleden and 180 lots in Skaha Estates. 
Ownership  
§ Office of Prime Interest (OPI):  Manager of Public Works 
§ Offices of Collateral Interest (OCI):  Manager of Legislative Services 
 
Activity 
Our initial application under the Building Canada Fund II Program was denied.  The 2017 
activity will include completion of the detailed design of the sewer collection system for Kaleden 
and Skaha Estates, resubmitting our application under the Grant Program and then obtaining 



45 

 RDOS 2015  

RDOS Business Plan - 2017 

public assent to create a Service to attach to the Okanagan Falls Waste Water Treatment 
System. 

Measurement 
This objective will be measured by the establishment of a service.  Work is dependent on 
receiving a Building Canada II grant in 2017. 
 
Weighting (1 point of 20 for this Goal) 
• 1 point for actively searching for and advocating for a grant 

 
Goal 3.3:  To develop an environmentally sustainable region  
Objective 3.3.6: By purchasing and constructing a wetlands filtration system for the 

Okanagan Falls Waste Water Treatment Plant 
Description: 
The Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen completed the construction of the Okanagan 
Falls Waste Water Treatment Plant in 2014.  The Plant disposes of effluent into the Okanagan 
River Channel and, while the effluent meets all required environmental standards, it does not 
treat for endocrine disrupting compounds.  The Regional District is interested in exceeding 
standard by filtering the effluent, once it leaves the Plant, through a wetlands project.   
 
The Regional District has since purchased a parcel to the immediate south of the Waste Water 
Treatment Plant for the project, has obtained approval for the project from the ALC as an 
acceptable use for this agricultural area and has commenced design. 
 
Ownership: 

· Office of Prime Interest (OPI):  Manager of Public Works 
· Offices of Collateral Interest (OCI):  Engineering Supervisor 
 
Activity: 

This project is funded.  The 2017 activity will include completion of detailed design of the 
wetlands and construction. 
 
Measurement: 
This objective will be measured by the completion of the project in 2017. 
 
Weighting (1 point of 20 for this Goal) 
• 1 point for completing design and construction of a wetlands in 2017. 

 
 
Goal 3.3:  To develop an environmentally sustainable region  
Objective 3.3.7: By setting out the Regional District responsibility for orphan dikes 
 
Description: 
The Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen is a land of mountains, rivers and streams.  It is 
a natural occurrence, where fast-flowing water meets granular material for that material to erode 
over time.  In some cases, where river beds are changing that lands beyond the banks will 
flood.  Where this impacts human development, damage to property or people may occur and 



46 

 RDOS 2015  

RDOS Business Plan - 2017 

citizens rely on their governments to protect them.  The Regional District is susceptible to this 
and there seems to be some disagreement as to which level of government should be 
responsible or, in some cases, liable. 
 
Ownership: 

· Office of Prime Interest (OPI):  Manager of Public Works 
· Offices of Collateral Interest (OCI):  Engineering Supervisor 
 
Activity: 

The Regional District is interested in quantifying the number of orphan dikes that may require 
attention, especially along the Similkameen River.   
 
Measurement: 
This objective will be measured by completion of an inventory and identification of potential 
orphan dike locations and an assessment of risk. 
 
Weighting (1 point of 20 for this Goal) 
• 1 point for completing the inventory and risk assessment. 

 
Goal 3.3:  To develop an environmentally sustainable region  
Objective 3.3.8: By establishing a position around Uplands Water Storage 
 
Description: 
The Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen is located in a semi-arid part of the province 
and source of water is important.  Often we have that recreation/ watershed management 
interface, especially in electoral area “H”.  The Regional District is interested in discussing 
whether local government has a role in protecting our uplands water storage and how actively 
we should be involved. 
 
Ownership: 

· Office of Prime Interest (OPI):  Manager of Public Works 
· Offices of Collateral Interest (OCI):  Engineering Supervisor 
 
Activity: 
This project is activity-based and will be measured by bringing the subject to the Board for 
discussion. 
 
 
  



47 

 RDOS 2015  

RDOS Business Plan - 2017 

KEY SUCCESS DRIVER 4 – TO PROVIDE GOVERNANCE & OVERSIGHT IN A 
REPRESENTATIVE DEMOCRACY 

 
Goal 4.1  To execute a well-defined strategic planning cycle 
Objective 4.1.1: By maintaining, evaluating and executing the Strategic Planning 

and Enterprise Risk Management Programs. 
 
Description 
The Regional District has developed a robust strategic planning cycle and, starting with a list of 
short-term priorities and evolving to a fully developed 5-year strategic plan and an annual 
Business Plan.   
As well, the Regional District has developed a very robust Enterprise Risk Management 
Program that supports our Strategic Plan and we want to maintain that and build on it as well. 

Ownership 
§ Office of Prime Interest (OPI):  CAO/ Manager of Information Services 
§ Offices of Collateral Interest (OCI):  Senior Management Team 

The Activity 
This is a forward-looking Objective, anticipating that we will rigorously follow our Strategic 
Planning Cycle and Process.  Regional District staff will commence the SWOT exercise for the 
update of the 2018-2022 Strategic Plan and the 2018 Business Plan in July of 2017, including a 
full review of our Enterprise Risk Management Plan.  The Board will meet in September/October 
to give direction on any proposed changes to our Corporate Goals and to discuss 2018 
Objectives. 

Measurement 
Compliance with the Strategic Planning Cycle and Process adopted by the Board. 
 
Weighting (3 points of 15 for this KSD) 
• 2 points for development of the 2018 Corporate Business Plan 
• 1 point for review and update the Enterprise Risk Management Register 
 
Goal 4.2 To encourage partnerships with all member municipalities, 

electoral areas, Indian Bands and other levels of government 
Objective 4.2.1: By organizing government to government meetings in 2017. 
Description 
The Board of Directors for the Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen is formed of eight 
electoral areas and six incorporated municipalities.  They cover an area of 10,400 km2 over a 
diverse landscape.  While there is always a consideration, and even a case, for parochial 
thinking, the Board takes a regional perspective in their approach to governance and has 
declared that it is more important that they provide good service to all the citizens of the regional 
district, regardless of their geographic location.  That means partnering with other jurisdictions 
on a regular basis. 



48 

 RDOS 2015  

RDOS Business Plan - 2017 

Ownership 
§ Office of Prime Interest (OPI):  Manager of Legislative Services 
§ Offices of Collateral Interest (OCI):  Senior Management Team 

The Activity 
There have been efforts made over the past several years to identify opportunities for partnering 
between the Regional District and our incorporated members, and progress has been made.  
The Regional District has expanded our Enterprise Centers and provides more services to more 
members than we ever have, such as Human Resources, Geographic Information System 
support, planning, building inspection, community services, emergency preparedness, etc. 
 
In June 2013, the Regional District signed the First Nation Protocol Agreement with three of the 
Bands in our geographic area and hopes to have the fourth become a fully functional member 
early in the New Year.  In 2016, the RDOS applied for a grant to host a Community to 
Community Forum in the spring of 2017, to hire a facilitator and organize and administer the 
program. 

Measurement 
This is an activity-based program and measurement will be taken against the maintenance of 
existing partnerships and the development of new opportunities.  The milestone will be the 2017 
community to community forum. 

Weighting (2 points of 15 for this KSD) 
• 1 point for organizing and hosting a C2C Forum in 2017. 
• 1 point for organizing regular CAO meetings in 2017 

 
Goal 4.2 To pursue partnerships with all member municipalities, electoral 

areas, Indian Bands and other levels of government 
Objective 4.2.2: By implementing the terms of the First Nations Protocol Agreement 
 
Description 
The Penticton Indian Band, Lower Similkameen Indian Band and Osoyoos Indian Band are 
three of seven Indian Bands (Lower Similkameen Indian Band, Upper Similkameen Indian 
Band, Osoyoos Indian Band, Penticton Indian Band, Westbank First Nation, Okanagan Indian 
Band and Upper Nicola Band) who together form the Okanagan Nation.  The Regional District 
has a responsibility to steward the Okanagan Region for the mutual prosperity and well-being of 
aboriginal and non-aboriginal residents alike.   
Following several years of discussion, the Regional District, PIB, LSIB and OIB entered into a 
Protocol Agreement on June 21, 2013.  The Purpose of this Protocol Agreement is to provide a 
framework for: 

a) formalizing a Government to Government relationship; 
b) recognizing and celebrating diversity, while cooperating with each other to achieve mutual 

prosperity; 
c) consultation, communication, information sharing, education, and cooperation between the 

Parties; and 
d) collaborative decision making or negotiations in appropriate areas of common interest.  

 



49 

 RDOS 2015  

RDOS Business Plan - 2017 

Ownership 
§ Office of Prime Interest (OPI):  Manager of Legislative Services 
§ Offices of Collateral Interest (OCI):  Senior Management Team 

The Activity 
There are two groups formed out of the Protocol Agreement; being the Joint Council and the 
Steering Committee.  In 2017, the Regional District will administer the protocol agreement on 
behalf of the participants.  The Joint Council has established an implementation plan and the 
Regional District will assist with the implementation of the 2017 phase of the plan. 

Measurement 
This is an activity-based objective entailing regular reporting to the Board and will production of a 
year-end report on progress. 
 
Weighting (2 points of 15 for this KSD) 
• 1 point for supporting regular joint council and steering committee meetings to promote good 

relations in the Regional District 
• 1 point for implementing the 2017 actions identified in the Joint Council Action Plan 

 
Goal 4.3: To promote Board and Chair Effectiveness 
Objective 4.3.1: By assisting the Board to operate in an effective manner  
 
Description 
Communication is an integral part of Board success and by opening up new channels of 
communication, the Board will be able interact digitally with a larger number of citizens and 
stakeholders.   
In addition, the Board has determined that they would participate in a self-assessment to identify 
opportunities for members to increase their understanding of their roles and responsibilities and 
to open a discussion amongst themselves on what an effective Board would look like.  Using a 
self-assessment tool can also help a board become a stronger team, improve their problem 
solving skills and increase their accountability.  The Regional District has a Board of 18 
Members from diverse backgrounds and experiences.  We have 14 different jurisdictions and 
odd accountability/voting structures.  Managing expectations on how we conduct business is 
important. 

Ownership 
§ Office of Prime Interest (OPI):  Manager of Legislative Services 
§ Offices of Collateral Interest (OCI):  Senior Management Team 
 
The Activity 
The 2017 activity will be to organize an instructive legislative workshop, to enhance our 
relationship Board committees, but also to assist the Board with a self-assessment process for 
Board discussion. 

Measurement 
assist with implementation and analysis of a survey of Board Effectiveness in 2016. 



50 

 RDOS 2015  

RDOS Business Plan - 2017 

 
Weighting (3 points of 15 for this KSD) 
• 1 point for planning and implementing a legislative workshop in November 2017 
• 1 point for enhancing relationship with Board committees/ commissions 
• 1 point for facilitating the 2017 Board self-evaluation 

 
Goal 4.3: To promote Board and Chair Effectiveness 
Objective 4.3.2: By implementing Area “D” Governance Committee 

recommendations  
 
Description: 
The purpose of the 2016 Area “D” Governance Study (the “Study”) was to review the current 
community governance in the electoral area and illustrate the features of the current local 
government structure through description of the service delivery, cost recovery, and decision-
making arrangements. 
 
The study will provided the communities in the electoral area with current information about its 
governance and services, and the capabilities of the rural governance system by: 
(a)  describing governance of unincorporated areas in the Province of BC, 
(b)  describing local service providers in the study area including roles, responsibilities, 

geographic and legal limits of jurisdiction, powers and cost recovery mechanisms, 
(c)  describing all local services provided in the study area including the geographic extent for 

benefits of costs, the cost recovery methods used, and extent of cooperation and 
integration 

(d)  identifying geographies of concurrent services and communities, and, 
(e)  engaging residents and property owners in the identification of common interests and 

concerns. 
 
The governance study committee (the “Committee”) was established and was responsible for 
guiding and managing the research, analysis, and public engagement aspects of the Study. 
Terms of reference for the Study were issued by the Ministry and a consultant was retained to 
assist the Committee in fulfilling their mandate prior to the end of 2016. 
 
Ownership: 
· Office of Primary Interest: Manager of Legislative Services 
· Office of Secondary Interest: Senior Management Team 

 
Activity: 
Fact sheets and the public consultation process involving citizens from all parts of Area D was 
concluded in 2016 and the Committee presented the results, with their recommendations to the 
Board.  Recommendations from the report will be implemented in 2017, including further 
discussion on separating Area “D” along the D-1 and D-2 service areas. 
 
Measurement: 
This objective will be measured by implementation or progress against the recommendations 
from the Area D Governance Study. 

Weighting (2 points of 15 for this KSD) 
• 2 points for implementing the recommendations from the Area D Governance Committee 



51 

 RDOS 2015  

RDOS Business Plan - 2017 

 
Goal 4.4 To develop a responsive, transparent corporation 
Objective 4.4.1: By ensuring all existing bylaws and policies are kept in a current and 

useful form and content 
 
Description 
Local Governments in a system of representative democracy are obligated, morally and legally, 
to be transparent in the conduct of their business.  There are certain business activities which 
require confidentiality, but by and large, business is to be conducted openly.  Further, by 
allowing citizen’s to gain a better understanding of what their local government is doing, we can 
explore different ways to connect, develop laws and policies, services and mechanisms that will 
allow us to be more inclusive of different perspectives, regions, people and needs.  Local 
governments are enabled by the Province and their activities are determined through Bylaws, 
policies and resolutions.   
 
Ownership 
§ Office of Prime Interest (OPI):  Manager of Legislative Services 
§ Offices of Collateral Interest (OCI):  Senior Management Team 

The Activity 
This objective is activity based and will commence with the development of clear bylaws and 
policies.  In 2017 the O/CAO will review all of the bylaws and policies on our register for 
relevance and currency; bring those bylaws and policies that need updating to the Board for 
discussion and maintain the standard operating procedure manual to ensure compliance.  It 
would also be the intent in 2017 to ensure all of our irrigation district bylaws have been 
transferred to the RDOS format and continue consolidating our bylaws, where consolidation is 
required. 

Measurement 
Submission of bylaws and policies for Board review 
 
Weighting (3 points of 15 for this KSD) 
• 1 point for conducting privacy impact assessments on new recreation software, building 

permit tracker, enforcement ticket tracker, development tracker and Vadim updates 
• 2 points for ensuring all irrigation district bylaws have been transferred to RDOS format 

  



52 

 RDOS 2015  

RDOS Business Plan - 2017 

2017 FINANCIAL PLAN 

The 2017 Financial Plan for the RDOS will be inserted following adoption by the Board in 
March. 
 
RISKS AND MITIGATIONS  

Risk Identification and Mitigation 

The Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen 2017 Business Plan includes assessments and 
assumptions for the next year.  The following represents the top risks to the Regional District in 
achieving its business plan and maintaining its operations. 

The purpose of ERM is to ensure that risk identification, assessment and prevention are 
incorporated into the management oversight and processes of the Regional District and to 
assist in identifying priorities set forth in RDOS’s business plan.  The intent being to manage the 
uncertainties we incur in our current operations and our future plans. 

The 2017 Enterprise Risk Management Plan identifies many threats, but only two make our top 
risk standard based on our pre and post mitigation rating: 

· Man-made or Natural Disaster – RDOS implements its Emergency Plan and opens the 
Emergency Operations Centre numerous times each year.  We have a significant 
organization that manages our response, with the support of the Province, and we 
continually train our people.  Nevertheless, we’re in a region that is susceptible to natural 
and man-made threats and this is a moderate risk. 


	SCHEDULE OF MEETINGS
	ENVIRONMENT & INFRASTRUCTURE
	B. West Bench Water Meter Rates
	B.1. West Bench Water Rates Record of Meeting


	CORPORATE SERVICES
	C. Best Practices in Technology

	COMMUNITY SERVICES
	B.1. Keremeos Programming

	RDOS BOARD
	A. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
	1. Consent Agenda – Corporate Issues
	A.1.a. Dec1CorporateServices
	A.1.b. Dec1Environment
	A.1.c. Dec1ProtectiveServices
	A.1.d. Dec1BdMtg

	2. Consent Agenda – Development Services
	A.2.a. D2016.092-DVP (Report - Jung Marino)
	A.2.a.i. D2016.092-DVP (Permit - Jung Marino)
	A.2.a.ii. D2016.092-DVP (Representations - Jung)

	A.2.b. C2016.103-TUP (Report - Chipchura)
	A.2.b.i. C2016.103-TUP (Permit Renewal - Chipchura)
	A.2.b.ii. C2016.103-TUP (Representations - Chipchurra)-1

	A.2.c. D2016.105-TUP (Report - Konanz)
	A.2.c.i. D2016.105-TUP (Permit Renewal - Konanz)
	A.2.c.ii. D2016.105-TUP (Representations - Konanz)

	A.2.d. E2016.102-TUP (Report - Partone)
	A.2.d.i. E2016.102-TUP (Permit Renewal - Partone)
	A.2.d.ii. E2016.102-TUP (Representations - Partone)

	A.2.e. E2016.104-TUP (Riccio)
	A.2.e.i. E2016.104-TUP (Permit - Renewal Riccio)
	A.2.e.ii. E2016.104-TUP (Representations - Riccio)

	A.2.f. E2016.108-TUP (Report - Minchau)
	A.2.f.i. E2016.108-TUP (Permit Renewal - Minchau)
	A.2.f.ii. E2016.108-TUP (Representations - Minchau)

	A.2.g. E2016.114-TUP (Report- Richards)
	A.2.g.i. E2016.114-TUP (Permit Renewal - Richards)
	A.2.g.ii. E2016.114-TUP (Representations-Richards)

	A.2.h. E2016.119-TUP (Report - Hollyhock Trust)
	A.2.h.i. E2016.119-TUP (Permit Renewal - Hollyhock Trust)
	A.2.h.ii. E2016.119-TUP (Representations - Hollyhock)

	A.2.i. E2016.120-TUP (Report - Cresswell Ashbrook)
	A.2.i.i. E2016.120-TUP (Permit Renewal - Cresswell Ashbrook)
	A.2.i.ii. E2016.120-TUP (Representations - Cresswell Ashbrook)



	B. DELEGATIONS
	C. DEVELOPMENT SERVICES – Rural Land Use Matters
	C.1. D2016.094-TUP (Report - Kappes)
	C.1.a. D2016.094-TUP (Permit - Kappes)
	C.1.b. D2016.094-TUP ( Representations - Kappes)

	C.2. C2016.066-ZONE (Report 3rd - South Okanagan Ventures)
	C.2.a. C2016.066-ZONE C2453.29 (SO Ventures ZB)
	C.2.b. C2016.066-ZONE C2453.29 (PH Report) (SO Ventures)
	C.2.c. C2016.066-ZONE SO Ventures REPRESENTATIONS

	C.3. C2016.082-ZONE (Report - 3rd Gallagher Lake Area Plan)
	C.3.a. C2016.082-ZONE (Amendment Bylaw 2452.16)
	C.3.b. C2016.082-ZONE (Appendix 1) 3rd as amended
	C.3.c. C2016.082-ZONE (Amendment Bylaw 2452.16 - Schedule X-2)
	C.3.d. C2016.082-ZONE (PH REPORT - Gallagher Lake Area Plan)
	C.3.e. C2016.082-ZONE Gallagher Lake - Responses Received
	C.3.f. C2016.082-ZONE (Amendment Bylaw 2453.30)
	C.3.g. C2016.082-ZONE C2453.30 (PH REPORT - Klein)
	C.3.h. C2016.082-ZONE (C2453.30 - REPRESENTATIONS)

	C.4. D2014.071-ZONE (Reprt D-1 OCP (3rd and adopt)
	C.4.a. D2014.071-ZONE - BL 2683 Area D-1 OCP Final 20161206_ER
	C.4.b. D2014.071-ZONE OCP D1 - MAP SCHEDULES
	C.4.c. D2014.071-ZONE (D1 OCP) Community Response Report
	C.4.d. D2014.071-ZONE (D2683 Kaleden-Apex OCP Bylaw PH RPT
	C.4.e. D2014.071-ZONE (D1OCP ) Representations

	C.5. D2016.096-ZONE (Report - 2457.15 LH2 zone 3rd and adopt)
	C.5.a. D2016.096-ZONE (Amendment Bylaw No. 2457.15)
	C.5.b. D2016.096-ZONE (Apex-D1OCP) PUBLIC HEARING RPT
	C.5.c. D2016.096-ZONE (Representations - 2457.15)


	D. COMMUNITY SERVICES – Protective Services
	D.1. FireMasterPlanAwardofContractReport

	E. COMMUNITY SERVICES – Rural Projects
	E.1. Creek Park Land Aquistions
	E.1.a. Creek Park to KVR Map


	F. FINANCE
	F.1. Funding for Area G Residents - Water Meters
	F.1.a. Bylaw 2766 Community Works Gas Tax Expenditure Area G
	F.1.b. KID - Letters of Suuport


	G. OFFICE OF THE CAO
	G.1. MRDT
	G.1.a. Letter of Support - Travel Penticton

	G.2. LS Community Forest Corp
	G.3. BL2690 RPT Environmental Conservation
	G.3.a. BL2690 adopt

	G.4. Naramata Water system Petition-Kettle Ridge
	G.4.a. BL2747
	G.4.b. BL1804_07
	G.4.c. BL2431
	G.4.d. BL1804_03

	G.5. RPT External Agency Appointments
	G.6. Commission Appointments
	G.7 Milfoil Equipment Report
	G.7.a. 2016-12-07 RDOS OBWB Milfoil Equipment Trust
	G.7.b. Memo re OBWB Milfoil Equipment

	G.8. 2017 Business Plan Report
	G.8.a. 2017 Business Plan V.02


	H. CAO REPORTS
	1. Verbal Update

	I. OTHER BUSINESS
	1. Chair’s Report
	2. Board Representation
	3. Directors Motions
	4. Board Members Verbal Update






